Delivering strong
growth and building scale
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Welcome to our Annual Report 2015

We are an integrated producer broadcaster,
creating, owning and distributing high-quality

content on multiple platforms.

maximising

We invest over £1billion annually in our programming,
significantly more than our commercial competitors,
and have an unrivalled ability to deliver mass audiences
across all demographics for our advertisers

(®) See page 18 for more

growing

As an integrated producer broadcaster we create
value from world-class content that we develop,
own and distribute around the world

(®) See page 22 for more
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building

As we grow our investment in content, we are
creating more windows to extend the reach of that
content and monetise it across more markets and
platforms, both free and pay.

@ See page 26 for more

Front Cover

. Clockwise from the top Poldark (ITV Studios UK
for the BBC), 2015 Rugby World Cup winners New
Zealand, Rovers Return from Coronation Street,
I'mA Celebrity Get Me Out Of Here! Family Guy
launched in February 2016 oniTV2, The Votce
(Talpa Media for the BBC)
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Emmerdale had an
average share of
viewing of 32%n 2015
and reached 62% of the
UK population, which

Is more than 35 mitlion
viewers Emmerdale
has been sold to

139 countnes

The Chase has now
beenproducedin

mne countries and sold
to over 130 countries

Thunderbirds Are Go!
has now beensold to
90 countries, ncluding
a four-senes deal with
Amazon to debut on
Pnme Video inthe US
Wearealso starting
to ¢drive value from
rnerchandising as we
extend the franchise
beyond the tetevision set
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Strategic Report
The Strategic Report explains in detall how we have performed this year and sets out a falr review of
the business abalanced and comprehensive analysis of our performance the use of key performance
indtcators to explam the progress we have made adescription of the principat nsks and uncertainties
facing the Company, and an indication of petential future developments The Strateqic Reportis
prepared in line with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and the Company has had
regard to the guidance issued by the Financial Reporting Counctl It 1s intended to provide shareholders
with abetter understanding of the Cormpany, of its position in the markets withuin which 1t operates, and
of its prospects Insetting out the Company’s main rsks and uncertanties anindication of potential
future developments andinother content this report and accounts contains statements that are based
onknowledge and information available at the date of preparation of the Strategic Report and what are
betieved to be reasonable judgements and therefore cannot be considered as indications of Likelihood
Ke or certainty Awide range of factors may cause the actual outcomes and results to differ materatly from
Y thase contained within or imphed by these various farward-looking statements None of these

statements should be construed as aprofit forecast

@ Read mere content within this report

Read more content online
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Strategic Report » Overview

2015 Highlights

ITV delivered another strong performance in 2015
as we continued to strengthen, rebalance and grow

the business.

Group EBITA margin of

29%

up from 28%
N 2014

Proposed an increase of
28% in the
ordinary
dvidendanda 1 Op

spectal dividend

Online, Pay
& Interactive

revenue UP 23%

1 Non-Net Advertising Revenue (Non-NAR) includes all ITV revenue, both internal and external, except Net Advertising Revenue (NAR)
2 EBITAbefore exceptional items has been adjusted to reflect the inclusion of production tax credits (‘adjusted EBITA)

3 Profit before tax s £641 milion (201 €605 rrullion)
4 Reported EPS 1512 4p (2014 116p)

2 ITV plc Annuat Report and Accounts 2015




P 2015 Highlights

[P,

Pictured left to nght Good Morning
Britain s broadcast oniTV five
mornings aweek, Unforgotten was a
cntically acclaimed drama produced
by Mainstreet Pictures, which was
acquired by ITV Studios UK 1in 2015

6% growth
in NAR

Again outperforming
our estimate of the
total television
advertising market

In 2015 we grew our share
of broadcast to

46.1%

ITV 1s the biggest marketing
platform in the UK, reaching

around

80%

of the television owning
population every week

33% growth
intotal ITV
Studios revenue

With over half its revenue
generated outside the UK

Poldark has now been sold to
107 countries It has been
recommissioned for a
second seres

Coronation Street was the most
watched soap of 2015 with an
average of eight million viewers
over the year It has been sold

to 132 countries

Non-NAR revenues
account for

49% of total

revenues
in 2015

Britain's Got Talent was the
most watched entertamment
programme of 2015 with an
average of over 10 5 million
viewers across the series

The England vs Wales Rugby
World Cup match was watched
by 8.7 mullion viewers and was
the most watched sporting
event of 2015

ITV plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015




Strategic Report » Overview

Investor
Proposition

ITV continues to make
significant progress

in growing and
strengthening the
business creatively,
commercially

and financially.

A strong track
record for delivery

L T L L R RN Yy

Over the last six years we have delivered strong
revenue growth and double-digit profit growth
In our key profit measures every year

We have made significant progress rebalancing
the business, reducing our dependence on UK
advertising and driving new revenue streams
to build a more global organisation

4 TV plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015

' Pictured top to bottom: 1TV
" on-screen ident, Multiscreening
+ for the Rugby World Cup

+800%

Increase in adjusted EPS
since 2009

49%

of total revenue 1s from
sources other than spot
advertising

! Pictured top tobottorm:
Broadehurch returned for a second
¢ seriesin fanuary 2015, X Factor
returned for a 12th series with

two new judges




P Investor proposition

Strong market position
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The Broadcast business delivers unrivalled
audience reach for advertisers in the UK and
we will benefit from our continued creative
investment as we exploit our content across
multiple platforms, both free and pay

Online, Pay & Interactive Is a material, fast-
growing and profitable part of the business with
continued strong growth expected as we build
a global pay and distribution business

Our international content business is now a global
player of scale, creating and owning rights and
we will continue to grow both organically and
through acquisitions in key creative markets

98%

of all commercial audiences over H Ig h lv ca s h g e n e rat |Ve

five million are on ITV

We are a highly cash generative business and

(y our disciplined approach to cash, costs and capital
+50% inedsppros oo conts o

has strengthened our batance sheet and allowed

of total Studios revenues s from
outside the UK

Investment

us to nvest in the business organically and
through acquisitions

opportunities to grow

R Ry R N Y R R R R Y )

As we continue to deliver our strategy we see
good investment opportunities to grow the
business and enhance shareholder value whilst

maintaining capital discipline

Compelling

shareholder returns

FPRERBEIS RPN INR RPN ARIIPRIIIRA RN SEEP IO RAG PP IRGEP IR A Rb TR

1 Pictured The England football We are committed to growing shareholder

. teamuallbe part of the 2016 returns and have targeted to deliver 20% ordinary
. UEFA European Championships

; whichwill be broadcast on [TV dividend growth to 2016 to achieve a dividend

cover of between 2 0 to 2 5x adjusted EPS

£11bn

returned to shareholders since 2011

ITV ple Annual Report and Accounts 2015




Strategic Report » Overview

ITV at a Glance

ITV, as an integrated producer broadcaster, creates,
owns and distributes high-quality content on
multiple platforms.

Broadcast
& Online

46.1%

largest share of
the UK TV ad market

21.2%

share of viewing
for the ITV Family
in 2015

27

platforms that
carry our content

We operate the largest commercial family of channels in the UK
and deliver our content through traditional television broadcasting
as well as on demand via the ITV Hub

ITV broadcasts 3 wide vaniety of content onits family of free-to-air channels We invest
over £1 billion annually in programming for our channels whichis primanly funded by
television advertising revenue ITV has the largest share of the UK television advertising
market, and we estirnate this share to be 46 1% 1n 2015 (2014 45 9%)

The family of channels attracted a total share of viewing (SOV) of 21 2% in 2015
(2014 22 0%), the largest audience of any UK commercial broadcaster

Our mamin channel s the largest commercial channel in the UK, delivering 98% of all
commercial audiences over five million

Our free-to-ar digital channels provide more targeted demographics for advertisers
such as 16-34's, ABCT Men and Housewives with Children, and consist of ITV2 and
ITV3, the two largest digital channels in the UK, and ITV4, CITV and ITVBe

We also have high definition versions of our digital channels avarlable on pay
platforms along with ITV Encare, cur pay only channel available exclusively on Sky

In addition to Linear broadcast, [TV delivers its content across multiple platforms

This 1s either through the newly launched ITV Hub, now available on over 27 platforms
including ITV's website (itv com) and pay providers such as Virgin and Sky, or through
direct content deals with services such as Amazon, Apple Tunes and Netflix

6 ITV plc Annual Repart and Accounts 2015




P TV at aGlance

Pictured left tonght Britamn's Got

. Talentreturned for a ninth sertes n
+ 2075 with a 43% share of viewing

. (2014 43%), Loose Women has

« beenbroadcast aspart of the ITV

: daytime schedule for 16 years and
. continues to drive good audiences

ITV total revenue
O Broadcast & Online £2,146m
OHTV Studios £1,237m

ITV adjusted EBITA
O Broadcast & Online £659m
QITV Studios £206m

ITV Studios

7,000+

hours of original
content produced
and delivered in 2015

58

labels

=10

different countries
supplying over

90

channels

We have built significant scale in key creative markets around the
world, creating and producing programmes and formats that return
and travel, namely drama, entertainment and factual entertainment

ITV Studios creates and produces content in the UK and internationally, while
our distribution business, Global Entertainment, sells finished programmes
and formats worldwide

ITV Studios UK

ITV Studios UK 1s the largest commercial producer in the UK We produce
programming across a diverse range of genres such as drama, entertainment and
factual for ITV's own channels, as well as for other UK broadcasters such as the BBC,
Channel 4, Channel 5 and Sky

ITV America

ITV America is the largest unscripted independent producer of content in the US

We have acquired a number of unscnipted and reality producers and have grown

our presence in scrnpted content, using our strong cash flows to produce high profile
dramas with the potential to travel and build international appeal

ITV Studios Rest of World

ITV Studios also operates in the Netherlands, Germany, France, Australia and the
Nordics, producing content for local broadcasters in these regions This content

Is either created locally or are formats that have been created elsewhere by ITV,
primarily the UK

Global Entertainment

Global Entertainment, ITV's distribution business, awns the nights of ITV programmes
and formats and acquires third-party content and distributes this to other
broadcasters and platforms internationally Within this business we also finance
productions both on and of f-ITV to acquire global distribution nghts

ITV ple Annual Report and Accounts 2015




Strategic Report b Overview

Market Review

The market environment in which we operate
is dynamic and constantly changing.

Consolidation of media and telecoms compantes and the increasing influence of technology brings both
challenges and opportunities that we believe we are able to respond to with pace and confidence

Key market trends

Global Content

Broadcast & Online

Global demand for content continues to
grow, with more channels, more platforms
and new entrants increasing spend on
high-guality programming We estimate
that the global content market is growing
at around 5% per annum, with some genres
such as drama growing faster than others

This growth can be attributed to a number
of factors, including a larger international
pay television market, convergence in the
telewision market, where telecomand
new media companies are Il"ICI'EEIS!I"Igl\[
competing with tradittonal media
companies for content and viewers, online
players such as Netflix and Amazon have
continued to invest heavily in archive and
new content, and online advertising driven
platforms like YouTube and Facebook are
creating a new market for short formand
digital content

The US s by far the targest content market
n the world, dominating the globat
production sector, with the UK the second
targest market This represents a significant
opportunity for ITV Studios, which has a
strong presence in both regions

Demand for drama, particularly US drama,
has increased significantly in the last few
years Onginal scripted content becomes
brand defiming for broadcasters and OTT
playersin an increasingly competitive
global environment US studios continue
to dominate the market for dramamn

the US and internationally, however the
emergence of Netflix and Amazonin
creating high-quality original scripted
content has increased cornpetition in the
market 1TV America has developed a
number of scripted programmes including

Aquarius, The Good Witch and Texas Rising
Leveraging our network relationships and
international distnbution network, we

are looking to expand our global scripted
business and develop a strong portfolio

of international and returning drama

In the UK, there Is stronger demand and
higher viewing figures for UK content over
imported series We are a major producer
of scnipted content and have further
reinforced this position through acquirnng
Mammoth Screen and Twofour Group
Our 2015 scripted delivenes included
Poldark, Unforgotten and Home Fires

While not growing as quickly as scripted
content, demand for non-scripted content
remains strong as networks continue to
require lower cost, high volume popular
senies The UK remains the dominant
producer of unique non-scripted formats,
producing almost twice as many as the US
ITV has significantly strengthened its
capability in this areawith the acquisition
of Talpa Media Along with the established
entertainment and factual entertainment
genres, scripted reality programming,
where we have focused our US acquisitions,
has grown quickly with formats such

s Pawn Stars, Real Housewives and

Duck Dynasty

ITV 1s now a genuine gtabal player in
non-scripted content, being the largest
unscripted independent producer i the
Us, as well as the largest commercial
production company in the UK The large
independent production companies, such
as Endernol Shine Group and Fremantle
Media, continue to be TV Studios’ mam
competitors in non-scripted content

Overrecent years the number of ways to
watch TV has greatly increased with viewers
able to choose a varety of platforms,
both free and pay Linear viewing remains
domnant although viewing habits vary
by demographic with younger viewers
watching rmore non-tinear content than
older demographics Non-linear viewing,
while currently only a small proportion
of total viewing, 1s growing fast and we
continue to Invest in ITV's online offering,
for exampte the [TV Hub, to compete
successfully in this market

Television viewing

ITV competes for viewers with the BEC
and commercal broadcasters including
Channel 4, Sky and Channel 5 Since the
digital switchaver, the number of available
channels has grown which has impacted
the SOV of the traditional broadcasters
However, despite an increase in the number
of channels, TV and BBC1 continue to be
the only channels consistently able to
deliver mass audiences as well as targeted
demographics, and In 2015 1TV delivered
98% of all commeraal audiences over five
rmutlion viewers In 2075 the ITV family of
channels delivered a 21 2% SOV, second
only to the BBC's family of channels

8 ITV plc Annuat Report and Accounts 2015




P Market Review

Pictured left to nght. Horme Fires was a new
drama for ITV averaging 6 2 million viewers
across six episodes It has been commissioned
for asecond senes, Joanna Lumley presented
two documentarnes for ITV, Etvis and Me and
Joanna Lumley's Trans-Sibenan Adventure

Although broadcast telewision has seen
sigmificant change over the last few years
overall television viewing levels around the
world have remained high

Average television viewing in the UK n 2015
was down 2% compared to 2014 However,
over a longer-term basis viewing has been
resilient despite year-gn-year fluctuations
and remains the most popular form of media
entertainment UK average television viewing
In 2015 was 216 minutes per day whichisa
similar level to ten years ago (source BARB)

Pay television

Free-to-air telewision s delivered through
the services Freeview, YouView and Freesat,
while pay television is delivered through the
satellite operator Sky and cable operators
Virgein and BT Pay television revenue
continues to grow In aggregate but the
market dynarmics are changing rapidly as
established pay television providers such

as Sky and Virgin come under pressure from
relatively new entrants to the market such
as BT, Netflix and Amazon

Increasingly homes are supplementing

ther free television with other forms of paid
contentincluding subscnption VOD such as
Netftix, or by purchasing additional channels
from providers such as BT or Now TV

ITV participates in the pay television market,
earning revenue from various third parties,
including Sky and Virgin, through the licensing
of channels and content ITV also has 1ts pay
only television channel, ITV Encore, on the

Sky platformalong with our other pay
channels, ITV2HD, ITV3HD and ITV4 HD

Non-linear viewing

Non-linear viewing of long-form content is
mostly recorded, or timeshifted viewtng and
¢atch-up of bve television {(linear television) It
also encompasses VOD or Over The Top (OTT}
delivery of other long-form content such as
box sets and movies

While non-linear viewing has grown fastit
still accounts for a small proportion of total
viewing time in the UK we estirmate 81% of
all vewng of legal long-form content is live
(including simulcast), with a further 12%
timeshifted via a Personal Video Recorder
(PVR) and watched within 28 days of the
original broadcast date Of the estimated 7%
of content viewed on dermand, 3% 1s catch-up
viewing of broadcaster content via the
television set or to other devices such as
tablets and mobiles The remairung 4% of
contentis other VOD viewing, where viewing
of box sets wvia services such as Netflixis
replacing viewing of DVDs This is growing
quickly driven by increased availability of
devices such as smartphones, tablets and
connected televisions

Advertising revenue

ITV generates revenues fromadvertising
through traditional broadcast and

ontine, and cormpetes with commercial
broadcasters and other advertising media,
forits advertising revenues In the UK,
television has broadly held its share of the
overall advertising market over the last five
years, with a share of 275% 1n 2015(2010
29 2%) tnternet advertising has grownits
share from 29 3% in 2010 to 471% in 2015,
making the UK one of the most develcped
rmarkets for online advertising This growth
15 at the expense of print advertising, which
declined to 15 2% in 2015, down from 30 8%
" 2010

The UK television advertising market 1s
getting increasingly hard to measure as all
broadcasters have different definittons, but
we estimate ITV's share of broadcast was
451% 10 2015, up from 44 7% N 2009 This
15 because of ITV's unique ability to deliver
mass audiences across key demographics

Within online advertising, display accounts
for 16 9% of the total online advertising
spend, with the remaiming 30 2% spenton
search and classified ITV competes within
the display section of this market, providing
an advertising platform around our anbine
video content

ITV ple Annual Report and Accounts 2015 S
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Our Strategy and Business Model

We remain focused on our original vision for [TV
as an owner, producer and broadcaster of content.

We are confident that our strategy to maximise our value as an integrated producer broadcaster, creating,

owning and distributing content around the world, i1s the nght long-term path for ITV

Our strategy 1s focused
on three key prionties

maximising

maximise audience

and revenue share from
free-to-air broadcast
and VOD business

© See page 18 for more

growing
grow International
content business

© see page 22 for more

building
build a global pay
and distribution business

Q See page 26 for more

Our strategy

yd

Our sources of competitive advantage

The UK’s biggest marketing platform delivering unrivalled

commercial audiences

The scale of our channels and the significant iInvestment we make in quality
content gives [TV urigue scale and reach on our main channel and more targeted
audiences on our family of channels and the ITV Hub

80%

Our channels reach around 80% of the TV-owning population each week

World-class content

At the core of ITV 1s our focus on ¢creativity and content, whether selling unique
content around the world or iInvesting in third-party content to broadcast across
multiple platforms Internationally we have built production and distribution scale
in key global creative markets through organic growth and selective acquisitions

£1bn

We invest over £1bn annually in content for our famdy of channels

Global distribution

ITV has built relationships globally, with major networks and local broadcasters,
and owns the rights to a diverse portfolio of shows, particularly dramaand
entertainment, for internationat distribution

40,000+ |

Hours of telewision and film content |
/\ |

g e

\

Our strategic assets

Our strategic assets underpin ITV's competitive advantage

Creating and Our strong brand Our talented,
owning the nghts creative people
to quality content

10 ITV ple Annual Report and Accounts 2015




P Our Strategy and Business Madel

! Pictured left to nght The Sound of Music
¥ Livewas the first ve adaptationof 3

. musical to be broadcast on TV in the

i UK, behind the scenes for Text Santa,

' ITV'sannual chanty appeal.

@ See page 46 for iInformation on our principal nsks

Our diversified revenue streams

By developing and retaming the nghts to content, ITV s able to
maximise the value of its programme brands across a range of
revenues streams, making [TV a more balanced business and
enabling it to drive value from different revenue models

Advertising Our family of channels and the ITV Hub drive
significant advertising revenues from the mass
audiences and more targeted demographics
it delivers, which funds our investment in the

programme budget

Commercial
partnerships

We work with advertisers and advertising
agencles to provide unigue commercial
partnerships and spensorship opportunities
that extend beyond pure spot advertising

I

Pay &
interactive

We earn pay revenues primarily from licensing
our HD channels, our pay channel TV Encore
and our online video on demand (VOD) services
We also monetise our consumer interaction
with our biggest shows through competitions
andvoting

N

Original
production

We produce onginal content commissions
for broadcasters internationally from our
production bases in the UK, the US, the
Netherlands, Gerrmany, France, Australia
and the Nordics

Distribution
revenues

We own the nights to a sigrificant catalogue
of programmes and formats which we sell
and bicense to broadcasters internationally
The strong global demand for content
provides a significant opportunity for us

49%

of our total revenue 1s from sources other than traditional
spot TV advertising

N 2

Creating value

For advertisers

Through deliverng unique
scale and breadth of
demographics and new
Innovative ways of engaging
with consumers around
quality programme brands

For audiences
Through a varied, high-quality
programming schedule

For broadcasters and
platform owners

Through delivermg quality
programmung which they can
then monetise through their
own business models

Far shareholders
Through a track record of
creating shareholder value
and delivering sigruficant
shareholder returns

For our people

investing in and developing our
creative, on screen, commercial
and operational talent

ITV ple Annual Report and Accounts 2015 1




Strategic Report p Strategy and Operations

Chairman’s Statement

The last year has seen another period of strong
progress at ITV with record financial performance
and further evolution in the shape of the business.

O,

ITV is a remarkable
place to work and
employs remarkable
people. It is thanks to
their hard work that
we have produced
these results.”

This represents the sixth successive
year of growth and the turnaround
days of 2010 are now long behind us
As a result [TV is a very different
business today, from that which this
team inherited

The success of ITV depends on driving
ahead creatively, commerciaily and
financally, while at the same time
combiruing these strands successfully in
the context of very strong management
leadership Creative potential sits at
the core of our business, and measured
in terms of talented people and new
programme generation, ITV s stronger
than it has ever been Commercially
the year has seen further progress

in rebalancing the business towards
content and multi-platform
broadcasting Financially we have a
business generating strong cash flows
and high return on capital

When we started on the onginal
transformation programme it was
commonplace to hear television referred
to as a no-growth business Infact,

many saw our model as in decline
Instead we have grown strongly every
year and emphatically believe cur
combination of multi-platform
broadcasting and content provides

a platform for continued growth

12 ITV plec Annual Report and Accounts 2075

That s not to say that the changing
broadcast landscape is entirely benign
We can all see that changing viewing
hatits, especiatly amongst young people
will affect conventional Linear television
The arrival of new global video on
demand broadcasters ts affecting
viewing habits and provides new
competition for top-end drama

Aind new online advertising models
provide our commercial customers
with different routes to market

These challenges are also opportunities
for ITV Great content Is in demand
globally As new viewing opportunities
emerge so the thirst for really good
programmes increases Under its
international umbrella ITV has an
extraordinarily diverse but high talent
set of content businesses In the UK our
integrated producer broadcaster model
15 stronger than ever with increasing
in-house output

Our audience strength in the UK and
close working relationships with
advertisers provides a uniquely powerful
marketing platform Far from replacing
television, the online advertising market
has renforced our unique ability to
provide advertisers with rapid access

to very large audiences with persuasive
and emotional branding messages The
strength of ITV's offering has enabled

it to grow its share of broadcast
advertising revenues over the last

five years




P Chairman's Statement

. Pictured left to right The Good Witchwas arred in

: the US on the Hallmark channel in February 2015,
.+ behind the scenes on The Frankenstein Chronictes,

* anITV Encore commissicn

Dividend

Ordinary dividend

6.0p

Baes adab 4 sas 4 aa

Special divid.end

10.0p

One of the hallmarks of our approach
has been disciptined control of costs and
spending As aresult, over 90% of our
operating profit 1s convertedinto cash
and we have been able to both invest
inacquisitions and grow progressively
our dividend Our approach s to invest
carefully in selected new growth
opportunities while at the same

tirme making returns to shareholders
Within this context we continue to

look at potential acquisitions that could
further enhance our ability to execute
our strategy

Against this context we maintan a
conservative balance sheet Thatis
not just a consequence of strong
performance but a Board policy — to
maintain low financial nsk and to take
where appropriate bold creative and
operating decisions

Our Board structure and workings
reflect our commitment to a creative,
commercial and financial management
philosophy The ‘team sheet’ includes
strands of experience and knowledge

in atl three areas We have a relatively
small Board, closely engaged with the
business, supporting but also challenging
the executive We believe that the
strength of a Board comes from its
understanding of what really goes onin
the business and a spint of openness and
transparency around the Board table

ITV plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015

We are very selective about Board
appointments Each addition needs to
add to our skill base and diversity, but
atsorelate to the business Against this
context | am detighted to welcome
Anna Manz to our Board She will bring
new insight from the consumer world
and valuable experience

ibelieve that the well spring of our
success Is our people and the culture
that binds them together [TV s a
remarkable place to work and employs
remarkable people Itis thanks to therr
hard work that we have produced
these results

Lastly, after the AGM | pass the batan
on to a talented and accomplished new
Chairman After nearly six and a half
years inwhat has been a carefully
planned succession | want to thank

all our shareholders and colleagues

for ther commitment

Being part of ITV during this exciting
period has been a great privilege

Archie Norman
Charman

13
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Chief Executive’s Review

In 2015 ITV delivered another
strong performance as we continue
to strengthen and grow the business.

We achieved good revenue growth
across all parts of the business, with
external revenue up 15%, and for the
sixth consecutive year we delivered
double-digit growthin our key
profit measures.

ITV's performance in 2015 builds

on our consistent record of strong
results since we launched our strategy
six years ago Since 2009 we have
Iincreased Group external revenues by
58%, adjusted EBITA by 328%, adjusted
earnings per share (EPS) by over 800%
and basic EPS by over 400% We have
irnproved our cash position by turning
this profit into cash, which has allowed
us to significantly invest in the business
while at the same time returning over
£11 billion to shareholders to date,
with more proposed for 2016 We will
also mamtamn financial flexibility to
continue to invest In the business

[TV today 1s a demonstrably better
business creatively, commercially and
financially We've made significant
progress in reducing our dependence

on UK spot advertising and in growing
new revenue streams [n 2015, 49% of
ITV's total revenues came from sources
other than traditional spot advertising

Our global production business, ITV
Studios, continues to grow In the UK
and internationally, both organically
and through acquisitions in key creative
markets, and 1s now a global player

of scale with over hatf of its revenues
coming from outside the UK Qur
Broadcast business is robust and
growing as we continue to deliver
unrivalled audience reach for advertisers,
and further strong growth in Online,
Pay & Interactive, which 1s a material
and profitable part of the business

We are committed to our original vision
of ITV as an owner and producer of
world-class content We are confident
that our strategy to maximise our value
as anintegrated producer broadcaster,
making our content famaus on multiple
ptatforms befare distributing 1t around
the world, 1s the right long-term path
for ITV

We will continue to strengthen the
business and grow new revenue
streams both organically and through
acquisitions, as we see investment
oppartunities across the business
There will be an increasing emphasis

on building a global pay and distribution
business as we seek to deliver and
maonetise our content onmultiple
platforms, free and pay
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[ We remain focused on delivering
against our three strategic priorities
in the areas where we can achieve
most growth

maximising

maximise audience and
revenue share from
free-to-air broadcast
and VOD business

@ See page 18 for more

growing
grow an international
content business

@ See page 22 for more

building
binld a global pay and
distribution business

(® see page 26 for more

ITV delivers another strong
performance

In 2015 we grew external revenue by 15%
to £2,972 million (2014 £2,590 million),
reflecting 6% growth N NAR to

£1,719 million (2014 £1,629 million) and
over £300 millon growth in non-NAR to
£1,664 million (2074 £1,327 millon), up
25% Together with our continued focus
on ¢ash and costs we delivered another
year of double-digit profit growth

with total adjusted EBITA up 18%

to £865 million (2014 £730 milion),
corresponding to an improved adjusted
EBITA margin of 29% (2014 28%)
Adjusted EPS in the year increased 20%
to 16 5p (2014 13 8p) and statutory EPS
increased 7% to 12 4p (2014 116p)



P Chief Executive's Review

' Pictured left toright Assault course
game show, Ninja Warrior UK was

¢ broadcast oniTVin Spring 2015,

i produced by ITV Studios UK, Safe

1 House was ITV's second most watched
¢ newdramain 2015 A second series

. hasbeen commussioned

The business remains highly cash
generative and profit to cash conversion
was 91%, even after increased
investment in our scnpted business

We ended the year with net debt of
£315 miltion (2014 net cash £41 million)
after acquisitions of £406 million (net

of cash acquired), dvidend payments

of £459 million and penston deficit
contnbutions of £90 million

Witha strong balance sheet we are
able to continue to invest In the assets
underpinning our strategy, developing
our content, our people and our brand
As a people and talent business we

also continue to drive high employee
engagement and attract a diverse
workforce to support the success of [TV
Reflecting ITV’s strong performance in
2015 and in Line with its policy, the Board
has proposed a final dvidend of 41p
This equates to a full year dividend of

6 Op, up 28%, which 1s well ahead of
earnings growth and 1s a significant step
forwardin taking ITV's dwidend cover
closer toits policy range

The Board is also proposing a

£400 million (10 Op per share} speciat
didend, which comes after a year

of sigruficant investrment at ITV and
reflects ITV's strong cash generation and
the Board's confidence in the business
Following this distribution 1TV's leverage
remans well below the 1 5x net debt

to EBITDA celling and gives ITV the
flexibility to continue to invest across
the business for further growth

Maximise audience and revenue
share from free-to-air broadcast

and VOD business

Against the backdrop of a rapidly changing
rmedia environment, our Broadcast
business has performed consistently well
over the last few years and has generated
sigrificant profit and cash, supported by
aur strong programme schedule, tight
cost control and a sustained recovery

In the UK advertising market

In 2015 Broadcast & Online revenues
were up 6% to £2,146 million (2014

£2 023 million), with adjusted EBITA up
16% to £659 million (2014 £568 million),
which reflects 6% growth in tughly geared
NAR and 23% growth in high margin
Online, Pay & Interactive revenue

Continued strong advertising growth

In 2015 ITV again outperformed its
estimate of the television advertising
market ITV invests over £1bitlion annually
In programming and has unique scale
and reach whichis much indemand from
advertisers, delivering mass audiences
on the ITV main channel as well as more
targeted demographics on the family of
channels and on the ITV Hub This scale
and strength of our brand underpins

the success of our free-to-ar and on
demand platforms

ITV s also driving more value from its
brands and far advertisers through
partnerships and sponsorship deals,
Increased consumer INteractivity, and
by developing new and more targeted
advertising inibatives to extend
advertising campaigns beyond the
television spot, such as AdSync+ and
ITV AdVentures

Focus on strengthening viewing
performance

In 2075 ITV Family Share of Viewing (SOV)
declined by 3% While there were many
successful programmes in the first half,
our viewing performance was impacted
by the launch of a number of new
free-to-ar digital channels, some of
our shows, particularly in the factual
genre, not performing as well as we

had expected and relatively strong
competition from BBC TV Family
Share of Commercial Impacts (SOC) }
was down 4%

We have new creative leadership in place
and we remain focused on strengthening
our viewing performance to ensure we
continue to deliver standout content
that drives mass audiences for our
advertisers We believe that around
£1billion i1s the rnight level of mvestment
for our programme budget and we have a
strong slate of proggrammes for 2016 with
many new and returning programmes
across all key genres

Responsive to a dynamic environment
The market environment in which we
operate 13 constantly changingwhich
provides both opportunities and
challenges Viewers, and particularly the
younger generation, are changing the !
way they consume content and the digital
revolution has dramatically increased

the number of devices and platforms on
whirch content is viewed As a result online
is one of the fastest growing businesses
within TV and we will continue to Invest

in the quality and accessibility of the

ITV Hub, the new digital home for all our
channels and services, as well as seeking
new ways to monetise and distnbute

aur content

However, while online viewing s growing
rapidly in the UK, it remams a small
proportion of total viewing at 7%, with
the majority of tetevision watched live

Broadcast markets differ internationally
and therefore there cannot necessarily
be a direct read across However, what

1s common to all markets 1s that at the
heart of a successful Broadcast business
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Chief Executive's Review continued

15 owning and exploiting the nghts to
high-quality, ‘must have’ content That
1s why growing an international content
business remains central to our strategy
as an integrated producer broadcaster

Grow international content business
in 2015, reflecting the strength of our
gtobal production labels, [TV Studios
delivered good revenue growth both
organically and from our acquisitions,
with growth across the business Total
revenue was up 33% to £1,237 million
(2014 £933 mullion), of which organic
revenue was up 8%, while adjusted
EBITA increased 27% to £206 million
(2014 £162 million)

Our vision 1s to be a scaled international
business, owning and exploiting rights
in key genres that travel Inline with
this, we continue to strengthen our
position as the UK's largest commercial
production company, as well as creating
an increasingly internat:onal business
with production bases in America,

the Netherlands, France, Germany, the
Nordics and Austratia QOver half of ITV
Studios total revenue 1s generated
outside the UK and we have become

a top independent producer across
Europe and the US

Itis clear that there remamns strong
global demand for high-quality content
from both broadcasters and platform
owners We estimate that the global
content market 1s growing at about 5%
per annum Capitalising on this demand,
ITV's strategy continues to be to
develop, own and manage content

with international appeal in the key
creative markets

Over the last few years we have built
scale in production markets with solid
creative track records both organically
and through acquisitions This year we
have strengthened our business, with
the acquisitions of Talpa Media in the
Netherlands and Twofour Group and
Mammoth Screen in the UK

We continue to build scale internationally
and develop a larger portfolio of

successful series and formats across
genres and across their content lifecycle
We will focus on programmes that
return and travel internationally, namely
drama, entertainment and factual
entertainment We have a good slate

of new and returning programmes

with 166 new commussions and 176
recommissions delivered in 2015 and
many more in the creative pipeline for
2016 and beyond

Building a global pay
anddistribution business

As we grow our Investment in content
and own more hit shows that canbe
exported around the world, we are
creating new windows to extend the
reach of that cantent and monetise it
across more platforms and markets

Capitalising on growing demand

for video on demand

Growth in Online, Pay & Interactive
remains strong with revenue up 23%
to £188 million (2015 £153 milion) as
viewers are changing the way they
consume content We continue to
see good growth inlong-form video
requests, up 14% while total video
consumption, which 1s the measure of
how long viewers are spending online,
was up 42%

fn Autumn 2015 we successfully
launched our new anline service the ITV
Hub, through which audiences can access
ITV broadcast content both live and on
demand This is a major step forward in
the quality, mnovation and ease of use of
our online service Live content s central
to the Hub and live simulcast viewing

1s becoming increasingly popular
particularly around sporting events and
large entertainment shows, as viewers
are using connected devices as a
television set The new service has been
very well recesved with consumption
growing strongly since launch To
continue to drive growth in our online
audiences and advertising revenues, we
will continuously Invest Inimproving the
user experience, technology and the
reach of the ITV Hub, which1s now
availabte on 27 platforms
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Frankenstein Chronicles
Frankenstemn Chronicles was the first
onginal commussion for TV Encore

Further developing pay opportunities
We have built a fast-growing and
profitable pay business in the UK from
licensing our channels, including our

pay channel ITV Encore, and content to
platforms such as Sky and Virgin Qutside
the UK we have established a number of
smaller pay propositions including Cirkus
and [TV Choice

Going forward we are looking to explore
new models for content creation and
distribution, through a mix of pay
channels and online We have invested
in a number of digital media companies
andwill continue to develop a greater
expertise and scale nmonetising our
content through a mixed economy

of organic growth, partnerships

and acquisitions

Expanding our global distnbution
netwaork

Global Entertainment’s revenues grew
9% in 2015 to £157 milion {2014 £144
million) as we have driven value from the
investments we have made in creating
and owning content with international
appeal In 2015 we invested £163 millon
in scripted content, up £60 mullion and
we continue to strengthen our portfolio
including acquiring third-party content

As ITV grows in scale, we will further
enhance our distribution network,
benefiting from our increased rights
ownership and from the stronger
network relationships we build
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Pictured left to nght ITV production
gallery working on the broadcast

of an England team football

« match, 24 Hours in A&E 15 a medical

» documentary praduced by ITV Studios
* UK for C4 and 15 In1ts seventh series

Qur acquisitions have also strengthened
Global Entertainment’s position as a
leading international distributor of
content and our focus 15 now on
leveraging our creative talent and
distnbution network to build on these
successes and develop new ways

to package and sell our content
internationally

Confident of delivering further
good growth in 2016 and beyond
We expect to deliver another good
performance in 2016 with continued
revenue growth across both businesses

Over the full year we expect to
outperform our estimate of the
television advertising market but

the phasing of NAR cver the year s
expected to be different in 2016, driven
by the timing of major sporting events
We expect ITV NAR to be flat inQ,
marginally behind the market, against
12% growth in Q1last year Q2, which
will benefit from the Euros, should

be positve

We remain focused on strengthening
our viewing performance and we have
started 2016 well, with ITV SOV up 5%
and ITV Family SOV up 2% Online, Pay
& Interactive will deliver double digit
revenue growth, driven particularly by
Online and Pay as we continue to invest
in the ITV Hub and further develop our
international pay model TV Studios I
on track to report double-digit revenue
and profit growth, primarily driven by our
recent acquisitions

Overall, we see clear opportunities for
investment in all parts of the business
And because of our strong financial
position and cash conversion, we are
confident in delivering both continued
growth and shareholder returns ITV
remains well positioned to drive value
from its talented and creative pecple,
our commetcial scale, and our global
network in the creation and distnibution
of content

Our people and our responsibility
Building a responsible business that benefits all stakeholders

The success of our strategy depends
nat just on our operational efficiency,
but also on the way we interact with our
stakeholders, the wider commurity and
the environment ITV's social purpose 1s
to use the power of the nation's most
loved and most watched programmes
to create change for good Our
responsibility strategy 1s at the heart

of everything we do with the am of
building a responsible and sustainable
business As well as complying with our
legislative and regulatory requirements
we recogrise that our actions can have
anmmpact and our reach can positively
influence society We therefore work to
identify 1ssues that are matenal to ITV
and matter to our stakeholders, helping
us to manage reputational nisk as well
as leverage our audience reach to
benefit our communities

Our responsibility priorities

Our responsibility strategy 1s focused
around three prionities people, planet
and partnerships

Peaple

Ta continue our success as an ntegrated
producer broadcaster, we want to
attract the largest possible audiences
to our channels and content and attract
the best people to work forus Todo
this we need to portray the diverse
makeup of modern society on-screen
and ensure our workplace is inclusive

E:'.enderspht e e e e e e s
Board of Directors

7 @ 1

875% . W _125% ...
Senior managers'

18 4} 5
u . 83% W 2AN7% ...
All employees?

3,061 3177

491% 509%

ate o whind abbh as as pais ses s s oas ass . aa e e

1 Allof the five fernale senicr managers were
directors of consolidated Group companies

2 Employee gender split based on total
headcount at 31 Becernber 2015

We recognise that diversity and
inclusion goes beyond gender and

we are committed to monitoring and
reporting progress on other protected
characteristics

Our programmes and services also
need to be accessible to all and we
exceed the Ofcom targets for subtitling,
audio description and signing

Planet

We rely on energy and often depend
on the resources of local communities
to hetpin the production and
broadcast of programmes In 2015,
we used 100% renewable energy in all
the builldings we own and Coronation
Street leads the industry in producing
a television drama of the highest
quality with the lowest possible
environmental impact See page 88
for our greenhouse gas disclosures

Partnerships

We strive to tackle soaal topics inan
authentic way and leverage our reach
to mass audiences to raise awareness
and money for charity In 2015, over
30 hours of airtime were dedicated
to social action [TV contributed more
than £24 million in cash and in-kind
to support chantable causes, which
equates to 2 8% of adjusted profit
before tax More locally, our people
volunteered over 1,000 hours of their
time for a cause they care about

Further information

We aim for continuous improvement
m our responsibility strategy, actions
and performance More information
on our responsibility mitiatives can be
found online

@ itvresponsibility com
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Strategic
Priority 1:
Maximise audience

and revenue share from

free-to-air broadcast
and VOD business

Pictured I'm A Celebnty Get Me Qut Of Herel returned
for a 15th series and taunched with 11 3 millson viewers
It averaged 99 millton viewers across the senes and
was up in the 16-34 demographic
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While the media environment in which we operate

is constantly changing our Broadcast business
remains robust and adaptable. ITV is the biggest
marketing platform in the UK and because of the
scale of our commercial channels, we reach around
80% of the television owning population every week.
We invest over £1 billion in our programme budget,
significantly more than our commercial competitors,
and have an unrivalled ability to deliver mass
audiences across all demographics.

(&) see page 30 for more

As a result, there continues to be a strong demand for advertising on
our family of channels, which generates significant profit and cash to
reinvest across [TV Additionally, as an integrated producer broadcaster,
our broadcast channels also provide an important platform to
showcase ITV Studios content and give it a proven track record,

before exploiting it internationally

Continued strong advertising growth driven by our

unique offering

Since 2009 ITV has mantained its leading posttion as the only
commercial broadcaster consistently able to deliver mass audiences
to our advertisers In 2015 [TV delivered 98% of all audiences over
five million and 93% of all audiences over three million

% of commeraial audiences over three and five million

ITV's unique ability to deliver these mass audiences, as well as more
targeted demographics across the family of channels and the TV Hub,
has enabled us to once again grow ITV Family NAR ahead of our
estimate of the television advertising market, even though our SOV
declined in the year SOV provides an overall measure of viewing
perfarmance, however because advertisers are buying scale and
breadth of audience, SOV 1s not necessarily a direct indicator of
advertising performance
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Strategic Priority 1 continued

O,

Television remains the
most efficient and
effective advertising
medium for advertisers
to achieve mass
simultaneous reach.”

Television remains the most efficient
and effective advertising medium

for advertisers to achieve mass
simultaneous reach Although television
has seen some price inflation over the
Last few years, the cost of advertisingis
similar to 2004 levels and compared to
many other advertising media it remains
good value, especially given the reach
and scale that it delivers As the viewing
and advertising landscape continues to
fragment, the scale of audience that
television, and particularly 1TV delwers,
becomes increasingly valuable

20

Maximising the value of our airtime
ITV 15 also focused on maxtimising the
value of its artime and driving new
revenue streams through sponsorship,
interactivity and branded content

ITV canutilise its core assets of its
strong brand and reputation, unique
commercial relationships and quality
production capability to deliver a wide
variety of marketing solutions To date
we have implemented many innovative
sponsorship deals including Aunt Bessie's
for Fm A Celebrity Get Me Qut Of Here!
and Land Rover and SSE for the Rugby
Wortd Cup We have also produceda
number of branded content sotutions
with our new service ITV AdVentures
for Suzuki and National Lottery and we
have launched AdSync+ a partnership
with RadwmOne to amplify the reach
of our tetevision advertising In 2016

we will also be introducing mere
targeted advertising

Ongoing focus on strengthening
viewing performance

Although we had many on-screen
successes in 2015, ITV Farmily's SOV
declined by 3% with {TV main channel
SOV down 4% and the digital channels
SOV down 3% This performance was a
result of the launch of some new free
digital channels, a number of our shows
not performing as well as we had
expected, particularly in the factual
genre, and relatively strong competition
from the BBC

However, we enjoyed many real
successes in the year - we broadcast the
most watched entertainment show In
Britain's Got Talent, the most watched
soap in Coronation Street, the most
watched drama in Downton Abbey and
the most watched sparting event with
Engtand vs Wales during the Rugby
World Cup Our daytime schedule
improved, including Good Morning
Britan, and we also {aunched a number
of new entertanment shows including
Mission Survive, Ninja Warrnior UK and
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You're Back in the Room, as well as
drwving significant audiences with our
returning brands, 'm A Celebrity Get
Me Out Of Here!, Britain's Got Talent
and The X Factor Our drama schedule,
which included Code of aKiller, Safe
House, Downton Abbey, Home Fires,
Unforgotten and the second series

of Broadchurch, continued to deliver
large-scale audiences

To drive viewng and engagement in
our content, we are further developing
programme apps which continue

to grow in populanity Our digitat
engagement has grown significantly

in the year, delivering 100 million votes
across our big entertainment shows
and 40 million paid competition entries

Locking ahead we have new creative
leadership in place and we remain very
focused on strengthening our viewing
performance In 2016 We believe that
around £1bilbon s the appropriate
programme budget for ITV's farmily

of channels to ensure we continue

to deliver standout content that drives
the scale and breadth of audiences that
advertisers demand We have a strong
slate of new and returning programmes
across the key genres We have 50 hours
more drama, major football and rugby
tournarnents and will continue to INvest
in daytime and soaps Our 2016 schedule
includes new programmes such as
Victona, Cold Feet, The Durrells, Margret,
Brief Encounters, Family Guy, American
Dad, Drive, Euro 2016 and the Rugby Six
Nations and returning programmes Vera,
Endeavour, Britain's Got Talent, X-Factor,
i'm ACelebrity Get Me Out Of Herel,
Love Island, Ninja Warrior UK, Long Lost
Family, The Chase and the Tour de France
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Pictured left to nght. This Marrung 1s one of
the longest runming daytime prograrmmes in
the UK and has been broadcast oniTv since
1989, Black Work was ITV's most watched
new drama i 2015 with an average of 76m
viewers across the three-part series

Remaining responsive to a changing
media environment

The market in which we operate 1s
constantly changing but tradrtronal
linear television viewing remains
resilient despite significant changes m
the availability and delivery of content
Broadcaster and other VOD 1s growing
rapidly, but it 1s a gradual process and stilt
only accounts for 7% of total viewing

On average viewers watch 216 minutes
of television a day, which 1s a similar level
to 2004 of 222 minutes The majority of
television viewing is live, which we
estimate to be 81%, as television
continues to have the power to bring
audiences together Live event television
in particular has demonstrated resilience
and a growing relevance as viewers
increasingly connect through social
media and they continue to deliver very
significant audiences Therefore large
sporting events, which also delver
valuable demographics, continue 1o be
an important part of our schedule and as
well as the Rugby Six Nations we have
also recently secured British horseracing
from 2017

Many consumers, particularly younger
Viewers, are engaging In an increasing
amount of content and entertainment
via other platforms such as social media
and video games, but television viewing
continues to dominate the way people
like to be entertained

Broadcast markets differ internationally
The key European markets are
structurally different to the US, driven
by the strength of free-to-ar tetewision,
the level of pay penetration and the cost
of pay Therefore while lessons can be
learnt from other countries, there can
be no direct read-across

Three attributes bie at the heart of ITV's
successful Broadcast proposition it’s
first-class distribution and reach across
all platforms, owning the rights to
high-quality, must have content, for all
key audiences, and providing advertisers
with creative access to the biggest and
most effective marketing platformn
the UK

2016 and beyond

On 29th February 2016 [TV completed
Its acquisition of 100% of UTV Ltd,

the television assets of UTV plc This
further strengthens ITV's free-to-ar
business and enables it to run a more
efficient network

As we continue to invest in our
integrated producer broadcast model,
our priarity 1s to strengthen our
on-screen perforrmance and we have
started 2016 well, with ITV SOV up

5% and ITV Family SOV up 2% We are
also focused on maintaining the scate
of our audiences because as the viewing
and advertising landscape continues
to fragment, this becomes increasingty
valuable to advertisers

)

The market in which we
operate is constantly
changing but traditional
linear television viewing
remains resilient despite
significant changesin
the availability and
delivery of content.”

Over the full year we again expect

to outperform our estimate of the
television advertising market, although
the phasing of NAR is expected to be
different n 2016, driven by the timing
of major sporting events We expect
ITV NAR to be flat in Q1, marginally
behind the market, against 12% growth
in Q1last year Q2, which will benefit
from the Euros, should be positive

Family Guy

Launching on ITV2 and the ITV Hub i March 2016
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Strategic
Priority 2:

Grow intern_ational
content business

Pictured Poldark was an eight-part senes
produced for the BBC by Mammaoth Screen,
which ITV Studios UK acquired in 2015 itreceived
critical acclaim and has been recomrmussioned
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Growing a scaled international content business is central to our
strategy as an integrated producer broadcaster. As ITV creates and
owns more content, our channels provide a platform to showcase
our programmes before distributing them across multiple platforms

in the UK and internationally.

(®) See page 30 for more

Growing global demand for content

The strong gtobal demand for content from
broadcasters and platform owners provides

a significant opportunity for ITV Studios

We estimate that the global content market
15 growing at about 5% per annum, with sorme
genres such as drama growing maore quickly
than others To capitalise on this, our strategy
remains to develop, own and manage content
rights in genres that return and travel
internationally, namely drama, entertainment
and factuat entertainment

In 2015 we again delivered strong growth
with revenues up 33% to £1,237 million
(2014 £933 million) and EBITA up 27% to
£206m (2014 £162 million) This bullds on
the significant growth we have achieved
over the last few years, more than doubling
revenues from £600m in 2009 to over

£12 bilionin 2015 This growth has been
achieved organically as well as through a mix
of acquisitions, partnerships, mvestments
and talent deals

Building scale in creative markets

ITV Studios has three production dvisions ~ ITV Studios UK, ITV America and ITV Studios
Rest of World The US and UK are the dominant creative markets, with the US the largest
exporter of scripted content and the UK the world leader for exported formats

Over the last few years we have built scale in these key markets, developing a portfolio

of successful series and formats We have made 16 acquisitions since 2012 mainly in the
UK and US and atso more recently Talpa Media in the Netherlands Our original business
(excluding all acquisitions we have made) continues to perform well, deliveringa 5%
compound annual growth rate since 2009, although production businesses do not deliver

straight-line revenue growth
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Strategic Priority 2 continued

O,

We have cemented
our position as

the number one
commercial producer
in the UK and a leading
indie producer in
Europe and the US”

ITV Studios UK performed strongly n
2015 with overall revenues up 19%, with
good growth in sales to [TV and to other
UK broadcasters With the acquisition of
Mammoth Screen and Twofour Group
we have strengthened our production
capability across the genres of drama,
entertainment, factual entertainment
and comedy, as well as helping to

drive further growth in our of f-ITV
commissions We have delivered series
stich as The Graham Norton Show
(BBC), 24 Hours in A&E (Channel 4),
10,000 BC {Channel 5), and following
these recent acquisiticns our portfolio
includes Poldark (BBC), The Voice (BBC),
Educating Cardiff (Channel 4) and Posh
Pawn (Channel &)

ITV Studios UK 1s also focused on
growing its share of onginal content
commissioned on the ITV main channel
In 2015 ITV Studios delivered 60% of the
total spend on anginal commissions on
the ITV main channel This s a similar
proportion to 2014 but in terms of
revenue, total sales to Broadcast
increased by 12% New comimissions
delivered to ITV include Thunderbirds
Are Gol, Ninja Warrior UK, Home Fires,
Unforgotten and Jekyll & Hyde

ITV America also had a strong year with
revenues up 36% as it benefited from
the delivery of major new dramas and

a high volume of programmes from

our stable portfolic of unscripted series,
inciuding Duck Dynasty, Pawn Stars

and two series of Hell's Kitchen USA

We saw good growth across ITV Studios
Rest of World (Row) with revenues

up 124%, where our production bases

in Australia, Germany, France, the
Netherlands and the Nordics produce
onginal content as well as local versions
of ITV Studios formats This division
benefited from the significant
acquisition of Talpa Mediain the year
and also delivered a number of new
and returring commussions including
I'm A Celebrity Get Me Out Of Here!
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Hell's Kitchen USA

Broadcast on the Fox Network
and returned for a 14th seres in
the US in 2015 It has been sold
to 196 countres

in Denmark and Australia, The Chase in
Norway, Come Dine With Me in Sweden,
The Chase, Quizduell and I'm A Celebrity
Get Me Out Of Here! In Germany and

A Mother's Son in France

In total in 2015 we produced over

7,000 hours of content by our 58 labels,
supplying over 90 channels We have
delivered good revenue growth across
our three production divisions and

we have cemented our position as the
number one commercaal producer

in the UK and have become a leading
independent producer in Europe and the
Us Over half of aur revenues now come
from outside the UK as we are becoming
anincreasingly international business

Investingin content with
international appeal

To become increasingly international we
must continue to expand our portfolio
of successful senes and formats that
return and that can be distributed
globally We have a strong mix of
programmes across genres and also
across their content tife cycle which
balances our risk and financial exposure
We cantinue to invest in our pipeline of
ideas to ensure that we are adding to our
catalogue of pregrammes every year
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Pictured left to nght. The Real Housewives

. of New Jersey Is an Amencan reality senes

. produced by Sirens (3 Leftfield company) in the
* US, Jenchois an esght-part UK penod drama

* onITV and has been sold to 85 countries

Demand for drama I1s growing strongly
as standout, onginal content becomes
brand defining for both broadcasters
and OTT players inan increasingly
competitive global environment We
are looking to leverage our network
relationships and international
distnbution network, to expand our
global scnipted busmess and develop

a strong portfolio of internaticnal and
returning drama

Reflecting the Group's strong financial
position and cash generation, we are
now able to finance targer-scale scripted
projects through working capital

The production cost I1s partly funded

by the initial sale of the series to the
broadcaster, while the deficit is recovered
through distribution revenue from
selling the finished product globally to
other broadcasters and platforms We
balance our financial exposure through
our portfolio approach, with successful
international dramas offsetting the risk
that we will not recover the full deficit
an every show

During 2015 we have delivered three
major drarma sertes in the US, The Good
Witch, Aquarnius and Texas Rising, of
which The Good Witch and Aquarius
have been recommissioned in the

UK we have also delivered or have in
production Mr Selfridge s4, Endeavour
s3, Poldark s2 and Vera s6 which all
have international appeal

O,

Demand for drama
is growingly strongly
as standout, original
content becomes
brand defining for
both broadcasters
and OTT players.”

Shetland

Scottish crime drama produced by
ITV Studios UK for the BBC Currently
inits third series in the UK and has
been sold to 120 countries

We continue to perform well
internationaily in the entertainment
and factual entertainment genres
Inresponse to continued demand
from networks, we have grown a solid
portfotio of tugh volume, high margin
formats including Duck Dynasty,
Pawn Stars, Come Dine with Me,

Fm A Celebrity Get Me Out Of Here!,
Hell's Kitchen USA and The Chase

Qver the last few years we have
strengthened our exposure to this genre
with a number of partnerships, Including
in 2015, Possessed Television and Cats
on the Roof and most significantly Talpa
Media, which we acquired n April 2015
whichs focused on developing new
entertamment formats that attract
large audiences and have significant
commercial potential. Benefiting from
the creative input of John De Mol and hus
management team, wha will continue

to work with ITV, Talpa has created

75 shows and has ared programmes In
maore than 180 countries over the last six
years, ncluding The Voice, The Voice Kids,
i Love My Country, Dating in the Dark and
Dance Dance Dance

2016 and beyond

We have a very strong mternational
pipeline of pragrammes and brands
across genres and across their content
Ufe cycle New programmes include
Victoria, Cold Feet, Tutankhamun,
Houdirw & Doyle, Married by Mom and
Dad and Kiling Fields and returning
programmes which include Aquarius,
Thunderbirds Are Gol, Home Fires,
The Good Witch, Poldark, Endeavour,
Vera, Coronation Street, Emmerdale,
The Vaice, The Voice Kids, Pawn Stars,
Come Dine With Me, The Chase,

'm ACelebnty GetMe Out OfHere!
and Countdown

ITV Studios 1s now a globat business and
going forward we aim to utilise our scale
to grow our market share and expand
the number of networks and OTT
players we wark with, particutarly in the
US With a strong portfolio of new and
returning programmes we will build
further scale internationally, both
organicatly and through partnerships
and acquisitions, as we continue to
reduce our reliance on the UK market
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Strategic
Priority 3:

Build a global pay and
distribution business

Pictured The Vaice 1s produced by
Netherlands based 2015 acqusition Tatpa
Media It has been sold to 180 countnes
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As digital media and consumer behaviour continue to evolve,
our ability to create and distribute high-value content in
new and efficient ways is of increasing significance. ITV is
continually exploring and experimenting with new ways to
distribute our content to broadcasters and platform owners, \
both free and pay, while also seeking new opportunities to

extend the reach of our content for the consumer.

@ See page 30 for more

Capitalising on growing demand for VOD through the ITV Hub

Changes in technology and the growing base of connected devices are driving
rapid growth in audiences’ appetite for VOD and in turn fuelling demand from
advertisers for VOD inventory ITV as a creator and owner of content, particularly

sought after drama and entertainment content, s well placed to exploit this
growing customer base

Our Online business has grown rapidly over the last few years ands contributing
meaningful revenue to the Group In November we successfully launched the

ITV Hub to replace ITV Player and ITV com across mobile, PC and connected TV,
through which audiences can access ITV content on different devices, live

or ondemand This 15 2 major step forward in the quality, Innovation and ease

of use of ITV's online services The biggest change 1s that live content 1s now
central to the ITV Hub and live simulcast viewing 1s becoming increasingly popular
particularly around sporting events and large entertainment shows, as viewers
are using therr connected devices as a television set Simulcast viewing now
represents about 30% of viewing on the platforms onwhich it 1s availabte

To drive growth in our onbine audiences and onbine advertising revenues we

have also been working to increase the distribution of the ITV Hub which s now
available on 27 platforms, most recently launching on Amazon Fire, YouView Sony
and Freeview Play Long-form video requests continue to grow strongly up 14%

1IN 2015, dnven by mobile and connected televisions Online consumption, which is
the measure of how long viewers are spending onlme, has also increased by 42%
reflecting the quality of ITV's content and the improved viewing experience of the
TV Hub

To date there have been 21 million downtoads of our app and to further increase
usage we will continually extend and enhance the ITV Hub withimprovements in
technology and new content, such as premieres, box sets and short-form content

Overall the new service has been very well received by both audiences and
advertisers, with consumption growing strongly since launch, particutarty for Live
viewing where our audiences enjoy the new 'live swipe’ feature on smartphones
and tablets and the ITV Hub's improved streaming quality

Additionally, we are working to
maximise the value of our digital
data We have introduced new
digital advertising features like
AdSync+ as well as dynamically-
served advertising on ITV's Live
simulcast channels on PC and
Apple ptatforms With 13 million
registered users of the 1TV Hub, we
are not only able to understand and
engage with our audiences better
but we are also developing more
targeted advertising online in 2016
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Strategic Priority 3 continued

O

Our Online, Pay &
Interactive business
is rapidly growing
and profitable”

Further developing our pay offering
in the UK and internationally

ITV earns revenue from pay television
through licensing our channels and
content 2015 pay revenue grew by
38% as we continued to develop our
services across multiple piatforms

Our pay business in the UK includes deals
with Sky and Virgen for our HD channels
and catch-up VOD, an advertising free
subscrption version of the ITV Hub on
105 and a deal with Sky to make TV's
content available through its connected
platforms including Sky Go and Now TV
In 2014 we launched our first pay
channel, ITV Encore, which we are
strengthening with more exclusive
content iIncluding oniginal comrmissions
such as The Frankenstein Chronicles and
Houdin & Doyle and cntically acclaimed
acquired series such as The Americans
and Jordskott

Outside the UK we have established

a number of smaller pay propositions
including Cirkus, a subscription VOD
service that offers the 'Best of British’
cantent to international pay platforms
which is availlable in the Nordics and
more recently in Iceland We also
distribute ITV Essentials, anontine
service for expats, and ITV Choice, a
general entertainment channel for
emergmg markets which was recently
launched in South Africa

Aswe look to increase ITV brand loyalty,
we have already increased our exposure
to new types of content including
short-form and younger focused
long-form programming and new types
of distribution We are widening our
digital reach by expanding our presence
on YouTube to bring new audtences to
our pragrammes In 2015 we launched
22 new ITV branded channels across a
range of our biggest programme brands
We saw usage increase over 400%
across the year on the ITV branded
channets to deliver over 160million
views, the equivalent of over 8 million
hours of viewing

Talpa has a very strong digital presence
mternationally across its range of
formats Since 20141t has developed

10 successful connected ive formats
including The Voice, The Voice Kids and
Dance Dance Dance, in 40 countries, with
90 apps/sites and 100 YouTube channels,
in total delivering over 12 billion views

We have made investments in the
digital arena as we look to develop our
expertise in monetising online audiences
These include Believe Entertainment
Group, a producer of digital-branded
short-form entertainment, Zealot, a
digital content multi-platform network,
Indigenous Media, a producer of scripted
digrtal content, and Channel Mum,

the first ever online video network
dedicated to young mothers

Looking ahead we will further develop
our pay offering both in the UK and
internationally exploring opportunities
for both pay and online as we seek to
monetise our content further We will
look to do this through a mixed economy
of organic growth, partnerships and
acquisitions We will also increasingly
ook for opportunities to ‘window' our
content across our free channels, pay
channels and the ITV Hub to derive
maximum value for audiences,
platforms and advertisers
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Expanding our global

distribution network

In 2015 Global Entertainment, the
distribution arm of ITV Studios, delivered
revenue growth of 9% to £157 million
(2014 €144 million) as we have continued
to drive value from the investment

we have made Iin creating and owning
the nghts to quality contentwith
international appeal

Our distribution business has a
substantial archive of over 40,000 hours
of television and film content that we
distribute to broadcasters and platform
owners around the world In 2015

we have continued to enhance our
distribution network, benefiting from
our increased rights ownership and
strong network relationships as ITV
Studios has grown in scale

We have a strang and balanced
portfolio of scripted and unscripted
programmes and formats, both

new and returning We continuously
strengthen this using ITV's strong cash
flow to create and fund new content
and acquire third-party nights ITV
Studios creates new programmes in

the key genres of drama, entertainment
and factual entertainment
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! Pictured left to right. Vera s a Britsh based

. detective dramanits sixth serieson 1TV Ithas
; had huge international success and has been

¢ sold to 177 countries, Thunderbrrds Are Gol

. 15 produced by ITV Studios and broadcast on

¢ CITV It has been sold to 90 countnes to date

Reality dating show Love Island
generated significant activity on

the ITV Hub with 11 mitlion requests
on ad-funded platforms across the
series It was the first ITV programme
to generate two million views In
aweek

Qur scripted content has sold well
internationally with programmes

such as Poldark, Aquarus, Texas Rising,
Endeavour, Jekyll & Hyde and Mr Selfndge
all selling to over 100 countries Qur
entertainment and factual entertainment
content also continues to sell well with
programmes such as Come Dine With
Me, The Voice, The Voice Kids, | Love My
Country, The Chase, 'm A Celebrity Get
Me Qut Of Here! and the Price of Beauty

During the year we have also signeda
number of new multi-year and mult-
ternitory deals including a seven year
deal for Coronation Street with CBC in
Canada Inearly 2076 we agreed a multi
series and territory deal for Thunderbirds
Are Go! with Amazon covering the

US and India for first run and UK and
Germany for second run We are now
starting to benefit from merchandising
around Thunderbirds Are Go! as we look
to extend the franchise beyond the
television set

Global Entertainment also invests in
the funding of scripted content with
international appeal TV has invested
around £760 million in the year, up
£60 mullton, in scripted programmes
such as Texas Rising, Aquarius and The
Good Witch, two of which have been
recommussioned and they are selling
well internationalty

in addition to distributing ITV's own
content, we have also acquired the
third-party distributicn nghts toa
number of internattonal shows including
Schitt's Creek from Canada and Nordic
thriller Jordskott

2016 and beyond

Looking ahead we expect to deliver
double-digit growth in our Online, Pay
& Interactive revenues as we further
develop our ability to distribute and seil
our content We will continue to invest
to enhance the ITV Hub and through

a mixed economy of organic growth,
partnerships and acquisitions, we wll
develop our pay and online services
and channels and explore new ways
to package and sell cur content to
take advantage of demand for quality
content in the UK and internationally
from consumers, broadcasters and
platform owners

Lastly, we are also continuing to drive
the debate around the implementation
of retransmission fees in the UK to
ensure that we are fairly compensated
for our iInvestment in content for the
ITV main channel when 1t is carried on
pay TV platforms

O,

Our scripted

content has sold well
internationally with
programmes such

as Poldark, Aquarius,
Texas Rising, Endeavour
and Mr Selfridge

all selling to over

100 countries.”

Talpa Connect
Since 2014

10

successful connected
live formats

n
‘l 0 countries

with

90 apps/sites

and
1 00 YouTube channels

with over

1 2 billion views
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Performance Dashboard

Demonstrating continued progress against
our strategic priorities.

Strategic priority

2015 performance

[

1

Maximise audience
and revenue share
from free-to-air
broadcast and
VOD business

ITV NAR growth of 6%, ahead of our estimate of the TV advertising market
» Share of broadcast up to 461% N 2015 (2014 459%)

ITV Family SOV down 3%

ITV delivered 98% of commerciat audiences over five million and 93%

of audiences over three million

Delivered most watched entertainment drama, soap and sporting event
ITV2 and ITV3 largest digital channels in the UK

Innovative sponsarship and brand extenston partnerships with advertisers
Launched AdSyncs+, a partnership with RadiumOne to amplify the reach of
our TV advertising

Dynamic advertising now served to ITV simulcast content on PC and 10S
Significant digital engagement with 100 million votes across our big
entertamnment shows and 40 milbion paid competition entries

2

Grow international
content business

Good growth across ITV Studios with 8% organic and 33% including
the acquisitions

ITV Studios’ share of ITV main channel output at 60%

- 46% growth in Off-ITV production revenue i the UK

Continued investment in creative pipeline with aver 7000 hours
of oniginal content produced and detivered

Completed three acquisitions including Tatpa Media, our biggest
acquisition to date

53% of ITV Studios revenue generated outside the UK

Top indie producer across Europe and the US

Delvered three US scripted series in the year, two of which have
beenrecommissioned

Build a global pay

and distribution
business

Successful launch of the ITV Hub

Long-form video requests up 14%, consumption up 42%

21 mitlion downloads of app and 13 mitlion registered users

Launched new ongmal programming on [TV Encore

New pay deal with Virgin and others including Amazon TVOD and TalkTalk

Cirkus and iTV Choice now launched in four countnes

« Launched many YouTube channels across our programme brands focusing
on short-form content, which has driven very significant views

- Aleading European distnbutor of content, with Aquarus, Mr Selfnidge,
Poldark and Hell's Kitchen USA all sold to over 100 countries

- Six formats sold to three or mare countries

.
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P Performance Dashboard

o

Pictured left to nght The Tour de France
has been broadcast on 1TV4 for eight

years, Trevor McDonald presented two
documentanes dunng 2015, with The Mafia,
broadcast in March being the most watched
documentary in G1on any channel,

Key Performance Our Key Perfarmance Indicators (KPls) align our performance - Adjusted EBITA
Indicators across and accountability to our strategy of continuing to develop « Adjusted EPS
all three priorities a creative, commercial and global organisation Five KPls - Profit to cash conversion
measure the Group’s operational and finanaal performance - Non-NAR revenue
across all three priorities » Employee engagement
Focus for2016 Key Performance Indicators

+ Strengthen on-screen viewing in key demographics

Further invest in our content, channels and brand to maintain
our unique scale

Grow our share of total television and VOD advertising

Continue to maximise the value of cur programme brands
through sponsorship, interactivity and brand extensions
Developing new and more targeted advertising opportunities
Developing branded content solutions through our new content
creation service ITV AdVentures

Integration of UTV

« {TV Family SOV

« ITV Family SOCI

« ITV Family share of broadcast

- Percentage of commercal audiences
aver three mitlron and over five million

@ See page 18 for more on
Strateqic Priority 1

Build further scale internationally

Continue to develop IP in key creative markets to exploit growing
worldwide demand

Build a pipeline of programmes across genres and content life cycle
Develop mare 16 to 24 focused content

Attract and retan key creative talent

Continue to look at acquisitions, Investments and talent deals

+ Number of new commussions for ITV Studios
» Percentage of ITV output from ITV Studios

@ See page 22 for more on
Strategic Prionty 2 J

Further invest in the quabity and distribution of the ITV Hub
Build a network of pay channels and OTT services

Consider wider partnerships with OTT/VOD players

Continue to trial direct to consurmer pay opportumties
Develop innovative new content windowing strategy

Further grow our international distribution network with high-
quality content

Maximise the use of our strong cash flows to finance the production
of high-profite dramas that return and travel internationally
Invest in developing third-party distributton deals

+ Secure retransmission fees i the medium term

» Total long-form wideo requests
- Number of new commussions for ITV Studios

(®)see page 26 formore on
Strategic Prionty 3
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Key Performance Indicators

We have defined our KPIs to align our performance
and accountability to our strateqgy.

These KPIs are the key measures of
success and cover all three strategic
priorities Our KPIs have not changed
over the year

Our strategic priorities
Maximise audience and
revenue share from free-to-ar

broadcast and VOD business

Grow international
content business

Build a global pay and
distribution business

Financial
Adjusted EBITA Adjusted EPS
Definition Definition

This is the key profitability measure
used across the whole business
Earnings before interest, tax and
amortisation (EBITA) 1s before
exceptional items and has been
adjusted to include the benefit of
production tax credits Itreflectsour
perfoermance in a consistent manner
and in Line with how the busmess

1s managed and measured on a
day-to-day basis

Performance

In 2015 agjusted EBITA increased by
£135 milbion or 18% This increase was
a result of the 15% increase in Group
external revenue which was driven
by a 6% increase in Net Advertising
Revenue, a 23% increase in Online,
Pay & Iinteractive revenue and a 124%
increase In ITV Studios Rest of World
revenue driven by the acquisition

of Talpa

Group EBITA margin once agan
increased, up to 29% from 28%
in 2014

Adjusted EPS represents the adjusted
profit for the year attnbutable to
equity shareholders Adjusted profit
15 defined as profit for the year
attributable to equity sharehclders
before exceptional items, impairment
of intangible assets, amortisation

of intangible assets acquired

through business combinations, net
financing cost adjustments and tax
adjustments relating to these items

it reftects the business performance
of the Group In a consistent manner
and in line with how the business

1Is managed and measured ona
day-to-day basis

Performance

Adjusted EPS increased by 20% or
13 8p to 16 5p This reflects the
increase in adjusted EBITA of 18%
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Non-financial

Profit to cash
conversion

Definition

Profit to cash conversion represents
the proportion of adjusted EBITA
converted into a measure of
adjusted cash flow (defined as cash
generated from operations before
exceptional items less cash related
to the acqursition of operating
property, plant and equiprnent

and intangible assets)

This primarily reflects our working
capital management and capital
expenditure control Qur aimis to
keep profit to cash conversion as
tugh as possible

Performance

Profit to cash has been maintained at
a strong level in excess of 90% This s
despite our continued iInvestment n
scripted content and demonstrates
our continued focus onworking
capital management

e4e  assassn  seav semmmas 4% ¢ w2 & & om omr omew o+ woam sw ows

Non-NAR revenue

a% war & EmmmmssmEsEes seawE Sres S 4MSsar Eves meway Swe WP 8 Aase

Definition

Growing non-NAR 1s key to the
strategy as we atm to rebalance
the business away from our rebance
on television advertising revenue
Non-NAR includes all ITV revenue,
both internal and external, except
NAR (spot advertising revenues)

Key drwers of non-NAR are the
growth in Online, Pay & Interactive
and ITV Studios, particularly
international

Performance

Non-NAR revenue increased by 25%
in 2015 as we continue to rebalance
the business away from a rellance
onNAR Growth was drivenby ITV
Studios revenues which saw both
organic and acquisition revenues
increase, and from Online and Pay
revenue Non-NAR revenues were
49% of total revenues which has
increased significantly since 2009
when it was 40%

Employee
engagement

4% aae  ae e wes & 42 aw ssaw e ¢ reas srave  sesaves ¢ Sevesdves

Definition

Continuing to develop a creative,
commercial and global organisation
requires ligh-quality employees who
are engaged in the work that they do,
and are commutted to the strategy

Employee engagement measures
pride in the work we do, pride in
working for ITV and also what we say
about our programmes and services

Performance

Employee engagement was once
again tugh at 89% which is above
the benchmark rate of 83% The
participation rate was /4%

\ .

ITV plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015 33




Strategic Report P Perfarmance and Financials

Key Performance Indicators continued

Strategic Prionty 1aims to maximise
audience share from our existing
free-to-air Broadcast business,
andITV Family SOV is the clearest
indicator of this ITV Family SOV

1s ITV's share of the total viewing
audience over the year achieved

by ITV's family of channels as a
proportion of total television viewing,
including the BBC Family ITV aims at
least to mamtain the [TV Family SOV

Performance

ITV Family SOV declined by 3% in 2015
to 21 2% Within this, the ITV main
channel saw a decline of 4% mpacted
by the launch of new free digital
channels, some of our shows not
performing as well as we had
expected, particularly in the first

half of the year and by the relatively
strong performance of the BBC

The digital channels were down 3%

ITV Family SOV improved in the
second half of 2015 with strong
performances in Daytime, the Soaps,
Sport and Entertainment

\.

Strategic Priority 1aims to maximise
audience share from our existing
free-to-air Broadcast business, and
ITV Family SOChis another indicator
of this SOCHs the trading currency

in the television advertising market,
and since it only covers commercial
telewision it does not include the BBC
This ts the share of total UK television
commercial impacts which s
delivered by ITV's family of channels
Animpact 1s one viewer watching
one 30 second commercal We aim
to maximise our SOCI

SQOCI prowvides an overall measure

of viewing performance, however
because advertisers are buying scale
and breadth of audience, SOCl 15

not necessarily a direct indicator

of advertising performance

Performance

ITV Farmily SOCI declined by 4%, with
the main channel down 4% The
digrtal channels SOCI was down 3%

\.

Strategic

ITV Family SOV ITV Family SOCI ITV Family share
of broadcast

Definition Definition Definition

ITV's share of UK television spot
advertising revenue s known as its
share of broadcast To maximise
revenue from cur free-to-air business,
which s a key component of Strategic
Priority 1, we aim to continue to
maximise our share of broadcast

and to outperform the UK television
advertising market

It s increasingly difficult to measure
the total television advertising
market as all broadcasters have
different definitions and include
other sources of revenue, such

as sponsorship and VOD in their
estimates of television advertising
QOur share of broadcast s based on
our estimate of the pure spot
advertisingmarket

Performance

In 2015 we gained market share again,
increasing our share of broadcast to
461% This s as a result of our urique
ability to deliver mass audiences
acrass the key demographics to

our advertisers
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" Our strategic priorities

Maximising
Growing

Building

Total long-form
video requests

Definition

A key part of our strategy is to
maximise audience share from
our free-to-air broadcast and
VOD business

Long-form videqa requestsis a
measure of the total number of our
videos viewed across all platforms
onwhich the ITV Hub 1s avallable and
therefore provides a key measure

of how much of our content 1s bemng
viewed online A long-formwvideoisa
programme that has been broadcast
on television and 1s available to watch
online and on demand in Its entirety

Performance

Long-form video requests were up
14% 11 2015 to 828 million views

To support growth in our online
audiences we launched the ITV Hub

in November 2015 and have improved
our mobile apps and simulcast
offering Online consumption, which
15 the measure of how long viewers
are spending anlme, is becoming
increasingly important as an indicator
of anline performance and this has
increased by over 40% 1n 2015

Number of new
commissions for
ITV Studios

Definition

Akey indicator of the creative
renewal prpeline 1s the humber of new
commissions won This figure includes
programmes shown both on|TV and
on other broadcasters, and bothin
the UK and internationally

Performance

There was strong growth in the
number of new commissions for

ITV Studios in 2015, up 11% to 166
Fifty-eight of these new commissions
have come from the UK business,
with the remaining 108 coming

from our international businesses

We continue to invest in our
creative pipeline both organically
and through acquisitions

Percentage of
ITV* output from
ITV Studios

Definition

Thisrepresents the proportion of the
total spend on orniginal commissions
on(TV transrmitted in the year,
delivered by ITV Studios A key part
of bulding a strong internatronal
content business 1s to increase ITV
Studios’ supply of programmes to ITV,
where we aim to make them famous
and then sell them around the world,
benefiting from our integrated
producer broadcaster status

Performance

The percentage of ITV output from
ITV Studios has remained flat in 2015,
although the value has increased

as [TV's total onginal commuissions
has increased Several ITV Studios
programmes created in 2015 have
now been distributed around the
world including Thunderbirds Are Gol,
Mr Selfridge, The Chase and I'm A
Celebnty Get Me Qut Of Here!

*ITV Main Channel only

7
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Financial and Performance Review

ITV delivered another strong performance in 2015
with growth across the business.

O,

We remain highly cash

generative which, together

with our continued focus
on costs, places usin a
strong position to invest
for further growth and
enhance shareholder value
into 2016 and beyond.”

36

ITV ple Annual Report and Accounts 2015

Reflecting our continued investment in guality content, we
grew revenue across all parts of the business and reported
our sixth consecutive year of double-digit growth in aur

key profit measures, while further improving our adju

sted

EBITA margin. We remain highly cash generative which,

together with our continued focus on costs, places us

strong position to invest for further growth and enhance

shareholder value into 2016 and beyond.

2015 2014 Change  Change
Twelve months to 31December £m Em £Em [
NAR 1,719 1,629 50 6
Jotal non-NAR 1,664 1,327 337 25
Total revenue 3,383 2956 427 14
Internal supply {411)  (366) 45 12
Group external revenue 2972 2,590 382 15
Adjusted EBITA B65 730 135 18
Group adjusted EBITA margin 29% 28%
Adjusted EPS 165p 138p 27p 20
Adjusted diluted EPS 16.3p 137p 26p 19
Dividend per share 60p 470p 13p 28
Special dividend 100p 625 - -
Net (debt)/cash as
at 31 December {319) 41 (360) -
The unadjusted profit before tax and EPS from the
Consclidated Income Statement are as follows

2015 2014 Change {hange
Twelve months ta 310ecember £m £m £m %
Profit before tax 641 605 36 6
EPS 12 4p 1neép 08p 7
Diluted EPS 12 3p 15p 08p 7

Total ITV revenue increased 14% to £3,383 million (2014

£2,956 million), with external revenue up 15% at £2,972 million

(2014 £2,590 rmullion) This reflects 6% growth INNAR to
€1,719 million (2014 £1,629 million), and 25% growth in
non-NAR revenue 1o £1,664 millon (2014 £1,327 million)

Non-NAR now accounts for 49% (2014 45%) of total revenue
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Growth in NAR and high margin Online, Pay & Interactive
revenue combined with the growth in ITV Studios and our
continued focus on costs, delivered an 18% increase in adjusted
EBITA to £865 million (2074 £730 million), resulting Ina 1%
improvement in the adjusted EBITA margin to 29% Adjusted
EPS grew 20% to 16 5p (2014 13 Bp) while reported EPS grew
7% t0 12 4p (2074 1 6p) Reported EPS grew at a slower rate
than adjusted EPS pnmarily because of the treatment of
employment linked consideration for our acquisitions which
15 included within reported earnings This 1s explained over
the following pages

We remain focused on batance sheet efficiency and working
capital management Despite increased investment in scripted
content, our profit to cash ratio remained strong at 91% After
acquisitions of £406 million {net of cash acquired), dvidend
payments of £459 million and our deficit pension contributions
of £90 mulkon, we ended 2015 wath net debt of £319 milllon
{31December 2014 net cash of £41million) This gives us the
financial flexibility to continue to invest in the business

The Financial and Performance Review focuses on the adjusted
results, which, in managernent's view, reflect the underlying
perfarmance of the business, providing a more meaningful
comparison of how the business 1s managed and measured

on a day-to-day basis

The key adjustments are to reflect production tax credits in
EBITA before exceptional itemns (‘adjusted EBITA") and remove
the effect of certain items from adjusted profit before tax
and EPS These include all operating and non-operating
exceptional tems primarnly acquisition-related costs such as
employment linked consideration and professional fees for
due dilgence, mpairment of intangible assets, amortisation
of ntangible assets acquired through business combinations
including formats and customer contracts, net financing cost
adjustments, and tax adjustments relating to these stems

A full reconciliation between our adjusted and statutory
results 1s provided on page 43

.

Broadcast & Online

015 2014 Change Change
Twelve months to 31 December Em £m £m %
NAR 1,719 1629 a0 6
QOnline, Pay & Interactive
revenue 188 153 35 23
SDN external revenue 64 71 (7) (10}
Other commercial income 175 170 5 3
Broadcast & Online
non-NAR revenue 427 394 33 8
Total Broadcast & Online
revenue 2346 2023 123 6
Total schedule costs {1,045) (1,018) (27) (3)
Other costs (442) (437) (5) (]
Total Broadcast & Online
adjusted EBITA 659 568 a1 16
Adusted EBITA margin 3% 28%

Broadcast & Online delivered another strong performance,
with total revenue up 6% to £2,146 milbon {2014 £2,023 million}
driven by 6% growthin NAR and 23% growth in Online,

Pay & Interactive

The television advertising market again showed strong
growth with NAR up 6% to £1,719 millon (2014 1,629 million)
and continued good growth across all the major advertising
categories The Finance advertising cateqory was driven by
tradtional banking brands and the Retall and Food sectors
rermained strong with supermarkets and furniture stores
increasing spend We saw strong growth from technology
companies such as Google and Facebook as well as new digital
brands, such as Just Eat and Purpte Bricks, allusing TV to build
brand awareness Entertainment & Leisure did see a decline
which was as a result of significant spend by bookmakers in
2014 around the Football Wortd Cup
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As expected, the phasing of NAR was different in 2015
reflecting the timing of major sporting events The first
quarter saw strong growth of 12% benefiting from an earlier
Easter, while the second quarter was flat against astrong Q2
2014 which benefited from the Football World Cup The
third quarter was up 8% with increased spend around the
Rugby World Cup with the fourth quarter up 4% QOverall
ITV's underlying advertising performance was consistently
strongin both the first and second halves of the year

Over the full year we increased our estimated share

of broadcast to 46 1% (2014 45 9%) as we once again
outperformed our estimate of the UK television advertising
market It1s becoming increasingly difficult to measure the
pure spot advertising market as all broadcasters use
different definitions, which may include additional sources
of revenue such as spansorship and VOD in their estimates
of television advertising

ITV Family SOV declined 3% in 2015 This reflects a 4% decline
in the ITV man channel SOV which was impacted by more
competition from the launch of new digital channels inthe
year including Spike and Your TV, some of cur shows not
performing as well as we had expected and the relatively
strong performance of the BBC {TV2 also contrnibuted to the
decline, partly as a result of our repositioning of the channel
to provide more targeted audiences for our advertisers We
remain focused on strengthening our viewing performance
and continuing to deliver mass audiences

Online, Pay & Interactive revenue continued to show strong
growth, up 23% to £188 millon (2014 £153 million) reflecting
further growth in both our online advertising and pay
businesses In November we successfully taunched the [TV Hub,
the new digital home for our online services, which has had a
very encouraging start Audience demand for VOD continues
to grow strongly which helped drive a 14% increase in tong-
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form videc requests and 42% increase in consumption There
remains strong demand fer online advertising which helped
drive significant growth in online revenue We continue to
develop our pay services with Pay revenue benefiting from

a full twelve months of revenue from ITV Encore and strong
demand for ITV video on demand services Interactive revenue
was up in the year with daytime competitions performing well
Voting on our programme apps increased exponentially as we
introduced a free voting strategy X Factor delivered 24 million
votes andi'm A Celebrity Get Me Out Of Here! delvered total
votes of over 56 million

SDN external revenue, which 1s generated from licence sales
for DTT Multiplex A, decreased 10% to £64 million (2014
£71mullion) This was as a result of lower renewal fees for
existing long-term contracts which expired during the year

Other commercial ncome was up 3% to £175 million (2014
£171 million), reflecting growth in sponsorship for the Rugby
World Cup and brand extenstons through a number of
innovative solutions including Land Rover and SSE for the
Rugby World Cup and Aunt Bessie's for 'm A Celebnty Get Me
Out Of Herel Other commercial ncome also ncludes revenue
from media sales, which relates to commission earned by TV
on sales of arrtime for the non-cansolidated licensees, as well
as minarity revenue from these licensees for ITV content

As expected, performance across both revenue streams

was largely unchanged

Schedule costs were up 3% to £1,045 million (2014 £1,018
million) predominantly due to the full year costs of ITVBe

and ITV Encore Sports rights savings on the FA Cup and
Champions League were partly offset by the costs of the
Rugby World Cup Going forward we believe that this is around
the right level of programme spend although the genre mix
will change each year

Other Broadcast costs increased margmatly, up 1% to

£442 milion (2014 £437 mitlbon) We maintain a tight control
on costs and will continue to deliver savings to mitigate
inflationary pressure

Overall Broadcast & Online adjusted EBITA was up 16% to
£659 million (2014 £568 million) The continued growth in
our highly geared advertising revenue, together with high
margm revenue growth in Online, Pay & Interactive, resulted in
the adjusted EBITA margin increasing 3% to 31% (2014 28%)

On 29th February 2016, ITV completed its acquisition of 100%
of UTV Ltd, which owns the televisions assets of UTV Plc, for
£100 million This will further strengthen iTV's free-to-ar
business and enable it to run a more efficient network As part
of the transaction ITV has taken an responsibility for the UTV
defined benefit pension scheme
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ITV Studios

1015 0% Change  Change
Twetve months to 31December £m £m £m %
Studios UK 547 459 88 19
Studios US 320 235 85 36
Studios RoW 213 95 18 124
Global Entertamnment 157 144 13 9
Total Studios revenue 1,237 933 304 33
Total Studios costs {1,031) (771} (260) (34)
Total 5tudios adjusted
EBITA* 206 162 44 27
Studios adjusted EBITA margin 17% 17%
* Includes the benefit of production tax credits

2015 204 Change Change
Twelve months to 31 December £m £m £m %
Sales from ITV Studios to
Broadcast & Online 411 366 45 12
External revenue 826 567 259 46
Total Studios revenue 1,237 933 304 33

ITV Studios total revenue grew strongly, exceeding £1 bilhon
for the first time as we continue to build scale in creative
content markets and strengthen our international portfolio
of programmes that return and travel. ITV Studios 1s becoming
increasingly international, and reflecting our growth and
increasing scale in key production markets in Europe and the
US, 53% of ITV Studios total revenue in the year was generated
outside the UK (2014 47%)

Total organic revenue, which excludes our current and prior
year acquisitions as well as foreign exchange mavements,
was up 8% There was growth across the business, with a
particularly strong performance from ITV America and Global
Entertainment Our acquisitions continue to come through,
with twelve months of Leftfield Entertainment as well as
Talpa Media from 30 April 2015 and our UK acquisitions
including Twofour Group from 24 June 2015 The foreign
exchange impact was immaterial as the stronger US dollar was
offset by our greater exposure to a weakening Euro following
the Talpa acguisition

Studios UK revenue was up 19% to £547 million (2014

£459 million) reflecting 13% growth in internal revenue and
39% growth n external revenue Organic revenue was up 5%
There were increased programming sales to Broadcast
across both drama and entertainment, with new deliveries
including The Trals of Jimmy Rose, Unforgotten, Home Fires,
Thunderbirds Are Go! and Ninga Warnor UK Successful
recommmussions On-ITV included Saturday Night Takeaway,
The Chase and Judge Rinder Off-ITV revenue grew strongly
with successfut deliveries including Poldark and The Graham
Norton Show for the BBC and Come Dine With Me and 24
Hours in A&E for Channel 4

ITV America grew strongly in 2015, with revenue up 36% ta
£320 million (2014 £235 million) as we benefited from good
organic growth, up 15% driven by the delivery of our three
US dramas, Best Time Ever, a US remake of Saturday Night
Takeaway, and two series of Hells Kitchen 1TV America also
benefited from the first full year of Leftfield Entertainrnent,
acquired in May 2014 Following this acquisition, we became
the largest unscripted independent producer in the US and we
now have a strong portfolio of returning series and formats
including Hell’'s Kitchen, Pawn Stars, Duck Dynasty, Marriage
Bootcamp, The Real Housewives of New Jersey and The Rich
Kids Of Beverly Hills

Studios RoW also showed strong growth, up 124% to

£213 miibon (2014 £95 million), with organic revenue up 4%
We have benefited from Talpa Media which we acquired on
30 Apnil 2015, significantly strengthening our position as a
leading international producer We also saw good growth in
Austratia and Denrnark from exporting UK formats 2015
deliveries included 'm A Celebrity  Get Me Qut Of Herel in
Australia and Denmark, The Chase in Germany and Norway,
and Hell's Kitchenin France

Global Entertanment revenue increased 9% in the year

to £157 million (2014 €144 milllon) Revenue growth was
supported by our strong programme slate including new titles
Poldark and Schitt’'s Creek, as well as US drama Aquarius and
the launch of Thunderbirds Are Go!, which has now been sold
to 90 countries with key terntones such as the US and France
{launching in 2016 We expect to benefit from merchandising
around the series as we continue to extend the franchise
beyond the television set

Reflecting the strong revenue growth across ITV Studios,
adjusted EBITA increased 27% to £206 million {2014

£162 million) The adjusted EBITA margin remamns unchanged
at 17% even after significant investment in scripted content

In 2015 we invested £163 million in scripted content, up

£60 mitlron We are financing our larger-scale scripted projects
through our strong underlying cashflows The production cost
15 partly funded by the initial sale of the series to a broadcaster,
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while the deficit 1s recovered through distribution revenue
from selling the firished product globally to other
broadcasters and platforms We balance our financiat
exposure through our portfolio approach, with successful
international dramas offsetting the nisk that we will not
recover the full deficit on every show

Overall, we delivered many creative successes in the year,
including two of our US dramas - Aquarius and The Good Witch
being recommussioned Given the nature of our business not

all our programmes will return for anather series in 2016,

for example Jekyll & Hyde and Best Time Ever, but we have

a strong portfolio of programmes and formats and we will
continue 1o INvest In our creative pipeline to build upon this

We are on track to deliver good revenue and profit growth

in 2016, primarily driven by our acquisitions

Acquisitions

We have built scale in our international content business,
focusing our growth m key creative markets that have a track
record for creating and ewning intellectual property Since
2012 we have acquired a number of content businesses in
the UK, US and creative locations across Europe, developing a
strong portfalio of programmes that return and travel. As we
have grown in size and expanded our network retationships
and distribution capability, this has helped to strengthen our
creative talent pool and build our reputation as a leading
European producer and the largest unscripted independent
production company in the US

We have strict criteria for evaluating potential acquisitions
Financially, we assess ownership of intellectual property,
earnings growth and valuation based on return on capital
employed and discounted cash flow Strategically, we ensure
an acquisition target has a strong creatwve track record and
pipeline in content genres that return and travel, namety
drama, entertainment and factual entertainment, as well

as succession planning for key individuals in the business

We generally structure our deals with earnouts or with put and
call options in place for the remainder of the equity, capping
the maximum consideration payable By basing a significant
part of the consideration on future performance in this

way, not only can we lock in creative talent and ensure our
incentives are aligned, but we also reduce our risk by only
paying for the actual, not expected, performance delivered
over time The majority of earnouts or put and call options are
dependent on the seller remaining within the business Where
consideration paid or contingent consideration payable in the
future 1s employment linked, 1t is treated as an expense in our
statutory results rather than as capital All consideration of this
type 1s exciuded from adjusted profit after tax and adjusted
EPS as, In our view, these items are part of capital consideration
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In April 2015 we completed the acquisition of 100% of

Talpa Media in the Netherlands, the creator of worldwide
entertainment formats, including The Voice, The Voice Kids,

| Love My Country, Dating In The Dark and Dance Dance Dance
We paid an initial cash consideration of €500 million

(£362 mitlion) for 100% of Talpa's fully diluted share capital
with further payments dependent on Talpa's future
performance The total maximum consideration, including
the intial payment, 1s up to €11 bilhon which is contingent on
Talpa continuing to deliver significant profit growth to 2022 as
well as John de Mol’s continued commitment to the business
duning this ime Under the deal structure, because all future
payments and €150 million of the imitial consideration are
directty related to John de Mol remaining with the business,
these payments are treated as employment costs and
therefore ona statutory basis are part of our reported

results However, we exclude them from adjusted profits as
an exceptional item, which is consistent with our treatment
of all costs of this type

We also acquired a minority stake in Monumental Television in
April, the UK scnpted independent producer founded by Oscar
nominated film producers Alison Owen and Debra Hayward As
part of the agreement, Global Entertainment acquired exclusive
distnbution nights to alt of its future television productions

In May we acquired the remaning 75% of Mammoth Screen,
one of the UK's leading scripted production companies,
having held a 25% investment in the producer since 2007

Its successful slate of high-end drama includes Poldark,
Endeavour and the forthcoming Victoria

In June we completed the acquisition of Boom Supervisory
Limited, the holding company of UK based Twofour Group
which produces factual entertainment and drama
programmes We paid an imitial cash consideration of

£55 million for 75% of the Group There 1s 3 put and call option
for the remaining 25% that can be exercised at the end of 2017
and between the end of 2019 and 2021 Additionally, Twofour
has a put and call option to acquire the remaining 49% of its
subsidiary Mainstreet Pictures that can be exercised between
2018 and 2023 The total maximum consideration for 100%
of the business 1s £280 millon with contingent payments
dependent on delivering exceptional profit growth to

£60 million in aggregate over the final two-year payment
penod and key individuals remaiming with the Group

Also In June we acquired a new label, Cats on the Roof Media
which owns a number of creative labels focused on developing
entertanment and scripted comedy programmes
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Acquisitions — 2012 to 2015 (undiscounted)

Imval  Expectedfuture  Totalexpected Expected Total maxlmum
consideration payments consideration’ payment consideration
Company Geography  Genre (£my) {EmM) (Em) perlod (Em)
2015
Talpa Media Netherlands Entertainment 362 186 548  2015-2019 796
Twofour Group UK FactEnt & Drama 55 10 65  2016-2021 280
Other UK  Various 15 28 43 2015-2020 81
Total for 2015 432 224 656 1,157
Total for 2012-2014 328 792 407  2016-2021 5882
Total 760 303 1,063 1,745
1 Including the imitial cash consideration and exctuding working capital adjustments All future payments are performance related
2 The amounts have beenupdated toreflect the accelerated buyout of the remaining 20% of Leftfield
In December Brent Montgomery, the CEO of Leftfield, became  Net financing costs
CEQ of ITV Amenica In order to facilitate the integration of 2015 2014
Leftfield within the US business, we acquired the outstanding Twelve months to 31December £m Em
20% of Leftfield which we did not own The onginal terms Finanaing costs directly attnbutable to loans
under which TV acquired its iniial 80% nterest included B"dhb"“ds - (10) 8)
potential future payments linked to Leftfield's profit growth Eas h‘re?tted d“ﬁt nancing (ct°5ts)’ neome g) é
and put and call options under which ITV would acquire the ash-re atec I'nancing costs a3) )
Amortisation of bonds - )]
rematning 20% In consideration for the acquisition of the -
utstanding 20%, these arrangements have been cancelled Adjusted financing costs L (7)
° 9 <L, arrangeme € bee cete Mark-to-rnarket on swaps and foreign exchange (4) (9)
and [TV has assumed certain obligations of Brent Montgomery imputed pension Interest o) 7)
inrelation to Leftfield, most notably settlement of the Losses on buybacks — (20)
earnouts for its subsidianes There was no cash consideration Other net financial (loss)/income @ 1o
payable at the time by ITV The maximum consideration Net financing costs ED) &7)

payable by ITV for the remaining obligations under the
Leftfield acquisition is $100m and 1s dependent on future
performance and is inked to ongoing employment

The 2015 acquisitions we have made have resulted na
£297 million increase in ntangible assets, mainly relating
to Talpa formats and £102 mullion of goodwill

The table above sets out the initial consideration payable
on our acquisitions, our expected future payments based

on our current view of performance and the total maximum
consideration payable which is only payable if exceptional
compound earnings growths delivered

We closely monitor the forecast performance of each
acquisitton and where there has been a change in expectations,
we adjust our view of potential future commitments through
the income statement

Total expected consideration for all acquisitions since 2012 has
increased by £656 million since 2014 This relates to the total
expected amount payable for our 2015 acquisitions Thisis
made up of the initial consideration of £432 million (E406
million plus the cash acquired) and expected future payments
which are only payable if significant compound earnings
growth s delivered

Adjusted financing costs increased to £13 million (2014

£7 mitlion), due to increased borrowing for the acquisition

of Talpa and costs associated with raising the funding which
included the initial €500 million acqursition bridge loan that
was repaid in September following the issue of the seven year
€600 million Eurobond

Net financing costs are adjusted to reflect the underlying
funding costs of the business providing a more meaningfut
comparison of how the business 1s managed and funded on

a day-to-day basis These adjustments include mark-to-market
on swaps and foreign exchange, imputed pension interest,
losses on debt buybacks and other financial loss/income

Net financing costs were £20 mullion lower in 2015 at

£31 million (2014 £51 million), as the prior year included losses
incurred on the repurchase of the remaming £62 million 2019
bilateral loan This was partially offset by the reductionin
other net financial income, which in 2014 related to a reduction
in expected future payments for acquisitions as a result of

ITV's assessment of therr future performance The imputed
pension charge also decreased as a result of the reductonin
pension liabilities
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Profit before tax

Adjusted profit before tax, after financing costs, was up

18% at £843 rmillion (2014 £712 million) Profit before tax s
adjusted to reflect the impact of production tax credits, net
exceptional items, amortisation and impairment of intangible
assets and the adjustments to net financing costs, toreflect
the underlying performance of the business Statutory profit
before tax increased by 6%, which is less than the increase in
adjusted profit before tax, as a result of the exceptional items
described below

Profit before tax (PBT)

2015 2014
Twelve months to 310ecember £m £€m
Profit before tax 641 605
Production tax credits 23 -
Exceptional items (net) 103 7

Amortisation and impairment
of intangible assets* 58 56

Adjustments to net financing costs 18 L4

Adjusted profit before tax 843 712

* Inrespect of intangible assets ansing from business combinations
9 9

Production tax credits are recogrised in adjusted PBT as in

our view they relate directly to the production of programmes
and reflect the way the business 1s managed and rmeasured

on a day-to-day basis The ability to access these tax credits

1s fundamental when assessing the viability of investment
decisions in high-end drama ITV considers these to be part of
the overall cost of production rather than a corporate tax item
In 2015 sigruficant tax credits were available to us because of
our investment N high-end drama in the UK

Exceptional tems are set out in the table below Operating
exceptional items largely relate to acquisition related expenses
which are predominantly performance based employment
linked consideration, in particular regarding Talpa as discussed
earlier Other operating exceptional items relate to
restructuring costs in particular in relation to the US business
Non-operating income relates to the gain on the sale of the
freehold property n Manchester

Exceptional items

2015 2014
Twelve months to 31 December £m £m

Operating exceptional items

Acquisition related expenses (88) 6)
Reorganisation and restructuring costs {13) (6)
Other, including one-off legal costs (8) -
(109) (12)
Non-operating exceptional items 6 5
Total exceptional items (net) (103) {7)
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Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets acquired
through business combinations is not included within adjusted
earnings However, amortisation of software licences and
development is Included as management considers these
assets to be core to supporting the operations of the business

Tax

The totat adjusted tax charge for 2015 was £177 million
(2014 £151 milbon), corresponding to an effective tax rate on
adjusted PBT of 21% (2014 21%) which is broadly in line with
the standard UK corporation tax rate of 20 25% (2014 21 5%)
The adjustments made to reconcile the tax charge with the
adjusted tax charge are the tax effects of the adjustments
made above to reconale PBT and adjusted PBT

2075 2014

Twelve months (o 31 December £m £m
Tax charge (139) (132
Production tax credits (23} -
Charge for exceptional items (8) (2)
Charge inrespect of amortisation of

intangible assets* (4) (12)
Charge inrespect of adjustments to net

financing costs E)) (10
Other tax adjustments - 5
Adjusted tax charge (177) (157

Effective taxrate on adjusted profits 27% 27%

* Inrespect of intangible assets ansing from business combinations Also
reflects the cash tax benefit of tax deductions for US goodwall. In 2014,
this wasincluded in other tax adjustments

Cash tax paid in the year was £117 million (2014 £85 millicn),
the majority of which s paid in the UK The 2015 cash figure 1s
net of production tax credits received in the year The cash tax
paid 1s lower than the total tax charge for 2015 largely due to
the tax treatment of allowable pension contributions

ITV is a responsible business, and we take a responsible
attitude to tax, recognising that it affects all of our
stakeholders We seek at all times to comply with the lawin
each of the jurisdictions in which we operate, and to build open
and transparent relationships with those junsdictions’ tax
authorities Our tax strategy i1s n line with that of the business
and its commercial activities, and within our overall governance
structure, the governance of tax and taxrisk is given a high
prionity by the Board and Audit Committee, ncluding through
the cperation of the Tax & Treasury Commuttee

EPS

Overall, adjusted profit after tax was up 19% at £666 milicn
(2014 £561 mitlion) After non-controlling interests of £7 million
{2014 £7 million), adjusted basic earmings per share was 16 5p
(2074 13 8p),up 20% The weighted average number of shares
was broadly in bne at 4,006 million {2074 4,002 million)
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Diluted adjusted EPS in 2015 was 16 3p (2014 13 7p) reflecting
aweighted average diluted number of shares of 4,035 million
(2014 4,040 million)

The table below reconciles basic to adjusted EPS and the
adjustments are explained in the previous sections

Reported Adjustments Adjusted
Twelve months to 31 December 2015 £m £m £m
EBITA* B42 23 865
Exceptional items (operating) (109) 109 -
Amortisation and impairment
of intangible assets (67) 58 (9)
Operating profit 666 190 856
Net financing costs (31 18 {13}
Gan on sale of non-current assets
and subsidiaries (non-operating
exceptional items) 6 (6) -
Profit before tax 641 202 B43
Tax (139) (38) (177)
Profit after tax 502 164 666
Non-caontrolling interests (7) — {7)
Earmings 495 164 659
Shares (million), weighted average 4,006 4,006
EPS (p) 124 165

* £23 milkon adjustment relates to production tax credits

Dividend per share

The Board has committed to growing the full year aordinary
dividend by at least 20% per annum for three years to 2016,
by which time we will achieve a dividend cover of between
20 and 2 5x adjusted earnings per share ReflectingITV's
strong performance in 2015 and in line with its policy, the
Board has proposed a final dwvdend of 41p This equates to
a full year dvidend of 6 Op, up 28%, which 1s well ahead of
earnings growth and s a significant step forward in taking
ITV's dividend cover closer to its policy range

The Board s also proposing a 10 Op special dividend, worth
Just over £400 million, which comes after a year of significant
investment at TV and reflects [TV's strong cash generation
and the Board’s confidence in the business Adjusted for this

special distribution [TV's pro forma leverage would be 0 8x
reported net debt to adjusted EBITDA, which provides flexibility
to continue to Invest in the business for further growth

Cash generation
Profit to cash conversion

2015 201
Twelve months to 31December £m £m
Adjusted EBITA 865 730
Decrease/(increase) in programme nghts and
otherinventory distrnbution nghts 4 (39)
(Increase)/decrease mreceivables (21) 18
Production tax credits {13) —
Decrease in payables (42) {48)
Working capital movement (72) {69)
Depreciation 27 27
Share-based compensation and pension service
costs 17 14
Cash flow generated from operations before
exceptional items 837 702
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (49) (37)
Adjusted cash flow 788 665
Profit to cash ratio 91% 9%

Note Except where discliosed, management views the acquisition of operating
property, plant and equipment and intangibles as necessary ongoing

nvestment in the bustness

ITV remains highly cash generative reflecting our continued
focus on cash and costs In 2015 there was another working
capital outflow as we continued to invest in our creative pipeline

In the year we generated £788 million of operational cash
(2014 £665 million) from £865 million of adjusted EBITA
(2014 £730 milleon), which equates to a strong profit to cash
ratio of 91% The ratio has remained the same despite our
increased investrment n scripted content and demonstrates
our disciplined approach to cash and costs
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Cash spent on the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets increased year-on-year
as we invest in infrastructure to support the business

The difference between the reported and adjusted cash flow
In 2015 relates to the cash inflow from production tax credits
which ITV considers a working capital item

Free cash flow

2015 2014

Twelve months to 31December £m £m
Adjusted cash flow 788 665
Net interest paid (9} (1)
Adjusted cash tax (127) (85)
Pension funding (20) (91)
Free cash flow 562 478

Note- Adjusted cash tax s total cash tax paid excluding receipt of production tax
credits which are included within adjusted cashfiow

After payments for interest, tax and pension funding, our free
cash flow also remained strong in the period, up 18% to
£562 million (2014 £478 million)

Overall, after dividends, acquisitions and debt repayments

we ended the year with net debt of £313 million, compared to
net debt of £540 mithion at 30 June 2015 and £41 million net
cash at 31 December 2014 Qur cash generation was weighted
towards the second half of 2015 due to the payment of the
special dividend and the significant acquisition of Talpa, all

of which took place in the first hatf of 2015
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Funding and liquidity

Debt structure and liquidity

We have a £525 million Revolving Credit Facility in place

until 2019 provided by a number of core relationship banks
We alsa have a £175 million bilateral financng faclity and a
£75 milbon invoice discounting facility, both of which are free
of financial covenants At 31December 2015 these facilities
were all undrawn

In 2015, to fund the acquisition of Talpa Media, we entered
Into a 12 month €500 million bridge loan facility provided by
five of our relatronship banks This was repaid and cancelled
In Septernber 2015 when we 1ssued a 7 year €600 million
Euroband at a fixed coupon of 2125% The bond witl mature
on 21 September 2022 The proceeds from the bond were
also used to fund the maturing £78 million Eurobond in
October 2015

As we enter the next phase of our strategy, our balance sheet
strength together with our continued strong free cash flow
will enable us to invest in opportunities to grow the business
and enhance shareholder value To preserve our financial
flexibility, our policy 1s to maintam at least £250 million of
available liquidity at any point

Leverage

Our objectve 1s to run an efficient balance sheet Our priority 1S
to invest to drive organic growth and make acquisitions in Line
with our strategic prionties We will balance this investment
for further growth with attractive returns to shareholders

Over tume we will continue to look to ncrease our balance
sheet leverage and we believe maintaining leverage below 1 5x
reported net debt to adjusted EBITDA will optimise our cost of
capitat, allow us to sustain a progressive dividend policy and
enable us to retain flexibility to continue to nvest for further
growth As at 31 December 2015, reported net debt to
adjusted EBITDA was O 4x

We also look at an adjusted measure of net debt, taking

into consideration all of our financial commitments which
reflects how credit rating agencies look at our balance sheet
At 31 December 2015, adjusted net debt was £1,144 million
{31 December 2014 £765 million) reflecting an increase in
expected contingent payments on acquisitions as a result

of the acquisitions we have made in the year, partly offset

by a reduction in the pension deficit under I1AS 15 and lower
undiscounted finance lease commitments which mainly
relate to broadcast transmission contracts and property

As at 31 December 2015 adjusted net debt to adjusted EBITDA
was 13x




P Financial and Performance Review

2015 20%

£m €em

Net debt at 31 December (319) 41
Expected contingent payments on acquisitions (303) (79)
Pension deficit (JAS 19R) (176)  (346)
Operating leases (346) (381)
Adjusted net debt at 31 December {1,744) (765)

Adjusted net debt to adjusted EBITDA 13x 1 0x

Financing

We are financed using debt instruments with a range of
maturities Dunng the year we repaid the £78 million Eurobond
which matured in October 2015 Borrowings at 31 December
2015 were repayable as follows

Amount repayable Em Maturity
£161 mithion Eurobond 16t Jan 2017
€600 mitlion Eurobond 437 Sep 2022
Finance leases 10 Various
Other debt 5 Various
Total debt repayable on maturity 613

Ratings

We are rated nvestment grade by two ratings agencies
BBB- by Standard and Poor's and Baa3 by Moody’s Investor
Services The factors that are taken into account in assessing
our credit rating include our degree of operational gearing,
exposure to the economic cycle, as well as business and
geograptucat diversity

Foreign exchange

As TV continues to grow internationalty, we are increasingly
exposed to foreign exchange on our overseas operations It is
our policy not to hedge our exposure to revenues and profits
generated overseas, as this 1s seen as an inherent nsk We do
hedge our overseas net assets, where matenal, and so we have
hedged a significant portion of the euro net assets ansing
from the Talpa acquisition

ITV 15 also exposed to foreign exchange risk on transactions
we undertake in a foreign currency Our policy 1s tohedge a
portion of any transaction that is either a firm commitment
or highly probable for up to two years forward The amount
hedged depends on the level of certainty we have on the final
size of the transaction

Finally, TV 1s exposed to foreign exchange risk on the re-
translation of foreign currency loans and deposits Our policy
1s to hedge such exposures where there 1s an expectation that
any changes in the value of these items will result in a realised
cash movement over the short to medium term

Pensions

IAS 19

The aggreqgate IAS 19 deficit of the defined benefit scheme
at 31 December 2015 was £176 rmillion (31 December 2014
£346 million) The reduction reflects lower pension Liabilities
as a result of nising bond yields over the year, deficit funding
contributions of £90 rmillion and the difference between
the actual nflation experienced in the period compared to
the expected rate Pensions continue ta be paid from the
Scheme based on actual requirements

Actuanal valuation

The last actuarial valuation was undertaken in 2014 On the
bases adopted by the Trustee, the combmed deficits as at

1 January 2014 amounted to £540 mullion

Deficit funding contributions
The Group's deficit funding contributions in 2015 were
£90 rmillion (2014 £91 miltion)

Following completion of the actuaral valuations, the Group
has agreed to make deficit funding contributions in order to
eliminate the deficits in each section From 1January 2016
the contributrons are patd on the following basis

Section A - £50 million per month until 31 May 2021
Section B - £015 milbion per month until 28 February 2023
Section C - £0 3 million per month until 31 July 2021

In addition to these contributions, payments are made into
Section A as a result of the SDN and LTC Pension Funding
Partnership structures and during 2015 these payments
amounted to £13 million

The new funding structure above results in a £10 mition reduction
in deficit funding contributions payable in 2016 compared to
2015, which will be paid more evenly throughout the year

lan Griffiths
Group Finance Director
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Risks and Uncertainties

ITV has a formal risk management process which
is embedded within the business to support the

identification and effective management of risks
across the business.

It 1s regulariy reviewed and adapted as the Company, industry and macro erwironment evolves

Risk management framework

Our approach, which is consistent with
prevtous years, covers risks at all levels
of the organisation and considers risks

in three core groups:

to matenalise

Strategic risks — would impact the
successful execution of the strategy

Process level risks - embedded into

High Impact, Low Likelhood {HILL) risks —
of low inherent ikebihood but where there
would be major consequences were the risk

everyday activity within the organisation

Hightmpact, Low
Likelihood (HILL) risks

Strategic risks

Process level risks

The Board is responsible for establishing
nsk appetite, a rabust and appropriate
risk management framewark and for
monitoring the nsk management

and internal control systems During
the course of the year the Board,
Management Board and Divisional
Boards, routinely review ITV's principal
nsks and discuss the mitigations and
actions being takenwith regards to
these risks The Audit Committee
supports the Board to keep the overall
effectiveness of these processes under
reqular review

In 2015 the Board has continued

to enhance and develop ITV's risk
rmanagerment framework, in particular
reviewing the level of risk appetite in the
business Further, the Board has carned
out arobust assessment of the principat
risks facing ITV, including those that
would threaten its business model,
future performance, solvency or liquidity
Discussion of the prnincipal nsks affecting
ITV and mitigating factors can be found
on pages 48 to 51

The Management Board has
responsibility for the development
and operation of the risk management
framework and for the operation

of ITV's systems of internal control
This mcludes
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+ Risk identification and assessment
identifying the risks facing the
business and for establishing controls
and procedures to monitor and
mitigate risks

Control environment financial
controls, policies and procedures are
considered as a part of the Group’s
ongoing nisk assessment process
These controls are reviewed to ensure
risks are identified and the processes
and procedures are inaccordance
with and aligned to the strategy The
Internal Audit team provides objective
assurance as to the effectiveness of
the Group's systems of internal control
and risk management, reporting to
both the Management Board and

the Audit Committee
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Reviewing and monstoring the
effectiveness of internal controls.
controls are monitored by semor
management, Internal Audit and the
Audit Committee Remedial plans

are put in place where controls are
weak or there are opportunities

for mprovernent Sencus control
weakness (if any) are reported to the
Board and action taken as appropriate

Risk management process

Risks are pnmarily controlled through
the risk management process In
addition to the risk specific mitigating
actions outhined on pages 48 to 51risks
are considered through day-to-day
operations and are regularly discussed
by the Board and Management Board,
by the Audit Commuttee and as part

of the Board's strategy day

During 2015 all the HILL and Strategic
nsks were reassessed, challenged and
further refined to improve our risk
management Mitigating actions have
been identified for all the HILL and
Strategic nsks Each Strategic nsk has
been mapped to at least one of the
three key strateqic pnionities and, where
passible, assigned key nskndicators
Where appropriate, the key risk indicators
are aligned to our key performance
indicators (KPIs) onpages 32 to 350or

a subset of these KPIs All HILL and
Strategic nsks are owned by at least one
member of the Management Board

We have in place an Operattonal Risk
Steering Group to manage and consider
existing and emerging operational

risks and ensure they are addressed
appropriately

Internal audit plan

The internal audit plan is driven from
ITV's nsk management framework
Internal Audit reviews the auditable
elements of the HILL, Strateqgic and
Process level nsks and this informs

the areas and topics that Internal Audit
focuson

Risk culture

Throughout the year we have continued
to facus on and strengthen our risk
culture Our Code of Conduct remains
unchanged and the Operational Risk
Steenng Graup considers ethical
behaviours, governance and compliance
with cur Code [TV also offers all
employees annual online traiming

on ethics and compliance

Viability Statement

Studios division

funding arrangements

maintams its stated dividend policy

In its assessment of viability the Board 1s of the view that a three year horizon to 31 Decermber 2018 1s appropriate,
given the visibility [TV has over its Broadcast advertising business and the normal commussioning cycle which drives the

When considening the longer-term viability of ITV, the Board has reviewed each of ITV's principal nsks and uncertainties
and, taking Into account current operational and financial performance, has in particular analysed the impact of

- The Broadcast division experiencing a significant and sharp downturn, similar to the 2008/09 finanaal crisis, with
regards to advertising revenues, but in this case with no iImmediate recovery

+ A number of key programme brands within the Studios division not being recommussioned

- Asignificant change in ITV's pension funding obligations, following the triennial valuation in 2017 and subsequent

The review involved flexing the underlying strateqic forecast for the above impacts, both indwvidually and concurrently,
and no specific mitigations were assumed The underlying strategic forecast assumed business as usual capital
spending, the ongoing availability of the financing facilities @@s ITV remains within the covenants), and that TV

Based on the results of this review, the Board has a reasonable expectation that ITV will be able to continue in operation
and meet its labibities as they fall due over the three year period ending 31 December 2018 The assessment has been
made with reference to ITV's strategy and current position and prospects
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Risks and Uncertainties continued

[ High Impact, Low Likelihood Risks (HILL)

Potentlal Risk

Mitigating Factors

Financial

' ITV loses its credit status or

: lines of funding with existing
. lenders or there is a coltapse
. of a major bank iImpacting

! financial arrangements/

availability of credit.

! There is a major collapse in
! investment values leading to a

. material impact on the pension

. scheme deficit

: » The business 1s cash generative and working capital management

remains a key focus

; * [TV has a balance sheet policy to maintain adjusied net debt

below 1 5x adjusted EBITDA and have unused iquidity headroom
of £250 million

. « ITV has a £525 milion Revolving Credit Facility with a number of core

relationship banks and £250 million of financial covenant free faclities

« The low gross debt levels that ITV currently has should enable the

Company to abtain debt from the marketplace if needed

: « We are rated investment grade by two ratings agencies

........

.« There s reqular communication between TV and the pension trustees
: « The pension scheme's assets are invested in a diversified portfolio,

with a significant amount of the fund held m bonds

ITV has worked with the pension trustees to lmit the potential
deficit by a sentes of asset backed arrangements Further, it has
taken mortality nsk out of the scheme with aiongevity swap and
hedged a portion of inflation and interest rate variability

Operational

H
i
i
i
i
1
i
i
i

A significant event removes a

number of the key management

i team from the business ona
! long-term or permanent basis

There 1s a business restience plan in place which inctudes succession
plans or nominated replacements for all key positions within
the Company

Reputation

H
:
H
:

:
H

An event with public interest
that causes significant

! e e Terr TET + Br e W e v oaTE W @
i

.
H
.
.

There is a major health and

i safety incident that results in
+ asignificant loss of human life

: A major inadent results in [TV
. being unable to continue with
: scheduled broadcasting for a
: sustained period

4 e s

i There is a significant or
; unexpected change in
{ regulation or legisiation

. reputational and brand damage

ITV has a crisis management policy in place and 1s increasing
emphasis on its development and application

P

{TV has a central Health & Safety team, Operational Risk Steering
Group and Health & Safety policies and procedures are in place,
with appropriate training for employees where required As we
continue to expand internationally these will be reviewed

« Regular inspections are undertaken at all sites, which are run
alongside a programme of Health & Safety audits This 1s subject
to ongoing review

A risk register of broadcast operations, Including key outsourced
functions, 1s in place and reviewed on a regular basis

Major incident scenario testing takes place bi-annually

An incident management process has been agreed and full disaster
recovery plans are in place

= ITV reqularly communicates with appropriate groups and its
legal panel and Ofcom to monitor potential policy, legal and
regulatery developments

48
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" Strategic priorities
Maximising
Growing

Building

Strategic risks

Potential Risk

Mitigating Factors

The Market

There is a major decline in
advertising revenues and [TV
does not build sufficient non-NAR
revenue streams to offset the
financial impact of this decline

The television market moves
significantly towards pay
television as a preferred model,
negatively impacting ITV's

: free-to-air revenue

. Afaster than expected shift to
. Video on Demand or other new

technologies, such as intemet

. enabled TVs or online only
. services, causes a sustained
. loss of advertising revenue.

. = Growing non-NAR in areas such as TV Studios and Online,

* Pay & Interactive, remains a key part of the strategy

¢« ITV continues to focus on cash and costs, ensuring the

. Company has an adequate financial bquidity and balance sheet
flexibility to continue to invest

B4es 85 8 Sss ss w4 5 ss sises sie se s ss - e san a%t 8w tee van mmr sevems vav W oams  svem

- ITV continues to support free platforms, ncluding YouView,

. tokeep free-to-ar strong
- ITV looks at and evaluates the opportunities for expanding
Its existing pay services and other pay offerngs

« [TV explores other platforms to understand viewing habits
and what people are prepared to pay for

. « The business continues to develop the ITV Hub VOD services,
maximise the distnbution of the ITV Hub and grow its VOD

¢ advertising business

» » [TV monitors the market for new technology and where
appropriate explores how ITV can participate
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Risks and Uncertainties continued

Strategic risks

Potential Risk

Mitigating Factors

Organisation,
Structure
and Processes

LR T T Y

s

o maaiats 2 2 s b o8

ITV fails to evolve its organisational
structure and culture to ensure that
it 1s capable of delivering continued

growth from the new businesses

or revenue streams and fails to
attract, develop and retain key
creative, commercial and

management talent with the skills
required for the ongoing business

. There is significant loss of
! programme nghts or ITV fails to
. wdentify and obtain the optimal

beapiags sa s 3 8 8

rights packages.

ITV fails to create and own

. a sufficient number of hit
: programmes/formats across

its international portfolio of
content companies.

. ITV fails to properly resource,
. financially, creatively and

L

operationaily, the new growth
businesses, in particular online
and international content.

Bevr v mr  me ar o ome bk e & s ses s

TV remains heawvily reliant on
legacy systems, which could

: potentially restrict the ability to

- grow the business These systems

and processes may not be
appropriate for non-advertising
revenue or intermational growth

O,

ITV constantly reassesses the business to create a fit-for-
purpose organisation

Strategic focus on working across the business to embed
and strengthen the culture of ‘One ITV' way of working
ITV invests in training and development for all key
colleagues in the business

Succession plans are in ptace for all key positions within
the Company

4h b Abh AAASEASEAS & 5SS SSSE & 4 FE SEE SESEESIEEE N GN 5 RARE 8 AN A S 4% @ Gs e TeE * P e esee * W

ITV I1s focused on both protecting and exploiting existing
rights and ensuring that future nghts generated accrue
TV

ITV has a detailed model to evaluate the value of third-
party rights to ensure it only buys nghts that make
€CoNoMmIC Sense

ITV maximises opportunities for ITV Studios to create
successful shows by investing in the creative pipeline and
focusing on programmes and genres that can return and
travel internationally,re drama, entertanment and factual
entertainment, as evidenced by our increased investment
N scripted content

ITV 15 focused on hinng and retaning the right key

creative talent

Talent management plans have been developed and reviewed
to ensure adequate succession planning across TV

ITV continues to embed and strengthen the culture of

'‘One ITV' way of working

Lessons from recent investments are captured through
post-acquisition reviews

System requirements are kept under review with business
growth and system modernisation projects implemented

as appropriate

A modernisation plan s in place for the legacy systems which
remains under constant review and development to ensure
technology systems meet the needs of the business

50
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Strategic priorities
Maximising
Growing
Building
Strategic risks
Potential Risk Mitigating Factors
. H
Technology - Thereis a sustained cyber/viral i+ We continue to improve our ability to monitor, detect and
. attack causing prolonged system *respond to cyber threats internally and through partnerships
! denial or major reputational ¢ with specialist securnty organisations
, damage, for example the ability . « Mandatory online training modutes, awareness campaigns
to broadcast our channels or the . andsimplified Information security policies have been
. availability of TVHuborMVleses ; implemented for employees

. asignificant volume of personal : « There are disaster recovery and incident management plans n
: or sensitive data. - place for high-nsk areas of the business to help deliver arapid

: and flexible response

An Operational Risk Steering Group 15 In place to ensure the
appropnate management of nformation security

"A significant high-profile incident

ITV has ongoing moderrisation projects to ensure

. orseries of events e g a system ! transmission and distribution technologes are fit-for-purpose
. failure, a technology issue, or a !+ There are disaster recovery and ncident management plans

. major regulatory breach that :inplace in high nisk areas of the business to help delver a rapid
: causes significant reputational :  and flexible response

- and/or commerciat damage.

ITV proactively manages its broadcast chain partners and
suppliers to ensure the risk of Inaidents and regulatory breach
15 murnmised

e s & o8 s o
v
4

H
H
i
H
H
H
i
H
H
H
i
i
PR

: [TV fals to ensure appropriate ; + Disasterrecovery plans are in place with tests conducted
- business continuity planning and ¢ annually onbusiness cntical systems

. resilience within its core systems,

. processes, platforms and

: technology infrastructure

P

The Strategic Report was approved by
the Board and signed on 1ts behalf by

Adam Crozier
Chief Executive
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Governance

Chairman’s Governance Statement

O,

We recognise that the best
governance system in the world s
of limited value unless built on an
organisation that encourages
integrity and transparency.”

Archie Norman
Chatrman

In the Governance section

This section of the Annual Report contains a statement from your
Chairman and information about the Directors and Management
Board It explains our governance structure and corporate
governance compliance and inctudes reports from the Audit

and Remuneration Committees and the Directors’ Report

“
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Dear shareholder,

The Board believes that a high standard
of corporate governance Is essential not
Just to protecting shareholders interests,
but to building and sustaining the long-
term success of the Company

Our belief1s that a good board s an
engaged board, working closely with
the executive team The success of the
Board process depends on a strong
chermistry around the board table where
rabust discussions can be conducted in
a spint of openness and transparency
The Board's role 15 both to support and
challenge the executive team and to
promote the success of the business

When we started on the transformation
programme six years ago we downsized
the Board nitialty to six members to
create a2 more cohesive and engaged
team Since that time, we have added
carefully to its membership to reflect
our belief that ITV works bestwith a
balanced combination of creative,
commercial and financial tatent and
experience Butwe continue to believe
that a relatively small, but talented
board, close to the business is the nght
model for ITV

With that we have reshaped the
governance process Strong governance
15 the platform that allows the Board

to engage in effective strategic and
commercial debate Today, we have a
robust framework of sk management
and financial controls which we review
regutarly and a very rigorous Audit
Committee process under its Chairman,
John Ormerod

We recogrise that the best governance
system in the world 1s of imited value
unless built on an orgarisation that
encourages ntegrity and transparency
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ITV s a talent bustness and ensuring
that we employ great people and allow
them creative freedom in the context
of tight finanaial discipline is crucial to
our success So the foundation of our
governance 15 ensuring we have the
right people and attitudes For this
reason we have rigorous pulse surveys
of employee morale and attitudes
and the Board regularly engages in
discussion about people, organisation
and succession

The Board meets regularly for scheduted
Board and Committee meetings and

has a number of informal meetings to
consider specific Issues We interact
frequently with senior executives and
subject matter experts This ensures
that the Board has a full understanding
of the business During the year some of
our Non-executive Directors undertook
visits to our UK and international sites

We remain committed to maintairmng
regular open dialogue and effective
communication with our sharehclders
We believe that continued engagement
i1s highly beneficial to all parties as it
helps to bulld a greater understanding
of our Investors’ views, opinions

and concerns

During the year an important focus has
been on evolving our strategy for the
next stage of our development Each
year we hold a two day off-site strategy
meeting where we consider recent

and upcoming changes in our business
environment, the risks and impacts of
such changes on our business and how
we might meet these challenges Abnef
summary of the business undertaken by
the Board and our focus for 201615 set
out on page 59

We are delighted that Anna Manz
agreed to join the Board in February
2016 Annais currently Group Strategy
Director at Diageo plc where she has
an impressive track record She will
bring consumer, financial and strategc
experience to the Board

It 15 our policy to appoint Non-executive
Directors for a three year period

from appomntment and then consider
reappointment on an annual basis
following a robust performance
evaluation

In addition we carefully review other
commitments to ensure that Directors
have sufficient time to commit to the
business Details of appointment dates
and length of tenure for each director
can be found in the table on page 59
All Directors are required by the
Company's Articles of Association to
be elected by shareholders at the first
AGM following therr appointment by
the Board Subsequently, all Directors
are subject to annual re-election by
shareholders as recommended by

the UK Corporate Governance Code
(the Code)

We are in the process of conducting
an externally facilitated board
effectiveness review and further
details of this can be found on page 60

As a listed company, ITV 1s required

to report onhow it has complied with
the principles of governance set cut

in the Code The Board considers that
the Company has complied with the
provisions of the Code, except in
respect of provision C 31 Following the
departure of Lucy Newille-Rolfe in July

2014, the Audit Committee had only two

members However, we were delighted

that Mary Harris agreed to join the Audit

Committee and she was appointed as
an additonal member on 16 June 2015
From that date we were fully compliant

Further information on corporate
governance and a schedule setting out
how we comply with the Code can be
found on our website

@ www itvplc com/about/governance

A copy of the Code i1s available on the
FRC website

(@ www frc org uk/Our-Work/Codes-
Standards/Corporate-governance
Archie Norman

Charrman

2 March 2016
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Board of Directors

@

®

1ArchieNorman ®®

Chairman

Appointed January 2010

Key areas of prior experience- Business
turnaround, consumer marketing,
international business, corporate finance
and regulatory affarrs

Current external appointments
Chairman of Lazard, London and
Hobbycraft Group Limited, Director of
Coles Group and Target Limited, Adwvisor
to Wesfarmers Limited, Governor of

the National Institute of Economic and
Social Research

Prevtous experience Founder of Aurigo
Management Partners LLP, Charman of
HSS Hire Services Group, Energis PLC and
ChartwellLand plc, Chief Executive and
Chairman of ASDA Group plc, Finance
Director of Kingfisher plc, Non-executive
Director of British Rail, Railtrack plc and

Geest ple, Member of Parbament, Deputy

Chairman and Chief Executive of the
Conservative Party, Shadow Secretary
of State for the Department of
Environment, Transport and the Regions,
Partner at McKinsey & Company

2 Adam Crozier ©

Chief Executive

Appointed- April 2010

Key areas of prior expenence- Business
turmaround and change management
Current external appointments
Non-executive Director of G4S plc
Previous experience: Non-executive
Oirector of Debenhams plc and Camelot
Group plc, Chief Executive of the Royal
Mail Group, Chief Executive of the
Football Association, Joint Chief Executive
of Saatchi & Saatchi Advertising
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3lanGriffiths ©

Group Finance Director

Appointed: September 2008

Key areas of prior experience
Corporate finance and financial
restructuring

Current external appointments
Non-executive Director of DS Smith Plc
Previous experience Group Finance
Director and other senior finance roles
within Emap pic, Manager n audit and
corporate finance at Ernst & Young
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: Committee membership
: (G General purpose

* (&) Audit

() Nomunation

(R) Remuneration

4Sir Peter Bazalgette ®®
Non-executive Director

Appointed June 2013

Key areas of prior experience Media
consultant, digrtal media investor and
former television producer

Current external appointments:
Chairman of the Arts Councit of England,
Non-executive Director of Nutopia,
President of the Royal Television
Socety, Member of an Advisory Board,
YouGov plc

Previous experience: Non-executive
Director and Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and member
of the Audit Commuttee of YouGov plc,
Non-executive Director of Mirriad
Advertising Ltd, DCMS, Rightster, Criticat
Information Group plc and Channel Four
Telewision Corp, Trustee of DebateMate,
Chairman of the ENO and Endemol UK,
Oeputy Chairman and Director of the
National Filtm and Telewvision School,
Adwiser to Sony MusiC’s telewvision
division, Chairman of the UK production
business of Sony Pictures Television inc,
Chief Creative Officer at Endernol Group
BV and Endemol Entertainment

UK Limited

5RogerFaxon ®

Non-executive Director

Appointed October 2012

Key areas of pnor experience Broad
commercial, digital and media nghts
experience, development of business
strategy and finance

Current external appointments
Charrman of Mirnad Advertising Ltd,
Non-executive Director of Pandora
Media Inc, Director of The John Hopkins
University

Previous expertence Director of EMI
Group Global Limited and EMI Group plc,
Chief Executive Officer of EMI Group
Limited, Chairman and CEQ of EMI Music
Publishing, Director of the Songwniters
Hatl of Fame, other appomntments at
the American Society of Composers and
Authors and Lanat Media Entertainment
Ltd in the US, Chairman of VIVA Television
in Germany and Channel V Networks
nAsIa

6 Mary Harris ®O®

Non-executive Director

Appointed: July 2014

Key areas of prior experience Business
management consulting, sales and
marketing, mergers and acquisitions,
media, television and interactive media
investrments and digital nghts
management

Current external appointments
Non-executive Birector of Reckitt
Benckiser Group plc and J Sainsbury plc,
Member of the supervisory board of
TNT Express NV and Unibail Rodamco SE
Previous experience Member of
supervisory board of Scotch and Soda
NV, TNT NV and Irdeto BV Partner at
McKinsey & Company, Amsterdam,
Vartous positions wortdwide with
McKinsey & Company, Maxwell
Enterta:nment Group, Pepsi Cola
Beverages and Goldman Sachs & Co

7 Andy Haste ®@®

Senior Independent Director,
Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee

Appointed August 2008

Key areas of pnor expenence:
International and emerging markets,
change management, restructuring
and business turnaround

Current external appomtments.
Charrman of Wonga Group Limited,
Semor Independent Deputy Chairman
of the Council of Lloyd's

Previous experience Group Chief
Executive of RSA Insurance Group plc,
Chief Executive of AXA SunLife plc,
Director of AXA UK pl¢ (Iife and
pensions), President and Chief Executive
Officer of GE Capital Global Consumer
Finance UK, Western Europe and
Eastern Europe, President of the US
Consumer Credit Business and Senior
Vice President and Head of the US
Consumer Loan Products Division

of National Westminster Bank

S8AnnaManz ®

Non-executive director
Appomnted: February 2016

Key areas of prior experience
Strategy and finance and financial
planning

Current external appointments:
Group Strategy Director at Diageo plc
Previous Experience

Varigus appointments at Diageo plc
including, Regional Finance Director,
Asia Pacic, Group Treasurer; Finance
Director, Global Marketing, Sates and
Innovation, other finance roles at
Quest International, Urulever and ICI

9 John Ormerod O®®
Non-executive Director,

Chairman of the Audit Committee
Appointed: January 2008

Key areas of prior experience
Financial experience, developing
strategy and growth

Current external appointments:
Chairman of First Names Group Limited,
Non-executive Director of Constellum
NV, Non-executive Director and
Charman of the Audit Committee

of Gemalto NV

Previous experience Chairman of Tribat
Group plc, Merlin Claims Service Holdings
Lirnited and Wallbrook Group, Seror
Independent Director of Misys plc,
Trustee of The Design Museum and

The Roundhouse Trust, Non-executive
Director and Chairman of Audit
Committee of Computacenter plc,
Negative Equity Protection Holdings
Limited, Milien Group Limited and BMS
Associated Limited, Member of Audit
and Retail Risk Control Committees

of HBOS plc, Chairman of the Audit
Committee for Transport for London,
Practice Serior Partner at Deloitte &
Touche, Regional Managing Partner

at Arthur Andersen

@) Full biographies can be found on
ourwebsite www itvplc com/about/
management/board-of-directors
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1 Julian Bellamy

Managing Director, ITV Studios
Appointment to the Board

February 2016

Previous expenence: Julian joined TV
N 2014 as Managing Director of the
studios business in the UK and was
recently promoted to Managing Director
of ITV Studios Julian's previous roles
inctuded Creative Director and Head of
Commussioning at Discovery Networks
Internationat, Head of Programming at
Channel 4 and prior to that he ran BBC3
and E4 He also spent time as Channel 4's
Head of Factual Entertaimment and was
a commussioning editer of Channel 4
News and Current Affairs

2 Mary Fagan

Group Communications and
Corporate Affairs Director
Appointment to the Board:

January 20M

Previous expenence Mary joined ITV
from the Royal Mail Group, where

she was Corporate and Government
Affairs Director from December 2003
A servor aity and business journabist
with more than 20 years' experience,
Mary’s previous roles included Deputy
City Editor of the Sunday Telegraph,
Industrial Correspondent for the
Independent and City Reporter

at the Evening Standard
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3 Andrew Garard

Group Legal Director and Company
Secretary

Appomntment to the Board.
November 2007

Previous experience- Andrew joined
ITV as Group Legal Director in 2007 and
took on the addtional role of Company
Secretary in 2009 He s also Chairman
of TN, and responsibte for nights
management, the ITV archive and
Corporate Responsibility Previously
Andrew was a Partner in the corporate
department of LeBoeuf Lamb’s London
office Prior to this, Andrew was Group
General Counsel and Company Secretary
at Cable & Wireless plc where he was
amember of the Group Executive
responsible for Global Legal Prior to
that he was Global Head of Legal and
Deputy General Counsel of Reuters
Group plc in the UK, and before that,
General Counsel Asia

& Kevin Lygo

Director of Television

Appointment to the Board

August 2010

Previous experience.

Kevin joined [TV as Managing Director,
TV Studios in 2010 and became Director
of Television in February 2016 Kevin's
previous roles included Director of
Telewision and Content at Channel 4,
Director of Programmes at Channel 5
and a number of pesttions at the BBC,
including Head of Independent
Commussioning for Entertainment

5 David Osbomn

Group Human Resources Director
Appointment to the Board

October 2014

Previous experience: David joined TV
as the Human Resources Director for ITV
Studios in May 201, and was appointed
to the Management Board in Octaber
2014 as Group Human Resources
Director, responsible for delivering the
Group's People Strategy David gained
previous experience in both the UK

and mternationally whitst working

in a variety of businesses including

EMI Music, Vodafone, Visa Europe

and Marks & Spencer

6 Simon Pitts

Managing Director, Online, Pay TV,
Interactive and Technology
Appuointment to the Board-

January 20M

Previous experience Simonjomned ITV
in 2000 and has held a range of roles
across corporate strategy, general
management, digital media, policy and
regulation, and public affairs He took on
his most recent role in December 2014
with a rermit to grow ITV's Online, Pay TV
and Interactive businesses alongside
continued leadership of the Technology
team He also has responsibility for SDN,
sits on the boards of ITN and YouView
and s a Trustee of the Royat Television
Society Before ITV Simon worked in the
Eurcpean Parliament in Brussels where
he specialised in media issues

7 Kelly Williams

Managing Director, Commercial
Appointment to the Board

December 2014

Previous experience Kelly joined TV
in August 2011 as Group Commercial
Director and was promoted to the
Management Board as Managing
Director, Commercial n December 2014
He 15 also Chairman of Thinkbox, sits

on the BARB Strategy board and 1s Vice
Chairman of the Advertising Association
Before joining ITV, Kelly was the Sales
Director at Channel 5 and prior to that
held various positions at UKTV, Sky and
Thames Television

ITV ple Annual Report and Accounts 2015 57

- N




Governance

Corporate Governance

Our Governance structure

Board and Committees
~o

Audit Committee Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee

Three Non-executive Directors Chairman and two Non-executive Charrman and Non-executive Directors

See the Audit Committee Report Directors Meets to review the structure, size, and

on page 62 See the Annual Remuneration Report composition of the Board, including skills,

on page 68 knowtedge and expenence Identifies and

nomnates for board approval candidates
to fill board vacancies, and considers
succession planming for Directors andg other
Seniar Executives Considers and reviews any
conflicts of interest that may be reported by
the Directors

Disclosure Committee General Purpose Committee Tax and Treasury Committee

Executive Directors and other Executive Directors Group Finance Director and

senior managers Meets as required to conduct businesswithin | other semor managers

Meets to ensure compliance with the clearly defined Wirmmits set by the Board Meets to consider and approve tax and

continuing obligations under the Disclosure treasury related matters mrespect of

and Transparency Rules corporate transactions or other activities
Monitors compliance with tax and treasury
related policies and procedures

Matters reserved for the Board and Commuttee terms of reference are available onou

@ www itvplc com/about/governance

r website

[ L]
Executive
- "
Management Board ITV Studios Board ITV Broadcast Board
Members are set out on page 56 Executive Directors and Senior Executive Directors and Semor
Meets to consider and approve strategy Executives of divisional business Executives of divisional business
and operational plans, momtors operating Meets to consider and approve operational Meets to consider and approve cperational
and financial performance, and assesses matters, and assesses and manages risk in matters, and assesses and manages riskin
and manages risk relation to the Studios business relation to the Broadcast business
o
Operations
N ?
Operational Risk Steering Group Programme Compliance Responsibitity Governance Board
Manages and considers a number of Advisorv Group Manages the direction and delvery of
existing and emerging eperational nsks Manages and considers Issues and ITV's Responsibiity Strategy including
and ensures that the business addresses risks in relation to the programme m relation to
them appropriately including in relation to compliance framework, the Diversity and inclusion, Cornmunity, Chanty
Health & Safety, Child Protection, interactive business and and the Envirgnment
Business Resilience, Data Protection, Insider regulation
Dealing, Whistleblowing, Anti-Bnbery &
Corruption, information Secunity, Fraud,
Technology and Cyber risk
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Board and Committee meetings

The number of meetings held during the year and attendance of Directors is set out in the table below The Board agrees an
annual schedule of matters it wishes to consider at each of its meetings and those of its committees The schedule ensures that
al! retevant matters are considered and receive appropniate attention Meetings are normatly held at one of the London sites or
one of the regional or international offices Board meetings are structured around the following areas

- Operational and functicnal updates

+ Financial updates

- Strategy

- Risk framework and appetite

+ Progress against strategic priorities

- Other reporting and items for approval

Senior Executives and other colleagues are regularly invited to attend meetings for specific items In addition to formal board
and committee meetings, meetings take place between

» Board members and Management Board members
- Chairman and Non-executive Directors
+ Senior Independent Director and Non-executive Directors (without the Chairman present)

Qur focus during 2015 and some of our plans for 2016 are set out below

2015 2016
Broadcast strategy focusing on SOV Development of creative talent pipeline
International content strategy and market review Review of the North American market
Onling, Pay & Interactive strategy Viewing trends, including younger viewers
Retransmussion fees and the regulatory environment International content strategy

Viewing trends and global OTT market developments Online and Pay strateqy

Board and Committee membership and attendance
Board and Committee membershup and attendance at scheduled meetings in 2015 15 set out below

Nomination Remuneraton Audit
Board Committee Committee Commlitee
Tenure at
Date of appolntment 31December
Status Notes totheBoard  2015Y/M  Contractrenewal date 10 2 6 7
Peter Bazalgette Independent 1June 2013 27 1June 2016 10 2 6 -
Adam Crazier Executive 1 26 Apnl 2010 5/8 n/a 10 - - -
Roger Faxon Independent 2 310ctober 2012 3/2  310ctober 2016 9 2 - -
lan Griffiths Executive 1 9 September 2008 714 nia 10 - - -
Mary Harns Independent 3 28 July 2014 V5 28 July 2017 9 1 -
Independent
Andy Haste 51D 11 August 2008 7/5 11 August 2016 10 2 6 7
Independent
Archie Norman Charrman 4 1January 2010 6/0 1January 2017 10 2 4 -
John Ormerod Independent 18 January 2008 7/ 18 January 2017 10 2 6

1 Executive Directors have rolling service contracts that provide for 12 months notice on either side

2 Roger Faxon did not attend a scheduled Board meeting and the AGM on 14 May 2015 due to farmily commitments

3 Mary Harnis was appointed 1o the Audit Committee on 16 June 2015 and three of the seven scheduled meetings were held prior to her appaintment
Non-attendance at another scheduled meeting was due to other board commutments agreed before her appointment toiTv

4 Archie Norman did not attend two scheduted Remuneration Committee meetings due to unavoidable overseas commitments

Terms of engagement for the Non-executive Directors are availabte on our website

@ www tvplc com/about/governance
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Corporate Governance continued

Durning the year the appointments of
John Ormerod and Andy Haste were
extended for a further 12 months
Both have been Non-executive Directors
for over six years The Board continues
to believe that they bring a wealth of
knowledge and experience to thetr
deliberations and both provide a
valuable contribution as Chairmen

of the Audit and Remuneration
Committees respectively

Anna Manz was appointed as a Non-
executive Director with effect from
1February 2076 Annawas selected
from a number of candidates following
a rigorous search process

During 2015 the Nomination Committee
commenced the succession process for
the Chawrman Following a robust review
they concluded that Sir Peter Bazalgette
was the best and most appropriate
candidate for the position With his
wealth of experience and unrivalted
reputation in the media sector, he s well
placed to take the Company forward to
its next stage of development Sir Peter
has been on the Board since June 2013
and has a detailed understanding of

the business and its 1ssues together

with valuable msight on the strategic
challenges facing TV and the

industry generally

Executwe search firm Zygos were
engaged to assist with both search
processes Zygos have no other
connection with ITV

Board effectiveness

Expenience and independence
Biographical details for the Directors are
set out on pages 54 and 55, with fuller
brographies available on our website

@ www itvplc com/about/management/
board-of-directors

The Board is of the view that the
Non-executive Directors are ndependent
in both character and judgement

They constructively challenge and

help develop proposals on strategy,
scrutinise the performance of

management In meeting agreed goals
and objectves, and manitor the
reporting of performance

The Board works well together,

brninging strong, independent, balanced
judgement, knowledge and experience
to its deliberations Each Non-executive
Director has appropriate skills and
experience so that therr views carry
significant weight in the decision making

There are job descriptions in place

for each of the Chairman, the Chief
Executive, and the Serior Independent
Director which have been agreed by
the Board These are available on

our website

@ www.itvplc com/about/governance

Evaluation

Internal

The work of the Board Committees Is
reviewed annually with the support of
Group Secretariat The evaluation takes
the form of face-to-face meetings with
Board and Committee members eliciting
feedback on a wide range of topics

tn addition input 1s sought from the
Executive Directors, other relevant
semor executives and external advisers

Output 1s reported to the relevant

Charman and a report of actions is
submutted to the Commuttees and
actioned as appropriate

External

In 2012413 the Board undertook a

board effectiveness review facilitated
by YSC The review was developmentally
focused, both with respect to the
functioning of the Board and for
individual board members This resulted
in suggestions for the Board to develop
its effectiveness which were discussed
with the Board as a whole and feedback
was provided to individual board
members together with additional
development sesstions

At the end of 2015 the Board
commenced a further effectiveness
review, agamn using YSC, and recognising
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that the Board has a number of new
members Board members were
asked for

« Views on board effectiveness

« Feedback on indwidual board
members

= Suggestions for improvernent

- Personal aspirations around
contribution to the Board

As part of the process YSC have
attended several board meetings

to observe and will produce areport
of findings and suggestions for
development of the Board as a whote
and on an individual basis The process
15 expected to take approxmately

sIX months

Board tenure
The current board tenure 1s shown in the
diagram below

0-2vyears

00

2-5years

0

5-8years

i

Succession planning and diversity
Succession planning

The Board has agreed a succession
planring framework which it reqularly
reviews to ensure that

- Board tenure 1s appropriate and
encourages fresh thinking and
new 1deas

» The Board s sufficiently diverse but
most importantly has the appropriate
mix of generalist and specialist skills

« Non-executive Directors have the
appropriate level of independence,
from the executive and each other
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Both John Ormerod and Andy Haste are
approaching nine years tenure The
Board 1s mindful of this and succession
planning is under consideration

Diversity

It1s our policy to retain a strong but
relatively small board bringing a balance
of in-depth commercial and creative
experience It continues to be the Board's
intention to Increase the diverse
make-up and representation of its
members as oppartunities arise, but
gven the size of the Board specific
formulaic targets are not appropriate

Induction, training and development
The Company has a policy and
programme for induction and continuing
professional development of Oirectors
On appomntment, each Director takes
part in a comprehensive induction
programme

During therr period in office, the
Directors are continually updated on the
Group’s businesses and the competitive
and regulatory environments in which
they operate This Is done through

Updates and papers which cover
changes affecting the Group and
the market in which it operates
Meetings with senior executives
across the Group and key advisers

« Regular updates on changes to the
legal and governance requirements
of the Group and inrelation to their
own position as Directors
Presentations given at board and
committee meetings on business
matters and techrical update
sessions from external advisers
where appropriate

This 1s supplemented by wisits to UK and
international locations During 2015
Peter Bazalgette and Roger Faxon
visited the ITV Studios office inLos
Angeles, Mary Harris wisited Talpa in
The Netherlands and The Garden

with John Ormerod A number of the
Directors visited the new Coronation
Street site in Salford, Manchester

As part of thewr professional
development Executive Directors

may accept external appointments

as Non-executive Directors of other
companies and retain any related fees
paid to them Details of positions held
and fees receved by Executive Directors
1IN 2015 can be found on page 79

Relations with shareholders

The Board attaches a high prionty to
effective commurucation with
shareholders and has regular and open
dialogue with investars The Board
believes that continued engagement
with shareholders s benefical to both
ITV and 1ts stakeholders as it helps to
buitd a greater understanding of
Investors’ views, opinions and concerns
Adam Crozier, lan Gnffiths and the
Director of Investor Relations meet with
many institutionat investors throughout
the year to keep them updated on the
Company's performance agamst our
strategy These range from one-to-one
meetings to group presentations
including the Full Year and interim
results and the AGM Speafically,
following the Full Year and Interrm
results one-to-one meetings are held
with our largest institutional investors

The Chairman and Senior Independent
Director also respond to shareholder
queries and hold meetings where
appropriate

The Company maintams a programme
of engagement with the investment
community, ncluding results
presentations, briefings to brokers
and other sales forces and attendance
at a number of investor conferences
Presentations given to the iInvestment
community are available to download
from our website

@ www Itvplc com/investors

We regularly seek feedback on the
perception of the Company amongst
shareholders and the investor
commurnity more broadly via our
corporate brokers Investor comments
are fed back to the Board and its
committees regularly

Private shareholders represent mare
than 92% of our shareholders, holding
297% of our shares We encourage
sharehaolders to register therr email
addresses to receive information from
us In a timely manner

The AGM will be held on Thursday,
12 May 2016 (further details can be
foundon page 177)

In 2015 the meeting was attended by
129 shareholders Shareholders are
invited to meet the Directors prior to
and after the formal proceedings At
the meeting the Chairman and Chief
Executive will review the Group's current
trading which is followed by a question

and answer session Separate resolutions

are proposed on each substantially
separate 1ssue and all resolutions are
taken ona poll Voting canbe done
online or using & form of proxy which
1s sent to all shareholders The level of
votes lodged on each resolution 1s made
available on a Regulatory Information
Service and on the Company’s website
as soon as possible after the meeting
Details of voting at the 2015 meeting
are available on our website

(& www itvplc com/investors/
annual-general-meeting
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Audit Committee Report

©

John Ormerod
Chairrman,
Audit Committee

ITV is a different business from that
of three or five years ago. We aim
to ensure that our controls
anticipate the changing

risks in our business and

that our reporting reflects

fairly our new activities.”

In this report

The purpose of this report is to highlight areas that the Committee
has reviewed dunng the year We report back to shareholders the
significant financial reporting issues and judgements made in connection
with the preparation of the Company’s financial statements Also highlighted
is how the Committee has assisted the Board in reviewing the Company’s
internal control and risk environment. We explain what the Committee has
done to review the effectiveness of our internal and external auditors

Dear shareholder,
Cn the following pages we set out the
Audit Commuttee's Report for 2015

Our particular areas of focus during the
year include

Acquisitions we continued to invest

i our production business in particular
the acquisition of formats that travel
internaticnally The Committee engages
at an early stage with significant
potential acquisitions We review with
management the approach to due
diligence and review the results of that
work prior to its submission to the Board
We consider carefully the appropriate
accounting for arrangements which are
designed both to incentivise creative
talent and manage financial risk

Of particular focus this year was
the acquisition accounting for Talpa,
specifically the treatment of the
earnout arrangements linked to
retaining key talent in the business

Technology technology 1s key to our
competitive success In areas such as
online but also to Improving our
operational efficency The Committee
has continued to review the plans and
controls over technology change and
for maintaining control in areas where
legacy systems continue to operate
Cyber security has remained a focus
for the Commuttee, especially as media
companies have continued to face
increased frequency and sophistication
of cyber attacks
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Audit quality the Committee continued
to focus on audit quality This year

the Commuttee noted the Financial
Reporting Council's comments and used
therr Audit Quality Practice Aid tohelp
shape the Committee’s review of the
external audit

Risk management and internal
controls the Committee assisted

the Board in ensuning complance with
the UK Corporate Governance Code (the
Code) in relation to risk management
and internal controls The Commuttee
reviewed the process of risk
management and considered how to
ernbed more operational risk appetite
measures mnto board discussions For
example in 2015, an Operational Risk
Steering Group was established to
manage and consider a number of
existing and emergmg operationat
risks and ensure the business addresses
them appropriately |aminvited to
attend meetings of the Operational
Risk Steering Group and of the Tax

and Treasury Committee

Audit Tendering during the year the
Committee has continued to monstor
changes in regulation for auditor
appointments Recently the Department
for Business, Innovation and Skitls has
issued further guidance that has clarified
ITV's position with regards to its next
tender and rmandatory auditor rotation

Viability Statement following changes
to the Code the Committee reviewed
the process by which the Company
assesses viability over the longer term
This was considered by the Board and
the statement 1s set out anpage 47

We continue to focus on financial
reporting jJudgements and disclosures
and challenging management to
develop controls to anticipate future
opporturnties and nsk Management is
committed to continuous iImprovement
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We are pleased that Mary Harns joined
the Commuttee during the year and she
brings a broad range of expenence to
our deliberations

We seek to respond to shareholders’
expectation of audit committee
reporting and would welcome feedback

John Ormerod
Chatrman, Audit Committee
2 March 2016

What we focused on in 2015
In planning its own agenda, and
reviewing the audit plans of the internal
and external auditor, the Committee
takes account of significant issues and
risks, bath operational and financial,
likely to impact on the Company's
financial statements The Committee
also addresses speafic quenes referred
to it by the Board or Remuneration
Committee

During 2015 there were no topics where
there was significant disagreement
between management, our external
auditor and the Committee, or
unresolved issues that needed to be
referred to the Board

During 2015 we complied with the
provisions of the Statutory Audit
Services for Large Companies Market
Investigation (Mandatory Use of
Competitive Tender Processes and Audit
Cormrmittee Responsibilities) Order 2014

Below Is a summary of some of the
more significant nsks and financial
reporting 1ssues discussed In the year
by the Committee

[ Who is on the Committees

The Commuttee is composed entirely of Non-executive Directors The current
members are

- John Ormerod (Chairman)
- Mary Harris (appointed 16 June 2015)
- Andy Haste

The Committee members have between thern awide range of business and
financial expernience The Committee considers that John Ormerod has recent
and relevant financial experience for the purpases of the Code

Full details of attendance at Committee meetings can be found on the table
onpageSs9

Our role
The matn role of the Committee Isto

« monitor the integnity of the published financal information of the Company
and review and report to the Board on the significant financial reporting issues
and Judgements made in connection with the preparation of the published
finanaal information of the Company,

« provide advice to the Board on whether the Annual Report and Accounts are
far, balanced and understandable,

- review the effectiveness of the internal control and nsk management
processes and give input to the Board's consideration of nisk and risk appetite,

- monitor and review the effectiveness and independence of the internal
audit function,

- provide advice to the Remuneration Committee on financial reporting matters
and related judgements and sk management as they affect performance
objectives retated to executive remuneration, and

- review the quality and effectiveness of the external audit and the procedures
and controls designed to ensure auditor iIndependence

Foliowing each meeting the Committee communicates its main discussion peints
and findings to the Board

Annual Review

An annual review of the performance of the Commuttee was conducted for

the year In addition to feedback from members of the Commuttee, input was
sought from the Group Finance Director, external auditors, internal Audit and
the Charrman of the Board Overall, the review concluded that the Commuttee ss
responding appropriately to its terms of reference and will continue to develop
its role Priorities for this year will nclude strengthening further the Commuttee
membership as part of our succession planning and deepening our engagement
with the key risks facing the Company

Further information about the Committee and the Committee’s terms of
reference can be accessed on our website

@ www itvplc com/about/governance

e N
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Audit Committee Report continued

Financial reporting
As part of the Committee's review of the Intenm and Full Year financial statements, the following were discussed

Complex discrete transactions in the year

The Group completed certan transactions during the period that were outside the normal course of business The Committee
carefully reviewed these one-off transactions to ensure that the judgements applied by management were reasonable and
any complex accounting guidance followed correctly The key topics discussed in the year covered acquisitions

Acquisition accounting for Talpa (see note 3 4 for detail on the acquisition)
Talpa was the targest acquisition made by the Group in 2015 The Commuttee ensured consistency in application of principles to
previous deals and reviewed the treatment and presentation of performance-related commitments between ITV and the seller

Consistent As part of the review of the acquisition of Talpa, the Committee reviewed the areas of judgement applied
application of by management around the valuation of ntangibles The Committee concluded that the assumptions
acquisition and judgements taken by management were on a basis consistent with previous acquisitions, market
accounting practice and IFRSs

Performance- The Talpa acquisition structure altows for further amounts payable after two, five and eight years
related based on the achievement of stretching performance targets for the business in the years following
consideration acquisition For these amounts to be paid the deal requires the seller to remain with the business

during these pertods Further, if the seller leaves within two years a significant portion of the initial
consideration would be refunded to ITV Structuring the deal this way helped manage nsks in terms

of imtial capital outlay and created a jomnt ncentive between [TV and the seller to grow the business
Management considered it appropriate for performance reporting to include these payments as the
cost of acquiring the business even though IFRS requires any payment that Links a seller to remaining in
the business as an employment cost. The Committee discussed management's analysis for excluding
these payments from adjusted earnings, and concluded that management's analysis was farr and
consistent with previous acquisittons where key talent 1s retained

Buy out of minonty interest of Leftfield

The Committee also reviewed the acceleration of the buy out of the Leftfield minority interest The Commuttee discussed
management’s jJudgements around the far value of the consideration paid for the remaining minority interest and concluded
| management's analysis was fair and reasonable

Recurring transactions in the year
There are a number of areas where the Group transacts as part of its business as usual. However, these areas may require the
application of judgement by management or have underlying complexity that should be considered on an ongoing basis by
the Committee

Consequently, the following key topics are reviewed by the Committee

Revenue Every year the Commuttee considers management's assessment of the Group’s internal controls
framework, which includes control over revenue At the end of 2014 the Committee requested an internal
audit exercise specifically to review the nisks and controls surrounding each of the Group's main revenue
streams This review was finalised in early 2015 The Committee ensured the processes and controls
around existing revenue streams remained consistent and effective during the year The Commuttee s
involved in the preliminary discussions regarding implementatton of the new revenue recognition
standard IFR515 applicable from 2018

Deal debt This 1s where management reviews the over and under delivery of advertising vatue to agencies The
Committee reviews management’s approach and method of determining the provision required for
under delivery The Committee is satisfied that the proviston has been calculated on an appropriate basis

Royaltyaccruals  The Group is required to make royalty payments for content broadcast and distributed where we do not own
all the nghts Such payments are i accordance with individual contracts, and the large varety of terms
results In a complex and manual process After an annual review of processes and controls, the Committee
was satisfied with the improvements management continue to make in the controls over royalty

payments and as with previgus years, the Committee considered the estimated accrual to be reasonable J
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Penston
accounting

The Group’s defined benefit pension scheme 1s a significant net biability on the Group's balance sheet

(see note 37) and the value of the scheme’s net labilities will fluctuate due to changes in underlying
assumptions (@and the assets are held at market value} The main assumptions which drive the fluctuations
in labilities include the value of its bond yield rate and the forecast inflation rate The Committee
considered both the process management undertook to finalise the assumptions and how these
assumptions benchmark against the market The Committee concluded that the process was robust

and the resulting calculation approprately balanced

Other topics reviewed during the year included:

Defiat financing

As part of management’s strategy to expand its content portfolio, significant investment in high end
drama was made during the year The Committee has reviewed and considered the accounting
implications, Including revenue recognition and recaverability of the amounts invested The Committee
concluded that the accounting treatment was appropriate

Tax

The Committee received regular updates from management and the Tax and Treasury Committee
withregard to key areas of tax risk, tax compliance, tax matters in respect of corporate transactions,
and significant changes in tax legistation The Committee considered the key risks which give rse to
uncertainties over corporate tax, payroll and VAT babilities and retated prowisions The Committee
discussed the activities which management undertakes to rescive the matters that give rise to such
provisions Where advice from our tax adwvisers is received, the results and views of their work are also
reviewed The Commuttee concluded that the provisions at the year end were appropriate (see note 2 3}

Risk Management and Internal
Controls

Risk management

The Committee continued to consider
the process for managing risk within
the business and assisted the Board

in relation to compliance with the Code
and development of the risk appetite
framework Further infermation on our
HILL and strategic risks and uncertainties
and risk management pracess Is
included within the Strategic Report
on pages 46 to 51

For the Group’s HILL nsks the Committee
reviewed the Group’s current level

of exposure and considered the
appropriateness of the mitigating
actions being taken by management

The Commuttee also considered
management's response to strategic risk,
including the tevel of assurance provided
around the nsk and how the risk s tracked
using key risk indicators With regard to
process risks the Committee reviewed
how effective management was in
addressing the findings of internal and
external audit, as well as the method

by which management accepted

process rnsks

The Committee has in place a rolling
programme to review key compliance
and other risk

Internal controls

The Board has overall responsibility

for the Group's systerns of nternal
control and for regularly reviewing the
effectiveness of those systems The
Committee assists the Board inreviewing
the systems of internal control The
primary responsibility for the operation
of these systems 1s delegated to
management Such systems can only
provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance aganst material misstatement
orloss Key control procedures are
designed to manage rather than
elminate risk

The Committee satisfies itself that
internal controls are operating
throughout the year principally based

on the programme of internal audit
reviews In addition to the internal

audit programme, there 15 a suite of
exception reports that cover transaction
processing For thase subsidiaries not
covered by exception reporting software,
management recently mplemented a
monthly self assessment which s subject
to independent internal review
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Strategy and financial reporting

The strategy Is reviewed and approved
by the Board The Group performsa
comprehensive annual strategy review
and a rolling five year financial planning
exercise The five year plan feeds into
the annual budget cycle The Executive
Directors review formal forecasts,
detalled budgets, strategies and action
plans and the Board approves the overall
Group budget as part of its normal
responsibilities The results of operating
units are reported monthly, along with
an update of the Group's performance
against strategic KPIs and cash Actual
results are compared to budget and
forecasts, and key trends and varniances
are explained and analysed

Post-acquisition review When
introducing the Group's procedures and
control enviranment to an acquisition,
management Is responsible for ensuring
that key areas of governance are
implemented and that operational and
financial processes are aligned to the
Group A full post-acquisition review 1s
presented to the Committee in the year
following a matenial acquisition The
Committee reviewed Leftfield in 2015
and plans to review Talpain 2016

65




Governance

Audit Committee Report continued

Data analytics the Group has a suite of
automated analytics tests that enables
the Group to continuousty lighlight
exceptions from the norm over its
transactional financial data The
analytics have been expanded and have
contributed to a stronger and more
efficent control environment

Whistleblowing

ITV has arrangements in place that
enable emptoyees to raise concerns in
confidence about any possible risks to
employees, customers, viewers or the
Company The Committee considers
the process and procedures each year
and s of the view that they are operating
appropriately and that colleagues are
aware of and trust the process Every
three years ITV asks the whistleblowing
charity Public Concern at Work to carry
out anindependent review of these
arrangements ITV 1s a signatory to The
First 100 campaign which seeks to
champion enlightened organisations
that are cornmitted to ensuring that
ther arrangements meet best practice

Our auditors

internal auditor

The Group’s internal audit activity is
outsourced to Deloitte who report
directly to the Committee During the
year the Committee reviewed this
nternal audit model. We concluded that
outsourcing offers access to the wide
range of skills and resources in the
various geographies required and
endorsed its continuing use

The Committee keeps under review

the internal audit relationship with
Deloitte and the procedures to ensure
appropriate independence of the
internal audit function 1s mantamed In
particular, the Committee has approved
guidelines in refation to other advisory
and consultancy work that Delaitte
may undertake for the Company, which
adheres to the undertying principle that
they cannot Implement controls that
they audit Other services provided by
Deloitte included tax and corporate
finance advice

The effectiveness of internat audit s
assessed over the year using a number
of measures that include (but are not
bmited to)

, Technology risk

to focus on this area in 2016

\

As we continue to execute our strategy the technology infrastructure supporting
the business also has to evolve A number of legacy systems supporting the
existing business remain in place, while at the same time new revenue streams
require systems to support them It therefore remains important to have an
effecte technology governance framework that seeks to address the risks
arising from the above erwvironment In 2015, the Committee continued to review
the Group’s governance over its legacy systemns, including ongoing projects to
migrate certain legacy systems to newer technology while implementing new
systems to support our new revenue streams

Media companies In particular have continued to face increased frequency and
sophistication of cyber-attacks, with a number of well publicised cases in 2015
targeting services and customer data As part of ongoing governance the
Committee reviewed the steps that management are taking on cyber security
These included increasing awareness and education of staff with regards to types
of security threat, mproving the manitoring of internal network activity and the
implementation of enterprise security management tools The Group's response
to cyber security will require continuing effort, especially as the types of attacks
and therr sophistication will continue ta evolve, and the Commuttee witl continue
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« an evaluation of each audit assignment
completed using feedback from the
part of the business that has been
audited, and

« a high level annual review that is
completed by obtaining feedback from
senior management in each division

At the start of the year the Committee
considered and approved the internal
audit plan, that ncluded audits across
the Group as well as assurance over live
projects During the year the Committee
reviewed findings from these internal
audit reports, the actions taken to
implement the recommendations made
in the reports and the status of progress
against previousty agreed actions All
internal aucht reports are available to
the Cormmittee

The Committee reviewed and approved
the 2016 internal audit plan

External auditor

Engagement

The Committee Is responsible for
agreeing the terms of the engagement
letter Throughout the year the
Committee received reports from the
auditor (KPMG}) on thew plans and the
progress and results of their work

The Commuttee considers carefully

the scope of planned work and the
assessment of risk and materiality on
whichit 1s based Inparticular through
the Charrman the Committee
participates in the negotiation of the
audit fee arrangements to ensure that
there I1s an appropriate batance between
the scope of work and the cost of
assurance The Comnuttee’saimisto
support arobust and effective audit and
strong reporting bines to the Committee

Audit tendering and rotation

During the year the Cormnmittee has
continued to monitor changes in
regulation for auditor appointments
The Department for Business (BIS) has
recently 1ssued further guidance on their
consultation, setting cut how EU audit
rules will be iImplemented in the UK
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The BIS guidance specifically highlights
that companies which tendered the
audit engagement before the
application date for the EU Regutation,
that resulted in the reappointment of
the incurnbent auditor, should benefit
from the transitional provisions where
the tender would meet the objectives
of the EU Regulation

Having recommended the reappomniment
of KPMG in 2012 following a competitive
tender, and applying the above BIS
guidance, the next mandatory tender
would be for the 2023 financial year
However, the Committee will continue
to monitor audit quality, to ensure the
Group continues to have a robust and
effective audit

Effectiveness and quality

Audit quality 15 reviewed throughout the
year and in 2015 the Committee used
the Financial Reporting Council’s (FRC)
Audit Quality Practice Aid to help
structure its review of audit quality at
ITV When making its assessment of
audit quality, the factors the Committee
focused on included

External audit quality reports -
reviewing the FRC’s Audit Quality
Review reports and discussing with
the auditor specific topics that may
be applicable to TV, and how ther
audit strategy for the year addressed
thematic concerns that the FRC

had tightighted

Auditor interaction with management
- reviewing the auditor's understanding
of business progress against the
strategy and emerging industry
themes, as well as the auditor's
discussions with management on

key corporate transactians

Auditor's own view of effectiveness -
enquired with regards to therr

audit methodology and its effective
application to ITV, their robustness of
challenges and findings on areas which
require management judgerment,
whether there had been aninternal
peer review of the ITV audit and what
the findings were, and the experience
of the senior members of the

audit team

Further i 1ts assessment of audit quality
the Committee took into account

+ the detailed audit strategy for the
year, ncluding the coverage of
emergmng risks,

- Group matenality and component
matertality,

» how the auditor communicated any
key accounting judgement and
conclusions, and

- feedback from management of the
performance of the external auditor

There were no significant findings

from the evaluation this year and the
Committee considers the external audit
to have been robust and effective

Independence, objectivity and fees
The Committee seeks to ensure the
objectivity and independence of our
auditor through

- focus on the assignment and rotation
of key personnel,

« the adequacy of audit resource, and

« polictes in relation to non-audit work

The semior audit partner serves no more
than five years continuously and the
independent review partner serves no
rmore than seven years continuously
Other key partners serve for no tonger
than seven consecutive years The
Committee monitors the tenure of
partners and senior staff as well as
farmer employees working for the
Company Following completion of the
2015 audit, Mark Summerfield our Senior
Statutory Auditor and KPMG partner will
rotate off our engagement and will be
replaced by Paul Sawdon During the
year the Charrman of the Committee
and managerment met partners from
KPMG who rmight serve as our senior
audit partner making a final proposal
which was approved by the Committee
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The Committee reqularly monitors the
other services being provided to the '
Group by its external auditor, and has
developed a formal policy and sign of f
process with management to ensure
this does not impair their ndependence
or objectivity

The policy 1s reviewed annually and 1s
available in full on our website together
with further nformation on how the
Committee manages the external
audit relationship .

@ www itvplc.com/about/governance

Other than in exceptional circumstances
managerment and the Committee do
not expect non-audit fees to be in excess
of fees for audit and audit-related
services The non-audit fees for 2015
were one third of the audit fees Areport
on the level of non-audit work provided
by the auditor is given to the Committee
half yearly The sigmificant non-audit
engagements related to corporate tax
advice and other assurance Full details
are set out on page 110

The Committee has formally reviewed
the wark undertaken by KPMG for the
Cornmittee and elsewhere In the
Company and 1s satisfied that the advice
they have received has been objective
and independent

Reappomntment

During the year the Committee
considered the performance and audit
fees of the external auditor, and the level
of non-audit work undertaken, and
recommended to the Board that a
resolution for the reappointment of
KPMG for a further year as the
Company's auditor be proposed to
shareholders at the AGM in May 2015
The resolution was passed and KPMG
was reapponted for a further year

The Committee has recommended the

reappaointment of KPMG at the AGM on
12 May 2016
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O,

Over the last six years

Mmeasures every year.”

Andy Haste
Chairman,
Remuneration Committee

[TV has delivered strong
revenue and double-digit
profit growth in key profit

in this report

.

The purpose of this report is to set out for shareholders the
principles and policy we apply to remuneration for our Executive
Directors and to update you on how we have applied these for the financial
year ended 31 December 2015 The report also aims to demonstrate how our
Remuneration Policy is aligned to our strategy, supports the retention of the
Executive Directors and rewards them for strong performance.

Dear shareholder,

On the following pages we set out

« Our Annual Remuneration Repart
{pages 70 to BO) which willbe subject
to an adwvisary vote at our Annual
General Meeting (AGM) In May 2016,
and

« Our Remuneration Policy table (pages
81 to 84) which was approved at the
AGM in May 2014 for a three year
penod The full Remuneration Policy
1s available on our website

@ www itvple com/about/governance

We believe that our remuneration
framework rernains abigned with the
strategy of the busmess and 1s linked
to our key KPIs, which are set out in
the Strategic Report In addition we
are satisfied that our remuneration
framework promotes long-term
abignment with shareholders and
does not encourage undue risk taking

During 2016 we will be undertaking a
review of the remuneration policy for
the Executive Directors in preparation
for the AGM in 2077, when the existing
policy will reach its third anniversary and
require resubmission to shareholders

Our performance in 2015

As discussed in the Strategic Report, over
the last six years ITV has delivered strong
revenue and double-digit profit growth
in key profit measures every year In 2015
we delivered £865 million adjusted EBITA
{before exceptionals) (2014 £730
miltion) and adjusted EPS of 16 5 pence
(2014 13 8 pence) We reman focused on
our onginal vision and are confident that
our strategy, focused on three key
Strategic Prionities, remains appropriate
for the long-term

Performance measures for our Annual
Bonus Awards and Long-Term Incentive
Plan (LTIP) are closely aligned to our KPIs
{(set out on pages 32 to 35) Our KPIs have
been defined to align our performance
and accountability to our strategy
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The KPIs are the key measures of our
success and cover all of our Strategic
Priorities

Performance against KPis which are
aligned to our Bonus and LTIP 1s set
out below

2015 201
Adjusted EBITA £865m  £730m
Profit to cash conversion 1% 91%
Adjusted EPS 16 5p 13 8p
Family S0V 212% 22%
Total non-NAR growth 25% 10%

In addstion, over the past few years we
have included a cost-saving target in
our Bonus Awards to ensure that
management continues to focus on
streamlning the business

Remuneration outcomes in 2015

As explained above, the performance
against finanaial targets other than
Share of Viewing (SOV) has been strong

The bonus payout levels for the Executive
Directors were 96% for Adam Crozier and
95% for lan Gnffiths Further information
and details of the banus targets are set
out on page 72 Previously we reported
that the Board believed that targets
remained commercally sensitive for a
two year period following the relevant
year end and we committed to including
the targets for 2013 in this year's report
During the year, we reviewed emerging
best practice in this area and have
concluded that it 1s more appropnate to
disclose targets following the relevant
year end To this end, in addition to the
targets for the financial year ended

2013, we have also included details of the
targets for the financial years ended 2014
and 2015, which are set out on page 72

During the year, awards made under the
Performance Share Plan (PSP) in 2013
reached the end of thewr performance
period, and will become exercisable

in March 2016 Detatls are set out

on page 73 Over the three year
performance period, the Company’s
share pnice increased from 105 2 pence
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to 276 6 pence with a total return to
shareholders {TSR) of 202% This resulted
in the Company being the second best
performing company in the FTSE100
over the peniod The Committee
considers the total pay of the Executive
Orrectors to be a fair reflection of ther
overall contribution in this context

The Remuneration Commuttee has not
exercised any discretion during the year
or felt it appropnate to call on malus
and clawback provisions

Remuneration Policy
implementation 2016

Bonus targets and performance
conditions for LTIP awards to be made
in 2016 have been set in line with the
Remuneration Policy and have been
atigned closely with our strategy
Cetails are set out on page 77

One specific change 1s being made to
the bonus framewaork for the Executive
Directors to increase the proportion
aligned to financial targets from 60%
10 75% and reduce the proportion
aligned to personal targets from 40%
t0 25% This follows a review during
2015, based on feedback from same
institutional shareholders that the
weighting on personal measures

was above the market norm While
previously appropriate given the
turnaround phase, the Committee
concluded that making such change
was now relevant to ensure focus on
the targets with the greatest impact
on overall business performance We
believe this 1s a more usual approach
and wlne with shareholder
expectations There has not been

any change to the target or maximum
level of banus

The Executive Directors each receved
a 2 5% increase in therr salaries from

1 January 2016 which1s inline with
the ncrease for employees generatly
No other matenial changes will apply
for 2016

Who is on the Committee
The Committee 1s composed entirely of Non-executive Directors The current
members are

+ Archie Norman
= JohnOrmerod

« Andy Haste (Chairman)
« Sir Peter Bazalgette

Full detads of attendance at Committee meetings can be found in the table on
page 59

Our role

The role of the Committee Is primarily to

- review the ongoing appropriateness, relevance and effectiveness of the

Remuneration Policy including in relation to retention and development,

propose to shareholders changes to the Remuneration Policy and approve its

imptementation for the Executive Directors, Managerment Board and other

Senior Executives (together the Senior Executive Group) taking into account

arrangements for the wider employee group Details on employee

remuneration can be found on page 87,

approve the design of the Company’s annual bonus arrangements and LTIPs,

including the performance targets that apply for the Senior Executive Group,

and

+ determine the award levels for the Senior Executive Group based on
performance against annuat bonus targets and long-term incentive condrtions

Following each meeting the Committee communicates its main discussion points
and findings to the Board

Annual Review

An annual review of the performance of the Committee was conducted In
addition to feedback from members of the Cornmittee input was also sought
from the Chief Executive, Group HR Director and FIT Remuneration Consultants,
the independent adviser to the Committee Overall the review concluded that
the Committee is responding appropriately to its terms of reference and will
continue to develop 1ts role Prionities for this year will include constderation of
Committee membership and continued alignment to the corporate strategy

The Committee’s terms of reference can be accessed on our website

@ www itvplc com/about/governance

Shareholder views
Details of voting on remuneration resolutions at the AGM in May 2015 are set out on
page 75 We were pleased to recewve strong investor support

We seek to respond to shareholders' expectations of remuneration reporting and

would welcome feedback

Andy Haste
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
2 March 2016
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What we did in 2015
During 2015 our work was broadly in four areas

Setting targets

+ setting the business and personal performance targets for 2015 bonuses, aigned with the business plan for the year,
« setting the performance targets that would apply to awards made under the LTIP and PSP in 2015, and

+ carrying out a preliminary review of annual bonus targets for 2076

Reviewing outcomes
« reviewing the borus outcomes and award levels for 2014 and indicative 2015 outcomes ahead of final approval in 2016, and
- approving the perfarmance outcomes of the 2012 awards under the PSP

Reward framework

- agreeng the base salaries for the Senior Executive Group using the same process as applied to the wider employee population,

« agreeing the remuneration packages for new appointments to the Sentor Executive Group and the arrangerments for any
leavers from this group

Governance
» agreeing the Remuneration Report for 2014 prior to its approval by the Board, and approval by sharehalders at the AGM
inMay 2015

Principles considered when setting remuneration

The Company operates in the particularly competitive media market We aim to balance the need to attract and retain high-
quality talent essential to the Company’s success with the need to be cost-effective and to reward exceptional performance
The Committee has developed a Remuneration Policy for the Company that balances these factors, while taking into account
the prevailing best practice and a fair cutcome for investors

A significant proportion of the remuneration package is tied to the achievement of stretching performance condstions, that
align remuneration with our strategy to deliver strong business performance and create shareholder value Indviduals should
be rewarded for success and performance measured over clear timescales The remuneration package 1s focused on rewarding
sustamed long-term performance and aligning executives with the shareholder experience

Thraughout this report we make reference to Strategic Priorities For reference these are as detailed i the tables below

For awards made in 2015 and 2016

Target
Maximise audience and revenue from free-to-air and VOD business
Grow aninternational content business
Build a global pay and distribution business

Further information on each of the above Is set out in the Strategic Report onpages 18 to 29

For awards made up to and inctuding 2014

Target

(@) Create alean, creatively dynarmic and fit-for-purpose orgamsation

(@  Maximise audience and revenue share from our existing free-to-air Broadcast bustness

(®  Drive new revenue streams by exploiting our content across multiple platforms, free and pay
(@) Buld astrong internatignal content business

Further infarmation on each of the above 1s set out in the 2014 Strategic Report avallable on our website

(@ www rtvplc com/investors |
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Total remuneration for 2015
The sections of the Annual Remuneration Report that have been audited by KPMG are pages 71 ta 74, and page 78 (from and
including Directors’ Share interests) to page 80

Executive Directors
The table below sets out in a singte figure the total remuneration for both Executive Directors for the financial year

Salary Taxable benefits {tashang ;':;rme.:) Share awards Pension Total

2015 014 2015 2014 2015 04 20157 20147 2015 2004 2015 2004

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Adam Crozier 918 900 19 19 1,586 1523 1,220 2175 229 225 3,972 4,842
lan Griffiths 561 550 15 14 879 864 669 1167 140 138 2,264 2,733
1,479 1,450 34 34 2,465 2,387 1,889 3,342 369 363 6,236 7,575

1 Inthe 2014 Annual Report and Accounts part of the amount shown was the indicative vesting value of the 2012 PSP awards that were subject to performance
conditions measured to 31 December 2014 The figures shown in the table above represent the subsequent value recerved on the vesting date of 30 March 2015
using the share price on that day (254 855 pence), a totalincrease of £637976

2 Theamount showns the indicative value of the 2013 PSP awards that were subject to performance conditions measured to 31December 2015 The value was
calculated using the average share price for the final quarter of 2015 {260 5 pence} The share price grew by 115 6% over the performance penod See page 73 for
further information

3 Theaggregate emoluments for all directors as required under Schedule 5{S12008/410) 1s the total remuneration shown in the table above less share awards,
plus the total emalument figures for Non-executive Directers shown on page 73

Further information in relation to each of the elerments of remuneration for 2015 set out in the table above 1s detailed below
An explanation for 2014 15 set out in detail in our 2074 Annual Report and Accounts, which can be found on our website

(S www itvplc com/investors

Salary
Salares are paid in line with our Remuneration Policy

Taxable benefits
The benefits provided to the Executive Directors inctude the cost of private medical insurance and car-related benefits

Bonus (cash and shares)

Annual incentives are provided to Executive Directors through the bonus, with one-third of any award deferred into shares under
the Deferred Share Award Plan (DSA) The performance conditions that apply to the bonus are set on an individual basis and are
linked to the Company’s corporate, financial and strategic prionities This enabtes the Committee to reward both annual financial
performance delivered for shareholders, and performance against specafic financial, operational or strateqic objectives set for
each Executive Director, which are closely Uinked to the strategic pnionties of the business Payments and deferrals in respect of
the financial year are set out below

% of maximum  Value deferred

bonus nto shares Value pad
opporturity  under the DSA incash Total vatue
earned £000 £000 £000
Adam Crozier 96% 528,768 1057536 1,586,304
lan Griffiths 95% 293123 586,245 879,368

When considering performance outcomes, the Commuttee looks beyond formulaic results to ensure the outcomes align with
overall business performance

The majonty of the bonus (60%) was based upan the achieverment of corporate and financial targets, with payout determined
in accordance with pre-set target ranges subject only to the usual adjustments to exclude the impact of in-year acquisitions and
disposals, significant unbudgeted intiatives and currency movements

The remainder of the bonus (40%) was based upon the Committee’s assessment of the contribution the Executive Director has
made to the overall strategy through the delivery of specific targets Both Executive Directors had a number of common objectives
aligned to our Strateqic Priorities The Strategic Report sets out more detail of the Company's achievements in the year
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During the year particular achievements, in addition to the delivery of the stretching business plan, related to international
expansion and development of organic growth and new commissions This was achieved with the acquisition of Talpa,
Twofour Group and other production businesses and investments

Adam Crozier was also assessed against the continumng international expansion of ITV Studios, as well as the growth of the UK
and international Pay and Online businesses

lan Griffiths was also assessed agamnst effective M&A activity, and supporting ITV Studios and Broadcast to develop ther
international businesses and creative performance

With regard to disclosure of perfarmance against the corporate and financial targets, previous reports stated that these targets
contained commercially sensitive nformation, which would rermain sa until two years after the end of the relevant financial year,
at which point they may be disclosed However, to reflect emerging best practice, the Committee has deaded to provide
immediate disclosure of the corporate and financial targets used following the relevant year end, together with performance
against those targets and the resulting level of payout Consequently, the tabtes below provide this detail for the 2015 bonus
year, as well as for 2013 and 2014

2015

Performance required performanca Payout Strategic
Performance measure Weighting Threshold Targat Max achieved AdamCrozier  lan Griffiths target
ITV plc EBITA (before exceptional items) 45% £760m £795m £825m £865m 100% 100%
Profit to cash conversian 10% 80% 85% 90% 91% 100% 100%
Cost savings 5% £8m £10m £12m £12 2m 100% 100%

Performance against the personal targets as noted above (40% wetghting), resulted in payouts of 90% and 87 5% of the maximum against these targets for Adam
Crozier and lan Gniffiths respectvely Up to 20% i1s payable for threshold and up to 60% for target performance

2014

Performance required Performance Payout Strategh
Performance measure Weighting Threshold Target Max achieved AdamCrozier  lan Gnffiths target
ITV plc EBITA {before exceptional items) 45%  £6B0mM  £695m  E£725m  £730m 100% 100% QDO®
Profit to cash conversion 10% 79% B4% 89% 91% 100% 100% QDO®
Cost savings 5% £10m £12m £14m £154m 100% 100% [0)

As explained in the 2014 Annual Report and Accounts, performance against the personal targets (40% werghting), resutted in payouts of 85% and 88% of the
maximum against these targets for Adam Crozier and lan Griffiths respectvely

2013

Performance required Perfarmance Payout Strategic
Performance measure Weighting Threshold Target Max achieved AdamCrozier  lan Griffiths target
ITV plc EBITA (before exceptional items) 40%  E561m  £€594m  £624m  £620m  9387%  9387% OQOQ®.
Profit to cash conversion 667% B85% 90% 95% 97% 100% 100% DR
Cost savings 6 67% 225m £25m £275m £279m 100% 100% 0]

In addition to the above each Executive Director had 6 67% of their 2013 bonus based on a range of rebalancing revenues and balance sheet performance targets,
which paid out in full

As explained in the 2013 Annual Report and Accounts, performance against the personal targets (40% weight:ng), resulted in payouts of 88% and 90 6% of the
maximum against these targets for Adam Crozier and lan Gniffiths respectively
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Share awards

We are required to show share awards in the remuneration table on page 71 according to the year in which the performance
period for each performance condition came to an end 100% of the awards made in 2013 under the PSP were subject to

performance conditions measured to 31 Cecember 2015

The indicative value of these awards 15 set out below

Value at
Value at Number 31 0ecember Change in
Number aof award date of shares 2015 shareprice since
shares awarded 3 vesting £ award date
Adam Crozier 624 647 756,636 468,485 1,220,403 115 6%
lan Gnffiths 342,549 414,930 256,912 669,256 115 6%

The vesting figures shown in the table above reflect 75% of the total award that met performance condiions on 31 December 2015 and will become exercisable on

28 March 2016

The share price used to value the shares at 31 December 2015 15 the average share pnce for the finai quarter of 2015 (260 5 pence)

When cansidering performance outcomes the Committee looks beyond formulaic results 1o ensure the outcomes align with

overall business performance

Details of the performance achieved for the 2013 PSP awards are below A gateway condition of mimimum cumulative adjusted
EPS (30 4 pence) was met before any portion of the award could vest

Performance

Performance measure Strategic target Weighting  Targets achieved Payout level
Cumulative adjusted EPS @ 50% 30 4p =30% vesting

33 4p =100% vesting

Vesting on a straight-line basis between 41 Sp 100%
Family S0V @ 25% Maintain at 23% = 50% vesting

+2% on 23% = 100% vesting

Vesting on a proportionate basis between 21 2% 0%
Total non-NAR growth [©]0] 25% 5% growth pa = 30% vesting

10% growth pa = 100% vesting

Vesting on a straight-line basis between 17 27% 100%

Pension

Penston contributions represent a cash allowance in ieu of pension with a value of 25% of base salary for both Executive
Directors The cash allowance does not form part of the base salary for the purpose of determining incentives

Non-executive Directors

The table below sets out in a single figure the total remuneration for Non-executive Directors for the financial year

Fees Taxable expenses’ Tertat

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2074

Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Peter Bazalgette 69 65 2 2 7 67
Roger Faxon 63 62 5 6 68 68
Mary Harnis 1 66 27 7 3 73 30
Andy Haste 114 112 2 1 116 113
Lucy Newville-Rolfe 3 - 37 - - - 37
Archte Norman 500 500 3 2 503 502
John Ormerod 89 87 2 1 N B8
901 890 21 15 922 905

1 Mary Hams was appointed to the Board on 28 July 2014, and the Audit Comimuttee on 16 June 2015
2 Theamounts disclosed in the table above relate to the resmbursement of relevant travel and accommodaton expenses for attending Board meetings and
related business The value disclosed is inclusive of tax ansing on the expense which 1s settled by the Company

3 LucyNeville-Rolfe stepped down from the Board on 17 July 2014
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LTIP awards made in 2015

On 28 March 2015 awards were made under the LTIP to both Executive Directars in the form of nil-cost options, subject to
performance over the penod to 31 December 2017 50% of any shares that vest will be subject to a one year holding period,
the remaining 50% will be subject to a two year holding period as follows

% Salary Number of Value at Performance
Award date awarded options award date period ends Vesting date Release dates
Adam Crozier 28 March 2015 225 804,636 £2,065500 31December2017 28March2018 50% - 28 March 2019

50% - 28 March 2020

lan Gniffiths 28 March 2015 225 491,722 £1,262,250 31December2017 28 March2018  50%- 28 March 2019

50% - 28 March 2020

The number of nil-cost options was calculated using the average share price over the three day period pnior to the award date (256 7 pence}

The LTIP was introduced in 2014 following the remuneration review at that time and subsequent approval by shareholders at the

2014 AGM The holding periods were phased in over the first two annual awards made in 201 and 2015 For awards made in
2016, 100% of any shares that vest will be subject to a two year holding period

The Committee sets targets for the LTIP taking into account external forecasts, internal budgets, busimess priorities, and risks
and uncertainties Targets are set to be appropriately stretching in this context, with maximum performance set at a level which
1s considered to be the delivery of exceptional performance

The awards made in 2015 are subject to performance measures and targets as set out betow Awards will be subject to an imitial
cumutative adjusted EPS performance gateway equal to that required for threshold performance (457 pence) before any
portion of the awarg can vest

Performance measure Strategic target Welghtings Threshald Maximum
Cumulative adjusted EPS 50% 457p 52 2p
Farmily SOV 20% 220% 2244%
Total non-NAR growth 10% 5% growth pa 10% growth pa
international Production revenue 10% 5% growth pa 15% growthpa
Online, Pay & Interactive revenue 10% 5% growth pa 18% growth pa

Threshold vesting for all targets1s 20% Vesting between threshold and maximum 1s on a straight-line basis

When assessing performance against the Family SOV target, the Commuttee will also have regard to the health of the main

ITV channel

Payments to past Directors or for loss of office
No payments were made during the year

Consideration of Directors’ remuneration

The Directors who were members of the Committee when matters relating to the Executive Directors’ remuneration for the

year were considered, are set out on page 69

The Committee obtains advice from various sources in order to ensure it makes informed decisions The Chief Executive and
Group Finance Director are invited to attend Committee meetings as appropriate No individualis involved in decisions relating

to their own remuneration

The Group HR Director 1s the main internal adviser and provides updates on remuneration, employee relations and human

resource Issues
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FIT Remuneration Consultants acted as the independent adviser on remuneration policy and the external remuneration
environment during 2015 and provided advice on benchmarking, shareholder consultation and long-term incentive
arrangements Total fees for the adwvice provided to the Commuttee durning the year amounted to £69,799 which were
charged on their normal terms

The Commuttee has formally reviewed the work undertaken by FIT for the Committee and is satisfied that the advice they
have recewved has been objective and independent FIT 1s 3 member of the Rermuneration Consultants Group and abides by its
Code of Conduct

Shareholder voting
At the AGM held on 14 May 2015, votes cast by proxy and at the meeting in respect of the Executive Directors’ remuneration
were as follows

Voting for Voting against
Number of Numberof
Resolution shares % shares % Totalvotes cast  Votes withheld
Annual Remuneration Report 2,743,890,234 9323 199,153,902 677 2,943,044,136 7,329,799

The Remuneration Policy was approved at the AGM held on 14 May 2014 for a three year period Votes ¢ast by proxy and at the
meeting were as follows

Voting for Voting against
Number of MNumber of
Resolution shares % shares % Total votes cast  Votes withheld
Rermuneration Policy 2,272,594,109 96 04 93,825,641 396 2,366,419,750 366,266,825

Historic performance
The graph below shows the TSR performance of the Company against the FTSE 100 index over the seven year period to
31December 2015
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Chief Executive remuneration
The table below provides a summary of the total remuneration received by the Chief Executive over the last seven years,
including details of the annual bonus payout and long-term incentive award vesting level in each year

Long-term

Incentive

Total award

remtneration Bonus % of vesting % of

£000 maximum maximum

2015 Adam Crozier 35972 96 75
2014 Adam Crozier 4,842 94 75
2013 Adam Crozier 8,399 93 87
2012 Adam Crozer 2915 =4 12
20m Adam Crozier 2158 88 -
2070 Adam Crozier (for the eight month penod served) 1,350 95 -
2010 John Cresswell (for the four month period served) 661 83 -
2009 Michael Grade 2,583 94 -

The tong-term mcentive award vesting percentage relates to the proportion of the award that met performance conditions in the retevant financial year

The table below provides details of the percentage change in the base salary, benefits and bonus of the Chief Executive between
31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015 compared to the average percentage change for other employees

% chahge

% changein % change in n bonus

Notes base salary benefits payment

Chief Executive 1 20 (108) 417
All employees 2,3 409 222 1202

1 Benefits include the cost of medical insurance and car-related benefits
2 Asthemajonty of employees are based in the UK, overseas employees have not been included
3 The percentage change in benefits s the average change for all employees {exctuding the Chief Executive} with any of the same benefits as the Chief Executive

Spend on pay
The table below shows pay for alt employees compared to other key financial ndicators
015 2004

Notes £€m £m % Change
Employee pay 1 400 356 124
Ordinary dividend 208 152 368
Special dvidend 251 160 569
Employee headcount 2 5,558 4,559 177

1 Employee pay s the total remuneration paid to all colleagues across ITV employed on a full-time equivalent basis Thisis shown on a different basis to last year's
report where the figure consisted of total rernuneration paid to all UK PAYE empioyees through the main UK payroll More detailis set out on page 109

2 Employee headcount 1s the monthly average number of colleagues across ITV employed on a full-time equivalent basis

3 There were no share buy-backs duning either year

Remuneration Policy in 2016
The following provides details of how the Remuneration Policy will be implementad in 2016

Executive Directors
Salary
Executive Directors' base salaries were increased with effect from 1 January 2016 as follows
1 January 1 fanuary

2016 2015

£000 £000 % Change
Adam Crozier 941 918 25
lan Griffiths 575 561 25
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Inline with the Remuneration Policy, salary increases far Executive Directors followed those of the wider employee population

Taxable benefits and pension
These will be prowvided in Line with the Remuneration Policy

Bonus (cash and shares)

Awards will continue to be made in ine with the Remuneration Policy, with annual incentives paid to Executive Directors through
the bonus with two-thirds in cash, and one-third deferred into shares under the DSA The proposed performance measures for
awards are detalled below and remain unchanged from 2015 The weightings for 2016 reflect the changes to the bonus
framework outlined in the Chairman's letter on page 68 The Board considers the actual targets for 2016 to be commercially
sensitive at this time and we envisage including equivalent disclosures to those included in respect of the 2015 bonus in next
year'srepaort

Performance measure Strategic target Welghtings
ITV plc EBITA (before exceptional items) 60%
Profit to cash conversion 10%
Cost savings 5%
Individual targets 25%
Share awards

Awards will continue to be made under the LTIP in ine with the Remuneration Palicy The proposed performance measures and
targets for awards to be made in 2016 are detailed below

Under the LTIP rules, the maximum annual award that can be granted in any financial year 1s 350% of salary Thisis to allow the
Commuittee flexibility when recruiting Executives and to ensure the longewity of the plan There s currently no mtention to grant
awards at this level. Awards mn 2016 will be made to the Executive Directors with a value of 225% of salary, at the same level as
awarded in 2015 and in lne with the operational maximum set out In the Remuneration Policy

In order to ensure that Executive Directars are only rewarded if value 1s delivered to shareholders, awards will be subject to an
initial cumulative adjusted EPS performance gateway equal to that required for threshold performance (54 6 pence) If this
gateway is achieved, performance will then be assessed by reference to the conditions set out below

Performance measure Strategic target Weightings Threshold Maximurm
Cumulative adjusted EPS 50% 54 6p 62 4p
Farmily SOV 20% 202% 216%
Total non-NAR 10% 5% growth pa 10% growth pa
International Production revenue 10% 5% growth pa 15% growth pa
Online, Pay & Interactive revenue 10% 5% growth pa 18% growth pa

Threshold vesting for all targets is 20% Vesting between threshold and maximum (100%) 1s on a straight-line basis except In
respect of the Farmity SOV measure This has a lower level of vesting that occurs at 21 2% (75% vesting) with straight-line vesting
to that position from each threshold and maximum When assessing performance against ths target, the Commuttee will also
have regard to the health of the mamn ITV channel

Shares that vest will be subject to a two year holding pertod

Malus and Clawback

Malus and clawback provisions may be operated at the discretion of the Committee in respect of any cash and deferred share
elements of the bonus and awards made under the LTIP following the intreduction/amendment of these clauses Under malus,
unvested share awards (including any LTIP shares subject to a post vesting holding period) can be reduced (down to zeroif
considered appropriate) ar be made subject to additional conditions Clawback allows for repayment of bonuses previously paid
and/or shares previously recewved following vesting Malus/clawback can be operated up to four years following the start of the
relevant bonus year for bonuses, and up to six years from the relevant date of grant for LTIP awards The circumstances in which
the operation of these provisions may be considered include material misstatement of results, gross misconduct or fraud
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Non-executive Directors
Non-executive Director fees were increased with effect from 1 January 2016 as set out below

1 Januarv 1 January
2016 2015
£000 £000 % Change
Charrman {all-inclusive fee) 500,000 500,000 -
Board fee 65,054 63,468 25
Additional fees for-
Senior Independent Director 25,000 25000 -
Audit Committee Charrman 20,000 20,000 -
Audit Committee member 5,371 5,240 25
Remuneration Committee Chairman 20,000 20,000
Remuneration Committee member 5,371 5,240 25

Details of Committee membership can be found in the Governance section on page 59
Sir Peter Bazalgette will become Chairman following the AGM to be held on 12 May 2016 His annual all-inclusive fee will be £450,000

Directors’ share interests

Shareholding gutdelines

The Committee continues to recogruse the impartance of Executive Directors being sharehalders so as to align their interests
with other shareholders Shareholding guidelines are in place, which encourage Executive Directors to build up a holding of ITV
plc shares based on a percentage of base salary 50% of the requirement must be obtained within three years of appointment
and the remainder within five years

% of salary % of salary

requiredunder held at

sharehalding 31Decemnber

guidelines 2015

Adam Crozier 400 764
tan Griffiths 200 938

The share pnce used to value the shares as at 31 December 2015 was 276 6 pence

Interests in shares
The figures set out below represent shareholdings in the ordinary share capital of ITV plc beneficially owned by Directors and

therr family interests at 31 December 2015

31December 310ecember

2015 20
Peter Bazalgette 13,685 8,657
Adam Crozier 2,241,233 1,609,910
Roger Faxan 15,835 11,145
lan Gnffiths 1,754,554 1,5M,922
Mary Harnis 6,138 1,841
Andy Haste 109,222 99,431
Archie Norman 1,350,474 1297498
John Ormerod 153,898 145,471

There were rno changes in Directors' interests in shares between the end of the financial year and 2 March 2016
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Executive Directors’ non-exacutive directorships
With speafic approval of the Board, Executive Directors may accept external appointments as non-executive directors of other
companies and retamn any related fees paid to them

During the year the Executive Directors retained fees far the directorships set out below

2015

Company £000
Adam Crozier G4S plc 61
lan Gnffiths DS Sruth plc 54

Service contracts and loss of office

Executive Directors

Executwe Directors have rolling service contracts that provide for 12 months notrce on either side There are no special provisions
that apply in the event of a change of control

Notice period from Motice period from Compensation provisions

Date of appointment Nature of contract Company Director for earty termmation

AdamCrozier 26 Aprit 2010 Rolling 12 months 12 months None
lan Gnffiths 9 September 2008 Rolling 12 months 12 months None

A payment in lreu of notice, mcluding base satary, contractual benefits and contractual provision for an income inretirement,
may be made if

+ the Company termmates the employment of the Executive Director with immediate effect, or without due notice, or
» termination is agreed by mutual consent

The Company may also make a payment in respect of outplacement costs, legal fees and the cost of any settlement agreement
where appropriate

With the exception of termination for cause or resignation, Executive Directors will be eligible for a bonus award prorated to
reflect the proportion of the financial year for which they were employed and subject to performance actieved, provided they
have a minimum of three months service in the bonus year

Non-executive Directors

Each Non-executive Director, ncluding the Chairman, has a contract of service with the Company Non-executive Directors will
serve for an initial term of three years, subject to electton and annual re-election by sharehaolders, unless otherwise terrmimated
earlier by and at the discretion of either party upon one month's written notice (12 months for the current Chairmany) After the
initiat three year term reappointment 1s on an annual basis

All Non-executive Directors are subject to election or re-election at the AGM in 2016 Detalls of unexpired terms are set out in the
table on page 59

The Directors’ service contracts and letters of appointment are available for mspection at the Company’s registered office
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Outstanding interests under share schemes

The following tables provide details of Directors' interests in outstanding share awards

Share  Shareprice
At At price used at date of Date of
1Janyary Awarded Vested Exercised Lapsedin 3% December foraward vesting releasefexercrse
Notes 2015 nyear nyear myear n year 2015 {pence} {pence) mnyear
Adam Crozier
DSA
27 March 2015 3,38 — 197,741 - - - 197,741 2567
28 March 2014 a 240,534 - - - - 240,534 194 5
28 March 2013 a 346,228 - - - - 346,228 1295
28 March 2012 a 477112 - 477112 477112 - - 886 254 86 30 March 2015
28 March 2012 b 238,557 - 238,557 238,557 - - 886 254 86 30 March 2015
LTIP
27 March 2015 8 - B04,636 - - ~ B04,636 2567
30 May 2014 1,103,543 ~ - - - 1,103,543 1835
PSP
1March 2013 6 624,647 - - - - 624,647 1211
1March 2012 7 899,347 - 07451 674511 224,836 - 818 254 86 30 March 2015
28 March 2012 d,7 238,557 - 178918 178,918 59,639 - B86 254 86 30 March 2015
fan Gnffiths
DSA
27 March 2015 33,8 - NM2186 - - - 112,186 2567
28 March 2014 a 122,269 - - - - 122,269 1945
28 March 2013 a 175,891 - - - - 175,87 1295
28 March 2012 a 234,406 — 234,406 234,406 - - 886 25486 30 March 2015
28 March 2012 b 17,204 - NM7204 117,204 - - B86 25486 30 March 2015
LTIP
27 March 2015 8 - 491722 - - - 491,722 2567
30 May 2014 674,387 - - - - 674,387 1835
PSP
1Miarch 2013 [+] 342,549 - - - - 342549 1211
1 March 2012 C,7 493192 - 365894 369,894 123,298 - 818 254 86 30 March 2015
28 March 2012 d7 117,204 - 87903 87903 29,301 - 886 25486 30 March 2015
1 a- Compulsory deferral, b - Voluntary deferral, c - Core Award, d - Matching Award
2 Noawards are outstanding that have vested but notbeen exercised
3 There areno performance conditions attaching to the DSA
4 Performance conditions that apply to the outstanding awards under the PSP and LTIP are set outin the table below
5 DSAawards maden 2015 for 2014 performance are Inctuded in the remuneration table onpage 71
6 PSP performance conditions were met in 2015 (75%) and will becorne exercisable on 28 March 2016 The indicatve value at 31 December 2015 1s included in the

remuneration table on page 71and 1s descnbed on page 73

~J

PSP performance canditions were met in 2014 (75%,) and the value 1s included in the remuneration table on page 71

8 The face value of awards granted in the financial year at £2 065 500 and £1 262 250 under the LTIP for Adam Crozier and lan Griffiths respectively and £507600

and £287980 under the DSA

2013 PSP 2014 LTIP 2015LTIP
Threshold Threshold

Strategic target Weighting vesting Threshotd Maximum | Weightings  vesting Threshold Maximum Threshold Maximum
Gateway O] 304p 371p 457p
Cumulative adjusted EPS ® 50% 30% 304p  334p 50% 20% 371p  423p 457p  522p
Family SOV O] 25% 50% 23% +2% 20% 20% 2305% 2351% 22% 2244%
Annual non-NAR growth [D]O)] 25% 30% 5% 10% 10% 20% 5% 10% 5% 10%
International Production revenue growth O] 10% 20% 5% 15% 5% 15%
Online, Pay and Interactive revenue growth &) 10% 20% 5% 18% 5% 18%

Cumulative adjusted Cumulative adjusted Cumulative adjusted

EPS years 2013 to 2015 EPS years 2014 to 2016 EPS years 2015 ta 2077

Vesting between threshold and maximum (100%) on a straight-line basts for all targets apart from SOV which s measuredon a
proportionate basis for 2013 PSP awards

BO
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Remuneration Policy

The Campany's policy on rermnuneration for Executive and Non-executwve Directors was approved by shareholders at the AGM
on 14 May 2014 for a three year period The full policy can be found on our website

(© www itvplc.com/about/governance

The table below contains the principal elements of the remuneration packages for the Executive Directors

Fixed etements Purpose and Link to strategy

Operation

Maxdmum potential payment Performance metrics

Base Reflects the ndwvidual's  Rewviewed annually and paid There 1s no Maximum None, although
salary skills, responsibilities monthly in cash salary increase However,  overall ndwidual
and experence ordinarily salaryincreases  and business
Consideration s typically given
wilt be in Line with the performance is
Supports the to a range of factors when
average increase awarded considered when
recruitment and determining salary levels,
to other employees in setting and
retention of Executive including
the Company reviewing salanes
Directors of the caibre + Personal and Company-wide
reguired to deliver pany Increases may be made
performance
the business strategy . Typical pay levels in relevant above this level to take
within the competitive ypica pay account of indwvidual
markets for each Executive
media market arcumstances, which
whilst recogrising the need
may include
for an appropriate premium
to attract and retan superior - Increase nsize or
talent, balanced against scope of therole or
the need to provide a responsibility
cost-effective overall « Increase toreflect the
remuneration package indvidual's development
« The wider employee payreview  and performance inrole
Provision for To provide competitive Executives can choose to The maximum None
anincomein post-retrementbenefits participate in the ITV defined contributians or cash
retirement or cashallowance as contribution scheme, receive allowances for the
a framework to save a cash allowance or receve Executive Directors
forretrerment payments into a personal are 25% of base satary
pension or a combination
Supports the
thereof
recruitment and
retention of Executive Contributions are set as a
Directors of the calibre percentage of base salary
required to deliver Post-retirement benefits do
the business strategy
not form part of the base
within the competitive salary for the purposes of
media market ry purp
determining incentives
Benefits Ensures the overall The Company providesarange  Set at alevet which the None

package 1s competitive
and provides financial
protection for employees
and ther families

of market competitive benefits
nctuding travel-related benefits,
private medical insurance and
other insurance benefits

Addrtional benefits may

also be provided in certain
arcumstances, If required for
business need For example
(but not brmiuted to), relocation
expenses, housing allowance
and education support

Committee considers
to be approprniately
positioned taking into
account typical market
levels for comparable
roles, ndividual
crcumstances and

the overall cost to

the business
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Variable elements  Purpose and Uink to strategy Operation Maximum potential payment Performance metrics
Annual Bonus Incentivises Executives Measures and targets are set The maximum bonus Performance
Scheme and colleagues to annually based on business opportunity for any measures and targets
(Bonus)and  achieve key strateqic plans at the start of the Executive Director will are set by the
Deferred outcomes on an financial year and pay-out not exceed 200% Committee each year
Share Award annuat basis levels are determined by the of salary based on corporate
Plan (DSA) Committee following the objectives closely

Focus on key finanaal The current bonus
year-end based on performance linked to the
metncs and objectives opportunities are 180%
against objectives strateqic priorities
to deliver the business of salary for Adam and indvidual
strategy Paid once the results have Crozier and 165% of
contributions
been audited Annual bonus salary for lan Griffiths
The element
compulsorily deferred catculations that are based Increases above the The majonity of the
on the financiat results for the bonus opportunity
into shares rewards current opportunities, up
year are audited by Internal will be based on the
delivery of sustained to the maximum lirnit,
) Audit and reviewed by the corpoarate and
ong-term performance, may be made to take
Audit Comeittee before financial measures
provides alignment consideration by the account of ndwidual
with the shareholder v circumstances, which The remainder of the
Committee
experience and may include bonus witl be based on
supports theretention  The Committee has the performance agaimnst
+ Increase In size or
of executives discretion to amend the bonus scoe of the role individual objectives
pay-out should any formulaic P
or responsibility Up to 20% of
assessment of performance not
» Increase to reflect the maximum
reflect a balanced view of .
the indiwvidual’s opportunity will
overall business performance
development and bereceved for
for the year
performance In threshold
Two-thirds of the bonusis therr role performance

delivered in cash and one-third
1s deferred into shares under the
DSA for a period of three years

During the deferral penod
share awards may be reduced
or cancelled incertan
crcumstances Further detail
1s provided on our website
www itvplc com/governance

Dwidends are paid to
participants on the deferred
shares during the deferral
period
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Vatiabla elements  Purpose and link to strategy Operation Maximum potential payment Performance metrics
New LTIP Incentivises Executives Awards are made annually Our currentoperational  Performance s
to deliver performance  withvesting dependent on policy Is to make measured against
whichis aligned to business performance during awards of 225% of salary corporate targets
the business strategy the performance period The each year closely lnked to the
over the longer term performance penod will be Under the new LTIP rules, Company’s financial
and the creation of three years, other thanin and strateqic pnorities
the maxmmum annual
shareholder value exceptional circumstances
award that maybe Performance metnics
Actsasaretentiontool  The Committee has discretion  granted many financial  are
toretain the Executives  to amend the final vesting year 15 350% of salary
» AdjustedEPS
required to deliver the level should any formutarc
The Committee would - Non-NAR andits
busmess strategy assessment of performance
consultwith components
not reflect a balanced view
shareholders if it was « Viewing
of the business performance
considering INcreasing performance
duning the performance period
awards above the
LTIP awards will vest
Awards will be required to be current operational
based on financial
held for anadditionat periodof  policy erformance
two years after the end of the P
performance period Thisis A gateway condition
called the holding period and must be achieved
witl be phasedin during 2014 before any partion
and 2015 of the award vests
Dvidends are earned on Each performance
deferred shares during the metric will operate
holding penod independently
During the holding period The performance
awards may be reduced or range will be
cancelled in certan determined for each
arcumstances Further detail rmetnc The proportion
is provided on our website of each element of the
www itvple com/governance award that will vest for
threshold performance
against a metnc will
be 20%
SAYE Provides alt Executive Directors are entitled  Participation limits are None
employees, including to participateinthe planonthe  as per the rules of the
Executive Directors, same basis as other employees  plan and in accardance
the opportunity to with HMRC limits
voluntarily invest in
Company shares
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The table below summanses the main elements of remuneration for Non-executive Directors

Component

Approach of the Company

Chairman fees

The Commuttee determines the fees of the Chairman and sets the fees at a level that is considered
{0 be appropnate, taking into account the size and complexity of the business and the expected time
commitment and contribution of the role

The fee1s a fixed annual fee of which 25% (40% for the current Chairman), after statutory deductions,
15 used to acquire shares in the Company The shares are purchased quarterly and held by a norminee
until retirement from the Board

Non-executive fees

The Board determines the fees of the Non-executive Directors and sets the fees at a level that 1s
considered to be appropriate, taking into account the size and complexity of the business and the
expected ttme commitment and contnbution of the role

Fees are structured as a basic fee with additional fees payabte for membership and/or charmanship
of a committee or other additional responsibilities

The Non-executive Directors are required to use 25% of therr annual fees, after statutory deductions,
to acquire shares in the Company The shares are purchased quarterly and hetd by a nominee on thewr
behalf until they retire from the Board

Benefits

Additional benefits may also be provided in certain crcumstances, if required for business purposes
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their Annual Report and the audited consolidated and parent company financal statements for the
year ended 31December 2015 The Directors' Report required under the Companies Act 2006 compnses this report, the entire
Governance section including the Annual Remuneration Report, and the Strateqic Report, all of which are incorporated by
reference and deemed to form part of this report

I Y

Articles of Association
Untess expressly specified to the contrary, the Articles of Association may only be amended by special resclution of the
shareholders The Articles are available on our website

(&) www itvplc com/about/governance

Auditor
During the year the Audit Commuttee considered the performance and audit fees of the external auditor, and the levet of \
non-audit work undertaken They recommended to the Board that a resolution for the reappointment of KPMG LLP for a

further year as the Company's auditor be proposed to shareholders at the AGM in May 2016

Change of control
No person holds securities in the Company carrying special nghts with regard to control of the Company

All of the Company's share schemes contain provisions relating to a change of control Outstanding awards and options would
normally vest and become exercisable on a change of control, subject to the satisfaction of any performance conditions and
proration for time where appropriate

Certain of the Group's bonds/borrowing facilities have change of control clauses whereby the issuer can require ITV to repay/
redeerm bonds in the event of a change of control The Company 1s not aware of any other significant agreements to which it
1s party that take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the Cormpany

Directors

Appointments A table showing Directors who served in the year can be found on page 59 Biographies for Directors currently
in office can be found on pages 54 and 55

Directors are apponted for an initial three year period and annually thereafter During the year Roger Faxon, Andy Haste, Archie
Norman and John Ormerod were re-appointed for a further 12 month peniod In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance
Code, each Director will retire and subrmit umself or herself for election or re-election at the AGM on 12 May 2016

Detail on compensation for loss of office can be found in the Annuat Remuneration Report on page 79

Conflicts of interest: The Board has delegated the authorisation of conflicts to the Nomination Committee and has adopted

a Conflicts of Interest Policy The Board has considered in detail the current external appointments of the Directors which may
give rise to a situational conflict and has authornised potential conflicts where appropriate This authonisation can be reviewed
at any time but will always be subject to annual review The Board 1s confident that these procedures operate effectively
Contracts of sigmificance No Director had any interest in any contract with the Company or its subsidiary undertakings

Powers The powers of the Directors are set out in the Articles of Association The Articles and a schedule of Matters Reserved
for the Board can be found on our website

@ www itvplc com/about/governance
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Dividends
The Board has proposed a final dividend and a special dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 Details of these ang other
dividends paid for the year are as follows

2015 2014
Intenm dividend 19p 14p
Final dividend 41p 33p
Total ordinary dividend 60p 47p
Special dividend 10 0p 6 25p
Total dividend payment 16 0p 1055p

The final dividend and special dividend for 2015 will be paid on 27 May 2016 to shareholders on the register on 29 April 2016
The ex dvidend date 1s 28 April 2016

Employees
Disability The Company gives full and fair consideration to the employment of people with disabitities
in accordance with the Equality Act 2010 This is reflected in an award from the Department for Work and
Pensions of a Two Ticks Disability Symbol. In the event of a colleague becoming disabled, 1t 1s the Company's
policy, wherever possible, to support the individuat to contmue their employment or be considered for other
open positians within the business

The Company's employment and recruitment policy 15 based on non-discnmination and equal opportunities We are committed
to ensuring that all traming, career development and promotional opporturities are accessible and inclusive to all and indwiduals
with a disability are afforded the same career opportunities for growth and progression

The Company provides tallored measures to ensure employees are fully supported and that reasonable

adjustments are made, training is provided and resource materials are accessible The Company continues
to review 1ts policies and practices to build confidence around the disability agenda, to attract, develop and retain those with a
disability, both on and off screen The Company is also able to draw onits in-house service SignPost for additional support and
guidance around access and inclusion for particular audiences

The Company's commitment around the disability agenda extends beyond our tegal obligations and partners with a variety of
externat specialists to drive best practice For a comprehensive outline of our activity visit our Corporate Responsibility website

&) www itvresponsibility com

Diversity Diversity within the organisation is integral to achreving our business ams Reflecting the demographucs of our
customers and understanding their needs ensures that our brand, programmes and services are accessible, nctusive and have
wide appeal Further information can be found an our Corporate Responsibility website

@ www itvresponsibility com

Engagement Attracting and retaming talent s cntical to our success It 1s therefore in our interest to ensure that we provide
the appropriate rewards and opportunities for development so that colleagues feel engaged with the Company

In 2015 the Company carned out an engagement campaign consisting of a series of Management Board led roadshows across
the business This gave colleagues an opportunity to feed back thetr thoughts and concerns about the business Engagement
was reinforced through forums such as the intranet, reqular soft and hard-copy newsletters and briefings between management
and therr teams These channels enabled colleagues to understand the financial and economic factors affecting the Company’s
performance, how their rote contributed towards the execution of the strategy and how they could benefit from Company
success through involvement in employee share schemes and information on their ights and benefits
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To further promote colleague engagement, the Company has introduced a network of Ambassadors who have been nominated
and elected by therr colleagues to represent each part of the business These Ambassadors share the views of colleagues with
the business, enabling us to understand ways to make ITV a better place to work The Ambassadors also keep colteaques up to
date with what is going on across the business

We have continued to measure and listen to colleagues through employee surveys A short survey carnied out at the end of 2015
revealed that 93% of colleagues were proud to work for ITV, with the total engagement score of 89 33% (30% 1n 2014), 6% higher
than the benchmark response

Remuneration: When the Company reviews pay It takes a number of factors into consideration, ncluding the need to stay
competitive Our focus on cash and costs remains incredibly important for the future health of our business We need to balance
our business and financial commitments with our continuing Investment N our programming and people

The Company continues to be commutted to ensuring colleagues earn at least the Living Wage or greater Where appropriate
we have agreed addittonal increases On 1 January 2016, all eligible colleagues received a pay increase of 3 0% (2015 2 2%),
with all those on a full-time equivalent basic salary of £100,000 or above receiving 2 5%

In addition a bonus arrangement extends to all our colleagues, providing a comprehensive incentive framework which rewards
everybody when the Company s successful The all-colleague bonus award for 2015 was paidin full at £1,500 (2014 paid in full
at £1,200)

The Company also operates a successful and popular all-employee Save As You Earn scheme that encourages voluntary
investment in Company shares and a package of voluntary benefits, which provides valuable cost savings for both colleagues
and the Company

Information about remuneration for the Directors is included in the Annual Remuneration Report on pages 68 to 80
Succession planming: When planning succession within the Company consideration 1s given to emergency cover together with

medium and long-term succession and this is reviewed annually by the Nomination Commuttee There is particular emphasis on
growing the internal leadership pipetine through the launch of the following key programmes

Executive Development Programme - Next generation potential Board successors, giving them an opporturity to develop
therr management potential and gain a greater understanding of the business

Developing Future Leaders Programme - Delegates selected from across the business identified as a result of the
performance review process Content includes understanding what it means to be a leader at [TV, how to manage
performance effectively, coaching skills and change management

A comprehensive portfolio of development courses and workshops 1s in place for all colleagues which address common
development needs

ITV plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015 87




Governance

Directors’ Report continued

Greenhouse Gas emissions
The Company 15 required to report annually on the quantity of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions in tonnes emitted as a result
of activities for which it 1s responsible

All data for the financial year ended 31 December 201515 disclosed below for direct and indirect (electricity consumption)
emissions More information on our environmental impacts and how we aim to make a positive difference can be found on our
Corporate Responsibility website

(B www rtvresponsibility com

Indicator M5 2014
Total gross CO,e ermissions 31,196 (tCO.e) 40,219 (tCO,e)
Scope 1 Direct ernissions 8,294 (tCO.e) 1,180 (tCO,€)
Scope 2 Indirect emissions 22,902 (tCO.e) 29,039 (tCO,e)
Total revenue £3,383m £2.956m
Emissions per unit/Em revenue 9 2 (tCO,e) 136 (tCO,e)

Source Utilyx analysis of ITV data

The ermissions data covers our global properties but not our US acquisitions The latest conversion factors specified in Defra and DECC's 2015 guidance were used to
calcutate ermissions in tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalents 35% of our data set1s based on estimated data Estimates are calculated from previous consumption
trends and published benchmarks The 2014 total 15 19 (t CO.e) whichis higher than reported last year due to additional data received.

Health and safety

The health and safety of our colleagues, contractors and visitars 1s always a high priority The significant loss of human ife as
the result of a major incident has been identified as a specific risk to the arganisation The Company's professional Health and
Safety team continue to use a management system that meets the specific nsk profile of the business which 1s communicated
across the business This s supported by a comprehensive traiming programme and direct support from the Health and

Safety team

Health and safety performance information is reported to the Board monthly and briefings were hetd in 2015 for the
Management and Studios Boards In 2015 a full health and safety compliance review was undertaken and work was done with
external production comparues to develop a mode! for compliance with the Construction (Design and Management) Regulations
2015 appropriate for a television production business Work at height continues te be an area of focus for us as our reporting
indicates this 15 an ongoing issue for productions

Performance indicators - UK

2015 2014
Non Nan
Statf Staff Total Staff Staff Total
Lost time accidents reported under RIDDOR' 5 7 12 8 3 1
specified injunes reported under RIDDOR? 1 7 8 4 2 6

1 Thisindicates acoidents that have led to people being unabte to undertake thetr normal role for seven days or longer

2 Speafied imuries in this context means injunes such as broken bones (not fingers or toes), amputation, serious burns, loss of consaousness caused by ahead
injury or inpatient hospitalisation These are reported If they were caused by our work actvity

3 Reported data excludes Mammoth, Twofour and Talpa as these were not integrated into the [TV Health and Safety Management System in the year ended
31December 2015

The majonty of these acaidents occurred in the production business Given the risk profile of production content and the increase

in the number of productions last year, the increase in accidents does not indicate any change in overall safety perfarmance
within the business
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Performance indicators - international

Australla France Germany USA Finland Norway Sweden Denmark

Serious injuries sustained at work by staff or
people directly involved in our activities’ 0 0 1 1 9] 0 0 0

1 We have used the UK definibon of a specific imury under RIDDOR to define a senous injury Due to differing local legislative reporting requirements figures for
lost bme acoidents have not yet been integrated into the [TV Health and Safety Management Systern

Insurance and indemnities
The Company maintains lability insurance for its Directors and officers that 1s renewed on an annual basis The Company has also
entered into deeds of ndemmity with its Directors A copy of the Indemnity can be found on our website

(& www itvplc com/about/governance

The Company operates a pension scheme that provides retirement and death benefits for colleagues Qualifying pension
scheme indemnity prowisions, as defined in Sectron 235 of the Companies Act 2006, were In force for the financial year ended
31December 2015 and remain in force for the benefit of each of the directors of ITV Pension Scheme Limited These indemnity
provisions cover, to the extent permitted by law, certamn losses or babilities incurred as a director of TV Pension Scheme Limited

Faor further information about pensions is set out on page 45 and in note 3 7 on page 133

Listing rule 9.8.4 disclosures
There are no disclosures to be made other than that the trustee of the EBT waved therr nights to receve dvidends on shares
held by them which do not relate to restricted shares held under the ITV Deferred Share Award Plan

Political contributions

It 1s the Company’s policy not to make cash contributions to any political party However, within the normal activities of the
Company's national and regional news-gathering operations there may be occasions when an activity might fall within the
broader definition of ‘poltical expenditure’ contained within the Companies Act 2006 Shareholder authornity for such expenditure
was given at the 2015 AGM However, during 2015 the Group made no payments falling within this definitton {2014 nif)

Report and Accounts disclosures

Financial nsk management. The Directors have carned out a rabust assessment of the principal nisks facing the Company,
including in relation o 1ts business model, future performance, solvency and Liquidity Details of our risks and associated
mitigations together with details of our approach to risk management are set out on page 46 to 51

Note 4 3 to the accounts on page 144 gives details of the Group's financial nsk management policies and related exposures
This note 1s incorporated by reference and deemed to form part of this report

Future developments. Our strategy is set out in the Strategic Report

Going concern The going concern staterment is set out on page 103 This note 1s Incorporated by reference and deemed to form
part of thisreport

Post balance sheet events On 19 February 2016 Ministenial approval was received and all other conditions confirmed as
satisfied for the acquisition of 100% of UTV Limited Completion tack place on Monday 29 February 2016

Research and Development Relevant information Is set out in the Strategic Report
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Share capital
Issued At the date of this report there were 4,025,409194 ordinary shares of 10 pence each in 1ssue, all of which are fully paid up
and quoted on the London Stock Exchange

Purchase of own shares: The Directors have the authority to purchase up to 402 5 milbon of the Company's ordinary shares
The authority remains vahd untit the AGM in 2016 or 12 August 2016, if earlier

Restrictions There are no restnctions on the transfer of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company other than those which
may be imposed by law from time to time In accordance with the Disclosure and Transparency Rules (DTRs), certain employees
are required to seek approval to deal n ITV shares The Company 1s not aware of any agreements between shareholders that
may result in restrictions on the transfer of secunties and/or voting rights

Rights: The rnights attaching to the Company’s ordinary shares are set gut in the Articles of Assoctation A copy of the Articles can
be found on our website

(S) www itvplc com/about/governance

Share Schemes Details of employee share schemes are set out in note 4 7 The Company has a discretionary employees’
benefit trust (EBT) funded by toans to acquire shares for the potential benefit of employees Details of shares held by the EBT
at 31December 2015 are set out on page 154 Dunng the year shares have been released from the EBT in respect of share
schemes for employees The trustee of the EBT has the power to exercise all voting rights n relation to any investment
(including ordinary shares) held within the EBT

Substantial shareholders
Inforrmation regarding interests in voting nghts provided to the Company pursuant to the DTRs 15 published on a Regulatory
Information Service and on the Company's website

As at 2 March 2016, the information in the table below had been receved, in accordance with DTRS, from holders of notifiable
interests (voting rights) in the Company's 1Issued share capital It should be noted that these holdings are likely to have changed
since notified to the Company However, notification of any change is not required until the next applicable threshold 1s crossed

Mature of

Shares % helding

Liberty Global Incorporated Limited 398,515,510 930 Birect
FMR LLC 309,919,900 769 Indirect
Blackrock Inc 195,504,921 624 indirect

The Company recetved separate notifications from The Goldman Sachs Group Inc (Goldman Sachs) on vanous dates duning the course of 2015 and most recently,
on 2 February 2016 in respect of an interest in 20 01% of the Company's issued share capital. Of this, 0 05% related to voting nghts over the Company's shares
whuch are held indirectly with a further 0 01% held by way of a physical stock loan and 19 96% being represented by certam financialinstruments with similar
economic effect to the Company's ordinary shares The Company understands that Goldman Sachs imitially submitted a notification i respect of its interestas a
result of changes to the DTRs, specifically 51and 5 3, which took effect on 26 Novernber 2015 rather than as a result of any change in the interests of Goldman
Sachs in the Company s 1ssued share capital.

The number of shares s based on announcements made by each relevant shareholder using the Company's issued share capital
at that date
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Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors consider that the Annual
Report and Accounts, taken as a whole,
is fair,balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the
Company's and the Group's position
and performance, business model

and strategy

Each of the Directors, whose names and
functions are isted on pages 54 and 55,
confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge

« the Group accounts, which have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the EU, give a true and far
view of the assets, Liabilities, financial
posttion and profit of the Group, and
the Directors' Report includes a far
review of the development and
performance of the business and the
posttion of the Group, together with
a description of the principal nsks
and uncertamnties that it faces

In accordance with Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006, the Directors
confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there 1s no relevant audit
information of which the Company's
auditor 1s unaware, and each Director
has taken all steps that they ought to
have taken as a Director in order to
make themselves aware of any relevant
audit nformation and to establish
that the Company's auditor 1s aware
of that information

The Board has conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the Group's systems
of mternal controls for the year ended
31December 2015 In the opinion of

the Board, the Company has cormnplied
with the internal control requirements
of the UK Corporate Governance Code
throughout the year, mamntaining

an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating, and minimising risk

[ The Directars are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group
and parent company financial staternents in accordance with applicable law
andrequtations

Company law requires the Oirectors to prepare Group and parent company
financial statements for each financial year Under that law they are required
to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the £l and applicable law and have elected to prepare the parent company
financiat statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and far view of the state of affars
of the Group and parent company and of their prefit or loss for that penod

In preparing each of the Group and parent company financial statements,

the Directors are required

- to select suitable accounting poliaies and then apply them consistently,

- to make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

- for the Group financial statements, to state whether they have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

- for the parent company financial statemenits, state whether applicable UK
Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the parent company financial statements, and

« to prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the Group and the parent company will
continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the parent company’s transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent
cormpany and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with
the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps
as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to
prevent and detect fraud and other rregulanities

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible
for preparing a Strategic Report, Directors’ Report, Annual Remuneration
Report and Corporate Governance Statement that comply with that law
and those regulations

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnity of the corporate
and financial information included on the Company's website Legisiation in the
UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions

By order of the Board

Andrew Garard

Company Secretary

2 March 2016

TV plc

Registered number 4967001
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Financial Statements

In this section The financial statements have been presented in a style that attempts to make them less
complex and more relevant to shareholders We have grouped the note disclosures into five
sections ‘Basis of Preparation’, ‘Results for the Year’, '‘Operating Assets and Liabilities’, ‘Capital
Structure and Financing Costs’ and ‘Other Notes'. Each section sets out the accounting policies
applied in producing the relevant notes, along with details of any key judgements and estimates
used The purpose of this format is to provide readers with a clearer understanding of what drives
finanoal performance of the Group. The aim of the text in boxes is to provide commentary on
each section, or note, in plain English
Keeping it Notes to the financial statements provide nformation required by statute, accounting standards
simple or Listing Rules to explain a particular feature cf the financial statements The notes which follow
will also provide explanations and addtional disclosure to assist readers’ understanding and
interpretation of the Annual Report and the financial statements
Contents
Independent Audltor s Report to the Members of ITV plc Onlv 93
Primary Statements 97
Consolidated Income Statement 97
Consaolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 98
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position g
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 100
Consolldated Statement of Cash Flows 102
Sec tion 1 Basns nf Preparatlon 103
Section 2 Results for the Year 106
21 Profit before tax 106
22 Exceptionalitems m
2 3 Taxation M2
2 £« Earnmgs pers share 15
Section 3 Operating Assets and Llabllltles 17
31 Working capital n7
32 Property, plant and equipment 121
3 3 Intangible assets 123
34 Acquisitions 128
35 Investments 13
36 Provisions 131
37 Pensions 133
Section 4 Caprstal Structure and Financing Costs 140
471 Net cash/{debt) 140
4 2 Borrowings and finance leases 142
4 3 Managing market risks derivative financial instruments 144
4 4 Net financing costs 148
4 5 Farr value hierarchy 149
46 Equity 151
t. 7 Share based compensatlon 152
Section 5 Qther Notes 154
51 Related party transactions 154
5 2 Contingent babilities 155
5 3 Subsequent events 155
5 4 Subs:dmrles except from audlt 156
ITV plc Company Fmanual Statements 157
159

Notes to the ITV plc Company Financtal Statements
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Members of ITV plc Only

Opinions and conclusions arising from our audit

1. Our opinion on the financial statements is unmaodified

We have audited the financial statements of ITV plc for the year ended 31 December 2015 set out on pages 97 to 170
In our opinion

« The financiat statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the parent company’s affars as at
31December 2015 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,

» The Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the Eurapean Union,

« The parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Accounting Standards, including
FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework, and

- The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and, as regards
the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation

2. Our assessment of risks of material misstatement
In arreving at our audit opinion above on the financal statements the nsks of matenal misstatement that had the greatest effect
on our audit, were as follows

The Audit Committee’s consideration of these significant risks 1s set out in the Audit Committee Report on pages 62 to 67

The risk QOur response

Revenue recognition and contractual arrangements (see note 2 1}
The Group's revenue consists primanly of advertising, programme production and programme rights

Net Advertising Revenue ('NAR’) £1,719 mitbon Our procedures included
(2014 £1,629 mithon)

The majonty of ITV's advertising revenue {(NAR) 1s subject to
regulatron under Ofcom's Contract Rights Renewal system
{('CRR") CRR works by ensuning that the annual share of TV
advertising that will be placed with ITV by each advertising
agency can change in relation to the viewing figures for
cormmercial telewision that it delivers The CRR systemn, the
priang of the annual contractual arrangements with advertising
agencies and the details of each advertising campaign, together
with the related processes and contrals, are complex and
involve estimation

- Testing of controls, assisted by our own IT specialists, including
those over input of individual campaigns' terms and pncing,
comparison of those terms and pricing data agamnst the related
contracts with advertising agencies, inkage to transmissionfviewer
data, and seqregation of duties

Testng management's review controls over contract approval,
penodic deal recanciliations and the related deal debt adjustment
« Analysing revenue based on our industry knowledge and external
market data, following up vanances and

Challengmg the year-end deal debt position based on comparison
with customers’ correspondence and agreed terms of business

In particular, the pnicing mechamsm means 1t 1s possible fora
difference to arise between the price paid for an advertising
campaign and the value 1t delivered, mainly as a result of the
actual viewing figures being different from the agreed level
Where the Group has over-delivered viewers thisis referred to
as a 'deal credit’, or a‘deal debt’ where delivery has fallen short
Rather than the price patd for that campaign being adjusted,
these differences are noted for each agency and then taken
account of when agreeing either future campaigns or the
annual contract A net deal debt position with an agency 1s
recorded inITV's accounts, as a bability Net deal credit positions
are not recognised

We also assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures in respect
of the accounting policies on revenue recognition set out i note 21

NAR s therefore considered a significant nsk due to

- The number and complexsty of contractual agreements with
advertising agencies

- The complexity of the systems and processes of control used
to record revenue and

« The level of estimation involved in determining the deal debt
lability at the penod end
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Members of ITV plc Only continued

The rrsk

Our response

Other revenue streams ("Non-NAR revenue’) £1,253 million
{2014 £961 million)

Non-NAR revenue includes revenue from, programme
production, the sale of programme rights, transmission supply
arrangements and the Online, Pay & interactive division wrthin
the Broadcast segment

Recogmition of non-NAR revenue 1s driven by the specific terms
of the related contracts it1s considered to be arisk as the terms
of the contracts are varied and can be complex, with the result
that accounting for the revenue generated in any given period
can require individual consideration

Our procedures included

« Testing of controts over the timing of revenue recognition
We considered the Group's revenue recognition polictes against
the relevant accounting standards and

- For a sample of contracts entered into during the year, we tested
whether revenue had been recogmsed in accordance with the
contractual terms in the correct accounting penod, given the
requirements of the relevant accounting standard

Acquisition accounting. Talpa Media BV (imtial consideration £2

38 million and goodwill ansing £41 mutlion (see notes 3 3 and

3.4) (2014 Leftfield Entertainment initial consideration £209 milllon and goodwtll ansing £139 million)

ITV acquired 100% of Talpa Media on 30 April 2015 The
acquisition agreement requires the seller to provide services
to ITV for a peniod of seven years, in order to qualify for
performance-based payments after two, five and seven years
Further, a portion of the initial consideration 1s repayable if the
seller ceases to provide services for 3 two year period after
acguisition Accounting for the Talpa acquisition 1s considered
asignificant risk as a result of the following factors

The Group 1s required to make a number of jJudgements,
which focus on, but are not imited to assessment of whether
the performance-related consideration arrangements are
acquisition consideration or post-acquisition remuneration,
identification of iIntangible assets acquired and assessment
of fair value of the acquired assets and babilities and

- Indeterrmining the fair value of the acquired intangible assets
and the contingent consideration and remuneration payable,
medium term cashflow forecasts have been prepared by ITV
The inherent uncertainty involved in forecasting future cash
flows and the judgement involved in the selection of the
appropriate discount rate makes this a key area of focus

Cur pracedures included

+ Inspecting the terms of the acquisition contracts to determine
whether the accounting treatment of performance-related
consideration arrangements applied s appropriate based on the
cntena of the relevant accounting standards

+ Using our own valuation spectalists to assist us in assessing both
the appropriateness of the identified intangibles, against the
critena of the relevant accounting standards, and the
appropriateness of the discount rates

« Comparing the Group's forecast revenue growth and margins

assumptions to our own assessments, based on our Industry

knowledge, in relation to key inputs such as the useful Lives of,
and tikelthood of revenue from, existing formats and

Understanding of the principles applied by the Group in

determining the acquisition date fair values for the remaining

assets and babilities and agreeing sigruficant adjustments to
supporting docurmentation, such as underlytng contracts and
vendor due diligence reports

We also considered the adequacy of the Group’s disclosuresin
respect of the acguisition and the related judgments innote 34

Defined benefit pension schemes £176 million (2014 £346 million) (see note 3 7)

Significant estimates are made in valuing the Group's post-
retrement defined benefit schemes

The key valuation assumptions are set out innote 37 n the
‘Assumptions’ section When making these assumptions the
Group takes independent actuanal advice relating to their
appropriateness

The valuation s considered to be a sigmificant risk as, given
the quantum of the pension deficit, small changes in the

In this area our procedures included challenging the key assumptions
applied in determiming the Group's net defiait, being the discount
rate, Inflation rate and mortality/life expectancy, with the support
of our own actuanal specialists This included a comparison of these
key assumptions against externally derived data

We also constdered the adequacy of the group's disclosures in respect
of the sensitivity of the deficits to these assumptions in note 37

assumptions can have a materal financial tmpact on the Group
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The risk Jur response

Royalty accruals £69 million {2014 £70 million) (see note 31 5)

The Group pays royalties directly to artists or producers for Among other procedures, we tested manual controls over the
content used The contractual terms of these agreements are recording of royalty costs and the approval of royalty payments

varied and complex We re-performed a sample of the Group’s annual royalty calculations,

The related IT systems can onty address part of the processing, agreeing key inputs to coptracts and the underlying system data
necessitating a significant manual element in calculating

royalty accruals recorded by the Group In additiorn, for a sample of pragrams, we performed analytical

procedures, companng the royalty costs recorded in the financial
QOverall the process 1s complex and the volume and variety of staterments to our expectation using participation percentages from
contracts being interpreted and accounted for combined with the underlying contracts, and following up variances

the manual nature of the process increases the risk of error

3. Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit
The materiality for the Group financial statements as a whole was set at £29 million (2014 £25 million), determined with

reference to a benchmark of Group profit before tax, of which it represents 4 6% (2014 471%) (
We reported to the Audit Committee any carrected or uncorrected identified misstaterments exceeding £15 mitlion '
{2014 £1milbon), in addition to other identified misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds '

\

The Group's principal operations are in the United Kingdom and only the core UK aperations (comprising Broadcast and Online,
the UK Studios, Giobal Entertainment and the central functions) are scoped in for Graup audit purposes The Group audit team
performed the audit of the core UK operations as if they were a single aggregated set of finanaial information using materiality
of £25 millian (20714 £23 million) The Group audit team performed all of the audit procedures over the risks related to the
acquisition of Talpa Media

Although not in-scope for Group reporting purposes, In agreement with the Audit Committee, specified audit procedures were
also performed on two entrties in the US and one entity in the Netherlands by component auditors simultaneously with the audit
of the Group and UK operations The Group audit team set the matenality for specified audit procedures at £5 million for all
components Together the above audit and these specified audit procedures covered 92% (2014 96%) of total Group revenue,
94% (2014 99%) of Group profit before taxation, and 88% (2014 99%;) of total Group assets

4. Our opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 is unmodified
Inour opmion

- The part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Cormpanies
Act 2006 and

- The information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Repart for the financiat year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Members of ITV plc Only continued

5. We have nothing to report on the disclosures of principal risks
Based on the knowledge we acquired during our audit, we have nothing matenal to add or draw attention to in relation to

» The Directors’ statement of long term viability on page 47, concerring the principal risks, their management, and, based on that,
the Directors' assessment and expectations of the Group's continuing in operation over the three years to 31 December 2018 or
« The disclosures in note 1 of the financial statements concerning the use of the going concern basis of accounting

6. We have nothing to reportin respect of the matters on which we are required to report by exception

under ISAs (UK and Ireland) we are required to report to you if, based on the knowledge we acquired during our audit, we have
identified other information in the Annual Report that contains a maternal inconsistency with either that knowledge or the
financial statements, a material misstatement of fact, or that s otherwise misleading

In particutar, we are required to report to you if

We have identified material iInconsistencies between the knowledge we acquired during our audit and the Directors’ statement
that they consider that the Annual Report and financial statements taken as a whole 1s far, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group’s position and performance, business model and
strategy or

The Audit Committee Repart does not appropriately address matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee

Under the Camparies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, in our opinion

- Adequate accounting records have nct been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recewed from branches not visited by us or

« The parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns or

- Certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made or

« We have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review }
I
|

- The Directors’ staterments, set out on pages 91and 47, in relation to going concern and longer-term viabiity and
+ The part of the Corporate Governance Statement on pages 58 to 61relating to the Company's compliance with the eleven
provisions of the 2014 UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review

We have nothing to report in respect of the above responstbilities !

Scope and responsibilities

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 91, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view A description of the scope of

an audit of financial staterments is provided on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at www fre.org uk/auditscopeukprivate
This report Is made solely to the Company’s members as a body and is subject to important explanations and disclaimers
regarding our responsibilities, published on our website at www kpmg.com/uk/audrtscopeukco2014a, which are incorporated
Into this report as if set out In full and should be read to provide an understanding of the purpose of this report, the work we

have undertaken and the basis of our opinions

Mark Summerfield (Senmor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behatf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London

El4 5GL

2 March 2016 !
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Consolidated Income Statement

2015 014
Far the year ended 31 December Note £m £m
Revenue 21 2,972 2,590
Operating costs {2,306) (1,939)
Operating profit 666 651
Presented as
Earnings before interest, tax, amortisation (EBITA) before exceptional items 21 842 730
Operating exceptional items 22 (109) (12
Amortisation of intangible assets 33 (67) (67)
Operating profit 666 651
Financng income 44 6 22 [
Financing costs 44 {(37) 73}
Net financing costs 44 (31 (51)
Gain on sale of non-current assets {exceptional items} 22 5 4
Gan on sale of subsidianes and investments (exceptional 1items) 22 1 1
Profit before tax 641 605
Taxation 23 (139) (132)
Profit for the year 502 473
Profit attributable to
Owners of the Company 495 466
Non-controlling interests 466 7 7
Profit for the year 502 473
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 24 12 4p 116p
Phluted earnings per share 24 12.3p 11 5p
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

2015 2014
For the year ended 31 December Note £m £m
Profit for the year 502 473
Other comprehensive Income
Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Revaluation of available for sale financial assets 464 (1) 3
Net loss on cash flow hedges 43/463 - (4)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (net of hedging) 463 10 22
Items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gains on defined benefit pension schemes 37 9 24
Income tax charge on items that will never be reclassified 23 {19) (3)
Other comprehensive income/(cost) for the year, net of iIncome tax 81 42
Total comprehensive income for the year 583 515
Total comprehensive income attributable to
Owners of the Company 576 508
Non-controlling interests 466 7 7
583 515

Total comprehensive income for the year
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2015 2014
Asat 31 December Note £m £m
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 32 239 248
Intangible assets 33 1,500 1129
Investments in joint ventures, associates and equity mvestrments 35 30 14
Dernvative financial nstruments 43 8 16
Distribution rights 311 29 13
Deferred tax asset 23 - 43
1,806 1,463
Current assets
Programme rights and cther inventory 312 373 367
Trade and other receivables due within one year 314 531 385
Trade and other recevables due after rore than one year 314 33 24
Trade and other receivables 564 409
Current tax recevable 13 -
Derwative financial Instruments 43 1 L
Cash and cash equivalents 41 294 297
1,245 1,084
Current habilities
Borrowings 42 {1 {(85)
Dervative financial instruments 43 {5) {12)
Trade and other payables due within one year 315 (786) (699)
Trade payables due after more than cne year 316 {48) {27)
Trade and other payables (834) (726)
Current tax Llabilities (69) (72)
Provisions 16 {28) {17)
(947) 912)
Net current assets 298 172
Non-current habilities
Borrowings 42 (602) {179
Denvative financial instruments 43 (&) {12)
Oefined benefit pension defiot 37 (176) {3486)
Deferred tax babilibies 23 {79) -
Other payables (89) (38)
Provisions 36 (5) (&)
(957) (571
Net assets 1,147 1,064
Attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company
Share capital 461 403 403
Share prermium 461 174 174
Merger and other reserves 462 1 228
Translation reserve 35 25
Available for sale reserve & 7
Retained earnings 275 177
Total equity attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent company 1,114 1,014
Non-controlling Interests 33 50
Total equity 1,147 1,064
The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 2 March 2016 and were signed on its behatf by
lan Griffiths
Group Finance Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company

Merger Avalable Non-
Share Share  andother Translation for sale Retained cantroiling Total
capital  premum reserves reserve reserve eamings Total Interests equity
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m Em
Balance at 1 January 2015 403 174 228 25 7 177 1,014 50 1,064
Total comprehensive income for
the year
Profit - - - - - 495 495 7 502
Other comprehensive iIncome/(cost)
Revaluation of available for sale
financial assets - - - - 4] - m - W]
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations (net of hedging) - - — 10 - - 10 - 10
Remeasurement gains on defined benefit
pension schemes 37 - - - - - g1 91 - g1
Reclassification of revaluation reserve
on disposal of property, plant and
equipment - - (4) - - 4 - - -
Income tax charge on other
comprehensive Income 23 - - - - - (19) (19) - {19)
Total other comprehensive income - - (4) 10 {1} 76 81 - 81
Total comprehensive income for
the year - - {4) 10 {1) 571 576 7 583
Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity
Contributions by and distributions
to owners
Equity dnvidends - - - - - (459) (459} (5) {464)
Movements due to share-based
compensation 47 - - - - - 14 14 - 14
Tax onitems taken directly to equity 23 - - - - - 5 5 - 5
Purchase of own shares via employees'
benefit trust 47 - - - - - (33) (33) - {33)
Total contributions by and distributions
to owners - - - - - (473) (473) () (478)
Total transactions with owners - - - - - (473) {473) (5) {478)
Changes in non-controlling interests® 34 - - (3) - - - (3) (19) (22)
Balance at 31 December 2015 46 403 174 Nn 35 6 275 1,114 33 1147

(a) Movements reported in merger and other reserves include a put option for the acquisition of non-controlling nterests
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity continued

Attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent company

Merger Avallabte Non- !
Share Share  andother Translation for sale Retainad controlling Total 1
capital premum reserves reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity |
Note im £em £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2014 403 174 248 7 4 22 858 2l 889
Total comprehensive income for
the year
Profit - — - - - 466 466 7 473
Other comprehensive iIncome/{cost)
Revaluation of available for sale
financial assets - - - - 3 - 3 - 3
Net loss on cash flow hedges - - - (5] - - (4) - (4)
Exchange differences on translation
of forewgn operations (net of hedging) - - - 22 - - 22 - 22
Remeasurement gains on defined benefit g
penston schermes 37 - - - - - 24 24 - 24
Income tax charge on other !
comprehensive Income 23 - - - - - (3) 3 - 3 |
Total other comprehensive income - — - 18 3 21 42 — 42 :
Total comprehensive income for |
the year - - = 18 3 487 508 7 515 |
Transactions with owners, recorded :
directly in equity
Contributions by and distnibutions
to owners
Equity dwidends - - - - - (313) {313) (8) (321)
Movements due to share-based
compensation 47 - - - - - 14 14 - LA
Purchase of own shares via employees’
benefht trust 47 - — - - - (33) (33) — (33)
Total contributions by and distributions
to owners - — - - - (332) (332) 8) (340)
Total transactions with owners - - - = = {332) (332) {8} (340}
Changes in non-controlling interests® 34 - - (20) - - - (20) 20 -
Balance at 31 December 2014 46 403 174 228 25 7 177 1,014 50 1,064
(a) Movemnents reported in merger and other reserves include a put option for the acquisition of non-contrelling interests
|
|
|
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2015 0%

For the year ended 31Decernber Note £m £m £m Em
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations before exceptional items 21 827 702
Cash flow relating to operating exceptional iterns

Operating exceptional items 22 {109) (10)

Prepaid employment Linked consideration 34 {109) -

Increase in exceptional payables 60 3

Decrease in exceptional prepayments and other receivables 36 -
Cash outflow from exceptional items (122) {7)
Cash generated from operations 705 695
Defined benefit pension deficit funding 90) {e1)
Interest receved 25 41
Interest paid on bank and other loans {34) (57)
Interest paid on finance leases - U]
Net taxation paid {117) (85)

{216) (187)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 489 508
Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiary undertaking, net of cash acquired 34 (406) (214)

Prepaid employment inked consideration 34 109 —
Net consideratton pawd {297) (214)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 28 15
Acquwisition of property, plant and equipment (33) (27)
Acquisition of intangible assets {16) (10)
Acquisition of iInvestments {14) {7)
Loans granted to associates and joint ventures {2} (3)
Proceeds from sale of subsidiares, joint ventures and available
for sale investments 1 1
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities (333) (245)
Cash flows from financing activities
Bank and other loans - amgounts repaid (447) {110)
Bank and other loans - amounts raised 797 -
Capital element of finance lease payments {7) {21)
Issue of share capital - -
Equity dividends pad (459) (313)
Dividend paid to minonty interest (5) (3)
Purchase of own shares via employees’ benefit trust {33) {33)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (154) (485)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2 (222)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 41 297 518
Effects of exchange rate changes and fair value movements (5} 1
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 41 294 297
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 1: Basis of Preparation

In this section This section sets out the Group’s accounting policies that relate to the financial
statements as a whole Where an accounting policy is specific to one note, the
policy 1s described in the note to which it relates This section also shows new
EU endorsed accounting standards, amendments and interpretations, and
whether they are effective in 2015 or later years We explain how these changes
are expected to impact the financial position and performance of the Group

The financial statements consolidate those of ITV ple {'the Company’) and 1ts subsidiaries (together
referred to as the ‘Group’) and the Group's interests in associates and jointly controlled entities The
Company 1s domiciled in the United Kingdom

As required by European Union law (IAS Regulation EC 1606/20032) the Group’s financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Intermational Financial Reparting Standards as adopted by the EU (IFRS"),
and approved by the Directors

The financial statements are principally prepared on the basis of histarical cost Where other bases are
applied these are identified In the retevant accounting policy

The parent company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framewaork (FRS107)

Going concern

At 31 December 2015 the Group was in a net debt position The Group's strong balance sheet and
continued generation of significant free cash flows has enabled further acquisitions as well as the payment
of a special dividend The Group has also sought to gan further efficiencies in the balance sheet and
mamntan the flexibility to invest in the business by 1ssuing a new Eurobond (see section 4 for details

on capital structure and financing)

The Group continues to review forecasts of the television advertising market to determine the impact
on ITV's iquidity position The Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible
changes in trading performance, show that the Group will be able to operate within the level of its
current funding

The Group also continues to focus on development of the non-advertismg business, and evaluates the
impact of further investment in acquisitions agatnst the strategy and cash headroom of the business

After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue In operation for at least twelve months from the date of this report Accordmgly,
the Group continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its consobdated financial statements

Subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and available for sale investments

Subsidiaries are entities that are directly or indirectly controlled by the Group Control exists where the
Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the entity in order to obtan benefits
from its activities In assessing control, potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are taken into account

A joint venture 1s a joint arrangement in which the Group holds an interest under a contractual
arrangement where the Group and one or mare other parties undertake an econormic activity that is
subject to jont control The Group accounts for its interests in joint ventures using the equity method
Under the equity method the investment in the entity 1s stated as one line item at cost plus the iInvestor’s
share of retained post-acquisition profits and other changes in net assets

An associate 1s an entity, other than a subsidiary or joint venture, over which the Group has significant
influence Significant nfluence 15 the power to participate in, but not control or jointly contral, the financial
and operating decisions of an entity These investments are also accounted for using the equity method

Investments where the Group concludes 1t does not have significant influence are deemed ‘avaitabte far
sale’ These investrments are held at far value unless the investment is a start-up business, n whuch case
1tsvalued at cost and assessed for imparment
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 1: Basis of Preparation continued
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Current/non-current distinction

Current assets include assets held prirnanly for trading purposes, cash and cash equivalents, and assets
expected to be realised in, or intended for sale or use in, the course of the Group's operating cycle All other
assets are classified as non-current assets

Current biabilities include liabilities held primarily for trading purposes, liabilities expected to be settied n
the course of the Group’s operating cycle and those liabilittes due within one year from the reporting date
All other Liabitities are classified as non-current labilities

Classification of financial instruments
The financial assets and liabilities of the Group are classified inta the following financial statement captions
in the statement of financial position N accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments

= Loans and recevables — separately disclosed as cash and cash equivalents {excluding gilts over which
unfunded pension commitments have a charge) and trade and other recewvables

- Avallable for sale financial assets - measured at fair value through other comprehensive income Includes
gilts over which unfunded pension commitments have a charge

+ Financial assets/Labilities at fawr value through profit or loss - separately disclosed as dervative financial
instruments in assets/Labibties and included in non-current other payables (contingent consideration) and

« Financial babilities measured at amortised cost — separately disclosed as borrowings and trade and
other payables

Judgement i1s required when determining the appropriate classification of the Group’s financial instruments
Details on the accounting policies for measurement of the above instruments are set out In the relevant note

Recognition and derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

The Group recognises a financial asset or lability when it becomes a party to the contract Financial
instruments are no longer recagnised in the staternent of financial position when the contractual cash flows
expire or when the Group no longer retains control of substantially all the nisks and rewards under the
nstrument

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits with a maturity of less than or egual to
three months from the date of acquisition, cash held to meet certain finance lease commitments and gilts
in respect of which a charging deed was executed on the unfunded pension commitments of four former
Granada executives The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents 1s considered to approximate fair value

Foreign currencies
The primary econormic environment In which the Group operates is the UK and therefore the consolidated
financial statements are presented m pounds sterling (‘£)

Where Group companies based in the UK transact in foreign currencies, these transactions are translated
into pounds sterling at the exchange rate on the transaction date Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated into pounds sterling at the year end exchange rate Where there 1s amovement in
the exchange rate between the date of the transaction and the year end, a foreign exchange gain or loss
15 recognised in the Income statement

Hedge accounting is implemented on certain foreign currency firm commitments, which allows for the
effective portion of any foreign exchange gains or losses to be recognised in other comprehensive ncome
(note 4 3}

Where a forward currency contract 1s used to manage foreign exchange risk and hedge accounting 1s not
applied, arny movement m currency 1s taken to the income statement

Non-monetary assets and Labilities measured at histoncal cost are translated into pounds sterling at the
exchange rate on the date of the transaction

The assets and labilities of Group companies outside of the UK are translated into pounds sterling at the
year end exchange rate The revenue and expenses of these comparves are translated into pounds sterling
at the average monthly exchange rate during the year Where differences arise between these rates, they
are recognised in the translation reserve within other comprehensive Income
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Exchange differences arising on the translation of the Group's interests in joint ventures and associates
are recognised in the translation reserve within other comprehensive income

Ondisposal of a subsidiary outside the UK or an interest in a joint venture or an associate, the related
translation reserve 1s released to the iIncome statement as part of the gain or loss on dispasal

Accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to exercise judgement in applying the
Group's accounting policies It also requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, labilities, ncome and expenses Actual results may differ from these estimates

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, with revisions recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future penods affected

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity are set out below and in more detail in the
related notes

- Revenue recagnition (note 21)
+ Business combinations (note 3 3and note 3 4)
- Allocation of goodwill and assets to CGUs and impairment of assets {note 3 3)

In addition to the above, the areas involving the most sensitive estimates and assumptions that are
significant to the financal statements are set out below and m more detail in the related notes

- Defined benefit pension schemes, iIncluding the related longevity swap (note 37)
« Taxation (note 2 3)

New aor amended EU endorsed accounting standards
The table below represents new or amended EU endorsed accounting standards relevant to the Group's
results that are effective 1n 2015

AccountingStandard  Requirement Impact an financial statements
IAS 19 Employee The amendment was to simphfy the accounting for The amendment has not had
Benefits contnbutions that are independent of the number of years anyimpact on the Group
of employee service
Annual Various amendments to simplify various standards including  The amendments do not

Improvements IFRS 2 Share-based payment, IFRS 3 Business Combinations,  change our accounting and
to IFRS 2010 -  IFRS 8 Operating Segments, IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement,  therefore have noimpact on

2012 cycle IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, IAS 24 Related Party the Group’s financial position
Disclosures and 1AS 38 Intangible Assets or performance
Annual Vanious amendments to simplify various standards including  The amendments do not
Improvements IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial change our accounting and
to IFRS 2011 -  Reporting Standards, IFRS 3 Business Combinations, IFRS 13 therefore have noimpacton
2013 cycle Fair Value Measurement, IAS 40 Investment Property the Group's financial position
or performance

The Directors also considered the impact on the Group of other new and revised accounting standards,
interpretations or amendments that are currently endorsed but not yet effective There are none that are
effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015 that are expected to have a significant impact
on the Group’s results

IFRS 9 Financiat Instruments 1s effective 1 January 2018 but has not yet been endorsed by the EU
The Directors are currently assessing the impact this standard would have onits financial position
and performance

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers is also effective 1 January 2018 and has also not been
endorsed by the EU The Directors have performed an inttial assessment and do not expect a material
impact on our Broadcast business The assessment on our Studios business is ongoing

IFRS 16 Leases 1s effective 1 January 2019 and has not been endorsed by the EU The Directors are currently
assessing the impact this standard would have on its financial position and performance
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Section 2: Results for the Year

In this section This section focuses on the results and performance of the Group On the 1
following pages you will find disclosures explaining the Group’s results for
the year, segmental information, exceptional items, taxation and eamnings
per share.

21 Profit Keeping it This section analyses the Group's profit before tax by reference to the activities
before tax simple performed by the Group and an analysis of key operating costs
Earnings before interest, tax, amortisation (EBITA) and befare exceptional items
remains the Group's key profit indicator This reflects the way the business is
managed and how the Directors assess the performance of the Group This section
therefore also shows each division’s contribution to total revenue and EBITA
Accounting policies
Revenue recognition
Revenue s stated exclusive of VAT and comprises the sate of products and services to third parties
Judgement s required when determining the appropniate timing and amount of revenue that can be
recognised, specifically around whether there is a firm contract and that the service has been provided,
and if so, whether there 15 a fixed or reasonably determinable price that 1s reasonably certain will be
collected
Revenue from the sale of products is recognised when the Group has transferred both the sigrificant nisks
and rewards of ownership and control of the products sold, and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably Revenue recogmition critena for the Group's key classes of revenue are recognised on the
followingbases
Applicable segment Class of revenue Recogrition criteria
Broadcast & Online Advertising (NAR), video on Demand  on transmission, as audience targets are met
{VOD)
Broadcast & Online Sponsorship across period of transmussion of the sponsored
programime or series
Broadcast & Online Pay over the term of the contract or accrued in the
month for the expected revenue per subscriber
or download and trued up on receipt of third-
party reports showing revenue share calculation
{showing substnbers or humber of downtoads)
Broadcast & Online Participation (Interactive & Brand as the service 1s provided or event occurs
Extensions)
Studios Programme production on debivery of episode and acceptance by the
customer
Studios Programme distnbution nghts when the contract 1s signed and content 1s available
for exploitation
Studos Format and licences at the point in trme when the license 1s transferred
and the customer s able to use and benefit from
the licence
Studios Digital Archive on detivery of content (one-off) or over the
contract period ina manner that reflects the flow
of content delivered (top-up)
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The results for the year aggregate these classes of revenue into four significant categories

2015 2014
£m £m
Broadcast & Online
NAR 1,719 1,629
Non-NAR 427 394
ITV Studios
Productions 1,045 789
Distribution 192 144
Total revenue 3,383 2956
Segmental information

Operating segments, which have not been aggregated, are determined in a manner that is consistent with
how the business 1s managed and reported to the Board of Directors The Board is regarded as the chief
operating decisicn maker

The Board considers the business primarily from an operating activity perspective The reportable
segments for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 are therefore Broadcast & Online
and ITV Studios, the results of which are outlined in the fcllowing tables

Broadcast
&Online TV Studios*  Consolidated
2015 2015 2015
£m £m £m
Total segment revenue 2,146 1,237 3,383
Intersegment revenue - {(417) (411)
Revenue from external customers 2,146 826 2,972
EBITA before exceptional items 659 183 842
Share of losses of jont ventures and assocated undertakings - - -
Broadcast
& Onbne ITV Studios* Consolidated
20% 20% 2014
Em £m £m
Total segment revenue 2,023 933 2956
Intersegment revenue — (366) (366}
Revenue from external customers 2,023 567 2,590
EBITA before exceptional items 568 162 730

Share of losses of jont ventures and associated undertakings - - -

* Revenue of £383 million (2014 £255 mitlion) was generated in the US dunng the year and represented £314 millon (2014 £297 mullion)
of non-current assets at year end

Intersegment revenue, which is carried out on arm's length terms, 1s generated from the supply of ITV
Studios programmes to Broadcast & Online for transmussion primarity on ITV This revenue stream 1S 3
measure which forms part of the Group's strategic prionty of building a strong international content
business, as by producing and retaining rights to the broadcast shows the Group benefits further from
subsequent international content and format sales

In preparing the segment information, centrally managed costs have been allocated between reportable
segments on a methodology driven principally by revenue, headcount and bullding eccupancy of each
segment This s consistent with the basis of reporting to the Board of Directors

ITV ple Annual Repart and Accounts 2015 107




Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 2: Results for the Year continued
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Broadcast & Online

The Group operates the largest commeraal family of channels in the UK and delivers content through
traditional television broadcasting In addition to Linear broadcast, the Group delivers its content on
multiple platforms including the ITV Hub, pay platforms, or through direct content deals Content, that 15
commussioned and scheduled by this segment, 1s funded primarily by telewision advertising, where revenue
Is generated from the sale of audiences for advertising arrtime and sponsaorship

Other sources of revenue are from online advertising, HD digital channels on pay platforms (e g Sky and
Virgin), SDN revenue (which generates licence sales for DTT Multiplex A), and participation revenue (which
includes interactive sales from competitions) and ITV Choice in other countries

ITV Studios
ITV Studios 1s the Group's International content business, creating and producing pragrammes and farmats
that return and travel, namely drama, entertainment and factual entertamment

ITV Studios UK 15 the largest commercial producer in the UK and produces programming for the Group's
own channels, accounting for 60% of TV main channel spend on cammissioned programming
Programming 15 also sold to other UK broadcasters such as the BBC, Channel 4 and Sky

ITV America s the largest unscripted independent praducer of content in the US and s growing its scripted
presence by increasing investment in high profile dramas straight to series

ITV Studios also operates in five other international locations being Australia, Germany, France,
Netherlands (primarily Talpa) and the Nordics, where content is produced for tocal broadcasters This
content 1s either locally created IP or formats that have been created elsewhere by ITV, primarily in the UK

Global Entertainment and Talpa Global, ITV's distribution businesses, icense ITV's finished programmes
and farmats and third-party content internationally Within thus business we also finance productions both
on and off ITV to acquire global distnbution rights

EBITA before exceptional items

The Directors assess the performance of the reportable segments based on a measure of EBITA before
exceptional tems The Directors use this measurement basis as it excludes the effect of non-recurring
income and expenditure Amortisation and share of profit/(losses} of joint ventures and associates are atso
excluded to reflect more accurately how the business is managed and measured on a day-to-day basis
Net finanang costs and tax are not allocated to segments as the funding, cash and tax management

of the Group are activities carried out by the central treasury and tax functions

A reconciliation from EBITA before exceptional items to profit before tax s provided as follows

2015 2074
£m £m
EBITA before exceptional items 842 730
Operating exceptional items {109) (12)
Amortisation of intangible assets (67) (67)
Net financing costs {31) (51}
Share of losses of joint ventures and associated undertakings - -
Gain on sale of non-current assets (exceptional items) s
Gain on sale of subsidiaries and investments (exceptional items) 1 1
Profit before tax 641 605

The Group's principal operations are in the United Kingdom Revenue from external customers in the
United Kingdom 15 £2,275 million (2014 £2123 million), and total revenue from external customers in other
countries 1s £697 milbion (2014 £467 million}

There are two media buying agencies (2014 two) acting on behalf of a number of customers that
represent the Group's major customers These agencies are the only customers which individually
represent over 10% of the Group’s revenue Revenue of approximately £576 million (2014 €571 million)
and £339 million (2014 £312million) was derved from these customers This revenue Is attributable to
the Broadcast & Online segment
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Cash generated from operations
A reconcdliation from profit before tax to cash generated from operations before exceptional items 1s
as follows

2015 2014
£m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 641 605
Gain on sale of subsidiaries and investments {exceptional items}) (] [g)]
Gain on sale of non-current assets (exceptional items) (5) (@)
Net financing costs 3 51
Operating exceptional items 109 12
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 27 27
Amortisation of intangible assets 67 67
Share-based compensation and pension service costs 17 14
Decrease/(increase) In programme nights and other inventory, and distribution rights 4 (39)
{Increase}/decrease i recevables (21) 18
Decrease in payables (42) {48)
Movement in working capital (59) (69)
Cash generated from operations before exceptional items 827 702
Operating costs
Staff costs
Staff costs before exceptional iterns can be analysed as follows
2015 2014*
£m £m
Wages and salarnes 318 277
Socal secunty and other costs 43 44
Share-based compensation {see note 47} 14 14
Pension costs 25 21
Total staff costs 400 356
Less staff costs allocated to productions (137) (118)
FTEE staff costs (non-production) 263 238

* The prior year classification of ‘staff costs altocated to productions’ has beenrevised to present a consistent and comparable
methodology to the 2015 allocation There 1s ng change in the total FTEE staff costs and noimpact on the income Statement

The number of full-time equivalent employees (FTEE’) (excluding short-term contractors and freelancers
who are predominantly allocated to the cost of productions), calculated on a weighted average basis,
during the year was

2015 200
Broadcast & Online 2,109 2,042
1TV Stuchos 3,449 2,517

5,658 4,559

The Increase In full-time equivalent employees in ITV Studios 1s primarily driven by the acquisitions
completed in 2015

Details of Directors' emoluments, share options, pension entitlements and long-term incentive scheme
interests are set out in the Remuneration Report Listed Directors’ gans on share options for 2015 are set
cut in the ITV plc entity financial statements

Depreciation
Depreciation in the year was £27 million (2014 £27 milbion), of which £14 million (2014 £15 mulkion) relates
to Broadcast & Online and £13 million (2014 £12 million) to ITV Studios
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Operating leases
The total undiscounted future minimum lease payments under non-cancellabie operating leases are due

for payment as follows
2075 Transponders Property Total
Within one year 34 17 51
Later than one year and not later than five years m 48 159
Later than five years 15 21 136
260 86 346
2014 Transpanders Property Total
Withinone year 38 13 51
Later than one year and not later than five years 123 33 156
Later than five years 158 16 174
319 62 381

The Group's operating leases relate to transponder assets, offices and studio properties The Group hotds
transmission supply agreements that require the use of speafic transponder assets for a period of up to
ten years with payments increasing over time, lmited by specific RP! caps These supply agreements are
classified as operating leases, in accordance with the Group's policy on leases detailed nnote 32

Property leases run for terms ranging from five to twenty years, depending on the expected operational
use of the site Leases may nclude break clauses or options to renew {options to renew are not included

in the commitments table) Lease payments are generally subject to market review every five years to
reftect market rentals, but because of the uncertainty gver the amount of any future changes, such changes
have not been reflected in the table above None of the lease agreements include contingent rentals

The total future mimimum sublease payments expected to be receved under non-cancellable subleases
at the year end are £1 milkon (2014 £2 million)

The total operating lease expenditure recognised during the year was £51 million (2014 £45 miltion) and
total sublease payments received were £2 million (2014 £1 million)

Audit fees
The Group engages KPMG LLP (KPMG') on assignments additional to therr statutory audit duties where
ther expertise and experience with the Group are important

Fees paid to KPMG and its assoctates during the year are set out below

2015 2
£m £m

For the audit of the Group’s annual accounts 06 06
For the audit of subsidiaries of the Group 04 02
Audit-related assurance services 02 02
Total audit and audit-related assurance services 12 10
Taxation compliance services - 02
Taxation advisory services 01 02
Other assurance services a3 Q2
Total non-audit Services 04 06
Total fees pard to KPMG 16 16

There were no fees payable in 2015 or 2014 to KPMG and associates for the auditing of accounts of any
associate of the Group, internal audit services, services relating to corporate finance transactions entered
nto or proposed to be entered into, by or on behalf of the Group or any of iIts associates

Fees paid to KPMG for audit and other services to the Company are not disclosed in its individual accounts
as the Group accounts are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis
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2.2
Exceptional
items

Keepingit Exceptional items are excluded from management's assessment of profit
simple because by their size or nature they could distort the Group's underlying quatity
of earnings They are typically gains or losses arising from events that are not
considered part of the core operations of the business (e g costs relating to
capital transactions, such as professional fees on acquisitions) These items are
excluded to reflect perfarmance in a consistent manner and are nbine with how
the business 1s managed and measured on a day-to-day basis

Accounting policies
Exceptional items as described above are disclosed on the face of the iIncome statement

Subsequent revisions of estimates for items imitially recognised as exceptional are recorded as exceptional
Items in the year that the revision 1s made Gans or losses on disposal of non-core assets are also
considered exceptional due to their nature and impact on the Group's undertying quality of earnings

Exceptional items
Operating and non-operating exceptional items are analysed as follows

015 2004
(Charge)/credit Ref £m £m
Operating exceptionalitems
Acquisition-related expenses A {88) {6)
Reorganisation and restructurning costs B {13) (6)
Leqal related costs E {8) -
Total net operating exceptional items {109) {12)
Non-operating exceptional items
Gan on sale of non-current assets C 5 4
Gain on sale and impairment of subsidiaries and investments D 1 L
Total non-operating exceptional items 6 5
Total exceptional items before tax (103) {7)
Tax on exceptionalitems 8 2
Total exceptional items net of tax {95) (5)

A - Acquisition-related expenses

Acquisition-related expenses of £88 million includes £78 million (2014 £3 million) relating to performance-
based, employment lnked costs to former owners manty in relation to Talpa Media, and professional fees
{mainly financial and legal due diligence) incurred on the acquisitions completed during the year of

£10 milbion (2014 £3 milllon) See note 3 4 for further details on acquisitions

B - Reorganisation and restructuring costs

In 2015 £13 million (2014 £6 mitlion) of costs were incurred as a result of a Group-wide initiative to
significantly reduce the ongoing cost base, primarily comprised of restructuring of the US business,
redundancy and excess space provisions

C — Gain on sale of non-current assets

In 2015 a £5 million gain on sale of non-current assets arose pnmarily as a result of the sale of a freehold
property and related assets in Manchester The 2014 gain of £4 million arose as a result of the sale of a
freehold property in Cardiff

D - Gain on sale and impairment of subsidianes and investments
The gainof £1million (2014 £1 million) relates to a historical disposal

E - Legal related costs
£8 million (2074 £ril) prowvision for anticipated costs of settling a legal dispute
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Section 2: Results for the Year continued

2.3
Taxation

Keepingit This section sets out the Group's tax accounting policies, the current and deferred
simple tax charges or credits in the year (which together make up the total tax charge or
credit In the income statement), a reconcaliation of profit before tax to the tax
charge for the period and the movements in deferred tax assets and Liabilities

Accounting policies

The tax charge for the pericd 1s recogrised in the income staternent, the statement of comprehensive
incorne and directly in equity, according to the accounting treatment of the related transaction The tax
charge comprises both current and deferred tax The calculation of the Group’s tax charge involves a
degree of estimation and judgement in respect of certain iterns whose tax treatment cannot be fully
determined until a resolution has been reached by the relevant tax authonity

Current tax
Current tax 1s the expected tax payable or recewvable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment in respect of previpus years

The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of the additional taxes

that are likely to become due, which require judgement Amounts are accrued based on managerment’s
interpretation of specific tax law and the Lkebihcod of settlement Where the final tax outcome of these
matters s different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
tax and deferred tax provisions in the pertod inwhich such determination 1s made

Deferred tax
Deferred tax arises due to certain temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
habibities for financial reporting purposes and those for taxation purposes

The following temporary differences are not provided for

« the initial recognition of goodwill

+ the initial recognition of assets or habilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other than
in a business combination and

- differences relating to investmenits in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the
foreseeable future

The amount of deferred tax provided 1s based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities Deferred tax s calculated using tax rates that are enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset 1s recognised only to the extent that it s probable that sufficient taxable profitwill
be available to utilise the temporary difference Recognition of deferred tax assets, therefore, involves
Judgement regarding the timing and level of future taxable ncome

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are disclosed net to the extent that they relate to taxes levied by the
same authonty and the Group has the night of set-off
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Taxation - Income statement
The total taxation charge in the iIncome statement 1s analysed as follows

2015 2014
£m £m
Current tax
Current tax charge before exceptional items (125) (118)
Current tax credit/(charge) on exceptional items 6 (2)
{119) {120)
Adjustments to prior penods 9 (6)
{110) {126)
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences (20) (9)
Deferred tax credit on exceptional items 2 -
Impact of change in the statutory tax rate {2) -
(20) 9)
Adjustments to prior periods (9) 3
(29) €
Total taxation charge in the iIncome statement (139) {132)

In order to understand how, in the income statement, a tax charge of £139 millon (2014 £132 million)
anses on a profit before tax of £641 million (2014 £605 mitlion), the taxation charge that would arise at the
standard rate of UK corporation tax s reconcaled to the actual tax charge as follows

015 014
£m fm
Profit before tax 641 605
Notional taxation charge at UK corporation tax rate of 20 25% (2014 21 5%) on profit
before tax (130) {(130)
Non-taxable income/non-deductible expenses (23) 2
Adjustments to prior pertods - (3)
Impact of overseas tax rates 4] [t
Impact of changes in tax rates (2) -
Production tax credits 23 -
Total taxation charge in the income statement (139) (132)

Non-deductible expenses are expenses that are not expected to be allowable for tax purposes Simularly
non-taxable mcome 1s Income that will not be taxed

Adjustments to prior pertods primarily arise where an outcome i1s obtained on certain tax matters

which differs from expectations held when the related provision was made Where the outcome Is more
favourable than the provision made, the difference is released, towering the current year tax charge

Where the outcome 15 less favourable than our provision, an addittonal charge to current year tax will accur

The impact of overseas tax rates reflects the fact that some of our profits are earned in ternitones other
than the UK, and taxed at rates different to the UK corporation tax rate

On 26 October 2015, the UK corparation tax rate was substantively enacted to fall to 19% from 1 April 2017
and 18% from 1 April 2020 The carrying value of UK temporary differences at the balance sheet date has
been adjusted accordingty This has given rnise to a charge of £1 million (2014 £nil mutlion) of which £2 million
15 recogrised as a charge in the Income statement and £1m as a credit in other comprehensive Income

Production tax credits are incentives provided to creative industries such as UK High-End Television (HETV)
tax relief The ability to access these tax credits 1s fundamental when assessing the viability of investment
decisions in the production of high-end drama Under IFRS certamn production tax credits are reported
within the total taxation charge in the income statement, however ITV cansiders them to be working capital
mnnature, and excludes them from its adjusted tax charge, including them instead within Adjusted EBITA
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The effective tax rate 1s the tax charge on the face of the Income statement expressed as a percentage of
the profit before tax In the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the effective tax rate
Is comparable to the standard rate of UK corporation tax As explained in the Financial and Perfarmance
Review, the Group uses an adjusted tax rate to show how tax impacts total adjusted earnings in a way that
1s more aligned with the Group's cash tax position

Taxation — Other comprehensive income and equity

As analysed in the table below, a deferred tax charge of £19 mitlion on actuarial movements on pensions
has been recognised m other comprehensive Income A deferred tax charge of £2 millon has been
recognised in equity In respect of share based payments

A current tax credit of £7 million has also been recagrised in equity in relation to share based payments

Taxation — Statement of financial position
The table below outlines the deferred tax assets/{labilities) that are recognised in the statement of
financial position, together with their movements in the year

At Recognisedin At

1January the income Recogrisedin Business 31 December

2015 statement aCl and equity acquisitions 2015

£m £m €m £m £m

Property, plant and equipment )] 1 - - -
fntangible assets (15) {10) - (76) {101)
Programme rights 1 - - - 1
Pension scheme deficits 36 (16) (19) - 1
Tax losses 7 3 - - 4
Share-based compensation 14 (U] {2) - 1
Gther temporary differences 1 - - 4 5
43 (29) {271} {72) (79)

At Recognised in At

1 January the income Recognised in Business 31December
20140 statement”  OCland equity acquisitions 2014

£m £m Em £m £m

Property, plant and equipment (6) 5 - - M
Intangible assets (13) (2) - - (15)
Programme nghts 1 - - - 1
Pension scheme deficits 56 {16) {4) - 36
Tax losses 2 5 - - 7
Share-based compensation 13 - 1 - 14
Other temporary differences ] 2 - - 1
52 (6) (3) - 43

* The prior year movements on deferred tax relating to overseas businesses have been reallocated to the relevant temporary

difference categories

At 31 December 2015, total deferred tax assets are £22 million (2014 £55 million) and total deferred tax
liabilittes are £107 million (2014 €12 million) After netting off balances within countries, there s a net
deferred tax lability of £79m (2014 net deferred tax asset of £43 million) recognised i the Consolidated
Statement of Financiat Position

The deferred tax balance relates to

- praperty, plant and equipment temporary differences ansing on assets qualifying for tax depreciation

- temporary differences on intangible assets arising on business combinations

- programme rights - temporary differences on intercompany profits on stock

- pension scheme deficit temporary differences on the 1AS 19 penston deficit and additional contributions
resulting from funding through the SON and LTVC pension partnerships (not recognised as contributions
under IAS 19)

- temporary differences arising from the timing of the use of tax losses

share-based compensation tempaorary differences on share schemes and

other temporary differences on provisions and other items
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The deferred tax balance associated with the pension deficit has been adjusted to reflect the current tax
benefit obtained in the current year following the employer contributions of £102 million to the Group's
defined benefit pension scheme The adjustment in other comprehensive Income to the deferred tax
balance prnimarily relates to the actuaral gains recogrised in the period

A deferred tax asset of £399 million (2014 £444 million) inrespect of capital losses of £2,215 million

(2014 £2,221 million) has not been recognised due to uncertainties as to whether a capital ganwill arise

in the appropniate form and relevant territory against which such losses could be utiised For the same
reasons, deferred tax assets in respect of overseas losses of £15 million (2014 £14 million) that time expire
between 2017 and 2026 have not been recognised

24
Earnings
per share

-

Keepingit Earnings per share (‘EPS) 1s the amount of post-tax profit attributable to each share

simple Basic EPS 1s calcutated on the Group profit for the year attributable to equity

shareholders of £495 million (2014 £466 million) dvided by 4,006 million (2014
4,002 million) being the weighted average number of shares in i1ssue dunng the year

Diluted EPS reflects any commitments made by the Group to issue shares in the
future and so 1t Includes the mpact of share options

Adjusted EPS is presented in order to show the business performance of the Group
in a consistent manner and reflect how the business 1s managed and measuredon a
day-to-day basis Adjusted EPS reflects the impact of operating and non-operating
exceptional items on Basic EPS Other items excluded from Adjusted EPS include
amortisation and impairment of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations, net financing cost adjustments and the tax adjustments relating to
these items Each of these adjustments are explained in detail in the section below

The calculation of Basic EPS and Adjusted EPS, together with the diluted impact on each, 1s set out below

Earnings per share 2015
Baslc Diluted
Ref £m £m
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of ITV plc 495 495
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue - million 4,006 4,006
Ditution due to share options - 29
Total weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue — million 4,006 4,035
Earnings per ordinary share 12 4p 123p

Adjusted profit for the year removes the effect of exceptional items, as described in the ‘Keeping it simple’
box above Further detail on the composition of each adjustment 1s cross-referenced in the following notes
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Adjusted earnings per share 2015

Adjusted Dituted
Ret £m £m
Profit for the year attributable to equity sharehotders of ITV plc 495 495
Exceptional items (net of tax} A 95 95
Profit for the year before exceptional items 590 590
Amortisation and impairment of acquired intangible assets B 54 54
Adjustments to net financing costs C 15 15
Adjusted profit 659 659
Total weighted average number of ardinary shares in 1ssue — million 4,006 4,035
Adjusted earnings per ordinary share 16 5p 16 3p
Eamings per share 2014
Basic Oltuted
Ref £m &m
Profit for the year attributable to equity sharehotders of TV plc 466 466
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ini1ssue — mithon 4,002 4,002
Dilution due to share options - 38
Total weighted average number of ordinary shares i issue — million 4,002 4,040
Earnings per ardinary share 16p 115p
Adjusted earnings per share 2014
Adjusted Diluted
Ref £m m
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of ITV plc 456 466
Exceptional items A 5 5
Profit for the year before exceptional items 471 471
Amortisation and imparment of acquired intangible assets B 44 44
Adjustments to net financing costs C 34 34
Other tax adjustments B 5 5
Adjusted profit 554 554
Total weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue — million 4,002 4,040
Adjusted earnings per ordinary share 13 8p 137p

Details of the adjustments to earnings are as follows

A. Refer to Note 2 2 for the detailed composition of after tax impact of exceptional items (both operating
and non operating) of £95 milion (2014 £5 million)

B Amortisation and imparrment of acquired intangible assets of £58 million (2014 £44 mitlion) s excluded
from adjusted profit It is calculated as total amortisation and impairment of £67 million (2014 £67 million),
less amortisation of software licences and development of £9 million (2014 £11 million) A related tax
credit of £13 million (2014 £12 million) 1s also excluded in arnving at the net amount, which s further
adjusted to recognise the £9 million cash tax benefit arising from goodwill on US acquisitions, which for

tax purposes 1s amortised over a 15 year period (2014 £5 millien shown within other tax adjustments)

C. Gross adjustments of £18 million (2014 £44 million) have been made to net financing costs and relate to
mark-to-market movements on derivative instruments, losses on buybacks and imputed pension interest
charges (see note 4 4 for details) This s reduced by a tax credit of £3 million (2074 £10 million) to give anet
adjustment of £15 milbion (2014 €34 million)

76 ITV plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015




P Finanoal Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 3: Operating Assets and Liabilities

31
Working
capital

In this section This section shows the assets used to generate the Group’s trading
performance and the Liabilities incurred as a result On the following pages
there are notes covering working capital, non-current assets and liabilities,
acquisitions and disposals, provisions and pensions

Liabilities relating to the Group's financing activities are addressed in
Section 4 Deferred tax assets and Liabilities are shown in note 2.3

Keeping it Working capital represents the assets and liabitities the Group generates through
simple its trading actnity The Group therefore defines working capital as distribution
nghts, programme rights and production costs, trade and other recevables and
trade and other payables

Careful management of working capital ensures that the Group can meet its
trading and financing obhigations within its ordinary operating cycle

Working capital is a driver of the profit to cash conversion, a key performance
indicator for the Group The Group's target profit to cash ratio on arolling three
year basis 1s at least 90% For those subsidianes acquired dunng the year, working
capital at the date of acquisition 1s excluded from the profit to cash calculation so
that only subsequent working capital movements in the period owned by ITV are
reflected in this metric

In the following section you will find further information regarding working
capital management and analysis of the elements of working capital

3.1.1Distribution rights

Accounting policies

Distribution nights are programme rights the Group buys from producers to derive future revenue,
principally through licensing to broadcasters These are classified as non-current assets as these nghts
are used to derive long-term economi¢ benefit for the Group

Distribution nights are recogrused intially at cost and charged through operating costs in the income
statement over a maximum five year pertod that 1s dependent on either cumulative sales and programme
genre, or based on faorecast future sales Advances paid for the acquisition of distribution rights are
disclosed as distnbution nghts as soon as they are contracted These advances are not expensed until

the programme I1s available for distnibution Up to that point they are assessed annually for impairment
through the reassessment of the future sales expected to be earned from that title

The net book value of distnbution nghts at the year end are as follows

2015 2014
£m £m
Distrbution rights 29 13

The movement during the year comprises additions of £43 mition (2014 £21 million) and amounts charged
to the Income statement of £27 million (2014 €18 million)
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3.1.2 Programme rights and other inventory

Accounting policies

Rights are recognised when the Group controls the respective nghts and the nsks and rewards associated
with them

Programme rnights and production costs not yet written off are included in the statement of finanaial
position at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Broadcast programme rights

Acquired programme rights (which include films), and sports rights, are purchased for the primary purpose
of broadcasting on the ITV network These are recognised within current assets as payments are made

or when the rights are ready for broadcast The Group generally expenses these rights through operating
costs over a number of transmisstans reflecting the pattern and value in which the right 1s consumed

Commuissions, which primarily comprise programmes purchased based on editorial specification and
over which the Group has some control, are recognised In current assets as payments are made and
are generally expensed to operating costs in full on first transmission Where a commission is repeated,
incremental costs associated with the broadcast are included in operating costs

In assessing net realisable vatue for acquired and comnussioned rights, the net realisable value assessment
15 based on estimated artime value, with consideration given to whether the number of transmissions
purchased can be efficiently played out over the licence period

Studios production costs

Production inventory comprises the costs incurred by ITV Studios in producing a pragramme, where the
programme Is part way through the production process and not yet available for delivery to a broadcaster
They are recognised within current assets at the production cost incurred, and are expensed i operating
costs on delivery of episodes

Also included here are dramas that have been commissioned straight to series Althcugh more expensive
than producing a pilot, this methaod attracts high profile talent to the production and raises the profile of
the seres to supportits distnbution The productton cost is partly funded by the commissioning network
licence fee, the remaining production deficit 1s recovered by future distrnibution sales, and once the
production is complete any remaining deficit 1s classified as a Distribution Right

In assessing net realisable value for pragrammes in production, judgement 1s required when considering
the contracted sales price and estimated costs to complete

The Group’s programme rights and other inventory at the year end are shown in the table below

2015 20
£&m £m
Broadcast

Acquired prograrmme rights m 101
Commussions 61 57
Sports rights 30 40

ITV Studios
Production costs 171 169
373 367
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3.1.3 Programme commitments

These are operating commitments in respect of programming entered into in the ordinary course of
business with programme suppliers, sports organisations and film distnibutors inrespect of nights to
broadcast on the ITV network Commitments in respect of these purchases, which are not reflected in
the statement of financial position, are due for payment as follows

ms 2014
Em £€m

Within one year 451 464
Later than one year and not more than five years 633 462
More than five years 141 58
1,225 984

3.1.4 Trade and other receivables

Accounting policies

Trade recevables are recognised initially at the value of the iInvoice sent to the customer and subsequentty
at the amounts considered recoverable (3mortised cost) Where payments are not due for more thancne
year, they are shown in the financial statements at thewr net present value to reflect the economic cost of
delayed payment The Group provides goods and services to substantially all its customers on credit terms

Estimates are used mn determining the level of receivables that will not, in the opirvon of the Directors,
be collected These estimates include such factors as historical experience, the current state of the UK
and overseas economies and industry specific factors A provision for imparment of trade recewvables is
established when there s sufficient ewidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due

The carrying value of trade recewables 1s considered to approximate fair value

Trade and other recevables can be analysed as follows

2015 20M%

£m £m
Due within one year

Traderecewables 328 271
Other recewvables 37 27
Prepaid employment inked consideration (see note 3 4) 55 -
Prepayments and accrued income m 87
531 385

Due after more than one year
Trade recewvables 8 7
Prepaid employment linked consideration {see note 3 4) 18 -
Otherrecewvables 7 17
Total trade and other recewables 564 409

Prepaid employment Unked consideration totalling £73 mullion relates to the acquisition of Talpa Media
(see note 3 4 for details) This represents the portion of the initiat consideration that 1s recoverable from
the seller in the event he leaves within the iInitial two years following acquisition and 1s amortised over
that period

£336 million (2014 £278 million) of total trade recevables that are not impaired are aged as follows

2015 2014
£m £m

Current 308 263
Up to 30 days overdue 17 7
Between 30 and 90 days overdue 8 4
Qver 90 days overdue 3 4
336 278
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The balance above 1s stated net of a provision of £5 million (2014 €7 million) for impairment of trade
recewvables Of the provision total, £4 million relates to balances overdue by more than S0 days
(2014 £3 million) and £1 million relates to current balances (2014 £4 million)

Movements in the Group's provision for impairment of trade recewvables can be shown as follows

2015 201

£Em £m

At 1 January ? 7
Charged during the year 3 2
Recewvables written off duning the year as uncollectable (utilisation of provision) - -
Unused amounts reversed _{5) {2)
At 31 December 5 7

3.1.5 Trade and other payables due within one year

Accounting policies

Trade payables are recogrused at the value of the invoice received from a supplier The carrying value of
current and non-current trade payables 1s considered to approximate fair value Trade and other payables
due within one year can be analysed as follows

2015 pioa ]
£€m £m
Trade payables 65 49
VAT and social security A 68
Other pavables 177 159
Accruals 289 250
Deferred income 184 173
786 699
3.1.6 Trade payables due after more than one year
Trade payables due after more than one year can be analysed as follows
2015 2014
Em £€m
Trade payables 48 27

This primarily relates to film creditors for which payment 1s due after more than one year

3 1.7 Working capital management
Cash and working ¢capital management continues to be a key focus During the year the cash outflow from
working caprtal was £59 million (2014 outflow of £69 million) derved as follows

2015 20

Em £m

Decrease/(increase) In programme rights and other inventory and distribution rights 4 (39)
(Increase)/decrease In receivables (21) 18
Decrease In payables (42) (48)
Working capital cutflow (59) (69)

The working capital outflow for the year excludes the impact of balances acquired on the acquisition of
subsidiaries during the year (see note 3 4)
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3.2
Property,
plant and
equipment

Keepingit The followmng section shows the physical assets used by the Group to operate the
simple business, generating revenues and profits These assets include office buldings
and studios, as well as equipment used In broadcast transmission, programme
production and support activities

The cost of these assets 1s the amount initially paid for them A deprecation
expense I$ charged to the Income statement to reflect annual wear and tear and
the reduced value of the asset over ime Depreciation i1s calculated by estimating
the number of years the Group expects the asset to be used {useful economic
ufe) If there has been a technological change or decline in business performance
the Directors review the value of the assets to ensure they have not fallen below
therr depreciated value If an asset's value falls below its depreciated value an
additional one-off impairment charge s made agamst profit

This section also explains the accounting policies followed by ITV and the specific
estimates made in arriving at the net book value of these assets

Accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
Certainitems of property, plant and equipment that were revalued 1o farr value prior to 1 January 2004
{the date of transition to IFRS) are measured on the basis of deemed cost, being the revalued amount less
depreciation up to the date of transstion

Leases

Finance leases are those which transfer substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership to the lessee
Certain service contracts involve the use of specific assets (e g transmission equipment) and therefore
contain an embedded lease

Determining whether a lease 1s a finance lease requires jJudgement as to whether substantially all of the
risks and benefits of ownership have been transferred to the Group Estimates used by management in
rmakmng this assessment include the useful economic Ufe of assets, the fair value of the asset and the
discount rate applied to the total payments required under the lease Assets held under such leases

are mcluded within property, plant and equipment and depreciated on a straight-line basis over ther
estimated useful Lives

Outstanding finance lease obligations, which compnse the principal plus accrued interest, are included
within borrowings The finance element of the agreements is charged to the income statement over the
term of the lease on an effective interest basis

Alt other leases are operating leases, the rentals on which are charged to the income statementon a
straight-line basis over the lease term (see note 21 for further details of operating lease commitments)

Depreciation

Depreciation 15 provided to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment tess estimated residual
value, on a straight-line basis over their estmated useful lives The annual depreciation charge is sensitive
to the estimated useful life of each asset and the expected residual value at the end of its ife The major
categories of property, plant and equipment are depreciated as follows

Asset class Depreciation policy

Freehold land not depreciated

Freehold bulldings up to 60 years

Leasehold improvements sharter of residual lease term or estimated useful hfe
Vehicles, equipment and fittings 3 to 20 years

* Equipmentincludes studio production and technology assets
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Impairment of assets

Property, plant and equipment that 1s subject to depreciation 1s reviewed for impairment whenever events
ar changes In arcumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable Indicators of
impairment may include changes in technology and business performance

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment can be analysed as follows

Freeholdland  Improvernents to leasehotd Vehicles, equipment

and buldings land and buildings and fittings Total
Finance
Long Short Orwned leases
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1January 2014 137 69 17 2 16 460
Additions - ~ - 26 - 26
Reclass!fication of property fittings - {2) - 2 - -
Disposals and retirements (17) - - (12) - (29)
At 31 December 2014 120 67 17 237 16 457
Additions - - 1 37 - 38
Disposals and retirements (31) ] - {10) - {42)
At 31 December 2015 89 66 18 264 16 453
Depreciation
At 1 January 2014 23 1 15 138 14 20
Charge for the year 1 2 - 24 - 27
Disposals and retirements (7) — — {12) - {19}
At 31 December 2014 17 13 15 150 14 209
Charge for the year 1 2 - 24 - 27
Disposals and retirements (12) (1) - {S) - (22)
At 31 December 2015 6 14 15 165 14 214
Net book value
At 31 December 2015 B3 52 3 99 2 239
At 31December 2014 103 54 2 87 2 248

Additions in the year inctudes £6 milhion (2014 £5 million) relating to assets owned by subsidiaries acquired
during the year

Included within property, plant and equipment are assets In the course of construction of £16 mullion
(2014 £10 rultion)

During the year, the Group disposed of the Quay Street site and related assets in Manchester for £23 million,
representing a gain on sale of £5 mullion In 2014, the Group sold a freehold property in Cardiff far praoceeds
of £15 mitlion, representing a gain on sale of £5 million In 2013 the Group acquired the freehold for the
London Television Centre for £58 million, although the Directors' view is that fair value of the property
would be significantly higher

Capital commitments
There are £2 milbon of caprtal commitments at 31 December 2015 (2014 £2 million)
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33 Keepingit The following section shows the non-physical assets used by the Group to
Intangible simple generate revenue and profits
assets These assets include formats and brands, custorner contracts and retationships,

contractual arrangements, ticences, software development, film libranies and
goedwill The cost of these assets s the amount that the Group has paid or, where
there has been a business combination, the far value of the specific ntangible
assets that could be sold separately or which anse fromlegal nghts In the case of
goodwill, its cost s the amount the Group has paid Inacquinng a business over
and above the fair value of the iIndividual assets and liabilities acquired The value
of goodwill 1s 'intangible’ value that comes from, for example, a uniquely strong
market position and the outstanding productiity of its employees

The value of intangible assets, with the exception of goodwill, reduces over the
number of years the Group expects to use the asset, the usefut economic life, wia
an annual amortisation charge to the income statement Where there has been
a technologecal change or decline in business performance the Directors review
the value of assets, including goodwill, to ensure they have not fallen below their
amortised value Should an asset's value fall below its amortised value an
additronal one-of f iImpairment charge 1s made against profit

This section explains the accounting policies applied and the specific judgements
and estimates made by the Directors in arrving at the net book value of
these assets

Accounting policles

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits that arse from assets that are not capable of being
individually identified and separately recognised The goodwill recognised by the Group has all arisen
as a result of business combinations Goodwill 1s stated at its recoverable amount being cost less any
accumulated impairment losses and is allocated to the business to which it relates

Due to changes in accounting standards goodwill has been calculated using three different methods
depending on the date the relevant business was purchased

Method 1 All business combinations that have occurred since 1 January 2009 were accounted forusing
the acquisition method Under this method, goodwill s measured as the fair value of the consideration
transferred (including the recognition of any part of the business not yet owned (hon-cantrolling interests)),
less the fair value of the iIdentifiable assets acquired and Liabilities assumed, all measured at the acquisition
date Any contingent consideration expected to be transferred in the future will be recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date and recognised within other payables Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or lability that is a financial instrument 1s measured at fair value with changes in fair value recogrised in the
income statement The determination of fair value 1s based on discounted cash flows The key assumptions
take into consideration the probability of meeting each performance target and the discount rate

Where less than 100% of a subsidiary is acquired, and call and put opttons are granted over the remaining
nterest, a non-controlling interest is imtiatly recogrised in equity at far value, which s established based
on the value of the put option A call optionis recognised as a derwative financial nstrument, carried at fair
value The put option 1s recognised as a Liability wathin other payables, carned at the present value of the
put option exercise price, and a corresponding charge 1s included in merger and other reserves Any
subsequent remeasurement of the put option kiability 1s recognised within finance Income or cost

Subseqguent adjustments to the fair vatue of net assets acquired can only be made within 12 months of
the acquisition date, and only if fair values were determined provisionally at an earlier reporting date
These adjustments are accounted for from the date of acquisition
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Acquisitions of non-controlling interests are accounted for as transactions with owners and therefore no
goodwill 1s recognised as a result of such transactions Transaction costs incurred in connection with those
business combinations, such as legal fees, due diligence fees and other professional fees, are expensed

as incurred

Method 2 All business combinatrons that occurred between 1 January 2004 and 31 Decernber 2008

were accounted far using the purchase method in accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations (2004)
Goodwill on those combinattons represents the difference between the cost of the acquisition and the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired and did not include the value of the non-controlling interest
Transaction costs iIncurred in connection with those business combinations, such as legal fees, due
diigence fees and other professional fees, were included in the cost of acquisition

Method 3 For business combinations prior to 1 January 2004, goodwill 1s iIncluded at its deemed cost,
which represents the amount recorded under UK GAAP at that time less accumulated amortisation up to
31December 2003 The classification and accounting treatment of business combinations occurring prior
to 1 January 2004, the date of transition to IFRS, has not been reconsidered as permitted under IFRS 1

Other intangible assets
Intangible assets other than goodwill are those that are distinct and can be sold separately or which anse

from legal nghts

WithinITV there are two types of other intangibte assets those assets directly purchased by the Group
for day-to-day operational purposes (such as software licences and development) and intangible assets
identified as part of an acquisttion of a business

Intangible assets acquired directly by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation Those
separately identified iIntangible assets acquired as part of an acquisition or business combinatton are
shown at fair value at the date of acquisition less accumulated amortisation

The main intangibte assets the Group has valued are formats, brands, licences, contractual arrangements,
customer contracts and relationships and librares

Each class of mtangible asset’s valuation method on initial recognition, amortisation method and
estimated useful life 1s set out in the table below

Class of Intangible asset

valuation method

Amortisation method

Esvmated useful life

Formats and
brands

Applying aroyalty rate to the expected future
revenue over the Ufe of the brand

Strarght-line

8to 4 years

Customer
contracts and
relationships

Expected future cash flows from those contracts
and relationships existing at the date of acquisition
are estimated If applicable, a contributory charge
Is deducted for the use of other assets needed to
exploit the cash flow The net cash flow s then
discounted back to present value

Strarght-line or
reducing balance
as appropriate

up to 6 years for
customer contracts

5to 10 years
for customer
relationships

Contractual
arrangements

Expected future cash flows from those contracts
existing at the date of acquisition are estimated

If applicable, a contributory charge 1s deducted for
the use of other assets needed to exploit the cash
flow The net cash flow s then discounted back to
present value

Straight-line

up to 10 years
depending on the
contract terms

Licences

Start-up basis of expected future cash flows existing
at the date of acquisition If applicable, a contrnibutory
charge I1s deducted for the use of other assets
needed to exploit the cash flow The net cash flow

15 then discounted back to present value

Straight-tine

11to 17 years
depending on term
of licence

Libranes and Imtiatly at cost and subsequently at cost less sumofdigitsor  upto 20 years
other accumulated amortisation straight line as

appropriate
Software licences  Imitially at cost and subsequently at cost less Straight-line 110 Syears

and development

accumulated amortisation
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Determuning the farr value of intangible assets arising on acquisition requires judgement The Directors
make estimates regarding the timing and amount of future cash flows derived from exploiting the assets
being acquired The Directors then estimate an appropriate discount rate to apply to the forecast cash
flows Such estimates are based on current budgets and forecasts, extrapotated for an appropriate perniod
taking into account growth rates, operating costs and the expected useful Lives of assets Judgements

are also made regarding whether, and for how long, icences will be renewed, this drives our amortisation
policy for those assets

The Directors estimate the appropriate discount rate using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the assets or businesses being acquired

Amaortisation

Armortisation s charged to the ncome statement over the estimated useful bives of intangible assets
unless such lives are judged to be indefinite Indefinite Ufe assets, such as goodwill, are not amortised but
are tested for iImpairment at each year end

Impairment
Goodwill 1s not subject to amortisation and 1s tested annually for impairment and when circumstances
ndicate that the carrying value may be rmpaired

Other intangible assets are subject to amortisation and are reviewed for imparment whenever events
or changes In circumstances indicate that the amount carried in the statement of financial position is less
than its recoverable amount

Determining whether the carrying amount of intangible assets has any ndication of imparrment requires
Judgement Anyimpairment is recognised in the iIncome statement

Animpairment test i1s performed by assessing the recoverable amount of each asset, or for goodwill,
the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) related to the goodwill. Total assets (which
includes goodwill) are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(‘cash-generating unit’ or *CGU")

The recoverable amount i1s the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to selt and value in use The value
Inuse 1s based on the present value of the future cash flows expected to arise from the asset

The Group applies cautious assumptions for imparment testing Estimates are used in derving these cash
flows and the discount rate Such estimates reflect current market assessments of the risks specific to
the asset and the time value of money The estimation process is complex due to the imherent nisks and
uncertanties associated with long-term forecasting If different estimates of the projected future cash
flows or a different selection of an appropriate discount rate or long-term growth rate were made, these
changes could materially alter the projected value of the cash flows of the asset, and as a consequence
matenally different amounts would be reported tn the financial statements

Impairment losses in respect of goodwill are not reversed tn respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss 1s reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount Animpairment loss Is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation,

if no impairment loss had been recognised
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intangible assats
Intangible assets can be analysed as follows

Customer

formats contractsand  Contragtual Libranes Software
Goodwill andbrands relabonships arrangements Licences andother  licences and Total
£m £m £m £m £m Em  development £m

Cost
At 1 January 2014 3.467 179 352 10 P4 81 78 4,288
Additions 146 21 30 - - 16 11 224
Foreign exchange 14 1 3 - - - - 18
At 31 December 2014 3,627 201 385 10 121 97 89 4,530
Additions 102 273 23 - — 1 15 414
Foreign exchange 15 7 3 - - 1 - 26
At 31 December 2015 3,744 481 41 10 121 99 104 4,970
Amgrtisation
and imparment
At 1 January 2014 2,654 159 326 2 83 50 60 3,334
Charge for the year - 18 Py 3 7 7 1 67
At 31 December 2014 2,654 177 347 5 90 57 ral 3,401
Charge for the year - 27 17 2 4 8 9 67
Fareign exchange - 1 1 - - - - 2
At 31 December 2015 2,654 205 365 7 94 65 80 3470
Net book value
At 31 December 2015 1,090 276 46 3 27 34 24 1,500
At 31 December 2014 §73 24 38 5 31 40 18 1129

All intangible asset additions in the year, excluding software, are due to the acquisition of four production
companies, as detailed in note 3 4 (2014 three production companies acquired)

Goodwill impairment tests

The carrying amount of Goodwill for each CGU 1s represented as follows
2015 2014
£m Em
Broadcast & Onbine 342 342
SDN 76 76
ITV Studios 672 555
1,090 973

There has been no impairment charge for any CGU during the year (2014 £rul)

When assessing impairment, the recoverable amount of each CGU 1s based on value in use calculations
These calculations require the use of estimates, specifically pre-tax cash flow projections, long-term
growth rates, and a pre-tax market discount rate

Cash flow projections are based on the Group's current five year plan Beyond the five year plan these
projections are extrapolated using an estimated long-term growth rate of 2% (2014 2%) The growthrate
used 1s consistent with the long-term average growth rates for both the industry and the country in which
they are located and 1s appropriate because these are long-term businesses

The discount rate has been revised for each CGU ta reflect the tatest market assumptions for the risk-free
rate, the equity risk premium and the net cost of debt There is currently no reasonably possible change in
discount rate that would reduce the headroom in any CGU to zero
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Broadcast & Online

The goodwill in this CGU arose as a resutt of the acquisition of broadcasting businesses since 1999, the
largest of which was the merger of Cartton and Granada in 2004 to form ITV ple, which was treated as
an acquisition of Carlton for accounting purposes

The main assumptions on which the forecast cash flow projections for this CGU are based include the
share of the television advertising market, share of commercial impacts, programme and other costs,
and the pre-tax market discount rate

The key assumption In assessing the recoverable amount of Broadcast & Online goodwillis the size of

the television advertising market In forming its assumptions about the television advertising market,

the Group has used a combination of long-term trends, ndustry forecasts and m-house estimates, which
place greater emphasis onrecent experience No impairment was identified Also as part of the
impairment review, a sensitivity of up to -15% was applied to 2016, again with no impairment identified
The Directors believe that currently no reasonably possible change in these assumptions would reduce the
headroom in this CGU to zero

A pre-tax market discount rate of 97% (2014 10 6%) has been used In discounting the projected cash flows !

SDN

Goodwill was recognised when the Group acquired SDN (the licence operator for DTT Multiplex A) in 2005
it represented the wider strategic benefits of the acquisition specific to the Group, principally the enhanced
ability to promaote Freeview as a platform, business relationships with the channets which are on Multiplex
A and additional capacity availabte from 20710

The man assumptions on which the forecast cash flows are based are income to be earned from
medium-term contracts, the market price of available multiplex video streams in the pernod up to

and beyond digital switchover, and the pre-tax market discount rate These assumptions have been
determined by using a combination of current contract terms, recent market transactions and in-house
estimates of video stream availability and pricing No impairment was identified

As part of the impairment review sensitivity was applied to the main assumptions with no impairment
identified (2016 -5% growth, 2017 -10% growth) The Directors believe that currently no reasonably
possible change in the income and availability assumptions would reduce the headroom in this CGU to zero

A pre-tax market discount rate 0f 11 5% (2014 12 6%) has been used in discounting the projected cash flows

ITV Studios

The gocdwill for ITV Studios has arisen as a result of the acquisition of production businesses since 1999
Significant balances were created from the acquisition by Granada of United News and Media's production
businesses in 2000 and the merger of Granada and Carlton 1n 2004 to form ITV plc ITV Studios goodwill
also includes all of the goodwill ansing from recent acquisitions in 2012 to 2015, with the largest acquisition
addition to goodwill being Leftfield in 2014, followed by Talpa and Twofour in 2015

The key assumptions on which the forecast cash flows were based include revenue (including international
revenue and the ITV Studios share of ITV output, growth in cammissions and hours produced), margin
growth and the pre-tax market discount rate These assumptions have been determined by usinga
combination of extrapolation of historical trends within the business, industry estimates and in-house
estimates of growth ratesin all markets Noimpairment was identifled

As part of the iImpairment review sensitivity was applied to the main assumptions with no impairment
identified (2016 -5% growth, 2017 -10% growth) The Directors believe that currently no reasonably
possible change in the Income and availability assumptions would reduce the headroom in this CGU to zero

A pre-tax market discount rate of 101% (2014 117%) has been used in discounting the projected cash flaws

Following the acquisittons made by ITV Studios in 2015, the Directors considered how assets and resources
are shared across the Studios dwision and the level of integration within the management structure for
the purposes of reporting and strategic decision-making They concluded that a single ITV Studios CGU
continues to remain appropriate
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3.4 Keeping it The following section outlines what the Group has acquired in the year ;

Acquisitions simple All of the deals are structured so that a large part of the payment made to the
sellers 1s determined based on future performance (‘consideration’) This 1s done
s0 that the Group can both align incentives for growth, while reducing risk so that
total consideration reflects actual performance, not expected

IFRS accounting standards require seme of this consideration to be included in

the purchase price used in determining goodwill (‘contingent consideration’)
Examples of contingent consideration include top-up payments and recoupable
performance adjustments Any remaining constderation s required to be recognised
as a lability or expense outside of acquisition accounting (put option habilities and
employment-linked contingent payments known as 'earnout’ payments)

The Group considers the income statement impact of ali consideration to be
capital in nature and are therefore excluded from adjusted profit Therefore, for
each acquisition below, the distinction between the types of consideration has
been explamned in detail

Acquisitions

During the penod, the Group completed four acquisitions, atl of which have been included in the results

of the ITV Studios operating segment Each of the businesses fit with the strategy of growing the Group's
content business and to wark with other parts of the [TV Studics segment to exploit that content globally
The following section provides a summary of the materal acquisitions

TalpaMediaB.V.

On 30 Apnil 2015 the Group acquired 100% controlling interests in Talpa Media BV and its subsidiaries
Talpa Media 15 the entertamnment show producer behund The Voice, The Voice Kids, | Love My Country,
Dating In The Dark and Dance Dance Dance The Group consolidates 100% of the earmings of the business

Key terms

Cash consideration of £362 million (€500 milkon} was paid at acquisition and the maximum total
consideration for 100% of the business, including the initial payment, 1s £786 million (€1,100 miltion,
undiscounted)

The deal structure allows for a further £434 mitlion (€600 million) payable after two, five and eight years,
on the achieverment of stretching perfarmance targets for the business in the years following acquisition
For these amounts to be payable in the future, the deal requires the seller to remain with the business
during the earnout periad Further, if the seller leaves within the first two years following acquisition,

a significant portion of the imitial consideration would be refunded to TV

Structuring the deal in this way helped manage risks in terms of initial capital outtay and created a jomnt

incentive between [TV and the seller to grow the business, however IFRS requires any payment that links a

setler to remaining in the business as an employment cost The Group considers these payments as capital \
in nature, and therefore expenses inrelation to these payments are excluded from adjusted profitsasan

exceptional item

Acquisition accounting

Intangibles, being the value placed on formats, brands, customer contracts, non-compete arrangements
and libranies, of £276 millicon (€382 million) were identified and goodwill was valued at £41 mullion .
(€57 mithon) Goodwill represents the vatue placed on the opportunity to dversify and grow the content !
and formats produced by the Group The goodwill arising on acquisition 1s not expected to be deductible
for tax purposes Other fair value adjustments have been made to the opening balance sheet, though
none of them are individually significant
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Twofour Group

On 24 June 2015 the Group acquired Boom Supervisory Limited, the holding company of Twofour Group
Twofour Group owns 51% of Mamstreet Pictures Twofour Group 1s an independent production business
with a range of scripted and unscripted programmes including The Jump, Educating Series (Educating
Essex, Educating Yorkshire}, Hotel Inspector, Taking New York and Ibiza Weekender

Key terms

The Group purchased the Twofour Group for a cash consideration of £55 million, subsequently the sellers
subscribed to 25% of the share capital of the acquinng company A put and catl option has been granted
over this 25% in Twofour Group, these options both being exercisable over the next three to five years
The transaction has been accounted for on an anticipated acquisition basis and a non-controlling interest
has not been recogruised The maximum total consideration for 100% of the business, including the imtial
payment, s £280 mitlion (undiscounted) These payments are dependent on future performance of the
business and linked to ongong employment The Group considers these payments as capital in nature,
and therefore expenses in relation to these payments are excluded from adjusted profits as an
exceptional item

Prowvisional acquisition accounting

Intangtbles, being the value placed on formats, brands, customer contracts, non-compete arrangements
and libranies, of £18 milllon were identified and goodwill was valued at £50 milion Goodwill represents
the value placed on the opportunity to diversify and grow the content and formats The Group 15 currently
in the process of cormpleting the valuations for the net assets acquired with the businesses The Group
expects to finalise the valuations of acquired assets and liabilittes in the first half of 2016

Goodwill represents the value placed on the opportunity to diversify and grow the content and formats
produced by the Group The goodwill arising on acquisition is not expected to be deductible for tax
purposes Other fair vatue adjustments have been made to the opening balance sheet, though none

of them are individually significant

Other 2015 acquisitions

The Group made an imtial payment of £15 million for two smaller acquisitions, Cats on the Roof Media Ltd
and Mammoth Screen Ltd, with a view that these acquisitions will strengthen and complement ITV's
existing position as a producer for major television networks in the UK The maximum additional
consideration that the Group could pay 15 £66 million (undiscounted)

Goodwill, which represents the value placed on the opportunity to grow the content produced by the
Group, has been provisionally valued at £11 million The goodwill arsing on these acquisitions are not
expected to be deductible for tax purposes

Acquisitions in 20174

Leftfield Entertainment was acquired for an initial consideration (net of cash acquired) of £214 milion
($360 million) for 80% of the membership interests in May 2014 The remaining 20% equity mterest
was acquired in December 2015 In consideration for the acquisition of the minority interest the Group
assurmed certam obligations of the seller, most notably earnout arrangements for its subsidianes

No additional cash consideration was payable to the seller as a result of the purchase of the remaining
minority interest

The total maximum addittonal consideration payable by ITV for the acquisition of 100% of the membership
interest of Leftfield Entertanment, including the additional assumed earnout obligations, 1s £65 million
{$100 million) and 1s dependent on future performance and 1s inked to ongoing employment

Intangble assets of £65 million ($109 million) were identified in 2014, being the value placed on brands,
customer contracts, non-compete arrangements and libraries

The Group also acquired 51% of the membership interest in DiGa Vision, 2 US-based producer and 100% of
the controlling nterest in United Productions, a company based in Denmark The total imitial consideration
(net of cash acquired) was £5 rmullion and the maximum additional amount payable is £32 million

{undiscounted) The final payout 1s dependent on future performance and is linked to ongoing employment
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Intangibles of £2 miliion were identified, Largely reflecting the value placed on brands, customer contracts
and contractual arrangements

Effect of acquisition
The acquisitions noted above had the following impact on the Group assets and Liabilities

Recognised values on acquisition

£m Talpa Media Twofour Other 2015 Total 2014 Total

Consideration transferred:

Initial consideration (net of cash acquired) (Note A) 347 49 10 406 214

Less consideration classified as prepad

employment lnked consideration (Note B) (109) - - (109) (29)
Total consideration 238 439 10 297 185

Fair value of net assets acquired

Property, plant and equipment 2 4 - 6 5

Intangible assets 276 18 3 297 67

Deferred tax Liabilities {66) {5) - {71) -

Trade and other receivables 78 15 8 101 32

Trade and other payables (93) (33) (12) (138) (45)
Fair value of net assets 197 (U] (1) 195 59

Non-controlling interest measured

at fair value {Note () - - - - 20

Goodw:ill 41 50 L 102 146

Otherinformation

Present value of the liabiity on options - - - - 20

Present value at acquisition of the earnout

payment {(Note D) 186 10 27 223 4

Contributions to the Group's performance
From date of acquisition

Revenue N 42 22 185 62
EBITA before exceptionals (Note E) 25 2 2 29 14
Proforma — January to December

Revenue 193 80 33 306 88
EBITA before exceptionals (Note F). 45 3 1 49 20

Note A Consideration for all acquisitions 1s net of cash acquired and estimated debt and working capitat settlements Cash acquired
during the year comprises Talpa £22 million, Twofour £6 millon and Other £5 mitlion

Note B Total consideration is net of ernployment Linked consideration of £109 rmillion IFRS 3 (R) requires the employment Linked
consideration to be treated as remuneration This arnount 1s repayable to the Group should the seller terrmunate the service agreement
within the first two years followtng completion The remaining balance is shown wathun trade and other recevables and 1s expensed over
two years

Note C Non-controlling interest anses where the Group acquires less than 100% of the equity interest ina business but obtains control
Note D This represents the present value of earnouts as at acquisition

Note E Adjusting for exceptional costs relating to employment inked consideration reduces the contrbution to the Group's profit
after tax for the period from the date of acquisition to a loss of £35 rllion for Talpa, a profit of £1 million for Twofour and Enilon

other acquisitions

Note F Adjusting for exceptional costs relating to employment lnked consideration reduces the contnibution to the Group's profit
after tax on a full year proforma basis to a loss of £38 mullion for Talpa, a profit of £1 mullion for Twofour and a loss of £1rmillon on
other acquisitions
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Investments

3.6
Provisions

Keepingit The Group holds non-controtling interests in a number of different entities
simple Accounting for these iInvestments, and the Group’s share of any profits and losses,
depends on the level of controt or influence the Group 15 granted via Its interest
The three principal types of non-consolidated investments are joint arrangements
(joint ventures or jont operations), assoclates and available for sale Investments

Ajoint venture 1s an investment where the Group has joint control, with one or
more third parties Anassccate Is an entity over which the Group has sigmificant
influence (1e power to participate in the nvestee’s financial and operating
decisions) Any other investment 1s an available for sale mvestment

L. J

Accounting policies

For joint ventures and associates the Group applies equity accounting Under this method, it recogruses the
nvestment in the entity at cost and subsequently adjusts this for its share of profits or losses, which are
recogrised in the Income statement within non-operating items and included in adjusted profit Avallable
for sale Investments are held at fair value unless the Investrnent is a start-up business, inwhich case it s
valued at cost and assessed forimparment

The carrying value of all investments are shown as non-current assets on the Statement of Financiat
Position The £16 million increase in the year compnses £14 million mrelation to the acquisition of
associates and avallable for sale investments and £2 mullion of funding to exasting joint ventures

Please refer to page 170 for the list of prinapal investments held at 31 December 2015

Keeping it A provision is recognised by the Group where an obligation exists relating to
simple events in the past and it 1s probable that cash will be paid to settle it

A provision s made where the Group 1s not certain how much cash will be
required to settle a Llability, so an estimate 1s required The mamn estimates relate
to the cost of holding properties that are no longer in use by the Group, the
tikelihood of settling legal claims and contracts the Group has entered mto that
are now unprofitable

Accounting policies

A provision is recogrised in the statement of financial position when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation arising from past events, it 1s probable cash will be paid to settle it and the amount
can be estimated reliably Prowisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows by a
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks speafic to the
Liabiity The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a financing cost in the mcome statement The value
of the provision 1s determined based on assumptions and estimates in relation to the amount and timing
of actual cash flows which are dependent on future events
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132

Provisions
The movements in provisions duning the year are as follows

Contract Property  Legatand Qther

provisions provisions. Provislons Total

£€m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2015 3 3 15 21
Additions 5 - 10 15
Utibsed {2) - - {2)
Released - )] - ]
At 31 December 2015 6 2 25 33

Provisions of £28 mullion are classified as current habilities (2014 £17 million) Unwind of the discount 1s £nul
In 2015 and 2014

Contract provisions COMPprise onerous commitments on transmission infrastructure that are expected to
be utilised over the remaining contract period and onerous technology services contracts which will not
be utilised

Legal and Other provisions totalling £25 mullion (2014 £15 million) primarily relate to potental babilities
that may arise as a result of Boxclever having been placed into administrative recevership, most of which
relate to pension arrangerments In 2011 the Determinations Panel of the Penstons Regulator determined
that Financial Support Directions (FSDs) should be 1ssued against certain Group companies, which woutd
require the Group to put in place financial support for the Boxclever Scherme The Group 1s challenging this
in the Upper Tribunal The reference process 1s ongoing and aside from procedural issues there were no
substantive case developments in the period The Directors have obtaned leading counsel's opinion and
extensive legal advice in connection with the preceedings and continue to believe that the provision held
Is appropriate The increase in provisions duning the year was primanly due to antiapated costs of settling
other legal matters
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37
Pensions

Keepingit In this note we explan the accounting policies governing the Group's pension
simple scheme, followed by analysis of the components of the net defined benefit
pension deficit, including assumptions made, and where the related movements
have been recognised in the financial statements In addition, we have placed text
boxes to explain some of the technical terms used in the disclosure

What are the Group’s pension schemes?

There are two types of pension schemes A ‘Defined Contribution’ scheme that
15 open to ITV employees, and a number of ‘Defined Benefit’ schemes that have
been closed to new members since 2006

What is a Defined Contribution scheme?

The ‘Defined Contribution’ scheme 1s where the Group makes fixed payments into
a separate fund on behalf of those employees that have elected to participate

in saving for thewr retirement TV has no further obligation to the participating
employee and the rnisks and rewards associated with this type of scheme are
assumed by the members rather than the Group Itis the members’ responsibility
to make Investment decisions relating to their retirement benefits

What is a Defined Benefit scheme?

In a ‘Defined Benefit’ scheme, members receve cash payments during retirement,
the value of which 1s dependent on factors such as salary and length of service
The Group manages the necessary investment, mortality and inflation nsks in
order to meet these obligations In the event of poor returns the Group needs

to address this through a combinatton of increased levels of contnibution or by
making adjustrments to the scheme Schernes can be funded, where regular

cash contributions are made by the employer into a fund which is invested, or
unfunded, where no regular money or assets are required to be put aside to cover
future payments

The Group makes contributions to the scheme, a separate trustee-administered
fund that 1s not consolidated in these financial statements, but is reflected on the
defined benefit pension deficit Line on the consolidated statement of financal
position It 1s the responsibility of the Trustee to manage and invest the assets

of the Scherne and its funding position The Trustee, appointed according to the
terms of the Scheme’s documentation, is required to act in the best interest of
the members and 1s responsible for managing and investing the assets of the
scheme and 1ts funding position

Accounting policies

Defined contribution scheme

Obligations under the Group's defined contribution schemes are recognised as an operating cost in the
income statement as incurred For 2015, total contributions expensed were £16 million (2014 £14 million)

Defined benefit scheme

The Group’'s obligation in respect of the Defined Benefit Scheme (the ‘Scheme’) 1s calculated by estimating
the amount of future retirement benefit that eligible employees ‘members’} have earned in return for
therr services That benefit payable in the future 1s discounted to today's value and then the fair value of
scheme assets contributed by the Group 1s deducted to measure the net pension deficit

The liabilities of the Scheme are measured by discounting the best estimate of future cash flows to be
paid using the ‘projected unit’ method This method 1s an accrued benefits valuation method that makes
altowance for projected earnings of members in the future up to retirement
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These calculations are complex and are performed by a qualified actuary There are many Judgements and
estimates necessary to calculate the Group’s estimated liabilities, the main assumptions are set out laterin
this section Movements in assumptions duning the year are called ‘actuarial gains and losses' and these are
recognised in the period in which they anse through the statement of comprehensive income

The latest tnennial vatuation of the Scheme was undertaken as at 1 January 2014 by an independent
actuary appointed by the Trustee of the Scheme and agreed in early 2016 The next triennial valuation will
be as at 1 January 2017 and 1s expected to be agreed in 2018 This will drive subsequent contribution rates

Anunfunded scheme in relation to previous Directors is accounted for under IAS 19 and the Group 1s
responsible for meeting the pension obligations as they fall due It 1s securitised by assets held outside of
the ITV Pension Scheme in the form of gilts and included within cash and cash equivalents (see note 47)

The defined benefit pension deficit
The net pension deficit at 31 December 2015 was £176 mitlion (2014 £346 milbion)

The net assets and liabilities of the Scheme are recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and shown within non-current liabiities The totals recognised i the current and previous
years are

2015 2014

£m £m

Total defined benefit scheme obligations (3.446) {3,687)
Total defined benefit scheme assets 3,270 3,341
Net pension deficit {176) {346)

The remaining sections provide further detail of the value of the Scheme's assets and Labilities, how these
are accounted for and the impact on the income statement

Defined benefit scheme obligations

Keepingit What cause movements in the defined benefit pension obligations?
simple The areas that impact the defined benefit obligation (the pension scheme
Liabilities) position at the year end are as follows

+ Current service cost - the cost to the Group of the future benefits earned
by members that relates to the members’ service i the current year This 15
charged to operating costs in the income statement
Interest cost — the pension obhigations payable in the future are discounted
to the present value at year end A discount factor is used to determine the
current value today of the future cost The interest cost s the unwinding of
one year's movement in the present value of the obligation 1t 1s broadly
determined by muttiplying the discount rate at the beginning of the period by
the updated present value of the obligation during the period The discount
rate 15 a key assumption explamed later in this section This interest cost 1s
recogrised through net financing costs in the mcome statement (see note 4 4)
Actuarial gains or losses - there are broadly two causes of actuarial
movements ‘Expertence’ adjustments, which arnse when comparing
assumptions made when estimating the labilities and what has actually
accurred, and adjustments resulting from changes in actuarial assumptions
e g movements in corporate bond yields Key assumptions are explamed in
detail later in this section Actuanal gains or losses are recogrused through
other comprehensive Income
+ Benefits paid - any cash benefits paid out by the Scheme will redtice

the obligation
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The movement in the

present value of the Group's defined benefit obligation 1s analysed below

2015 20%

£Em £m

Defined benefit obligation at 1 January 3,687 3,315
Current service ¢ost 8 7
Interest cost 126 144
Actuanal (gain) / loss (217) 366
Benefits pad (158) (145)
Defined benefit obligation at 31 December 3,446 3,687

Of the above total defined benefit obligation at 31 December 2015, £46 million relates to unfunded
schemes (2014 £48 million) See note 41 for details

Assumptions used to estimate the Scheme obligations

-

Keeping it
simple

What are the main assumptions used to estimate the Scheme obligations?
The main assumptions are

« future salary levels

+ future pensionable salary levels

+ an estimate of iIncreases in pension payments

+ the life expectancy of members

« the effect of inflation on all these factors

» the discount rate used to estimate the present day fair value of these obligations

How do we determine the appropriate assumptions?
The Group takes independent actuarat advice relating to the approprnateness
of the assumptions used

IFRS requires that we estimate a discount rate by reference to high quality
fixed income investments in the UK that match the estimated term of the
pension obligations

The inflation assumption has been set by looking at the difference between the
yields an fixed and index-linked Government bonds The inflation assumption s
used as a basis for the remaining financial assumptions, except where caps have
beenimplemented

The discount rate has therefore been obtained using the yields available on AA
rated corporate bonds which match projected cash flows The Group's estimate
of the weighted average term of the hiabidities 15 15 years (2014 15 years)

The principal assumptions used in the Scheme's valuations at the year end were

2015 2014
Discount rate for

Past service liabilities 380% 350%

Future service liabilities 400% 370%
inflation assumption for

Past service habilities 300% 300%

Future service liabilities 310% 305%
Rate of pensionable salary increases D 90% 090%
Rate of increase in pension payment (LPI' 5% pension Increases) 290% 290%
Rate of increase to deferred pensions (CPI) 200% 2 00%

1 bmited Pnce Index
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The table below reflects published mortality investigation data in conjunction with the results of
mvestigations into the mortality experience of Scheme members The assumed life expectations on
retirement are

015 2015 04 20%
Retiring today at age 60 65 60 65
Mates 280 232 279 231
Females 306 257 305 256
Retiring in 20 years at age 60 65 60 65
Males 300 250 299 249
Females 326 276 325 275

Keeping it Which assumptions have the biggest impact on estimating the Scheme

simple liabilities?

It 15 important to note that comparatively small changes in the assumptions
used may have a significant effect on the consolidated income statement and
statement of financial position This ‘sensitivity’ to change 15 analysed below to
demonstrate how small changes in assumptions can have a large impact on the
estimation of the Scheme’s Liabilities

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the defined benefit obligation are

set out betow

Assumption Change inassumption Impact on defined benefit cbligation

Discount rate Increase/decrease by 01% Decrease/increase by £50 milbon / £55 million
Rate of inflation Increase/decrease by 01% Increase/decrease by £15 mullion / £15 mullion
(Retail Price Index)

Rate of inflation Increase/decrease by 01% Increase/decrease by £10 million/ £10 million
(Consumer Price Index)

Life expectations Increase by one year Increase by £90 million

The analysis above considers the impact of the single change in the assumption while keeping the other
assumptions unchanged, except for inflation The inflation sensitivities allow for consequential changes
to all pension increases linked to the relevant index The sensitivity analyses have been determined

by extrapolating the impact on the defined benefit obligation at the year end with changes in key
assumptions that might reasonably occur

In practice, changes in one assumption may be accompanied by offsetting changes in another assumption
{although this i1s not always the case) Changes in the assumptions may occur at the same time as changes
in the market value of Scheme assets, which may or may not offset the changes in assumptions

The sensitivity analysis for the impact of life expectations on the defined benefit lability does not include
the potential offsetting benefit of the longevity swap classified as a Scheme asset It 15 estimated thata
£75 milbion benefit would anise on the value of the longevity swap from a one year increase in the market-
based assumption of mortality (Please refer to the ‘Keeping it smple’ box in the following section for
further information on the longewvity swap)
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Total defined benefit scheme assets

Keeping it The Scheme holds assets across a number of different classes which are
simple managed by the Trustee, who consults with the Group on changes to its
investment policy

What are the pension Scheme assats?

At 31 December 2015 the Scheme’s assets were invested in a diversified portfolio
that consisted pnimanily of equity and debt secunties The tables below set out
the major categories of assets

Financat instruments are in place in order to provide protection agamst changes
in market factors (interest rates and inflation) which could act to increase the net
pension defict These financial nstruments are classified as Scheme assets

One such instrument 1s the longevity swap which the Scheme transacted in 2011
to obtain protection against the effect of increases in the Life expectation of the
majority of pensioner members at that date Under the swap, the Trustee agreed
to make pre-determined payments in return for payments to meet the specified
pension obligations as they falt due, rrespective of how long the members and
their dependants live The difference m the present values of these two streams
of payments s reflected in the Scheme assets The swap had a nil valuation at
inception and, using market-based assumptions, s subsequently adjusted for
changes in the market bfe expectancy and market discount rates

How do we measure the pension Scheme assets?
Defined benefit scheme assets are measured at their fair value and can change
due to the following

+ Interest income on scheme assets — this 1s determined by muttiplying the far
value of the Scheme assets by the discount rate, both taken as of the beginning
of the year This 1s recognised through net financng costs in the income
statement

« Return on assets anse from differences between the actual return and interest
income an Scheme assets and are recogrised through other comprehensive
ncome

+ Employer's contributions are paid into the Scheme to be managed and invested

+ Benefits and adminstrative expenses paid out by the Schemes will lower the
fair value of the Scheme's assets

The movement in the fair value of the defined benefit scheme’s assets 1s analysed below

2015 2014
£m £Em

Fair value of Scheme assets at 1 January 3,3: 2,870
Interest iIncome on Scheme assets 116 128
{Lass) / return on assets, excluding interest iIncome (126) 390
Employer contributions 102 103
Benefits paid {158) (145)
Admunistrative eéxpenses paid {5) (5)
Fair value of Scheme assets at 31 December 3,270 3.341

The actual return on the Scherne’s assets, being the sum of the interest ncome on Scheme assets and
return on Scheme assets, for the year ended 31 December 2015 was a decrease of £10 million
(2014 increase of £518 millien)
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How are the Scheme's assets invested?

At 31 0ecember 2015 the Scheme's assets were invested in a diversified portfolio that consisted primarily
of equity and debt secunities The fair value of the Scheme's assets are shown in the following table by

major category
Market value Market value
2015 201
£m £m
Quoted equities 651 654
Quoted bonds* 2,219 2,329
Total quoted assets 2,870 2983
Property 55 51
Infrastructure 68 77
Hedge funds/alternatives 196 183
Insurance policies 40 42
Cash and cash equivalents 86 50
Other 20 22
Longevity swap fair value {65) (67)
Total unquoted assets 400 358
Total Scheme assets 3,270 3,341

* Quoted bonds mclude interest rate andinflation swaps

Inctuded in the above are overseas assets of £1,198 million (2014 £1,218 million), comprised of equities

of £564 mitlion (2014 £569 million) and bonds of £634 million (2014 £649 millicn)

When selecting the mix of assets to hold, and considenng therr related risks and returns, the Trustee will
weigh up the variability of returns against the target long-term rate of return on the overall portfolio

Keeping it
simple

What was the impact of movements on the Scheme's assets and liabilities?
The sections above describe how the Scheme abligations and assets are
comprised and measured The following section sets cut the impact of various
movements and expenses on the Scheme on the Group's financial statement

Amounts recognised through the income statement
Amounts recognised through the income statement are as follows

2015 2014
Em £m
Amount charged to operating costs
Current service cost (8) (7)
Scheme administration expenses {5) {5
{13) (2
Amount charged to net financing costs
Net interest on defined benefit obligation {10) (18}
Total charged in the consolidated income staterment (23) (28)
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Amounts recogmised through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
The amounts recogmised through the consolidated statement of camprehensive incomelf{cost) are

s 2014
£m £m
Remeasurement gains and (losses)
{Loss) / Return on scherme assets excluding interest income (126} 390
Actuanal gains / {losses) on habilities ansing from change in
- inflation expertence 48 -
- financial assumptions 169 {402)
- updated valuation data - 36
217 (366}
Total recognmised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income 91 24

The £277 millon actuanal gamn on the Scheme's liabilities was principally due to anincrease in bond yields
over the year, which has resulted in a decrease in the liabilities The £126 mullion loss on the Scheme's
assets primarily results from decreases in the market values of gilts and swaps, which has led to assets
underperforming expectations

Addressing the net pension deficit

Keepingit The Group works closely with the Trustee to agree appropnate levels of funding
simple for the Scheme This involves agreeing a Schedule of Contributions at each
trienmal valuation, which specifies the contnibution rates for the employer and
scheme members and the date these contributions are due Arecovery plan
setting out the steps that will be taken to address a funding shortfalt is also agreed

In the event that the Group's defined benefit scheme 1s In a net lability position,
the Directors must take steps to manage the size of the deficit Apart from the
funding agreements mentioned above, this could involve pledging addtional
assets to the Scheme, as was the case in the SDN and London Television Centre
(LTVC) pension funding partnerships {exptained below)

The levels of ongoing contnbutions to the Scheme are based on the current service costs (as assessed by
the Scheme Trustee) and the expected future cash flows of the Scheme Normal employer contributions
in 2016 for current service are expected to be in the region of £12 million 2015 £11 million) and deficit
funding contnbutions in 2016 are expected to be £66 million (2015 £76 million), assuming current
contribution rates continue as agreed with the Trustee

Under the SDN pension partrership, set up in 2010, the Group has agreed to make payments of £11 million
for 12 years from 2011 The LTVC partnership, established in March 2014, commits the Group to an annual
payrnent of £2 million in 2016, increasing by 5% per annum until 2038

IFRIC 14 clanfies how the asset ceiling should be applied, in particular, how local minimum funding rules
work The Group has determined that it has an unconditional nght to a refund of surplus assets if the
Schemes are run of f until the last member dies, on which basis IFRIC 14 does not cause any change in the
balance sheet disclosures before tax
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41
Net cash/
{debt)

In this section

This section outlines how the Group manages its capital structure and
related financing costs, including its balance sheet Liquidity and access to
capital markets

The Directors determine the appropnate capital structure of ITV, specifically,
how much is raised from shareholders (equity) and how much is borrowed
from financial institutions (debt) in order to finance the Group's activities
both now and in the future. Maintaming capital discipline and batance sheet
efficiency remains important to the Group, as seen through the issuance of

a new Eurobond dunng the year Any potential courses of action will take
into account the Group's liquidity needs, flexibility to invest in the business,
pension deficit initiatives and impact on credit ratings.

The Directors consider the Group's capital structure and dividend policy at
least twice a year ahead of announcing results and do so in the context of its
ability to continue as a going concern, to execute the strategy and to invest
in opportunities to grow the business and enhance shareholder value

A Tax and Treasury committee acting under delegated authority from the
Board, approves certain financial transactions and monitors compliance with
the Group’s tax and treasury policies.

Keeping it
simple

Net cash / (debt) 1s the Group’s key measure used to evaluate totat cash resources
net of the current outstanding debt

Adjusted net debt I1s also monitored by the Group and more ctasely reflects how
credit agencies see the Group's gearing To arrive at the adjusted net debt amount,
we add our total undiscounted expected contingent payments on acguisitions,
our IAS 19 pension defiat and our undiscounted operating lease commitments

A full analysis and discussion of adjusted net debt s Included in the Financial and
Performance Review

The tables betow anatyse movements in the components of net cash dunng the year

Nat cash flow Currency and
1 January and non-cash 310ecember
2015 acquisitions maverments 2015
£m £m £m £im

Cash

234 3 1 238

Cash equivalents

63 ®) ) 56

Total cash and cash equivalents 297 (3) - 294

Loans and facilities due within one year {78) 73

(5)

Finance leases due within gne year (7} 7 6) (6)

Loans and facibties due after one year {161) (433) (4) (598)

Finance leases due after ane year (10} - 6 {&)

Total debt

(256) (353) @) (613)

Net cash / (debt)

41 (356) {4) {319)

140 ITV plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015




P Financial Statements

Net cash flow Currency and

1 January and non-cash I1December
2014 acquisitions movements 2014
£m £m £m £m
Cash 438 (199) {5) 234
Cash equivalents 80 (17) - 63
Total cash and cash equivalents 518 (216) (5) 297
Loans and facilities due within one year (41) 47 {78) (78)
Finance leases due within one year (21) pyl (7) (7)
Loans and faciities due after one year (301) 62 78 (161
Finance leases due after one year (17} — 7 (10)
Total debt {380) 124 - {256)
Currency component of swaps held against euro
denominated bonds 26 {26) - -
Net cash 164 (118) (5) 41
Cash and cash equivalents

Included within cash equwvalents 1s £10 million (2014 £16 million), the use of which is restricted to
meeting finance lease commitments under programmie sale and leasebacks (see note 4 2), and gilts of
£38 million (2074 £39 million) in respect of which a charging deed was executed on the unfunded pension

commitments of four former Granada executives Legal action has commenced to try and remove
the charge

Loans and facilities due within one year
in October 2015 the unsecured £78 milion Eurobond matured, resutting in a net payment by the Group
of £76 millon, after settlement of the Group’s related outstanding interest rate swaps

At various peniods during the year the Group drew down on the Revolving Credit Facility (RCF') to meet
short-term funding requirernents All short-term drawings were repaid by the end of the year The
maximurm draw down of the RCF duning the year was €500 million (£362 milbon) in April to fund the

acquisition of Talpa Media The maximum draw down on the RCF during 2014 was £321 mithion to fund
the 2014 acquisitions

Loans and loan notes due after one year

In September 2015 the Group 1ssued a seven year €600 million Eurobond at a fixed coupon of 2125% which
will mature in Septernber 2022 The bond refinanced the 12 month bridge loan facility of €500 million that
was used to repay the RCF, which initially funded the purchase of Talpa Media in April

The Group also has an unsecured £161 million Eurobond which matures in January 2017 and has a coupon
of 6125%
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4.2
Borrowings
and finance
leases

Keepingit The Group borrows maney from financial institutions i the form of bonds, bank
simple facibities and other financial instruments The interest payable on these
instruments 1s shown in the net financing costs note nnote 4 4

There are Board-approved policies in place to manage the Group’s financial risks
Macroeconomic market risks, which impact currency transactions and interest
rates, are discussed innote 4 3 Credit and Uiguidity risks are discussed below

» Credit nsk the nisk of financial loss to the Group If a customer or caunterparty
fails to meet its contractual obligations and

- Liquidity nsk the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due

The Group 1s required to disclose the fair value of its debt nstruments The far
value is the amount the Group would pay a third party to transfer the Liability Itis
calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date This calculation
of fair value 1s consistent with instruments valued under level 2innote 4 5

Accounting policies

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised imitially at far value less directly attnibutable transaction costs, with subsequent
measurement at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method Under the amortised cost
method the difference between the amount iInitially recognised and the redemption value 1s recorded in
the income statement over the period of the borrowing on an effective nterest basis

Finance leases

Historically, ITV has entered into sale and leaseback agreements in relation to certain programme titles
Related outstanding sale and leaseback obligations, which comprise the pnncipal and accrued interest,
are included within borrowings The finance related element of the agreement is charged te the income
statement over the term of the lease on an effective interest basis Sale and leaseback obligations are
secured aganst an equivalent cash balance held within cash and cash equivalents

Managing credit and liquidity risk

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure ta credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of derivative financiat
assets (see note 4 3), trade recevables (see note 314), and cash and cash equivalents (note 4 7)

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s expasure to credit nskis mnfluenced mamnly by the indwidual characteristics of each customer
The majonty of trade receivables relate to artime sales contracts with advertising agencies and advertisers
Credit insurance has been taken out aganst these companies 1o minimise the impact on the Group i the
event of a possible default

Cash

The Group operates investment gurdelines with respect to surplus cash that emphasise preservation of
capital The guidelines set out procedures and lirruts on counterparty nsk and matunity profile of cash
placed Counterparty limits for cash deposits are largely based upon leng-term ratings published by the
major credit rating agencies and percewved state support Deposits longer than 12 months require the
approval of the Board
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Borrowings
ITV s rated as investment grade by Moody's and S&P [TV’s credit ratings, the cost of credit default swap
hedging and the absolute level of interest rates are key determinants in the cost of new borrowings for ITV

Liquedity risk

The Group's finanaing policy is to fund itself for the mediwm to long-term by using debt instruments with
arange of maturities and to ensure access to appropriate short-term bank facilities with a minmmum of
£250 million of undrawn facilities avallable at all times

Long-term funding comes from the UK and European Capital markets, while any short to medium-term
debt requirements are provided through bank credit facilities totalling £775 million (see below)
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity reserve {comprising undrawn bank facilities
and cash and cash equivalents) on the basis of expected cash flows This monitoring includes financial
ratios to assess possible future credit ratings and headroom and takes into account the accessiility of cash
and cash equivalents

The Group has available funds through a Revolving Credit Facility ('RCF) with a group of relationship banks
This £525 million facility 1s committed with leverage and interest cover financial covenants and matures

N 2019 In addition, the Group has £250 million of financiat covenant free financing which runs for three

to seven years All of these facillities were undrawn at 31 December 2015 (2014 no drawings)

Fair value versus book value
The tables below provide farr value information for the Group's borrowings

Bookvalue Far value
2015 0% 2015 200
Maturity Em £m £m £m

Loans due within one year
Other short-term loans Various 5 - 5 -
Loans due in more than one year
£161 milhon Eurobond Jan 2077 161 167 168 173
€600 millon Eurobond Sept 2022 437 - 445 -
Loans settled or matured in the period
£78 mulbon Eurcbond Oct 2015 - 78 - 81

603 239 618 254
Finance leases

The following table analyses when finance lease babilities are due for payment

Minimum Mirdmum
lease 015 {ease 2014
payments Interast Principat payments Interest Principal
£m £m £m £Em £m £m
In one year or less 6 - 6 8 1 7

In mare than one year but not

more than five years 4 - 4 10 - 10
10 - 10 18 1 17

Finance leases principally comprise programmes under sale and leaseback arrangements The net book
value of tangible assets held under finance leases at 31 December 2015 was £1 million (204 £1million)
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4.3
Managing
market risks:
derivative
financial
instruments

Keepingit
simple

What is a derivative?

A derivative 1s a type of financial Instrument typically used to manage nisk.

A derivative’s value changes over time in response to underlying variables such
as exchange rates or interest rates and 1s entered inte for a fixed period A hedge
1s where a dervative 1s used to manage exposure In an undertying variable

The Group 15 exposed to certain market risks In accordance with Board approved
policies, which are set out in this note, the Group manages these risks by using
dervative financial instruments to hedge the underlying exposures

Why do we need them?
The key market risks facing the Group are

+ Currency risk ansing from
t translation risk, that is, the nisk in the period of adverse currency fluctuations
in the translation of foreign currency profits, assets and babilities (balance
sheet risk’) and non-functional currency monetary assets and liabilities
(Income statement risk’) and
i transaction rnisk, that is, the nsk that currency fluctuations will have a negative
effect on the value of the Group's non-functional currency trading cash flows
A non-functional currency transaction s a transaction in any currency other
than the reporting currency of the subsidiary
» Interest rate nsk to the Group anses from significant changes in mterest rates
on borrowngs 1ssued at or swapped to floatingrates

How do we use them?
The Group manly employs three types of derivative financial instruments when
managing its currency and interest rate risk

- Foreign exchange swap contracts are derwvative instruments used to hedge
income statement translation risk ansing from short term intercompany loans
denominated in a foreign currency

- Forward foreign exchange contracts are derivative instruments used to hedge
transaction risk 50 they enable the sale or purchase of foreign currency at a
known fixed rate on an agreed future date and

» Interest rate swaps are dervative Instruments that exchange a fixed rate of
interest for a floating rate, or vice versa, or one type of floating rate for another,
and are used to manage interest rate risk

Analysis of the derivatives used by the Group to hedge 1ts exposure and the various
methods used to calculate therr respective fair values are detailed in this section

Accounting policies

Derwvative financial instruments are inttially recognised at fair value and are subsequently remeasured

at fair value with the movement recorded in the income statement, except where derivatives qualify for
cash flow hedge accounting In this case, the effective portion of a cash flow hedge 1s recognised in other
comprehensive income and presented in the hedging reserve within equity The cumulative gain or loss
15 later reclassified to the income statement in the same period as the relevant hedged transactionis
realised Derivatives with positive fair values are recorded as assets and negative far values as liabilities
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Determining Fair Value

The farr value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined by using the difference between the
contract exchange rate and the quoted forward exchange rate at the reporting date The fair value of
interest rate swaps 1s the estimated amount that the Group would recewe or pay to terminate the swap
at the reporting date, taking nto account current interest rates and our current creditworthiness, as well
as that of our swap counterparties

Third-party valuations are used to fair value the Group's interest rate derivatives The valuation techniques
use inputs such as interest rate yield curves and currency pricesfyields, volatiities of underlying
instruments and correlations between inputs

How do we manage our currency and interest rate risk?

Currency nsk

As the Group expands its international operations, the performance of the business becomes increasingly
sensitive to movements in foreign exchange rates, primarily with respect to the US dollar and the euro

The Group's fareign exchange policy s to use forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge matenial
non-functional currency denominated costs or revenue at the time of commitment for up to five years
forward The Group also hedges a proportion of highly probable non-functional currency denominated
costs or revenue on a roling 18 month basis (see 'Keeping it simple box' for explanation of non-functional
currency transactions)

The Group ensures that 1ts net exposure to foreign currency denorminated cash balances iskept to a
mirsmal level by using foreign currency swaps to exchange balances back into sterling or by buying or
selling foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary

The Group atso utilises foreign exchange swaps both to manage foreign currency cash flow timing
differences and to hedge fareign currency denominated monetary items

The Group's net investments in overseas subsidiaries may be hedged where the currency exposure 1s
considered to be matenal in 2015 the Group designated a portion of its euro borrowings into a net
investment hedge against its euro denominated assets following the acquisition of Talpa Media

The following table highlights the Group's sensitivity ta translation nisk resulting from a 10%
strengthening/weakening in sterling agamnst the US dollar and eurp, assuming all other varables are
held constant

1015 - post- 2014 - post
tax profit 2015 - equity tax profit 2014 - equity
US dollar £10 millton  £63 million £8 milbon  £34 million
Euro £8 milbon €41 million £8milbon  £29 millton

Interest rate risk
The Group's interest rate policy 1s to aliow fixed rate gross debt to vary between 20% and 100% of total
gross debt to accommodate floating rate borrowings under the revolving credit facility

At 31 December 2015 the Group's fixed rate debt represented 99% of total gross debt (2014 100%)
Consequently a 1% movement in interest rates on negligible floating vanable rate debt would not impact
the post-tax profit for the year

For financial assets and habilities classified at fair value through profit or loss, the movements in the year
relating to changes in fair value and interest are not separated
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What is the value of our derivative financial instruments?
The following table shows the fair value of dervative financial nstruments analysed by type of contract
Interest rate swap fair values exclude accrued interest

Assets Liabilities
At 31 December 2015 £m £m
Current
Cash flow hedges - (4)
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps - fair value through profit or loss 1 (1)
Interest rate swaps - fair value through profit or toss - -
Non-current
Interest rate swaps - far value through profit or loss 8 (6)
9 (11)
Assets Liabilities
At 31 Decermnber 2014 £m £m
Current
Cash flow hedges - (3}
interest rate swaps - far value through profit or loss Ll {9)
Non-current
Cash flow hedges - (1)
Interest rate swaps - fair value through profit or loss 16 (11
27 (24)

Interest rate swaps

On issuing the 2077 Eurabond, the Group entered into a portfolio of fixed to floating nterest rate swaps
and then subsequently overlaid a portfolic of floating to fixed interest rate swaps with the result that
Interest was 100% fixed on these borrowings The timing of entering nto these swaps locked inan nterest
benefit for the Group, resulting in a net mark-to-rmarket gan on the portfotio

Cash flow hedges

The Group applies hedge accounting for certain foreign currency firm commitments and highly probably
cash flows where the underlying cash flows are payable within the next two years In order to fix the
sterling cash outflows associated with the commitments — which are mainly denominated in AUD or euros
- the Group has taken out forward foreign exchange contracts for the same foreign currency amount and
matunty date as the expected foreign currency outflow The amount recognised in other comprehensive
income duning the period all relates to the effective portion of the revaluation loss associated with these
contracts There was less than €1 milbion (2014 £nil) ineffectiveness taken to the income statement and
£6 million cumulative loss (2014 £nil) recycled to the income statement in the year

Net investment hedges

The Group uses euro denominated debt to partially hedge against the change in the sterling value of its
euro denorninated net assets due to movements in foreign exchange rates The fair value of debt inanet
investment hedge was £141 mithon (2014 £nil} A foreign exchange loss of £2 million {2014 £nil) relating
to the net Investment hedges has been netted off within exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations as presented on the consclidated staterment of comprehensive income
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Undiscounted financial liabilities

Keeping it The Group 1s required to disclose the expected timings of cash outflows for each
simple of its financial labilities (iIncluding derivatives) The amounts disclosed in the table
are the cantractual undiscounted cash flows (iIncluding interest), so will not always
reconcile with the amounts disclosed on the statement of financial position
Total
contractual Less than Between Between Over
Camryingvalue  cash flows 1year land2yeats 2andSyears Syeats
At 31 Decesnber 3015 £m £m €m £m £m £m
Non-dernivative financial liabilities
Borrowings (613) (703) (30) (184) (28) {461)
Trade and other payables {834) (834) (786) (34) (14) -
Other payables — non-current {4) {4) - ) {2) {1)
Other payables - commitments on
acquisitions (85) (303) (12) {108) {183) -
Denvative financial instruments
Cash flow hedges
Inflow 66 66 49 17 - -
Qutflow (70) (70) (53) (17) - -
Foretgn exchange forward contracts
and swaps
Inflow 147 147 144 3 - -
Outfiow (147} (147) (144) (3 - -
fnterest rate swaps
Inflow 8 22 9 13 - -
Outflow (6) (12) (6) (6) - -
(1,538) (1,838) {829) (320) {227) {462)
Taotal
contractuat Less than Between Between Over
Carrying valus cash flows iyear  landlyears 2andSyears Syears
At 31Decemnber 2014 £m £m Em £m £Em £m
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings (256) (357) (100) (16) {175) (66)
Trade and other payables (726) {726) {699) (23) {4) -
Other payabtes — non-current {4) (4) - (3) {1) —
Other payables - commitments on
acquisitions {34) (96} - (9} (81) (6)
Derivative financial instruments
Cash flow hedges
Inflow 88 88 52 36 - -
Outflow (92) (92) (54) (38} - -
Foreign exchange forward contracts
and swaps
Inflow 19 19 17 2 - -
Outflow (19) (19) (17} (2 - -
Interest rate swaps
Inflow 26 47 26 8 13 -
Outflow (19) 27) {16) (5) {6) -
1,017) (1167) (79) (50) (254) {72)
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4.4
Net financing
costs

Keeping it This section details the interest income generated on the Group's cash and other
simple financial assets and the mnterest expense ncurred on borrowings and ather
financial babtities

In reporting ‘adjusted profit’, the Group adjusts net financing costs to exclude
unrealised mark-to-market movements on interest rate and foreign exchange
dervatives, gains/losses on bond buybacks, net pension interest, interest and fair
value movements in acquisition-related Liabilities and other financing costs

Qur rationale for adjustments made to financing costs is set out in the Financial
and Performance Review

Accounting policies

Net financing costs compnse interest income on funds invested, gans/losses on the disposal of financial
mnstruments, changes in the fair value of financial instruments, interest expense on borrowings and finance
leases, unwinding of the discount on provisions, unwinding of the discount on liabilities to non-controliing
interest, foreign exchange gamns/losses, and imputed interest on pension assets and Liabilities Interest
income and expense Is recognised as it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective Interest method

Net financing costs
Net financing costs can be analysed as follows

2015 201
£m £m
Financing income
Interestincome 3 4
Change in farr value of instruments classified at fair vatue through profit or loss 3 -
Foreign exchange gain -
Other finance mcome - 17
6 22
Financing costs
tnterest expense on financial babilities measured at amortised cost {17) (19
Net pension interest (see note 37) (10) (17)
Losses on early settlement - (30)
Foreign exchange loss (2) -
Other finance expense {8) (7}
(37) 73
Net financing costs {31) (51)

Interest on financial liabilities relates to the interest incurred on the Group's borrowings in the year

The losses on early settlement in the prior year of £30 million were incurred as a result of the repurchase
of the remaining £62 million 2019 bilateral loan

Other finance income n the prior year prmarily relates to acquisition-related contingent habtlities Thisis
where estimates of the future performance aganst stretch targets is reassessed, resulting in adjustments
to the related put aption Liabilities Other finance expense includes the amortisation of facility
commitment and upfront fees
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4.5 Keeping it The financial nstruments included on the ITV statement of financial position are
Fair value simple measured at either far value or amortised cost The measurement of this fair
hi erarchy value can in some cases be subjective, and can depend on the inputs used in the

calculations ITV generally uses external valuations using market inputs or market
values {e g external share prices) The different valuation methods are called
‘hierarchies’ and are described below

Level1

Fair values are measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or labilities

Level 2
Fair values are measured using inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level, that are observable for the asset or Llability either directly or Indirectiy

Interest rate swaps and options are accounted for at therr far value based upon
termination prices Forward foreign exchange contracts are accounted for at the
difference between the contract exchange rate and the quoted forward exchange
rate at the reporting date

Level 3
Fair values are measured using inputs for the asset or lability that are not based
on observable market data

The tables below set out the financial instruments iIncluded on the ITV statement of financial position
at'far value’

Fair value Level1 Leval2 Level3
31December 31December 3t December 31 December
2015 2015 2015 2015
£m £m £m £m
Assets measured at fair value
Available for sale financial instruments
Available for sale gilts (see note 41) 38 38 - -
Available for sale investments (see note 3 5) " - - 1
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps 1 - 1 -
Interest rate swaps 8 - 8 -
58 38 9 i}
Falr value Laval1 Level 2 Level?
31 December 31December 31 December 31 December
015 2045 2015 2015
£Em £m £m £m
Liabilities measured at fair value
Financial babitities at fair value through profit or loss
Contingent consideration (3) - - (3)
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps (1) - 1) -
Interest rate swaps {6) - {6) -
Financial labilities at fair value through reserves
Cash fiow hedges (4) - {4) -
(14) - (1) 3)
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Fairvalue Level1 Lavel2 Level 3
310ecember 31December 31December 31December
201 W% 014 20M4
£m £m £m £m
Assets measured at fair value
Available for sale financial instruments
Avallable for sale gilts (see note 41) 39 39 - -
Finanoial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Contingent consideration 32 - - 32
Interest rate swaps 27 - 27 -
98 39 27 32
Fair value Level1 Levet 2 Level 3
31December J1December 31December 31December
0% 20 01 2014
£m £m m £m
Liabitities measured at fair value
Financial iabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Contingent consideration (3) - - (3)
Interest rate swaps (20) - (20} -
Financial babilties at faur value through reserves
Cash flow hedges (4) - [ -
(27) - 24 3)

Refer to note 4 3 for how we value interest rate swaps and forward foreign currency contracts

Cantingent consideration 1s the Group's only financial nstrument classified as Level 3 in the fair value

hierarchy As noted in the accounting policy section of note 3 3, the key assurmptions taken into

consideration when measuring this acquisition-retated bability are the performance expectations of the
acquisition and a discount rate that reflects the size and nature cf the new business There Is no reasonable
change in discount rate or performance targets that would give rise to a matenal change in the iability at

year end

The table below surnmarises the key movement in the contingent consideration during the year

Asset Liabllity Asset Liability
2015 018 20% 20%
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 32 {3) - {7)
Acquisitions (see note 3 4) - - 30 (M
Changes in non-controlbing interests (32) - - -
Changes in estimates (income statement) - - - 5
Currency translation - - p) -
At 31 December - (3) 32 (3)
Current - (2) - -
Non-current — (1) 32 {3)
At 31 December - {3) 32 {3)

Changes In estimates, iIncluding the unwind of Interest and fair value movements, are recognised n net

financing costs
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4.6
Equity

Keeping it This section explains matertal movements recorded in shareholders’ eguity that
simple are not explained elsewhere in the financial statements The mavements in equity
and the balance at 31 December 2015 are presented in the consclidated statement
of changes in equity

\. 7

Accounting policies

Available for sale reserve

Avallable for sale assets are stated at fair value, with any gain or loss recogrised directly in the avatable
for sale reserve In equity, untess the loss Is a permanent impairment, when it i1s then recorded in the
Income statement

Dividends
Dwidends are recogrused through equity on the earlier of thewr approval by the Company’s shareholders
or their payment

4 6.1 Share capital and share premium

The Group's share capital at 31December 2015 of £403 mulbon 2014 £403 milliory) and share premium
of £174 million (2014 £174 milbion) 1s the same as that of ITV plc Details of this are given in the TV plc
Company financial statements section of this Annual Report

4 6.2 Merger and other reserves
Merger and other reserves at 31 December 2015 include the following reserves

2015 2014
£m £m

Merger reserves 98 119
Capital reserves 112 112
Capital redemption reserves 36 36
Revaluation reserves 2 6
Put option labilibies arising on acquisition of new subsidiaries {27) {45)
Total pryl 228

The movement in the merger reserve and put option s in relation to the acquisition af the remaining
non-controliing interest of Leftfield Entertanment

4 6 3 Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises

. alt foreign exchange differences arising on the translation of the accounts of, and investments in, foreign
operations and
+ the gans or losses on the portion of cash flow hedges that have been deemed effective (see note 4 3)

4 6 4 Avaitable for sale reserve
The available for sale reserve comprises all movemnents arising on the revaluation of gilts accounted for
as available for sale

4.6 5 Retained earnings

The retained earnings reserve comprises profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
£495 millton (2014 £466 million) and other items recogrised directly through equity as presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity Other items include the credit for the Group's share-based
compensation schemes and the charge for the purchase of ITV shares via the [TV Employees’ Benefit Trust,
which are descnbed mnote 4 7

The Directors of ITV plc propose a final dividend of 4 1p per share and a special dvidend of 10 Op per share
See details on page 163
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4.7
Share-based
compensation

4.6.6 Non-controlling interests
The movement for the year comprises

« the far value of the non-controlling interest acquired in the year of £19 million relates to the acquisition
of the remaintng 20% n Leftfield Entertainment (2014 £20 nillion),

- the share of profits attributable to non-controlling nterests of £7 million (2014 £7rmitlion), and

- the distnbutions made to non-controlling interests of £5 million (2014 £8 million)

Keepingit The Group utilises share award schemes as part of its employee remuneration
simple packages, and therefore operates a number of share-based compensation
schemes, namely the Deferred Share Award (DSA), Perfarmance Share Plan (PSP),
Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) and Save As You Earn (SAYE) schemes

A transaction will be classed as share-based compensation where the Group
receives services from employees and pays far these in shares or similar equity
instruments If the Group incurs a lability based on the price or value of the Group's
shares then this will also fall under a share-based transaction

A description of each type of share-based payment arrangement that existed at
any time during the period are set out in the Annual Remuneration Report

Accounting policies

For each of the Group's share-based compensation schemes, the fair value of the equity instrument
granted 1s measured at grant date and spread over the vesting period via a charge to the inceme
statement with a corresponding mcrease n equity

The fair value of the share options and awards 1s measured using either market price at grant date or, for
the Save As You Earn scheme (SAYE), a Black-Scholes maodel, taking into account the terms and conditions
of the ndndual scheme

Vesting conditions are imited to service conditions and performance conditions For performance-based
schemes, the relevant Group perfarmance measures are projected to the end of the performance period
in order to determine the number of options expected to vest The estimate is then used to determine the
option fair value, discounted to present value The Group revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest, Including an estimate of forferitures at each reporting date The impact of the
revision to anginal estimates, iIf any, are recogrised in the Income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity

Exercises of share options granted to employees can be satisfied by market purchase or issue of new
shares No new shares may be issued to satisfy exercises under the terms of the DSA During the year
all exercises were satisfied by using shares purchased in the market and held in the 1TV Employees'
Benefit Trust

Share-based compensation charges totalled £14 millian in 2015 (2014 £14 milion)
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Share options outstanding
The table below summarises the movements in the number of share options outstanding for the Group
and their weighted average exercise price

2015

2014

Weighted weighted

Number average Number average

of options  exercise price of options exercse price

GO0 (pence) { 000} {pence)

Qutstanding at 7 January 51,933 3297 67,676 1452
Granted during the year — nil priced 6,744 - 8,594 -
Granted duning the year - other 4,615 198.94 5999 162 86
Forfeited during the year (30) 143 65 {1.381) 2867
Exercised during the year (19,477) 16 65 {27,860) 802
Expired duning the year (3,618) 1877 (1,095} 1294
Qutstanding at 31 December 40,167 5563 51933 3297
Exercisable at 31 December 610 5317 1129 14 47

The average share price during 2015 was 254 24 pence (2074 198 01 pence)

Of the options stilt outstanding, the range of exercise prices and weighted average remaining contractual
life of these options can be analysed as foltows

2015 20%

Welghted Weighted

Weighted average Weighted average

average Number remaining average Number Femaning

exercise price ofoptions contractual life exercise price ofoptions  contractual life

Range of axercise prices (pence) {pence) {ooa) {years) {pence) (000) {years)
Nil - 25,910 179 - 36,522 175
2000-4999 - - - 3561 1120 053
5000-6999 67 24 991 0.98 6737 5123 11
7000-9999 73 58 301 092 7358 303 1890
10000 -10993 102 59 1,672 114 102 59 1,733 216
11000 -11999 - - - - - -
120 00 - 14999 13144 1,175 152 13144 1,251 252
15000 - 19999 172 58 8,089 222 - - -
20000 - 24999 206 83 2,054 252 16372 5,881 280

Assumptions
DSA, LTIP and PSP options are valued directly by reference to the share price at date of grant The options
for the SAYE scheme, an HMRC approved SAYE scheme, are valued using the Black-5choles model, using

the assumptions below
Share price Expected Gross divdend Risk-free
atgrant  Exercise price volatility  Expected bfe yeld rate Fair value
Scheme name Date of grant (pence) {pence) % {years) % % (pence)
3 Year 3 April 2014 195 50 159 68 3200 325 215 127 5378
5 Year 3 April 2014 195 50 159 68 3800 525 215 194 7041
3 Year 10 Sept 2074 21240 165 33 2900 325 198 130 6114
5 Year 10 Sept 2014 21240 165 33 3400 525 198 181 7429
3 Year 2 April 2015 25100 192 52 2600 325 227 Q74 65 B85
5 Year 2Apnl 2015 25100 192 52 3200 525 227 114 8081
3 Year 165ept 2015 24960 20683 2500 325 228 Q97 5571
5 Year 16 Sept 2015 24960 20683 3000 525 228 138 7202
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Employees’ Benefit Trust

The Group has investments in its own shares as a result of shares purchased by the ITV Employees' Benefit
Trust (EBT") Transactions with the Group-sponsored EBT are included in these financial statements and
primarily consist of the EBT's purchases of shares in ITV plc, which are accounted for as a reduction to
retaned earnings

The table below shows the number of ITV plc shares held in the EBT at 31 December 2015 and the
purchases/(releases) from the EBT made in the year to satisfy awards under the Group's share schemes

Number of shares Nomunal vatue
Scheme Shares held at (released)/purchased £
7 January 2015 22482747 2,248,275
DSA releases (2,589150)
PSP releases {5,680,025)
SAYE releases {5,313,414)
Shares purchased 7949693
31 December 2015 16,949,851 1,694,585

The total number of shares held by the EBT at 31 December 2015 represents 0 42% (2014 0 56%) of
ITV's 1ssued share capital. The market value of own shares held at 31 December 2015 15 £47 millien (2074
£48 million)

The shares will be held in the EBT until such time as they may be transferred to participants of the vanous
Group share schemes Rights to dividends have been waived by the EBT in respect of shares held which do
not relate to restricted shares under the DSA In accordance with the Trust Oeed, the Trustees of the EBT
have the power to exercise alt voting rights in relation to any investment (including shares) held within
that trust

51
Related

party
transactions

Keepingit The related parties identified by the Directors include joint ventures, associated
simple undertakings, fixed asset investments and key management personnel

To enable users of our financial statements to form a view about the effects of
related party relationships on the Group, we disclose the Group's transactions with
thoserelated parties during the year and any associated year end trading balances

Transactions with joint ventures and associated undertakings
Transactions with joint ventures and associated undertakings during the year were

2015 2014

Em £m
Sales to joint ventures ) 7
Sales to associated undertakings 13 10
Purchases from joint ventures 24 26
Purchases from associated undertakings 65 59

The transactions with joint ventures primarily refate to sales and purchases of digital multiplex services
with Digital 3&4 Limited

Purchases from associated undertakings primarly relate to the purchase of news services from ITN

All transactions with associated undertakings and jomt ventures arise in the normal course of business
on an arm’s length basis None of the balances are secured

154 ITV plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015




P Financial Statements

5.2
Contingent
liabilities

53
Subsequent
events

The amounts owed by and to these related parties at the year end were

2015 2014

£m £m

Amounts owed by joint ventures 3 -

Amounts owed by associated undertakings 66 48
Amounts owed to joint ventures 2

Amounts owed to associated undertakings 5 5

Amounts owed by pension scherme - 1

Balances owed by associated undertakings largely relate to production funding advanced to Tomorrow
ITV Studios

Amounts paid to the Group's retirement benefit plans are set out innote 37

Transactions with key management personnel
Key management consists of ITV ptc Executive and Non-executive Directors and the ITV Management
Board Key management personnel compensation s as follows

2015 2014
£m £m
Short-term employee benefits 9 9
Share-based compensation 6 5
15 14

A contingent Llability 1s a Llability that 1s not sufficiently certain to qualify for
recognition as a provision where uncertamty may exist regarding the outcome
of future events

Keeping it
simple

|_

There are contingent Liabilities in respect of certain litigation and guarantees, broadcasting 1ssues, and in
respect of warranties given in connection with certain disposals of businesses None of these items are
expected to have amatenal effect on the Group's results or financial position

Where the Group receives information in the period between 31 December 2015
and the date of this repart about conditions related to certain events that existed
at 31 December 2015, we update our disclosures that relate to those conditions

in ight of the new information Such events can be categorised as adjusting or
non-adjusting depending on whether the condition existed at 31 December 20715
If non-adjusting events are material, non-disclosure could nfluence the economic
decisions that users make on the basis of the financial statements Accordingly,
for each material category of non-adjusting event after the reporting period we
disclose in this section the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial
effect, or a staternent that such an estimate cannot be made

Keeping it
simple

—

0On 19 October 2015 the Group announced that it had agreed to acquired 100% of the share caprtal

of UTV Limited for a total cash constderation of £100 mullion, subject to regulatory and UTV Media ple
shareholder approval Final approvals were obtained by 18 February 2016 and the acquisition completed
on 29 February 2016 The transaction was financed through existing cash and debt faciities
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5.4
Subsidiaries
exempt
from audit

Keeping it
simple

Certain subsidiaries of the Group can take an exernption from having an audit
Strict cnteria must be met for this exemption to be taken, and 1t must be agreed
to by the Directors of that subsidiary entity

Listed below are subsidiaries controtled and consolidated by the Group, where the Directors have taken
the exemption from having an audit of its financial staterents for the year ended 31 December 2015
This exemption s taken in accordance with Companies Act s479A

Company Number Company Name

01891539 Broad Street Films Lirmited
02285229 Campania Limited

5078683 Carbon Media Limited

4159249 Carlton Content Holdings Limited
1692483 Carlton Finance Limited

03984430 Carlton Food Network Limited
3053908 Carltan Programmes Development Limited
3210452 Carlton Screen Advertising {(Holdings) Limited
3307790 Carltonco 103

2625225 Carltonco Forty Investments
o363 Carltonco Ninety-Six

2852812 Cosgrove Hall Films Limited
3209058 DTV bimited

00250076 Granada Group Limited

3962410 Granada Limited

03106798 Granada Media Limited

05344772 Granada Screen (2005) Limited
00733063 Granada Television Overseas Limited
01127149 ITV Breathless Limited

04209918 ITVY Citla Limited

06914987 ITV (HC) Limited

08534385 ITV Lucan Limited

03916436 ITV News Channel Limited
09499040 ITV Tenmson Limited

05518785 Juice Music UK Limited

04201477 Morming TV Lirmited
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Company Balance Sheet
Restated* Restated*
2015 2015 0% 2014
As at 31December Note £Em £m £m £m
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiary undertakings i 1,861 1,705
Dervative financial instruments 9 17
Deferred tax asset 2 2
1,872 1,724
Current assets
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 3,864 1,441
Denvative financial nstruments 6 14
Other recevables 16 20
Cash and cash equivalents 126 145
4,012 1,620
Current habibities
Borrowings v - {78)
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings (3,760) {1,795)
Accruals and deferred income 21 (19)
Dervative financial iInstruments (6) (12)
(3,787) (1,904)
Net current assets/(Liabilities) 225 {284)
Total assets less current liabilities 2,097 1,440
Non-current hiabitities
Borrowings v (598) (161
Denvative finanoial instruments (6) (12)
(604&) (173)
Net assets 1,493 1,267
Capital and reserves
Share capital VI 403 403
Share premium vH 174 174
Other reserves Vi 36 36
Retained earnings Vi 880 654
Total equity 1,493 1,267

* 2014 has been restated as part of the transitton to FRS 101 See note xn

The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 2 March 2016 and were signed on its behalf by

lan Griffiths
Diwrector
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

Share Share Other Retamned
Capital Pretmium Reserves Earmings Total

Note £m £m m £m £m
Balance at1 January 2015 403 174 36 654 1,267
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit - — — 671 671
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year - - - 671 671
Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Equity dividends - - - {459) (459)
Movements due to share based compensation — - - 14 14
Total contributions by and distributions to owners - - - {445) ta45)
Total transactions with owners - - - {445) (445)
Balance at 31 December 2015 viLfvin 403 174 36 88D 1,493

Share Share Other Retained
Capital Premwim Reserves Earnings Total

Note £m £m tm Em £m
Balance at 1 January 2014 403 174 36 995 1,608
Effect of changes to FRS 101 - - - 2 2
Restated balance at 1 January 2014 403 174 36 997 1,610
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit - - - (44) {44)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (44) (44)
Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Equity dividends - - - (313) (313}
Movements due to share based compensation - - - 14 14
Total contnbutions by and distributions to owners - - - (299) {299)
Total transactions with owners - - - (299) {299)
Balance at 31 December 2014 viL/ vin 403 174 36 654 1,267
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Notes to the ITV plc Company Financial Statements

Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The Company transitioned from old UK GAAP to Financal Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework (FRS107) for atl periods presented The Caompany’s transition date 1s 1 January 2014 This s the
first year adoption of FRS101 There were no matenat amendments on the adoption of FRS101 See note xi
for further information

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework The Company is a qualifying entity as it 1s a member of the ITV pic Graup where ITV
plc, the ultimate parent prepares publicly avallable consolidated financial statements

Exemptions Applied
The Company 1s taking advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS$101

- Presentation of a Statement of Cash Flows
« Disclosure of key management perscnnel compensation -
- Disclosure of related party transactions between wholly-owned subsidiaries and parents within a group
» Disclosures required under IFRS 2 Share Based Payments i respect of group settled share based '
payments

- Disclosures required by IFRS 7 Financial Instrument Disclosure

- Certain disclosures required under IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

- Disclosure of nformation in relation to new standards not yet applied

As permitted by section 408 (3} of the Companies Act 2006, a separate income statement dealing with
the results of the parent company has not been presented

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities that are directly or indirectly controtled by the Company Controt exists where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the entity so as to obtain
benefits fromits activities The investment in the Company’s subsidiarnes 1s recorded at cost Annual
share-based payment compensation casts are recharged to the subsidiaries through the profit and
loss account

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruting at the date of
the transaction Foreign currency monetary assets and liabibities at the balance sheet date are translated
into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling at that date Foreign exchange differences ansing on translation
are recogrused in the profit and loss account Non-monetary assets and labilities measured at historical
cost are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange on the date of the transaction

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value including directly attributable transaction costs, with
subsequent measurement at amaortised cost using the effective nterest rate method The difference
between imtial fair value and the redemption value 1s recarded in the profit and loss account over the
period of the llabiity on an effective interest basis

Derivatives and other financial instruments

The Company uses a limited number of derivative financiat nstruments to hedge its exposure to
fluctuations in interest and other foreign exchange rates The Company does not hold or Issue dervative
instruments for speculative purposes

Dervative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently remeasured at
fair value with the movement recorded in the profit and loss account within net financing costs, except
where dervatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting In this case, the effective portion of cash flow
hedge Is recognised in retained profits within equity The cumulative gain or loss 1s later reclassified to the
profit and loss account in the same period as the relevant hedged transaction is realised Derwvatives with
positive fair values are recorded as assets and negative fair values as hiabilities

The farr value of foreign currency forward contracts is determined by using the difference between the
contract exchange rate and the quoted forward exchange rate at the balance sheet date
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The farr value of Interest rate swaps i1s the estimated amount that the Company would recewve or pay to
terminate the swap at the balance sheet date, taking into account current interest rates and the current
creditworthuness of swap counterparties

Third-party valuations are used to fair value the Company’s derivatives The valuation technigues use
inputs such as interest rate yield curves and currency prices/yields, volatibties of underlying instruments
and carrelations between inputs For financial assets and babilities classified at far value through profit
or loss the far value change and interest income/expense are not separated

Deferred tax
The tax charge for the period is recognised in the iIncome statement or directly In equity according to the
accounting treatment of the related transaction

Deferred tax arises due to certain temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and
Labiities for financal reporting purposes and those for taxation purposes The amount of deferred tax
provided 1s based on the expected manner of reatisation or settierment of the carrying amount of assets
and babiities A deferred tax asset s recogrused only to the extent that it 1s probable that sufficent
taxable profit will be available to utilise the temporary difference Recognition of deferred tax assets,
therefore involves judgement regarding timing and tevel of future taxable iIncome

Share-based compensation

The Company utilises share award schemes as part of its employee remuneration packages, and therefore
operates a number of share-based compensation schemes, namely the Deferred Share Award (DSA),
Performance Share Plan (PSP), Long Term incentive Plan (LTIP) and Save As You Earn (SAYE) schemes

A transaction will be classed as share-based compensation where the Company receves services from
employees and pays for these in shares or similar equity instruments If the Company incurs a bability
based on the price or value of the shares then this will atso fall under a share-based transaction

The far vatue of the equity instrument granted 1s measured at grant date and spread over the vesting
period via a charge to the income statement with a corresponding increase in equity The fair value of
the share options and awards 1s measured using either market price at grant date or, for the Save As
You Earn scheme (SAYE), a Black-Scholes model, taking into account the terms and conditions of the
ndividual scheme

Vesting conditions are Umited to service conditions and performance conditions For performance-based
schemes, the relevant performance measures are projected to the end of the performance penod in order
to determine the number of options expected to vest The estimate 1s then used to determine the option
fair value, discounted to present value The Company revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest, including an estimate of forfeitures at each reporting date The impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, are recognised in the iIncome statement, with a corresponding adjustment

to equity

Exercises of share aptions granted to employees can be satisfied by market purchase or 1ssue of new
shares No new shares may be 1ssued to satisfy exercises under the terms of the DSA During the year
all exercises were satisfied by using shares purchased in the market and held in the ITV Employees’
Benefit Trust

The weighted average share price of share options exercised dunng the year was 16 65p (2014 902p)
The options cutstanding at the year end have an exercise price (n the range of nil to 206 83p and a
weighted average contractual life of 1year (2014 1year)

Dividends
Dividends are recognised through equity on the earlier of their approval by the Company’s shareholders
or therr payment

Employees
Two (2014 two) Directors of ITV plc were employees of the Company dunng the year, both of whom
remain at the year end The costs relating to these Directors are disclesed in the Rermuneration Report
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Investments in subsidiary undertakings
The principal subsidiary undertakings are listed on page 166 The balance at 31 December 2015 was
£1,861 millon (2014 £1,705 milhon)

During the year, the Company set up a subsidiary nvestment, ITV {(Europe) Hotdings BV for £146 million

in exchange for 10 £1 ordinary shares The Company also increased its investment n fTV Investments
Limsted by £5 million in exchange for 1£1 ordinary share The Company increased its investment in Carlton
Communications Limited by £5 million in exchange for 1£1ordinary share

Amounts owed (to)/from subsidiary undertakings

The Company aperates an mtra-group cash pool policy with certain 100% owned UK subsidiaries The pool
applies to bank accounts where there 15 an unconditional nght of set off and involves the daily closing cash
position for participating subsidiaries whether pasitive or negative, being cleared to £nil via daily bank
transfers to/from ITV plc. These daily transactions create a corresponding intercompany creditor or debtor
which can result in significant movernents in amounts owed to and from substdiary undertakings in the
Company balance sheet

Borrowings

Loans repayable in less than one year

In October 2015 the unsecured £78 mitlion Eurobond matured, resulting in a net payment by the company
of £76 million, after settlement of the related outstanding interest rate swaps

Loans repayable after more than one year
The unsecured £161 mullion Eurobond matures in January 2017 and has a coupon of 6125%

At various penods duning the year the Company drew down on the Revolving Credit Facility ('RCF') to
meet short-term funding requwements All short-term drawings were repaid by the end of the year

The maximum draw down of the RCF during the year was €500 million (£362 million) in April to fund the
acquisition of Talpa Media The maximum draw down on the RCF during 2014 was £321 million to fund
the 2014 acquisitions

Loans repayable after more than one year

In Septernber 2015 the Company 1ssued a seven year €600 millon Eurobond at a fixed coupon of
2125% which will mature in September 2022 The bond refinanced the 12 month bridge loan facility of
€500 milkion that was used to repay the RCF, which initially funded the purchase of Talpa Medain April

Managing market risks: derivative financial instruments
What is the value of our derivative financial instruments?

Assets Llabilitles
2015 2015
Current
Cash Flow Hedges 3 (4)
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps - fair value through profit or loss 3 {2)
Interest Rate Swaps - fair value through profit orloss - -
Non-current
Interest Rate Swaps - fair value through profit or loss 9 (6)
15 {12)
Assets Luabitities
2014 0
Current
Cash Flow Hedges 2 {2)
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps - far value through profit or loss 1 ()
Interest Rate Swaps — fair value through profit or lass L 9
Non-current
Cash Flow Hedges 1 (1)
Interest Rate Swaps - fair value through profit or loss 16 {11
31 (24)

ITV plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015 161




Financial Statements

Notes to the ITV plc Company Financial Statements
continued

The Company mainly employs three types of denvative financal instruments when managing its currency
and nterest rate risk

« Foreign exchange swap contracts are dertvative instrurments used to hedge income statement
translation risk ansing from short term intercompany loans denominated in a foreign currency

- Forward foreign exchange contracts are derivative Instruments used to hedge transaction risk so
they enable the sale or purchase of foreign currency at a known fixed rate on an agreed future date

« Interest rate swaps are derivative Instruments that exchange a fixed rate of interest for a floating rate
or vice-versa or one type of floating interest rate for another and are used to manage interest rate risk

Interest rate swaps

On 1ssuing the 2017 Eurobond, the Company entered into a portfolio of fixed to floating interest rate
swaps and then subsequently overlaid a partfolio of floating to fixed interest rate swaps with the result
that interest was 100% fixed on these borrowings The tming of entering into these swaps locked in an
interest benefit for the Company, resulting in a net mark-to-market gan on the portfolio

Cash flow hedges

The Company applies hedge accounting for certamn foreign currency firm commitments and highly
probably cash flows where the relevant cash flows are payable within the next two years Inorder to fix
the sterling cash outflows associated with the commitments — which are mainly denorminated in AUD or
euros - the Company has taken out forward foreign exchange contracts for the same foreign currency
amount and matunty date as the expected foreign currency outflow The amount recognised in other
comprehensive income during the period all relates to the effective portion of the revaluation loss
associated with these contracts There was less than £1 milbon (2014 £nil) ineffectiveness taken to the
income statement and £6 million cumulative loss {2014 £nil) recycled to the income statement in the year

Undiscounted financial liabilities

The Company i1s required to disclose the expected tirmings of cash outflows for each of its dervative
financial labilittes The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows
(ncluding mterest), so will not always reconcile with the amounts disclosed on the statement of

financial position
Total
Carrying Contractual Less than Between Between
value cash flows Tyear land2years 2andSyears OverSyears
At 31 December 2015 £m £m £m £m £ £m
Non-current and current
Cash flow hedges
Inflow 3 136 102 34 - -
Qutflow {4} (136) {102) {34) - -
Foreign exchange forward contracts and
swaps — fair value through profit or loss
Inflow 3 253 248 5 - -
Outflow (2) {252) (247) {5) - -
Interest Rate Swaps - fair value through
profit or toss
inflow 9 22 9 13 - -
Qutflow (6) (12) (6) {6) - -
3 7 4 7 - -
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Carrying mntmI:ut:: Less than Between Between
value cash flows Iyear 1and2years 2andSyears OverSyears
At 31Decemnber 201 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Non-current and current
Cash Flow Hedges
Inflow 3 174 100 74 - -
Qutflow (3) (174) {100) {74) — -
Foreign exchange forward contracts and
swaps - fair value through profit or loss
Inflow 1 209 205 4 - -
Cutflow (m _{(209) (205) (4} - -
Interest Rate Swaps — far value through
profit or loss
Inflow 27 47 26 8 13 -
Qutflow {20) (27} {16} (5) (6) -
7 20 10 3 7 -
Share capital
Allotted, ssued
Autharised  and fully paid
20158 20% 20158 20%
£m £m
Authorised ordinary shares of 10 pence each 8,000,000,000 BOO
Allotted, 1ssued and fully paid ordinary shares of 10 pence each 4,025,409,194 403
Total B0OO 403

The Company’s ordinary shares give shareholders equal nghts to vote, receive dividends and to the
repayment of capital.

Equity

The retained earnings reserve includes profit after tax for the year of £671 million (2014 £44 million loss)
which includes dvidends of £700 million from subsidianies in 2015 (2014 £nil) The retained earnings
reserves of £880 millicn are all distnbutable

The Directors of the Company propose a final dwvidend of 41p per share and a special dvidend of 10 Qp
pershare

Other reserves of £36 milbion (2014 £36 million} relate to share-buy backs in prior periods

Contingent liabilities

Under a Group registration, the Company s jointly and severally lable for VAT at 31 December 2015 of
£59 million (31 December 2014 £58 million) The Company has guaranteed certan finance and operating
lease obligations of subsidiary undertakings

There are contingent labilsties inrespect of certamn ltigation and guarantees, broadcasting 1ssues, and In
respect of warranties given in connection with certain disposals of businesses Nane of these items are
expected to have a material effect on the Company's results or financial pasition

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other
companues within its Group, the Company considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts for
them as such In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such
time as it becomes probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee

Capital and other commitments
There are no capital commitments at 31 December 2015 (2014 none)
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Related party transactions
@ Transactions with key management personnel
Key management consists of ITV plc Executive Directors

Key management personnel compensation, on an accounting basis, 15 as follows

2015 2014

£m £m

Short-term employee benefits 3 3
Share-based compensation 3 2
& 5

Total emoluments and gains on share options received by key management personnel in the year were

2015 20%

£m 15,8

Emoluments 3 3
Gans on exerase of share options 3 2
Gains on release of restricted share awards 3 3
9 8

Transition to FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework

For all periods up to and including 31 December 2014, the Company prepared its financial statements in
accordance with previously extant United Kingdom generally accepted accounting practice (UK GAAP)
These financiat statements for the year ended 31 December 2015, are the first the Company has prepared
in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS101) Accordingly
the Company has prepared these financiat statements to comply with FRS101 for periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2014 and the significant accounting policies meeting those requirements are described in
the relevant notes

In preparing these financial statements, the Company has started from an opening balance sheet as at

1 January 2014, the Company's date of transition to FR$101 and made those changes in accounting policies
and other restatements required for the first-time adoption of FRS101 As such this note explains the
principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its balance sheet as at 1 January 2014 prepared
under previously extant UK GAAP and its previously published UK GAAP financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014

On transition to FRS 101, the Company has applied the requirements of IFRS 1 first time adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards

Under FRS 101 deferred tax s recogrised on temporary differences between the estimated future
tax deductions for share-based compensation and the related cumnulative share-based compensation
expense To the extent that the estimated future tax deductions exceed the cumulative expense,

the excess deferred tax s recogrused directly in equity
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Company Balance Sheet

As originalty Asorginally
reported under reported under
UK GAAP at Restated at UK GAAP at Restated at
1 January 2014 FRS107  tJanuary 209  31December 2074 FRS107 31December 2014
£m £€m £m £m £m £m
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiary undertakings 1,648 - 1,648 1,705 - 1,705
Dervative financial nstruments 41 - 41 17 - 17
Deferred tax asset - 2 2 - 2 2
1,689 2 1,691 1,722 2 1,724
Current assets
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 1,280 - 1,280 1,441 - 1,441
Dervative finangal instruments 32 - 32 14 - 14
Other recevables 26 - 26 20 - 20
Cash at bank and cash equivalents 319 - 319 145 — 145
1,657 - 1,657 1620 - 1,620
Current habilities
Borrowings (47) - (41) (78) - {78}
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings (1.342) - {1,342) (1,795) — (1,795)
Accruals and deferred income (22 - (22) {19) - (19)
Dervative finanaal instruments (5) - {5) {12) - (12)
(1,410) - (1,410) (1.904) - (1,904}
Net current assets/{Labilities) 247 - 247 {284) - (284)
Total assets less current Labilities 1936 2 1,938 1,438 2 1,440
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings (301 - (301) (161) — (167
Derivative financialinstruments (27) - {27) {12} — {12)
{328) - (328) {173) - (173)
Net assets 1608 2 1,610 1,265 2 1,267
Capital and reserves
Share capital 403 - 403 403 - 403
Share premium 174 - 174 174 - 174
Qther reserves 36 - 36 36 - 36
Retained earnings 995 2 997 652 2 654
Total equity 1,608 2 1,610 1,265 2 1,267
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Subsidiary undertakings and investments
Principal subsidiary undertakings
The principal subsidiary undertakings of the Company at 31 December 2015, all of which are wholly owned {directly or indirectly)
and incorporated and registered where stated, are

Name Country of mcarporation  Principal Activibes Interest %
or estabirshment Halding
Carlton Communications Limited® United Kingdom Holding Company Ordinary Redeemable Preference 100
ITV Broadcasting Limited United Kingdom Broadcast of televssion programmes Ordinary 100
ITV Consumer Lirmited Umited Kingdom Development of platforms broadband, transacnonal Ordinary 100
ang mobile senaces
v Digital Channels Limited United Kingdom: Operation of digital tetevision channels Ordinary 100
ITV Global Entertainment Limated United Kingdom Rights ownership and distnbution of telewision Ordinary 100
programmes and films
ITV Network Limited United Kingdom Scheduling and commussiorang of tetevision programmes  Guarantee 00
ITV Rights Limited Uruted Kingdom Rights ownership Ordinary 100
ITV Services Lirmited Uruted Kingdom Prowision of sennces for other companies withenthe Group  Ordinary Cumulative Preference 100
[TV Studios Linwted United Kingdom Production of television programmes Qrdinary 100
ITV2 Limited United Kingdom Qperation of digital television channels Ordinary 100
SDN umited Uruted Kingdom Operation of Freeview Multiplex A Ordtnary 100
Talpa MediaBV Netherlands Production of television programmes QOrdinary 100
{TV Studios Inc Umited States Production of television programmes Common 100
Leftfield Entertainment LLC United States Production of telewision programmes Membership 100
Subsidiary undertakings
Name Country of nterest % Name Countryof Interest %
ncorporationor Holding incorporation or Holding
establishment establshment

12 Yard (North} Productions United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Carlton Programmes United Kingdom  Ordinary 100
Limited Developmeni Limited
12 Yard Lirmited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Carlton Screen Advertising United Kingdom  Ordinary 100
12 Yard Productions (Investments} United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 {Holdings} Limited
Lymited Carltonco 103 UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 100
12 Yard Productions Lirmited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Carltonco 99 Limited UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 100
A CE (1988) Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Carltonco Exghty-One Limited UnitedKingdom  Ordinary Deferred 100
Acton Time Holdings United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Carltonco Fifty Limited Urited Kingdom  Ordinary, Preference 100
Angla Television (Music) Limited United Xingdom  Ordinary 100 Caritonco Forty Investments United Kingdom  Ordinary 100
Angla Television Entertainment  United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Caritonco Forty Frve Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100
Angla Television Group Urnuited Kingdom  Qrdinary 100 Caritonca Minety-S United Kingdam  Qrdinary Cumutative 100
anglea Television Holdings United Kengdom ~ Ordinary 100 Efg‘::’;:le
Angla Television Limted UnitedKingdom _Ordinary 100 Carltonco Seventeen Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100
819 Talk Invesiments Limuted UnitedKingdom _Ordinary 100 Castiefield Properties Lumited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100
Sig Talk Jt Limited United Kingdom __Ordinary 100 Cat’s onthe Roof MediaLimited  United Kingdom  Ordinary 100
Big Talk Pictures Limited Wnited Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Central Productions Limited UntedKingdom _ Ordnary 200
Big Talk Productions Liruted United Kingdom ~ Ordinary 100 Central Televsron Lmited United Kingdom . Ordinary 00
Broad Street Films Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Channel Television Holdings UmtedKingdom _ Ordmary 200
Campania Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary, Curnulative 100 Limited

gre:!feeeﬂr::‘acI;le Cosgrove Hall Films Limited United Kingdom  Crdinary 100
Carbon Media Limited United Kingdom _ Ordinary 100 DTV Lvited UnitedKingdern  Grdinary 100
Carlton Active Liruted tnited Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Electronic Rentals Group United Kingdom _ Ordinary 100
Carlton Broadcasting Holdings UnitedXingdom  Ordinary 100 EQ Prctures Limited UnitedKingdom _ Ordinary 00
Cartton Broadcasting Limited UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 100 Film Lab North Limated Unuted Kingdom  Qrdinary 100
Carlton Cinema Limited UnitedKingdom ~ Ordinary 100 First independent Films United Kingdom _ Qrdinary 100
Carlton Content Haldings UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 00 Genesis Fitm Productions Limtted  United Kingdam  Ordinary 100
Lirmited GIL Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100
Carltan Entertasnment United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Granada AV Solutions Lirmited United Kingdem  Ordinary 100
Carlton Fitlm Distnbutors Limited  United Kingdom  Ordary 100 Granada Film Umited Kingdom  Ordinary 100
Carlton Films Lirmuted United Kingdom  Qrdnary 100 Granada Film Preductions Lmited  United Kingdom.  Qrdinary 100
Carlton Finance Limited Urited Kingdem  Ordinary 100 Granada Group Limited Unite¢ Kingdom  Crdinary Convertible 100
Carlton Food Network Limited Urnited Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Preference
Carlton Progductions Limited Urited Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Granada Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100

Granada Media Group Limited United Kingdom  Qrdinary 100
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Name Country of Interest % Name Country of Interest %
incorporation or Holding mcorporation or Holding
establishment establishiment

Granada Media Limited Unitedaingdom  Qrdinary, Part 100 ITV Supplementary Pension United Kingdom  Ordinary 100

Preference Scheme Lirmited

Granada Norminees Limited United Kngdom  Ordinary 100 ITV Tennison Limuted United Kingdom  Qrdinary 100

Granada Productions Limuted United Kingdom  Ovdinary 100 ITY Text Santa Limited United Kngdom  Ordinary 100

Granada Properties Uruted Kingdom  Ordinary 100 TV TFG Holdings Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100

Granada Screen(2005) United Kingdom  Crdinary 100 1TV Thunderbirds Limited Unrted Kingdom  Qrdinary 100

Limited ITY Tut Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100

Granada Tetevision International  UnitedKingdom  Crdinary 100 TV Ventures Lmited UnitedKingdom _ Ordinary 100

Granada Television Limited UnitedKingdom _ Ordinary 100 ITV Wales & West Group Limited ~ United Kingdom  Ordinary 100

E"r_la_lz‘:ga Television Querseas UnitedKingdom  Grdinary 100 ITV Wales & West Limited United Kingdam  Ordinary 100

Cranata TelevmmnProducoons UmtedKingdom  Ordinary 200 ITV Waorldwide Limited United Kingdem  Ordinary 100

Lirnited ITV3 Umited United Kingdom  Ordinary 00

Granada UKRental and Retail United Kingdom  Ordinary Cumiative 100 ITva Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100

Limited Preference Juice Music UK Limited Ursted Kingdom  Ordinary 100

Interactive Telephony Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Leftfield (UK) Limited United Kingdom  Qrcinary 100

International Television UmtedKingdom  Ordinary, Redeemabte 100 Link Electronscs Limited Unted Kingdarn  Ordinary 100

Tevmmbaon —— Uniedamggem Ordnary oo Loodon Newsetvork Unteg Kingdom _Oroesry

London Weekend Telewision United Kingdom  Qrdinary 100

ITCEntertainment GroupLimited  Umited Kingdor  Ordinary 100 Limited

ITC Entertaintment Holdings Liruted United Kingdorn  Ordinary 100 LWT (Holdings) Lirmited United Kingdom  Ordinary Special 100

ITV {HC) Lirrwted O United Kingdom  Ordinary 00 Deferred

1TV {(Scotland) Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 LWT Productions Limited UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 100

1TV Beowulf Limited UnitedKingdom  Qrdinary 100 Mammoth Screen (AR) Limited UnitedKingdom__ Ordinary 100

ITV Border Limited UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 100 Mammath Screen (ATTWN) United Kingdom  Ordmary 100

TV Breakfast Broadcasting United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Limuted

Limited Mammaoth Screen{BOTO)Limited  UrstedKingdom  Ordinary 100

ITV Breakfast Limited UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 100 Mammoth Screen (Bouquet} United Kingdom  Ordinary 10e

ITV Breathless Limited UnitedKingdom _ Qrdinary 100 Limited

ITV Central Limited UnitedKingdom _ Ordinary 100 Mammoth Screen (BW) Limited United Kingdom  Ordmary 100

1TV Chanmets Lmited UratedKingdomn _ Ordmary 00 Mammoth Screen (End2)Limited  UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 100

1TV Cilla rwted UrwtedKingdom _ Ordinary 00 Mammoth Screen (End3jumited Umited Kingdom  Ordinary 100

ITV Cradle Lmited UnitedKingdom _ Ordinary 100 Mammoth Screen (Falcon) Unediingdom  Ordinary 100

ITVY Digital Hotdings Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Mammaoth Screen (Monroe) UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 100

ITV Global Cantent Limited UnitedKingdom  Qrdinary 100 umited

ITV Holdings Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Mammoth Screen {(NE) Limited United Kingdom  Qrdinary 100

ITV Home Fires Limited UritedKingdom  Ordinary 100 Mammaoth Screen (Nf) Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100

ITVinternational Channels (Asia)  UnitedKingdom  Orchinary 100 Mammaoth Screen (PE) Lmited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100

Limited Mammoth Screen (Pol2)Limited  UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 100

ITV Investments Limited Urited Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Mammoth Screen (Paldark) UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 100

ITV J&H Limited UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 100 Limited

1TV Jericho Limited UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 100 Mammoth Screen (QV) Limited Uruted Kingdom  Ordinary 100

ITV JR Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Mammoth Screen (RM) Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100

ITV Lews Limited United Kingdom  Ordnary 100 Mammoth Screen (WH) Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 00

ITV LTVC (Scotland) Limited United Kingdom  Ordmary 100 Mammoaoth Screenitd United Kangdom  Ordinary 00

ITV Lucan Limited UnitedKingdom  Ordenary 100 Mendan Music Sernces Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100

1TV Mendian Limited United Kingdom  Ordwnary 100 Miltbank Studros United Kingdom  Ordinary 100

TV Moorside Limited United Kingdom  Ordwnary 100 Madern Love Films Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 0o

ITV Mr Selfndge Lirmited UnitedKingdom  Qrdmary 100 Marring TV Limited United Kngdom  Ordinary 100

ITY Newco 1Limited P United Kingdom  Ordmary 100 Mawing Pricture Company Films Uriied Kngdom  Ordinary 100

ITV News Channet Limited UnitedKingdom  Ordinary Preference 100 Limited

ITV NP Limuted United Kingdom _ Ordinary 100 Music Services Uniedfingdom __ Ordinary 100

ITV Pension Scheme Limited UnitedKingdom  Ordinary Deferred 100 LN‘mr:rdovtdence Productions UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 100

ITV Play Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Partrdge Films United Kingdom _ Ordinary 100

ITV Productions Limited UnitedKingdom  Qrdinary 100 Partndge Holdings United Kingdom _ Ordinary 00

:I:‘rt';%pertles(Develnpments) uUnitedKingdom  Ordinary 100 Partrdge Productions United Kingdam _ Ordinary 00

1TV Shetland Limited Unlted Kingdom _ Ordinary 100 Prckwick Packaging Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100

ITY Spint Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Planet 24 United Kingdom _ Ordinary 100

ITV Sport Channel Limited UmitedKingdom  Ordinary 100 Planet 24 Productions Lirmited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100

ITV Studios (lsrael) Limited UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 100 Planet Wild Productions Liited  United Kingdom  Ordinary 100
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Financial Statements

Notes to the ITV plc Company Financial Statements

continued

Name Country of Interest % Name Country of Interest %
incorparationor Holdng tncorparation or Halding
establishment establishment

Pro-\ision Facilities Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 New Waves Entertainment GmbH  Germany Ordinary 100

Rainbow Music PublishingLimuted United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Talpa Germany GmbH & Co KG Germany Ordinary 100

So Television Developments United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Talpa Germany Verwaltungs Germany Ordinary 100

Limited GmbH

So Television Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Elecrent Insurance Limited Guernsey Qrdinary 100

SelecTV Cable Urnited Kingdom  Ordinary 100 ITV Globat Entertainment Hong Kong Ordinary 100

Sightseers Film Limited UnitedKingdom  Orchinary 100 {Hong Kong) Linited

Signpost Limited UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 100 Talpa China Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 00

SOM (V) Limuted Urited Kingdom__ Ordsnary 100 CarttonHome Entertainment  Ireland Ordinary 00

Survival Anglia Urited Kingdom _ Ordinary 100 Channel Television Limited Jersey Ordinary 100

Television Music Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Creatree Chanmel Lrmited Jersey Ordnary 100

The CITV Channel Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 1TV London Properties Limied Jersey Qrdwary 00

The Garden ProductionsLimited  United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 1TV Propertres (ersey) Limited Tersey Ordiary 00

The London Studios Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 [TV {Europe) Holdings BV A Netherands Ordinary 200

VOD Member {ITV A) Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 TV Enterprses BY Netherlands Ordinary 100

:OD Tem:el;(”v B) ::"l‘(l;led 3““83 :lng:um gr:nnary :gg iTV Finance (Eurape) BV Netherlands Ordinary 100

ne Tees Television n ru ingdom  Ordh

T:ne Tees Ielewann L|:1|te: - Um::d KnngdZm Ordlnr:: Deferred 100 GlobalMusic & Talent Agency BV Netherlands Ordinary 100

Ordinary Masmedia BV Netherlands Ordinary 100

United Broadcastung & UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 100 TalpaContent 8Y Netherlands Ordinary 100

Entertainment Limited TalpaFicte Limited Netherlands Ordinary 100

United Broadcasting United Kingdom  Ordinary Special 100 Talpa Germany Holding BV Netherlands Ordinary 100

United Broadcasting Holdings Urited Kingdom  Ordinary 100 TalpaGlobalBV Netherlands Ordinary 100

United Broadcasting South United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Talpa Non-Spot BV Netherlands Qrdinary 100

Westcountry Television Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 Talpa Producties BV Netherlands Qrdmary 100

Wildlife Film Productions United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 UtopiaBv Netherlands Orchnary 100

Yorkshire Televiston Lmited Urited Kingdom  Qrdinary Deferred 100 Wardour Street Films BV Netherlands Ordinary 100

Ordinary ITV Studios Nordic AB Sweden Ordinary 100

t”cln'::tser::jre Tyne Tees Productions  UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 100 ITV Studios Norway AS Norway Ordinary 100

Yorkshire-Tyne Tees Television United Kingdom  Ordinary 100 12¥ard Hotdings Inc. United States Commen 100

Enterprises Limited Anglia Televisian Inc United States Common 100

Yorkshire-Tyne Tees Television UnitedKimgdom  Orchnary 100 Astrum Productions, Inc United States Common 100

Holdings. Cardinal Productions of Qhio Inc~ United States Common 100

Z Music Publishwng Lirited UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 100 Carlton Media Company Inc. United States Common 100

Zebedee Productions Limited UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 100 Electric Farm Entertalnment United States Common 00

Artrst Services Cable Pty Ltd Australia Ordmary 100 Holdings, Inc.

Artist Services Investments Australia Ordinary 100 Granada Amerca Inc. United States Comman 100

Pty Limited Granada Cracker US Productions  United States Commaon 100

;;‘tﬁ.tt gewlces Productlons Australia Ordinary 00 Granada Television International ~ United $tates Common 100

Inc

Granada Media International Australia Ordinary 100 Hamdon Entertainment e United States Comman 100

(Australia) PryLtd ITC Distribution LLC United States Common 100

g:;arg;alal;ﬂ;gi;r;estments Australia Ordinary 100 ITC Entertainment Group Inc Urited States Common 100

Granada Productions Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100 ITC Films LLC United States Common 100

ITV Studios Australia Factual Australia Ordinary 100 ITC Productions LLC United States Comman 100

Pty Limited ITV Belteve Holding Inc United States Comman 100

ITV Studios Australia Pty Limited  Australia Ordinary 100 ITV Diga Halding Inc United States Commaon 100

Leftfield Australia Pty Ltd Australia QOrdinary 100 ITV Globat Entertanment, Inc United States Common 100

Totally Full Frontal Productions Australia Ordinary 100 1TV Gurney Holding Inc United States Common 100

Pty Limited ITV HN Holding Inc UnitedStates  Comman 100

Granada Decemnber Eight Limited  Caymanlslands  Ordunary 100 ITV International Corparation United States Common 00

Granada December NingLimited  Caymanislands  Ordinary Preference 100 1TV Leftfield Holding, Inc Urited States Common 100

1TV Holdings (Cayman) Limited Caymanislands  Ordinary 100 1TV Papca Holding Inc Ursted States Common 100

United Production ApS Denmark Ordinary 100 ITV ThinkfactoryHolding Ing United States Common 100

1TV 5tudios Finland Oy Finland Ordinary 100 ITV Tomorrow Holding tnc, United States Common 100

ITV Studios, France SAS France Ordinary 00 1TV US Holdings, Inc. United States Common 100

ITV Studios Germany GmbH Germany Ordinary 100 ITV US Productions Inc UnitedStates  Common 100

g"“_"tsﬂt_:"d'“ Germany Haldings Germany Ordhnary oo JB Entertainment Holding United States Comman 100

Company Inc

Newtopia GmbH Germany Ordinary 100
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Name Country of Interest % Name Country Interest %
incorporation or Halding TwoFour Group Holdings Limited  Urwted Kingdom  Ordinary & Ordinary B, 75
extablistment Ordinary C Ordmary D
Kirkstall Road Enterpnses inc United States Comman 100 Preferred A Preferred 8,
LWT Enterprises Inc. United States Common 100 PreferredC
Qver the Pond Productions, Inc United States Common 100 Bulb Films Limited Uruted Kingdom _ Ordinary 75
Quay Street Enterprises Inc United States Comman 100 Calon/Boomerang JV Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 375
Red Orange Productions 1LC United States Common 100 g\r’;‘dh:l);i;fg g;,‘ fAl Fresco UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 75
20 Telewision US inc United States Ordinary 100 Cynhyrchiadau BoomerangCyf  UnitedKngdom  Ordinary 75
JalpaMedia USA Inc UntedStates _Common 100 Double Doubte Limited UnitedKmgdom _ Ordinary 75
Upper Ground Enterprises Inc. United States Ordwnary 100 Fhliau Apollo CyF United Kingdorn_ Ordmary 75
Zinna Productions Umited States Common 100 FRuc Gy United Fangdom  Ordnary 75
Key: Gonilla TV Group Limited United Kingdom  Ordthary 75
() Subsidiary directly owned by ITV plc Gonlla TV Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 75
Indus Films Liruted United Kingdom  Ordinary 75
Joint Ventures and Investments Teledu Apollo Cyf United Kingdom  Ordinary 75
Name Country Interest % Twofour Broadcast Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 75
Absolutely Rights Limited UnitedKingdom  Curmulatve Redeermable 20 Twofour Group Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 75
Preference Second Act Productions Limited  UnitedKingdom  Ordinary A 7407
rat p":ﬁfmﬂ Webb UnitedKingdom  Ordinary C 20 Jsitymedia Limited UnitedKingdom _ Ordinary A OrdmaryB 80
DTV Services Linsted United Kingdom  Ordinary 20 GC Fitms Pty Limited Australia Ordinary ks
Monumental TelevisonLimited  Umted Kingdom  Orchnary A 2492 E:’rf;k;:ﬁgfv Productions Canada Comman 85
Channel Mum Limited UnitedKingdom  Ordinary A 25 TV Holdwngs {Cayman) Limited Caymanislands  Ordinary 667
Clearcast Limited Urited Kingdom  Ordinary 25 Talpa Nordic ApS Denmark Ordinary )
SANUKLmited United Kingdom _ Ordinary 5 Imago TV Filmund Germany Ordmary 1A 24 2C 34 80
Thinkbox TV Linuted United Kingdom  Ordinary 2858 Fernsehproduktion GmbH
Cirkus Lunited United Kingdom  Ordinary D 2941 TheLabTelevision 2093 Limited  Israel Qrdinary 50
Malacara Limited UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 3675 Partnership
Harlequin Agency Limited UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 75 Talpa itatia Srl Italy Ordnary 50
MediasCreative Limited UritedKingdom  Ordinary 3532 Rangers Productions SRL Mexico Comman €5
MediasEnterpnses Liruted UmtedKingdom  Ordinary 3532 Identity Mansion BV, Netherlands Ordinary 25
Pink Rose 8ud Limited UnitedKingdom  Ordinary A 375 TalpaArabiaHolding Ltd {VAE) _ UAE Ordinary 90
Mainstreet Arlington UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 3825 Maximum Media Production UAE Ordinary 90
Productions Limited FZLLC (VAE)
Mainstreet Pictures Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary A 3825 TolpaMuddle East FS-LLC(VAE)  UAE Ordinary 20
Bait Studio Limited UnitedKingdom _ Ordiinary 25 Eight Bells Productions LLC United States Commaon 60
ClothCat Ammation Limited UnitedKingdom  Ordinary £125 What's the Business LLC United States Common 60
Thud Meda United Kingdom  Ordinary 4125 FT Productions, LLC United States Common 615
Bone Kickers Limited United Kingdom  Ordinary 50 Shinna, LLC United States Common 6325
Box Clever TechnologyLimited  UmitedKingdom  Ordinary 50 Crew Ready Everywhere LLC United States Common 65
Bntish Film-Makers Limited UnitedKingdom  Ordwnary B 50 Hatfreld and McCoy United States Commton 65
Productions LLC
Colmbia Tnstar Cartton UnitedKingdam  Ordnary 8 0 Highball Music Group LLC UnitedStates__ Common 65
Gameface ProguctionsLimited  UnmitedKingdom  Ordinary A 50 LGFilms LLC UnitedStates  Common 65
Noho Fitm and Televisionimited_ United Kingdom _ Ordinary A 50 Marrage Boot CampRealiy United States  Comman 65
Standard Music Limited UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 50 MDQ;.lartet Tic Urnted States Common s
TalpaMedia UK Ltd UnitedKingdom  Ordinary A 50 Signal Past Faciies LLC Urnted States Common 5
Lenlf'\tl;scllon Media Marketing UnitedKingdom  Ordinary A 50 Sound and Stage Studos LLC Unied States Common &5
Possessed Limited UnitedKingdom _ Ordinary B 51 Texas Rangers LLC United States Common 65
OSF (Wales) Lmited UnitedKingdom _ Ordinary a6 37 Thinkfactary Media LLC United States Comman 65
Oxford Scientific Films Umited  UnitedKingdom  Ordinary, Ordinary B~ 4627 WebLegal, LLC United States Comman 65
Adnoddau Zoom Cyf UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 75 Westside FilmPartners LLC Uruted States Common 65
Boom Cymru TV Ltd UmtedKingdom  Ordinary 75 Loud Telewision LLC United States Common 75
Boom Pictures Lmited UnitedKingdom  Ordinary 75 Next Step Productions, LLC United States Common 75
Outpost Entertainment LLC United States Commaon 80
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Notes to the ITV plc Company Financial Statements
continued

Memberships and Companies Limited by Guarantee

Membership and Guarantee Country Interest % Membership and Guarantee Country Interest %
ITV Netherlands Cooperatief Netherlands Membership 100 Sirens Project 1326, LLC United States Membership 00
wa Sirens Project 1408 LLC United States Membership 100
g:‘::é]_lsl ?H'Sh Linnited United Kmgdom - Partnership 0o Sirens Project 1410 LLC United Statas Membership 100
ITV Scottish Limuted Partnershup United Kingdom  Partnership 100 g;s:f;:rf::fﬂ_c United States Membersfup 00
DTT Multiplex Operators Limited  United Kingdom  Guarantee 25 Sumshine Producons United States Memberstep 100
Digntal Production Partnership United Kingdom  Guarantee 50 Holdings LLC
Limited Sunshine Productions LLC United States Membership 100
f'rr':"isz')s Rights Agency UnitedKingdom  Guarantee 50 Sunshine Productions Umited States Membership 100
Holdings LLC
Appalachian Rentals LLC UnitedStates Membership 160 Sunshine Productions LLC United States Membership 100
Bluegrass Productions LLC Uruted States Membershep 100 Wark Shop of NY LLC Urited States Membership 100
Chad Alan Productions, LLC United States Membership 100 Jaffe/Braunsten Umited States Membership 51
Double DewnFilms LLC United States Membership 100 Entertainment LLC
Doubte Down Films Holdings, LLC  United States Membership 100 High Npon East, LLC Uruted States Membership 60
Franconia Productions LLC United States Membership 100 High Noon Group LLC Uruted States Membership &0
Gator Productions, LLC United States Membership 100 High Noon Productions LLC United States Membership 60
LeftfietdEntertainment CA LLC  United States Membership 100 High Noon West LLC United States Membership a0
Leftfield LA LLC United States Membership 100 Feeding Time Productions LLC Uruted States Membership 615
Leftfield Prctures of NY United States Membership 100 Gurney Productions LLC United States Membership 615
Holdings, LLC Holtywood Cameras and United States Membership 615
Leftfield Pictures of NY LLC United States Membership 100 Lighting LLC
Leftfield Ventures LLC United States Membership 100 RICMA, LLC United States Membership 615
Moving Pictures Seraces, Inc. United States Membership 100 Brat Bngade LLC United States Membership 6325
Oaklawn Pacific Properties LLC  United States Membership 100 Deep Gotham Post LLC United States Membership 6325
Out of Play Praductions LLC United States Membership 100 DgaHoldings LLC United States Membership 6325
Ozark Pictures LLC Uruted States Membership 100 Dga Production Studios, LEC United States Membership 6325
Sirens Media, LLC Urwted States Membership 100 Duga, LLC United States Membership 6325
Sirens Project 1203 LLC United States Membership 100 Film Productions Rentals LLC United States Membership 65
Swens Project 1213 LLC Uruted States Membership 100 Thinkfactory Group LLC United States Membership 65
Serens Project 1216 LLC United States Membership 100 1016 Productions LLC Unsted States Membershup 75
Strens Project 1247 LLC Unuted States Membership 100 6565 Productions Studios 2,LLC  United States Memberstup 75
Serens Project 1218 LLC Uruted States Membershup 100 6565 Productions Studios 3,LLC  United States Membership 75
Sirens Project 1219 LLC United States Membershup 100 6565 Productions Studios 4 LLC  United States Membership 75
Sirens Project 1223 LLC United States Membership 100 6565 Productions Studios LLC Urited States Membership 75
Sirens Project 1224 LLC United States Membership 100 Allwn Post LLC Urited States Membership 75
Sirens Project 1226, LLC United States Membership 100 Cheese Stnng Studios, LLC Unitad States Membership 75
Sirens Project 1227 LLC United States Membership 100 In Reality Productions LLC Urited States Membership 75
Sirens Project 1307 LLC United States Membership 100 East Olive Productions LLC United States Membership 75
Sirens Project 1303, LLC United States Membership 100 Twofour America LLC Umited States Membership 75
Strens Project 1309 LLC Umited States Membership 100 Twofour Broadcast Media LLC United States Membership 75
Sirens Project 1316 LLC United States Membership 100

Principal joint ventures, associated undertakings and investments
The Company indirectly held at 31 Decemnber 2015 the following interests in sigrificant jont ventures, associates and nvestments

Interestinordinary  Interest nordmary
share capital 2015 share capital 2014
% %

Name Principal actvity

Joint Ventures

Freesat (UK} Limited 500 500 Provision of a standard and high definition enabled digital satellite proposition
Degital 3 & 4 Lirmited 500 500 Operates the Channel 3 & 4 digital terrestrial mudtiplex

Associates

Independent Telewision News Limited (ITN} 400 400 Supply of news services to broadcasters in the UK and elsewhere

Avalable for sale investments

Tomarrow ITV Studios LLC (1) - - Production of scnpted content

Key

(1) 25% preferredinterest
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P shareholder Information

Shareholder Information

Shareholder profile

Holders Shares held
Informatron as at 31 0ecember 2015 Nurmber % Miltions %
Type of holder
Insurance cormpanies 5 oM 0 000
Banks and nominee companies 3,097 552 3,891 96 65
Individuals 51,644 9203 120 297
Others 1,373 244 14 038
Totals 56,119 100 4,025 100

Holders

Number % Shares held %
Size of holding:
1-100 9,381 1672 328102 oo
101-200 7,500 1336 1126,231 Q03
201-500 14,067 2507 4567672 on
501-1,000 8,967 1598 6,564,924 016
1,001 - 2,000 6,916 1232 10,016,277 025
2,001-5,000 5,061 a0 15,778,685 039
5,001-10,000 1,815 323 12,823179 032
10,001 - 50,000 1,356 242 27,153,400 067
50,001-100,000 220 039 15,364,910 038
100,001 - 500,000 370 066 94,301,108 234
500,001-1,000,000 138 025 100,420,701 249
1,000,001 - 5,000,000 210 036 506,744,652 1260
5,000,001-10,000,000 53 010 377,538,681 938
10,000,001 -50,0600,000 49 010 1,077,825,229 2678
50,000,001 and above 16 003 1,774,855,443 4409
Totals 56,119 100 4,025,409,194 100
Company website Registrars and transfer office

Investor and shareholder-related information, including the
current price of ITV plc shares, can be found on the Company
website at

(©) www itvplc.com

Financial calendar
Ex-dividend date for the Final and

Special dividend 28 Apnil 2016
Record date for the Final and Specialdividend 29 April 2016
Annual General Meeting 12 May 2016
Interim Management Staterment 12 May 2016

Payment date for the Final and Special Dividend 27 May 2016

Half year results announcement 27 July 2016

Registered office

The London Tetevision Centre
Upper Ground

London

SE19LT

(@ 0207157 3000
Company registration number 4967001

All administrative engquines relating to shareholdings and
requests to receive corporate documents should be directed
1o Capita Asset Services, The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road,
Beckenham, BR3 4TU They can be contacted by telephone on

@ 0371664 0300 from the UK (calls cost 12 pence per munute plus
network charges) and

@ +44 20 8639 3399 from outside the UK (calts UK will be charged
at the applicable international rate)

Lines are open Monday toFniday900am to530pm

Alternatively you could email them at

(@) shareholderenquines@capita co uk

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting witl be held on Thursday, 12 May
2016 at 1100 a m at the Queen Elizabeth Il Conference Centre,
Broad Sanctuary, Westminster, London SW1P 3EE The Notice
of the AGM contains an explanation of special business to be
considered at the meeting and a copy of this s available on the
Company website

@ www itvplc com/investors/annual-general-meeting
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Additional Information

Glossary

Broadcasters’ Audience Research
Board (BARB) - organisation owned by
broadcasters and advertisers providing
data on tmear and online television
viewing statistics by UK households

Catch up viewing - non-live viewing
of recently broadcast television
programmes, either via arecording
device (oftencalled a PVR or DTR) such
as Sky+ or through a Video on Demand
service such as the ITV Hub, BBC iPlayer,
All4 orDemand 5

Channel 3 lcences - the 15 regional
licences and one national licence
awarded to transmit Channel 3 across
the UK All are owned by ITV with the
exception of three of the regional
licences, two of which are owned by STV
and one by UTV {ITV completed the
acquisition of UTV on 29th February 2016)

Contract Rights Renewal (CRR) - the
remedy agreed by Carlton and Granada
in 2003 as a pre-condition of the merger,
which governs the way inwhich ITV
artime 15 sold by [TV to its advertising
customers

Digital switchover - termination

in 2012 of the analogue terrestrial
television signal BBC1,BBC2, 1TV,
Channel 4 and Channel 5 were broadcast
inanalogue

Free-to-Air (FTA) television —viewing
of television through devices not
requirng a subscription such as the
Freeview or Freesat services

High Definition (HO) - channels or
services broadcast in substantially
higher resolution than standard,
providing improved picture quality

Impact or Commercial Impact - one
Commercial Impact 1s defined as one
viewer watching one 30-second
television commercial

ITV Family - the ITV family of channels
which includes ITV, ITVZ2, ITV3, ITV4,
ITVBe, TV Encore, CITV, ITV Breakfast,
CITV Breakfast and all associated +1
and HD equivalents Viewing figures
include the whole of the ITV network
Revenue figures include only ITV plc
operated regions

Linear television - television service
where the viewer has to watch a
scheduled TV program at the particular
time it's offered, and on the particular
channelit's presented on

Long form video requests - video
requests are a measure of the total
number of videos viewed across all
ptatforms (such as itv com, Virgin and
mobie devices) Along forrmwideos a
programme that has been broadcast on
television and is available to watch
online and on demand in its entirety

Media sales commission — commission
earned by ITV plc on sales of artime on
behalf of the non-consolidated licensees

Net Advertising Revenue (NAR) - the
amount of money received by a
broadcaster as payment for television
spot advertising net of any commission
paid to agencies

Total Schedule Costs/Total Network
Programme Budget (NPB) — the budget
spent on programming broadcast on
the ITV Family of channels, including
spend on regional programming and

TV Breakfast

Non-consolidated licensees - the
three regional channel 3 licences which
ITV does not own These licences are
ownedby 5TV and UTV and revenues
received from these licences for ITV
pragramming content are referred to as
minority revenues {(ITV completed the
acquisition of UTV on 29th February 2016)

Non-NAR revenue - non-NAR revenue
includes all ITV revenue, both internal
and external, except net advertising
revenue (NAR) This includes inter-
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segment revenue from the sale of ITV
Studios shows to the ITV Network

Ofcom - independent regulator and
competition authority for the UK
communications

Over-the-top content (OTT) - delivery
of audio, video, and other media over
the Internet, this ncludes content

frorm providers such as Netflix, Amazon
and Hulu and also our own on demand
service, the [TV Hub

SDN - multiplex operator owned by ITV
which operates one of the eight national
multiplex licences in the UK on Freeview

Share of Broadcast (SOB) - ITV's share
of UK television advertising revenue
{NAR}, a measure of market share

Share of Commercial Impacts (S0CI) -
the term used to define the share of
total UK telewision commercial impacts
whichis delivered by one channel

or group of channels This measure
excludes viewing of BBC channels

as they do not generate commercial
impacts Unless stated otherwise, SOCI
figures cited throughout this report
are based on BARB data and are based
on the universe of Adults (16+)

Share of Viewing (SOV) — the share

of the total viewing audience during a
defined period gained by a programme
or channel This measure includes
viewing of BBC channels Unless stated
otherwise, SOV figures cited throughout
this report are based on BARB data and
are based on the universe of ndiwiduals

Video on Demand (VOD) - the ability
to deliver video content to a customer’s
television set, computer or device when
the customer requestsit

YouView - ajoint venture (with the BBC,
Channel 4, Channel 5,BT, TalkTalk, and
Arqiva) to operate and promote a

hybrid television platform combining
Freeview channels with catch up and

on demand services
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